
 
 

PROPOSED AGENDA 
LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
September 9, 2021 

 
DATE: Thursday, September 9, 2021 
 
TIME: 6:00 p.m. 
  
PLACE: East Las Vegas Library 
 2851 East Bonanza Road 
 Las Vegas, NV 89101 
 
  AND  
 
 Online via Webex. Connection information is listed on page 6    
 
 The Agenda and Board meeting documents can be found at 

https://lvccld.org/board/board-of-trustees-meetings/  
 
   
I. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II. Public Comment 

 
Topics raised under this item must be limited to matters on today’s Agenda. 
Anyone wishing to speak during this item must sign-up on the roster 
provided prior to the public comment period. The sign-up must include the 
commenter’s name, legal address, and the agenda item that is being 
commented on. Commenters should state if they want their remarks 
included in the minutes of the meeting. If there is no agenda item listed, 
the person will be called on at the end of the meeting.  

 
Remarks by speakers during the public comment period shall be limited to 
three (3) minutes, each. A speaker may not transfer time to another 
speaker; although, the Chair has the authority to grant additional time to a 
speaker.  

 
Anyone wishing to comment via email under this item must send an email 
to boardcomments@lvccld.org.  The email must include the commenter's 
name, legal address, and the agenda item that is being commented on. 
Email comments are limited to 500 in words in length and must also identify 
whether the commenter wants their remarks to be included in the minutes 
of the meeting. Any comments which do not state the commenter's name, 
legal address, or exceed 500 words in length shall not be considered.  
 
Any comments which do not identify an agenda item will be read at the end 
of the meeting. 
  

ITEM III. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item III - Agenda

1



Agenda – Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
September 9, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 

The public comment period at library district board meetings shall be limited 
to a maximum of forty-five (45) minutes for both periods of public comment. 
Remarks by speakers during the public comment period shall be limited to 
three (3) minutes, each. A speaker may not transfer time to another 
speaker; although, the chair has the authority to grant additional time to a 
speaker. When more than fifteen (15) people wish to comment, the chair 
shall proportionately reduce the time allotted to the forty-five minute 
maximum. 
 

III. Board Action to accept Proposed Agenda (For possible action) 
 

IV. Approval of Proposed Minutes (For possible action) 
 
A. Regular Board Meeting, June 25, 2021 
B. Board Retreat, June 25, 2021 
C. Emergency Board Meeting, July 6, 2021 
D. Regular Board Meeting, July 8, 2021 

  
V. Chair’s Report 

 
A. Possible Board discussion regarding the 2022 Board Meeting Schedule. 
B. Possible Board discussion regarding the Chair’s report. 

 
VI. Library Reports 

Possible Board discussion of one or more staff reports outlining library 
activities and highlighting selected administrative activities following the 
preceding Board meeting.   
 
Trustees should indicate the individual reports they would prefer to discuss. 
 
A. Executive Director’s Report  - Kelvin Watson 

1. District Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic through fiscal year 
2021. 

 
2. Program and Delivery Services 

a. Library Operations and Security Reports and Monthly Statistics  
 

3. Program Support Services 
a. Branding and Marketing Report and Monthly Statistics 
b. Community Engagement Report and Monthly Statistics 
c. Development and Planning Report  
d. Information Technology Report  

 
4. Administrative Support Services 

a. Financial Services Report  
b. General Services Report  
c. Human Resources Report  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item III - Agenda

2



Agenda – Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
September 9, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 

 
VII. Unfinished Business 

 
None. 
 

VIII. New Business 
 

A. Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda may be approved in its entirety by a motion or 
individual items may be considered separately. 
 
1. Discussion and possible Board action to retract approval for the 

Library District’s closure on October 11, 2021 for Staff Development 
Day. 
 

2. Discussion and possible Board action to approve the days of closing 
for calendar year 2022. 

 
3. Discussion and possible Board action to approve the District’s Workers 

Compensation Insurance.  
 

4. Discussion and possible Board action regarding a contract award with 
KME Architects for architectural consulting services for the 
development of a building program for a possible relocation of the 
West Las Vegas Library.  

 
5. Discussion and possible Board action to appoint the President of the 

East Las Vegas QALICB, Inc. Board of Directors.  
 
B. Regular Agenda 

1. Discussion and possible Board action to have periodic performance 
reviews of the Executive Director. 

 
IX. Announcements 

 
The Las Vegas-Clark County Library District and Regional Transportation 
Commission of Southern Nevada will jointly launch a commuter campaign 
promoting access to e-books, audiobooks, and magazines. The event will 
occur at the East Las Vegas Library, 2851 E. Bonanza Rd, Las Vegas, NV 
89101 on Thursday, September 16, 2021 at 9:30a.m. 

 
The next Board Meeting will be held Thursday, October 14, 2021 at 6:00 
p.m. at the Enterprise Library, 8310 S. Las Vegas Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 
89123. 
 
The November Board meeting will be held on Wednesday, November 10, 
2021, at 6:00 p.m. at the Whitney Library.  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item III - Agenda

3



Agenda – Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
September 9, 2021 
Page 4 
 

 

 
The December Board meeting will be held on Thursday, December 9, 2021, 
at 6:00 p.m. at the Windmill Library. 
 
 
 

X. Public Comment 
 
Topics raised under this item must be limited to matters on today’s Agenda. 
Anyone wishing to speak during this item must sign-up on the roster 
provided prior to the public comment period. The sign-up must include the 
commenter’s name, legal address, and the agenda item that is being 
commented on. Commenters should state if they want their remarks 
included in the minutes of the meeting. If there is no agenda item listed, 
the person will be called on at the end of the meeting.  

 
Remarks by speakers during the public comment period shall be limited to 
three (3) minutes, each. A speaker may not transfer time to another 
speaker; although, the Chair has the authority to grant additional time to a 
speaker.  

 
Anyone wishing to comment via email under this item must send an email 
to boardcomments@lvccld.org. The email must include the commenter's 
name, legal address, and the agenda item that is being commented on. 
Email comments are limited to 500 in words in length and must also identify 
whether the commenter wants their remarks to be included in the minutes 
of the meeting. Any comments which do not state the commenter's name, 
legal address, or exceed 500 words in length shall not be considered.  
 
Any comments which do not identify an agenda item will be read at the end 
of the meeting. 
  
The public comment period at library district board meetings shall be limited 
to a maximum of forty-five (45) minutes for both periods of public comment. 
Remarks by speakers during the public comment period shall be limited to 
three (3) minutes, each. A speaker may not transfer time to another 
speaker; although, the chair has the authority to grant additional time to a 
speaker. When more than fifteen (15) people wish to comment, the chair 
shall proportionately reduce the time allotted to the forty-five minute 
maximum. 

 
XI. Executive Session regarding litigation and budget issues.  If necessary, this 

will be a closed session estimated to require up to 45 minutes. 
 
XII. Adjournment 
 

NOTE: AT ANY TIME, ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item III - Agenda

4



Agenda – Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
September 9, 2021 
Page 5 
 

 

ORDER, COMBINED WITH ONE OR MORE OTHER ITEMS ON THE  
AGENDA OR REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA, EITHER AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIR OR BY VOTE OF THE BOARD. 

 
 
NOTE: REASONABLE EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO ASSIST AND 

ACCOMMODATE PERSONS WITH PHYSICAL DISABILITIES DESIRING 
TO ATTEND THE MEETING.  PLEASE CALL EBONI NANCE AT (702) 
507-6186 SO THAT ARRANGEMENTS FOR ATTENDANCE MAY BE 
MADE NO LATER THAN 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 

 
NOTE: PLEASE CONTACT EBONI NANCE AT (702) 507-6186 OR 

nanceea@lvccld.org TO REQUEST THE SUPPORTING MATERIAL FOR 
THIS MEETING.  SUPPORTING MATERIAL CAN BE FOUND AT 
https://lvccld.org/board/board-of-trustees-meetings/. 

 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, this item has been properly noticed and posted online 
at the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District website, www.lvccld.org and at 
Nevada Public Notice at https://notice.nv.gov.  Written notice of the meeting of 
the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Board of Trustees was given on 
Thursday, September 2, 2021, i.e., given at least three (3) working days before 
the meeting, including in the notice the time, way to access the meeting, and 
agenda of the meeting: 
 

A. By delivering a copy of the notice to each Library Trustee; 
 

B. By posting a copy of the notice at the principal office of the Library 
Trustees, or if there is no principal office, at the building in which the 
meeting is to be held, and at least three other separate, prominent 
places within the jurisdiction of the Trustees, to wit: 
 

1. Clark County Library 
1401 E. Flamingo Road 
Las Vegas, NV  89119 

 
2. East Las Vegas Library 

2851 E Bonanza Road 
Las Vegas, NV  89101 

 
  3.  Sunrise Library 
       5400 Harris Avenue 
       Las Vegas, NV  89110 
 
  4.  West Charleston Library 
       6301 W. Charleston Boulevard 
       Las Vegas, NV  89146 
 
  5.  West Las Vegas Library 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item III - Agenda

5



Agenda – Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
September 9, 2021 
Page 6 
 

 

       951 W. Lake Mead Boulevard 
       Las Vegas, NV  89106 
 
 
 
  6.  Windmill Library 
       7060 W. Windmill Lane 
       Las Vegas, NV  89113 

 
     8.  Las Vegas-Clark County Library District website 
          www.lvccld.org  

 
 
C. By mailing a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has requested 

notice of the meetings of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library Board of 
Trustees in the same manner in which notice is requested to be mailed 
to a member of the Library Board of Trustees. 

 
D. Online Connection information: 
   
 Webex Connection information: 
 https://lvccld.webex.com 
 Event number (access code):  2494 542 2644 
 Password: 090921RBM 
 Join by phone: +1 (408) 418-9388 
 Use same meeting number 
 Join from a video system or application: 
 24945422644@lvccld.webex.com  
 You can also dial 173.243.2.68 and enter your meeting number. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item III - Agenda

6



 

PROPOSED MINUTES 
LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ MEETING 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 
Friday, June 25, 2021 

 
The Board of Trustees of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District met in regular session in the 
East Las Vegas Library, Las Vegas, Nevada, at 7:30 a.m., Friday, June 25, 2021. 
 
Present: Board: F. Ortiz, Chair  K. Benavidez 
   E. Foyt    N. Waugh 
   S. Ramaker  B. Wilson  
   J. Meléndrez  K. Rogers 
   J. Jiron   K. Turner Whiteley 
    
 Counsel: G. Welt 
   
 Absent:  
 
 Staff: Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
  Numerous Staff 
 

 Guests:   
 
F. Ortiz, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:33 a.m. 

 

Roll Call and Pledge 
of Allegiance                     
(Item I.)  

All members listed above represent a quorum.  Appendix A. 

Chair Ortiz led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Public Comment 
(Item II.) 

None. 

Agenda                     
(Item III.) 

Trustee Ramaker moved to approve the Agenda as proposed. There was 
no opposition and the motion carried. 

Approval of 
Proposed Minutes 
Special Meetings, 
December 4, 2021 
and June 5, 2021. 
Regular Board 
Meetings, November 
12, 2021, February 
18, 2021, April 8, 
2021 and May 20, 
2021.                
(Item IV.A-F.) 

June 5, 2021 Special Board Meeting Minutes were tabled for approval 
at next Regular Board meeting. 

Trustee Waugh moved to approve the following meeting Minutes: 

• Regular Board Meeting, November 12, 2020 

• Special Board Meeting, December 4, 2020 

• Regular Board Meeting, February 18, 2021 

• Regular Board Meeting, April 8, 2021 

• Regular Board Meeting, May 20, 2021 

There was no opposition and the motion carried.  

Chair’s Report     
(Item V.A.) 

Chair Ortiz shared gratitude toward the current Board of Trustees and 
past members. He stated that the District is a model for all other 
Districts around the country.  

Library Reports   
(Item VI.) 

Trustee Melendrez moved to accept Library Reports VI 1-3.  There was 
no opposition and the reports were accepted. 

ITEM IV.A. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

7



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Regular Meeting 
June 25, 2021 
Page 2  

 
Acting Executive 
Director’s Report               
(Item VI.A.) 

Executive Director, Kelvin Watson had nothing to add to his written 
report but did ask if there were any questions. Mr. Watson added that 
the report covered his May 2021 activities and that he has been active 
with local and national meetings to continue to move the Library 
District forward.  

There were no questions from the Trustees. Trustee Waugh thanked 
Mr. Watson for attending the Hope for Prisoners bbq event.  

Prior to taking questions from Trustees for Department Reports, Chair 
Ortiz thanked staff for their job in reporting and ensuring transparency 
and accountability, statistically and performance wise.  

Library Operations, 
Security Reports 
and Monthly 
Statistics (Item 
VI.A.1.a.) 

Trustee Turner Whitely asked Director of Library Operations, Leo 
Segura if it was possible to get numbers from 2019 to compare to 2021 
instead of using statistics from 2020, during the pandemic. Mr. Segura 
stated that he would have the statistics at the next Board Meeting.  

Branding and 
Marketing Report 
and Electronic 
Resources Statistics 
(Item VI.A.2.a.) 

Trustee Wilson commented that he is working with Director of Branding 
and Marketing, Betsy Ward and Executive Director, Kelvin Watson on 
the web analytics. He stated that it should reflect how much is coming 
in from outside the libraries, from the branches, areas of the city and 
what zip codes are making use of online services the best. Mr. Wilson 
stated that it should be some real education for the District and the 
potential of the West Las Vegas Library. He stated that the hope is to 
provide the Board with details to what the interests are of the people in 
the zip codes surrounding the West Las Vegas location.  

Trustee Turner Whiteley asked Ms. Ward if there was a way to see how 
social posts and the traction they receive, rank historically. Turner 
Whiteley stated that she was curious about trends more than actual 
numbers. Turner Whitely also asked about how brochures are being 
utilized outside of the libraries and asked if they are being shared with 
community partners. 

Ms. Ward stated that the plan is to share brochures with partners and 
offered Trustees brochures to take with them at end of meeting. 
Trustee Turner Whiteley also encouraged the other Trustee members to 
consider ways to help get brochures about District projects to 
community partners.  

Community 
Engagement Report 
and Monthly 
Statistics               
(Item VI.A.2.b.) 

Trustee Turner Whiteley thanked the Community Engagement team for 
their outreach efforts, including the Channel 13 weather segment and 
STEAM videos in addition to the cultural programming. Turner Whiteley 
also asked if the Senior Center lobby visits were suspended due to 
COVID. Director of Community Engagement, Matt McNally clarified that 
COVID is the reason the Outreach Services Department has not 
continued the visits and also stated that a lot more of the Outreach 
services are being geared toward early childhood education.  

Mr. Watson added that the Strategic Plan addresses most of the 
questions that were asked.  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

8



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Regular Meeting 
June 25, 2021 
Page 3  

 
Development and 
Planning Report 
(Item VI.A.2.c.) 

No questions. 

Information 
Technology Report              
(Item VI.A.2.d.) 

No questions. 

Financial Services 
Report              
(Item VI.A.3.a.) 

No questions. 

General Services 
Report              
(Item VI.A.3.b.) 

No questions. 

Human Resources 
Report              
(Item VI.A.3.c.) 

No questions. 

Unfinished Business 
(Item VII.) 

None. 

New Business   
(Item VIII) 

 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to approve 
the Technology Plan 
for Las Vegas-Clark 
County Library 
District: FYE 2022-
2026                 
(Item VIII.A.) 

CIO/IT Director, Al Prendergast presented the Technology Plan for Las 
Vegas-Clark County Library District for Fiscal Years 2022-2026.  

Chair Ortiz asked Trustees if there were any questions.  

Trustee Turner Whiteley asked Mr. Prendergast if replacing the 
District’s computers every five years was a problem. Mr. Prendergast 
replied that going five years will not sacrifice anything but some of the 
computers do need to be replaced for the public. Trustee Meléndrez 
added that UNLV has a similar policy of replacing computers every five 
years. 

Trustee Turner Whiteley also asked about expanding digital access and 
its impact on people getting library cards. Mr. Prendergast explained 
that by expanding digital access, it makes it easier for people to get 
library cards. Hence, the creation of the digital eCard. Mr. Prendergast 
added that people are able to go through the verification process and 
receive a card without leaving their home.  

Trustee Jiron expressed gratitude on how the District worked during 
the pandemic to provide for the community, including: 

• Outreach 

• Assisting people with Wi-Fi 

• Assisting people with Chromebooks 

• Reaching out to the kids 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

9



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Regular Meeting 
June 25, 2021 
Page 4  

 
Trustee Foyt complimented Mr. Prendergast on all of the work that was 
done.  

Trustee Benavidez asked Mr. Prendergast for things that could be 
highlighted that have changed so drastically, and once implemented, 
would get the District back on track? Mr. Prendergast explained that 
obtaining the Chromebooks through Vegas Strong Academies to assist 
the libraries and CCSD helped in getting things up and running. He 
added that providing those kinds of technologies is an example of how 
technology has changed and how people at work have changed. 

Chair Ortiz commented that he felt that this is an area where there is 
the greatest opportunity to expand the District’s services. Chair Ortiz 
asked Mr. Prendergast what was a Technology Bus. Mr. Prendergast 
replied that the Technology Bus is a new project. He explained that it is 
a vehicle that is equipped with computing equipment, 3D equipment 
and Makers Space equipment, computers and internet access. The 
vehicle is taken into the community in underserved areas to provide 
people with those resources.  

Executive Director Watson gave Kudos to Mr. Prendergast and the 
team on the Technology Plan. Mr. Watson stated that having the 
Technology Bus in outlying areas provide the opportunities to not only 
expand the delivery of that technology but to expand Wi-Fi. It will help 
to bridge the digital divide that is an issue within our communities.  

Trustee Melendrez moved to approve the Technology Plan for Las 
Vegas-Clark County Library District Fiscal Year 2022 through 2026 as 
presented. There was no opposition, motion carried.  

The approved Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library 
District Fiscal Year 2022 through 2026 is attached as Appendix B. 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action regarding the 
election of Board 
officers for Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022 and 
accompanying 
Resolution 2021-01.  
(Item VIII.B.) 

Chair Ortiz reported on the Nominating Committee Meeting held on 
June 10, 2021.  The members of the Committee were himself, Trustee 
Ramaker and Trustee Wilson. The Committee nominated Trustee 
Ramaker for the position as Chair and they also nominated Trustee 
Foyt for the position of Secretary.  There was no nomination for Vice 
Chair from the Committee. 

Trustee Wilson stated that he would like to nominate Trustee 
Benavidez for Vice-Chair. 

Chair Ortiz nominated Trustee Jiron for Treasurer; Trustee Jiron 
declined. Chair Ortiz asked Trustee Waugh if he would like to speak to 
his qualifications for Treasurer. 

Trustee Wilson moved to elect Trustee Benavidez as Vice Chair, Trustee 
Foyt as Secretary and Trustee Waugh as Treasurer. There was no 
opposition and the motion carried.  

Chair Ortiz opened nominations from the floor for the position as Chair.  
Trustee Foyt nominated Trustee Wilson for Chair. There were no other 
nominations from the floor. Chair Ortiz asked Trustee Wilson if he 
accepted the nomination for Board Chair, Trustee Wilson accepted. 
Chair Ortiz asked Trustee Ramaker if she accepted the nomination for 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

10



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Regular Meeting 
June 25, 2021 
Page 5  

 
Board Chair, Trustee Ramaker accepted.  

Ortiz then provided Trustees Ramaker and Wilson an opportunity to 
speak as to why they wanted the position of Board Chair. 

Chair Ortiz polled the Board.  Trustees Wilson, Waugh, Turner 
Whiteley, Rogers, Meléndrez, Jiron, Foyt and Benavidez voted for 
Trustee Wilson as Chair for eight votes.  Chair Ortiz and Trustee 
Ramaker voted for Trustee Ramaker as Chair for two votes. Trustee 
Wilson was elected to the position as Chair (8-2). 

Chair Ortiz clarified with Counsel Welt that new appointed officers will 
be effective as of July 1, 2021. 

• Brian Wilson, Chair 

• Kelly Benavidez, Vice-Chair 

• Elizabeth Foyt, Secretary 

• Nathaniel Waugh, Treasurer 

Chair Ortiz moved to pass Resolution 2021-01 authorizing Floresto 
Cabias, Chief Financial Officer and newly elected Treasurer, Nathaniel 
P. Waugh to execute checks on behalf of the Library District. In the 
event the Library Treasurer is unavailable to perform the duties of the 
Treasurer or that the position of Treasurer is vacant for any reason, 
then the Secretary of the Library Board of Trustees, Elizabeth Foyt, is 
hereby authorized to execute checks on behalf of the Library District 
until June 30, 2021, or until a new Treasurer is elected. Motion was 
seconded; Trustee Waugh stated that the date should be June 30, 
2022 not June 30, 2021. Chair Ortiz amended the motion to include the 
correct date. There was no opposition; motion carried. 

Resolution 2021-01 is attached as Appendix C. 

Announcements   
(Item IX.) 

Trustee Foyt expressed gratitude for everyone’s support and 
condolences concerning loss of a family member.  

Trustee Waugh announced that Commissioner Jones will be doing a 
Five and Under Story Time at Sahara West Library the following 
Tuesday. 

Trustee Wilson congratulated all of the new executives. 

The next Board Meeting will be held Thursday, July 8, at 6:00 p.m. via 
Webex and at the West Charleston Library, 6301 W. Charleston Blvd., 
Las Vegas, NV 89146. 

Public Comment 
(Item X.) 

None. 

Executive Session    
(Item XI.) 

Removed from Agenda. 

Adjournment    
(Item XIII.) 

Chair Ortiz adjourned the meeting at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

11



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Regular Meeting 
June 25, 2021 
Page 6  

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kelly Benavidez, Secretary 
 
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

12



2021 ATTENDANCE June 25, 2021 Regular and Retreat Board Meetings

Appendix A

2021 Ja
nu

ar
y 

8 
S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
 R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 1

1 
R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 2

3 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

B
rd

 M
tg

A
pr

il 
8 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it

A
pr

il 
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ay

 2
0 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 5
 S

pe
ci

al
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C
m

te

Ju
ne

 1
0 

N
om

in
at

in
g 

C
m

te
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

B
oa

rd
 R

et
re

at

Benavidez Kelly P P P P P P P P P A-E P P
Bilbray-Axelrod* Shannon P P P X X X X X X X X X X X
Francis Drake*** Marilyn P P P P P P P X X X X X X X
Foyt Elizabeth P P P P P P P P P A-E A-E P P
Meléndrez José P P P P  A-E A-E A-E P P A-E P P
Ortiz Felipe P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Wadley-Munier*** Robin P P P P P P P X X X X X X X
Ramaker Sandra P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Wilson Brian P P P P A-E A-E A-E P P P P P P P
Rogers Keith A-E P P P P P P P P P P P
Waugh** Nathaniel X X X P P P P P P P P P P P
Jiron**** Jennifer X X X X X X X P P P P P P P
Turner Whiteley**** Kate X X X X X X X P P P P P

attended Committee meeting but not a member
 

A-E Excused Absence
A-U Unexcused Absense

*Shannon Bilbray-Axelrod's term expired March 1, 2021
**Nathaniel Waugh was appointed March 2, 2021
*** Term expired April  18, 2021
**** Appointed to term beginning April 19, 2021

as of June 28, 2021

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

13



 
 
 
 

Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County 
Library District: Fiscal Year End 2022-2026 

July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2026 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: the Information Technology Department 
 

June 2021 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

14



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 2 

May 27, 2021 

Table of Contents 
 
 

Executive Summary .................................................................................................... 3 

Library Overview ........................................................................................................ 6 

Background Information .............................................................................................. 9 

The Current State of Technology ................................................................................ 13 

Library’s Technology Goals and Objectives .................................................................. 17 

Staff Development Strategy and Public Training ........................................................... 22 

Timeline and Estimated Costs .................................................................................... 25 

Evaluation ............................................................................................................... 26 

Attachments/Appendices ............................................................................................... 

1. Technology Inventory  ....................................................................................... 27 

2.  Network Diagram ............................................................................................. 31 

3.  Internet and Wireless Use Policy  ........................................................................ 32 

4.  Additional Information Needed for E-Rate Application ............................................ 35 

 

 

 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

15



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 3 

May 27, 2021 

Executive Summary 
 
Information Technology in the world of public libraries has shifted radically over the past 
two decades.  Expensive and game-changing automated library operations, catalogues, 
materials handling, and people counting systems were launched between 2000 and 2010, 
cutting operations costs and making it easier for customers to find and enjoy a plethora of 
free public collections.  Since 2000, the Library District has played a critical role in closing 
the digital divide by investing in the widespread installation of free public access computers, 
circulating devices such as iPads and hotspots, and expanded WiFi.  The Information 
Technology department of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District (Library District) has 
been a national leader in the development, implementation, and management of these 
kinds of complex information and technology operations infrastructure and public service 
improvements. 
 
Over the past five years, public access to technology has proliferated beyond public access 
computers to new tech labs that provide public access to digital media, 3D printing, music 
production, coding, and robotics technologies.  At the Library District new automated 
systems have integrated functions of finance and human resources.  New in-building 
communication technology for staff as well as new external public-facing communication 
systems have also been deployed.   The world of digital collections is exploding with 
databases, materials, web-based vendors, and smart phone-based apps.  Cyber security is 
a critical and constant complex challenge.  Website and public content creation platforms 
are evolving to offer better search, broadcast, and customer experience capabilities.  
Special assets of the Library District, such as performing arts centers, require technology 
upgrades for AV, lighting, and web streaming, as event technologies improve over the 
years.  Other library services, including the Adult Learning Program and partnership with 
Workforce Connections for employment services, require connectivity for office functions, as 
well as classroom, board room, computer lab, and event use. 
 
The four newest branch libraries, opened between 2009 and 2020, provided the Library 
District with the opportunity to build in information technology infrastructure for even more 
sophisticated automated operations and public access technology amenities.  
Implementation of the Vision 2020 (v.2020) Strategic Plan involved development and 
operational support for new technologies related to learning, business and workforce 
development, government and social services, and community culture.  Work on the Master 
Facilities Decision Framework and schematic design drawings for branch facility renovations 
aim to bring the new v.2020 business model and expansive information technology 
infrastructure and services to 13 older Library District branches.  
 
The global and community contexts of Library District operations and services also influence 
the development, deployment, and maintenance of Library District information technology.  
District-wide systems are designed to respond to rapid growth in the Vegas Valley metro 
area, along with tremendously mobile and increasingly diverse service populations.  When 
the demographics of the Library District service area were mapped in 2014 and again in 
2019, it became clear that the Las Vegas metro area is comprised of one of the most 
diverse and geographically fragmented set of household market segments in the nation.  
Between 2014 and 2019 there was substantial growth of demographic groups such as Latinx 
populations and households led by single parents.  Demographic analysis also indicates that 
there is a growing percentage of households with low incomes, low levels of education, low 
English proficiency, and low technology skill levels.   

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

16



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 4 

May 27, 2021 

Issues of low technical skills and a large percentage of households without internet 
connectivity and devices other than smart phones pose a long-term challenge for regional 
economic opportunity and workforce availability.  In early 2020, as the region was being 
lauded for leading the nation in new job growth in industry sectors related to medicine, 
transportation and logistics, and information technology, local employers were finding it 
difficult to fill these new jobs with local tech-savvy workers. 
 
The challenges of the digital divide, particularly among people of color, became even more 
apparent with the rapid and radically disruptive changes caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  
In March 2020, for the first time in the history of the region, the entire “Vegas Strip” was 
shut down and over 375,000 people lost their jobs.  Tens of thousands of other local 
businesses were shuttered or curtailed activities in compliance with pandemic social 
distancing and capacity restrictions.  Local residents, particularly working families, 
experienced more disruption as the local school district and private schools moved to online 
learning.  The Library District responded to these local conditions by pivoting to partnerships 
for online learning.  In lieu of live performances and programs, library staff began creating 
virtual programs.  With the shutdown, the Information Technology department led 
organizational efforts to support virtual work from home and virtual meetings.  Use of digital 
collections soared by 25% over previous year usage and that level of use is holding steady.  
The department took advantage of CARES Act funding to expand the hotspot program and 
iPad lending program to help local students and businesses work at home online. 
After more than a year of economic and social devastation caused by the pandemic, the 
Nevada economy is again on the rise.  Sales tax (CTX) revenues are back up to pre-
pandemic levels, and the housing market is on fire.  In spring 2021 the local Board of 
Realtors reported a 40% increase in home sales.  With a confluence of high demand from 
new residents moving to the state and low supply, home prices have increased 14% in 
value from previous years, an indicator that future property tax revenues are stable and 
rising.   
 
It is in the context of the above industry, national, and local conditions that this Technology 
Plan was developed.  The Library District’s Information Technology department anticipates 
that 2020 budget cuts made to offset sales tax revenue losses caused by the pandemic will 
be restored.  In particular, the FY 2021-2022 Annual Budget replenishes funding for the 
department’s Capital Projects Fund Technology Replacements and Upgrades Program.  Once 
this essential budget restoration is made, the Library District will resume plans for 
renovating older branches, funding the ILS Replacement Program in the Capital Project 
Fund, and continuing to build new facilities to meet regional urban growth. 
 
An overview of Information Technology department budget expenditures, both General Fund 
and Capital Project Funds (CPF), are as follows: 
 

FUND FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 
General Fund $3,704,782 $3,895,391 $4,072,848 
CPF: ILS Replacement Program $0 $0* $0* 
CPF: Tech Replacement and 
Upgrades Program 

$1,167,499 $1,747,000 $1,585,000 

 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

17



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 5 

May 27, 2021 

This Technology Plan consists of 27 Goals and Objectives.  Over the next five years, the 
Library District will: 

• Continue to support the evolution of library service platforms as they evolve from 
traditional Integrated Library Systems, to support library catalogue, materials 
handling, people counting, and other Library District organizational operations 
technology and systems. 

• Continue to increase the collection of electronic and streaming materials, including 
books, media, and music, in line with growing demand. 

• Continue to expand and support public access technologies, including access to 
computers, internet, WiFi, and technologies consistent with the PlayBook 2026 
strategic plan (building on the successes of the v.2020 strategic plan). 

• Continue to expand and support Library District internal and external digital 
communications platforms. 

• Continue to match the robust expansion of technological infrastructure, hardware, 
software, and new public access technologies with staff training, certifications, and 
skill-building support as well as public training and instruction to accelerate public 
adoption and mastery of new technologies essential for life and work today. 

• Continue to support technology subsidy efforts, including participation in the FCC’s 
eRate program and the Library District and Foundation’s grant efforts. 

• Explore and develop new apps that increase customer satisfaction, access, and 
awareness of Library District collections, programs, and services. 

• Provide support for the initiatives identified in the Facilities Master Plan adopted by 
the Library District Board of Trustees in September 2018. 

*The District has not expended any funds from the Capital Projects Fund ILS Replacement 
Program in the last three years and available resources were reallocated in FY 20-21 to 
offset funding shortfalls in other capital programs. 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

18



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 6 

May 27, 2021 

Library Overview 
 
The District is one of the largest, most complex public library systems in the country and 
the largest library system in Nevada.  The District serves approximately 1.7 million people 
over an 8,000-square-mile area. The District’s residents live in urban and suburban sections 
of the valley, small and medium-sized towns throughout Clark County, and remote rural 
areas.  The District’s service area includes the City of Las Vegas and most of Clark County, 
except for the cities of Boulder City, Henderson, and North Las Vegas.  With over 640,000 
Library District card holders, 4.2 million branch visits, 1.3 million computer session, and 
over 500,000 program participants in 2019-2020, the Library District is one of the liveliest 
public libraries in the nation.  Of the 9.1 million items checked out that year, 1.5 were 
digital books, movies and music.  Nationally, the Library District ranks 11th in circulation of 
materials, 14th in number of visits per year, and 14th in size of population served.  There are 
now 25 branches in urban, rural and suburban locations.  The District has been recognized 
nationally for excellence, including being named "Library of the Year" by Gale/Library 
Journal in 2003 and as a recipient of the 2014 National Medal for Museum and Library 
Service. 
 
The District was created in 1965 when a taxing district to provide library services to serve 
valley residents outside the Las Vegas city limits was created by the Clark County Board of 
Commissioners.  It was originally named the Greater Clark County Library District, later 
shortened to the Clark County Library District.  The District grew as other taxing districts, 
created to provide library services in other parts of Clark County, were added to it.  Soon 
after, came a contract with the City of Las Vegas to manage libraries located within the Las 
Vegas city limits.  In 1985 the District took its current form through legislation enacted by 
the Nevada State Legislature and became known as the Las Vegas-Clark County Library 
District, the state’s first consolidated library district, and the branches of the Las Vegas 
Library formally became a part of the District. 
 
As an independent taxing district, the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District is neither a 
part of the City of Las Vegas nor of Clark County. It is governed by a ten-member Board of 
Trustees, five of who are appointed by the Clark County Board of Commissioners and five 
who are appointed by the Las Vegas City Council. The Board of Trustees appoints an 
Executive Director, adopts policies, approves the annual budget and ongoing expenditures, 
and sets an annual property tax levy. The Board’s roles and responsibilities are enumerated 
in Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 379.  
 
The District has a total of 25 facilities, 14 in the urban core of the Las Vegas Valley and 11 
in the rural or outlying Clark County municipalities, ranging from Indian Springs in the 
north, to Laughlin in the south, to Mesquite in the east, and Sandy Valley in the west.  
Administrative and support functions are located at the Windmill Library and Service Center 
in the southwestern part of the valley. The branches of the District are: 
 
Urban: 

1. Centennial Hills Library, including Distribution Center (45,555 SF) 
2. Clark County Library, including theater (120,000 SF) 
3. East Las Vegas Library (41,051 SF) 
4. Enterprise Library (26,300 SF) 
5. Meadows Library (1,200 SF) 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

19



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 7 

May 27, 2021 

6. Rainbow Library (25,000 SF) 
7. Sahara West Library (122,000 SF) 
8. Spring Valley Library (24,500 SF) 
9. Summerlin Library, including theater (40,195 SF) 
10. Sunrise Library (22,900 SF) 
11. West Charleston Library, including lecture hall (38,900 SF) 
12. West Las Vegas Library, including theater (38,866 SF) 
13. Whitney Library, including concert hall (26,619 SF) 
14. Windmill Library, including auditorium (30,696 SF) 

o Windmill Service Center (86,000 SF) 
 

Outlying:  
1. Blue Diamond Library (1,000 SF) 
2. Bunkerville Library (1,200 SF) 
3. Goodsprings Library (1,200 SF) 
4. Indian Springs Library (1,200 SF) 
5. Laughlin Library (15,424 SF) 
6. Mesquite Library (13,313 SF) 

a. Mesquite Library Learning Center (5,600 SF) 
7. Moapa Town Library (2,000 SF) 
8. Moapa Valley Library (4,700 SF) 
9. Mount Charleston Library (2,800 SF) 
10. Sandy Valley Library (1,200 SF) 
11. Searchlight Library (1,200 SF) 

 
In addition to the services that the District provides to its customers, the District also 
provides library automation services to two locally-contracted library districts: 
 

• North Las Vegas Public Library 
• Boulder City Public Library 

 
The District has a collection of over 3.6 million total items and employs over 350 full-time 
employees, over 200 part-time employees, and over 200 Page positions. 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

20



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 8 

May 27, 2021 

Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Mission Statement 
 
The Las Vegas-Clark County Library District nurtures the social, economic, and educational 
well-being of people and communities. The District is committed to building communities of 
people who can come together to pursue their individual and group aspirations.  
 
Values and Operating Principles 

The District is guided by the principles of Public Librarianship and First Amendment Rights. 
The District protects library materials from censorship. 

We seek innovative ways to: 

• Respond and reach out to serve the current and evolving information needs of our 
diverse community.  

• Create a sense of community by providing a welcoming, inviting, secure environment 
for our public and staff.  

• Provide excellent customer service that is both timely and confidential.  
• Develop a well-trained, knowledgeable, courteous, and professional staff.  
• Communicate with our public and staff to ensure vital, relevant, and effective library 

services.  
• Manage our resources effectively and be accountable to our funding sources.  

We celebrate our accomplishments, learn from our mistakes and take pride in serving our 
community. 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

21



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 9 

May 27, 2021 

Background Information 
 
In 2018, the District adopted a three-year Technology Plan which recommended 26 goals 
and objectives. Of the 26 identified goals and objectives, six goals were completed, 17 goals 
are currently in progress, and three goal were not started.  The goals and objectives and 
their status follow: 
 

1. Financial Management System – Not Started 
 
This Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

2. Digital Signage - Ongoing 
 
Digital signage was installed at the new East Las Vegas and Mesquite libraries, and included 
in the District’s Facilities Master Plan.  This Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives 
of the new Plan. 
 

3. Call Center Expansion – Completed 
 

All customer collections related calls and some operator-assisted calls, circulation calls, and 
electronic resources calls were redirected to the Unique Call Center. 
 

4. Electronic Media and e-Book Readers – Ongoing 
 
This Goal will be modified and included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

5. Mobile Hotspot Expansion – Completed 
 
The District expanded the number of hotspots available for public checkout from over 480 to 
over 950. 
 

6. Circulate Tablet PCs – Ongoing 
 
This Goal will be modified and included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

7. Annual Computer Refresh Project – Completed/Ongoing 
 
This ongoing Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

8. Social Media Presence – Completed/Ongoing 
 
This ongoing Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

9. Makerspaces – Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be included in the 
Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

22



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 10 

May 27, 2021 

10. Homework Help Centers - Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be included in the 
Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

11. Computer Centers – Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be included in the 
Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

12. Distribution Center Expansion/Relocation - Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be included in the 
Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

13. Business Centers - Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be expanded and 
included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

14. Big Data Reporting – Ongoing 
 
This Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

15. Telephone System Replacement/Upgrade – Completed 
 

The District’s telephone system was upgraded and is expected to be supported for at least 
10 years, until 2029. 
 

16. Automated Materials Handling (AMH) System – Ongoing 
 

Several AMH systems were replaced and will continue to be replaced until all systems have 
been replaced. 
 

17.Cashless System – Ongoing 
 
The pilot solution was completed and this Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives 
of the new Plan. 
 

18.Faxing Solution - Completed 
 
The District installed library document stations at all urban branches, including Laughlin and 
Mesquite to allow the public to fax using cash, in addition to debit or credit cards. 
 

19.Meeting Room Presentation - Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be included in the 
Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

23



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 11 

May 27, 2021 

20.Interactive Video Screens - Ongoing 
 
This Goal was included in the District’s Facilities Master Plan and will be included in the 
Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

21.Self-Publishing Service - Ongoing 
 
This Goal will be redefined and included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

22.In-Library Customer Flow Analysis – Not Started 
 
This Goal will be renamed and included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

23.Program Attendance Information – Not Started 
 
This Goal will be included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

24.Mobile Staff Service Model - Ongoing 
 
The mobile model was developed and partially implemented at several branches.  This Goal 
will be included in the Goals and Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

25.New Self-Check Solution - Ongoing 
 
The pilot implementation was completed and this Goal will be included in the Goals and 
Objectives of the new Plan. 
 

26.Electronic Signatures - Ongoing 
 
Several tasks were completed for this project and this Goal will be included in the Goals and 
Objectives of the new Plan. 
 
 
How This Plan Was Developed: 
 
This new Technology Plan uses the current Plan as a template and was developed by the 
Information Technology department, with input from District-wide staff and the 
Administration Team.  
 
The information resources used in preparing this Technology Plan include: 

 
• The District’s 2018-2021 Technology Plan 
• The District’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 Adopted Budget documents 
• E-rate materials from the Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal Service and 

Administrative Company (SLP/USAC) 
• The Technology Plan Template from Writing and Updating Technology Plans: A 

Guidebook With Sample Policies on CD-ROM.  John M. Cohn, Ann L. Kelsey, and 
Keith Michael Fiels. 1999. p. 31. 

 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

24



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 12 

May 27, 2021 

Infrastructure and Items Related to E-Rate and LSTA Qualifications  

The District’s basic information technology infrastructure is common in form to most multi-
branch public libraries. This infrastructure includes the following elements:  
 

• Local area networks and wireless access  
• Wide area networks  
• Workstations and peripherals  
• Servers  
• Enterprise software and services  
• Basic voice services (telephony)  
• Integrated Library System/ Library Services Platform 

 
Applications Supported by Basic Technology  

The infrastructure technologies identified in this section support all of the District’s primary 
public services:  
 

• Books and materials accessible via the District’s Online Public Access Catalog  
• Internet access, via public access PCs and wireless services  
• Access to electronic resources, via the District’s website 

 
In addition, the same essential technologies support staff functions and operations 
associated with managing the District and its collections:  
 

• Materials management (library materials purchasing, cataloging, and reporting)  
• Inventory control (library circulation)  
• A wide variety of administrative and facilities functions  

 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

25



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 13 

May 27, 2021 

The Current State of Technology 
 
The Library District has a fairly complex information technology infrastructure, supported 
directly by a staff of 17 FTE in the Information Technology department and various other 
departments within the District. The District operates 25 total facilities designed in a hub-
and-spoke configuration. The Service Center side of the Windmill Library and Service Center 
functions as the District’s administrative headquarters, contains the District’s data center, 
and serves as the hub. All 24 remote locations are connected to this hub for Internet access 
(1 Gbps) and core technology services, including ILS, e-mail, and employee support 
systems. Each urban branch is connected to the hub via a 100 Mbps Ethernet fiber circuit, 
except for the Meadows Library, which is connected via a 50 Mbps Ethernet hybrid-fiber-
coaxial circuit. Each outlying branch is connected to the hub via 10 Mbps fiber or copper 
Ethernet circuit, except for the Laughlin and Mesquite libraries, which are connected to the 
hub via 50 Mbps fiber circuits. A network diagram is included in Attachment 2. All 
connectivity is provided by Cox Communications.  
 
The District’s data center and remote branch servers are heavily virtualized using VMWare 
and a Dell hyper-converged solution.  The District also supports numerous physical assets, 
including: 
 

• Three IBM x3850 servers for the Innovative Interfaces, Inc. production Sierra LSP; 
one web server, one application server, and one database server 

• One core NEC telephone switch and 14 remote NEC switches 
• 28 Cisco routers 
• One Extreme S8 and 90 Cisco switches 
• One Fortinet Next Generation firewall and one web application firewall 
• Three Extreme Networks wireless controllers, with approximately 246 internal and 

external wireless access points 
• 42 Dell physical file servers 
• 25 VMware Hosts 
• 173 VMWare virtual Windows servers 
• Two storage-area-networks 
• 1200+ Dell Optiplex desktop computers 
• 100 NComputing virtual desktops 
• 250+ Lenovo and Dell laptop computers 
• 380+ Vocera voice-controlled badges 
• 100 cellular phones, including smartphones 
• 250+ HP printers 
• 50+ Macintosh computers 
• 200+ Chromebooks 
• 150+ iPads 
• 950+ Hotspots 

The District supports over 1,200 desktop computers, many with connected peripheral 
equipment, such as barcode scanners and receipt printers.  Most of the computer 
equipment is installed with Microsoft Windows 10, using Intel-based Dell computers, but 
there are some Apple Macintosh systems.  Approximately half of the computers are for 
public access and half are for staff use and all computers, including WiFi, are Internet 
filtered.  Most of the Apple Macintosh computers are primarily used by the District’s 
Makerspace programs, including the Teen TechArt Studio Program, the Best Buy Teen 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

26



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 14 

May 27, 2021 

Tech Center, the Switch Robot Lab, Cox Teen STEAM Lab, etc., however, there are a few 
Macintosh computers used by the Branding and Marketing department. 

All of the District’s computers operate with the Microsoft Windows 10 operating systems or 
macOS versions 10.14, 10.15, and 11, with most Apple systems operating with version 
10.15 (Catalina).  Public-access computers operate a range of free and purchased software, 
with the Microsoft Office suite and various web browsers being the predominant software 
applications in use.  Staff computers operate a range of software applications for 
accessing the various staff systems, such as our Human Resources, Financial Services, 
and other “back office” systems.  The Information Technology department traditionally 
migrates newly purchased computers to the newest versions of Microsoft’s operating 
system and office productivity suite.  The Information Technology department also works 
diligently to ensure that the District’s networking infrastructure is protected from 
unauthorized access. 

The District operates approximately 225 file servers in various roles, with the majority being 
a combination of Microsoft Windows 2012, 2016, and 2019 operating systems.  The 
Information Technology department is in the process of upgrading all servers to the 
Windows 2019 operating system.  A snapshot of the District’s Information Technology assets 
is included in Attachment 1. 

The District provides assistive equipment, services, and materials for customers with 
disabilities.  Video relay service is provided via Sorenson ntouchVP2 devices through our 
partnership with the Deaf Centers of Nevada and all computers include easy access to 
screen reader and screen magnification software and an on-screen keyboard.  Text 
Telephone (TTY/TDD) devices and an Accessible Computing Environment professional 
workstation with specialized hardware and software is also available.  

The District has approximately 3,600 network nodes and includes such devices as proximity 
door access readers, HVAC controllers, security cameras, time clocks, Vocera badges, and 
other District assets. 

The District relies on three primary systems that serve the entire enterprise, that is, 
systems that the District and its customers rely on for recurring and critical services.  
These products are the Sierra LSP provided by Innovative Interfaces, Inc. (III), the 
telephone system, and the RFID and AMH systems. 
 
Sierra Library Services Platform (LSP) 
 
The Sierra LSP is the single most critical system that the District operates, providing 
mission-critical services to our customers, such as: 
 

• Circulation functions 
• Limited public access web catalog 
• Cataloging 
• Materials acquisitions 
• Interfaces to a variety of web-based database services benefitting staff and 

customers 
• Reports and statistical functions 
• Self-check client, PC Reservation system, and RFID and AMH interfaces 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

27



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 15 

May 27, 2021 

 
Because of the central nature of the LSP to all enterprise computing within the District, the 
performance of the system affects all services interfacing with the LSP, such as PC 
reservation, self-check, e-commerce, automated materials handling, patron notification 
systems, and the BiblioCommons website/catalog. 
 
The District migrated from Innovative Interfaces Inc. (III) Millennium ILS to the Sierra 
LSP in 2016.  The original hardware support contract for the current LSP production 
servers expired and was extended until 2023.  We don’t believe that we will be able to 
further extend the support contract for these servers, so they will need to be replaced 
before their service contracts expire.  The LSP training systems were recently virtualized 
and the department is currently testing the viability of this new configuration.  If the 
testing of the virtualized training server is successful, the production system will be 
virtualized. 
 
Telephone Services  

The District operates voice services in a form familiar to many large urban libraries: a 
single core telephone switch aggregates voice traffic at the network data center at the 
Windmill Library and Service Center, with a variety of service features installed in the 
switch and facilitated by the Local Exchange Carrier, Cox Communications.  
These are the basic telephony features in use:  
 

• Direct Inward Dialing (DID)  
• Trunked outbound toll line to the Cox switch  
• 4-digit dialing  
• 2-line handsets  
• Voicemail  
• Conference calling 

 
All urban service locations (minus the Meadows Library), including the Laughlin and 
Mesquite libraries, operate smaller remote telephone switches that are converged to the 
District’s data center at the Windmill Library and Service Center using Voice-over-IP (VoIP) 
across the District’s wide-area-network.  Quality-of-Service is implemented to guarantee 
that voice traffic is prioritized to maintain the quality of telephone services.  The District 
operates over 700 handsets in 15 locations, connecting handsets to the local telephone 
switches with a combination of Category 3 and Category 5E network cables.  The branches 
have a combination of Dterm and VoIP handsets.  The outlying branches that do not have a 
phone switch, receive telephone services from the local telecommunications carrier. 
 
In 2019, the IT Department worked with the District’s telephone support vendor to 
replace/replace the core NEC switch and the 14 remote switches.  At the time of the 
purchase, the NEC Corporation guaranteed a minimum life, for the equipment, of at least 
five years.  However, the District purchased an extended coverage contract for the 
equipment, ensuring support of our existing system through January 2029, which will be 
the end-of-life date for our system.  
 
Radio Frequency Identification and Automated Materials Handling  
 
Between 2008 and 2010, the District implemented a radio frequency identification (RFID) 
and automated materials handling (AMH) system from EnvisionWare and P.V. Supa.  Both 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

28



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 16 

May 27, 2021 

solutions are supported by a locally dedicated EnvisionWare technician through a 
maintenance contract.  This contract provides support for all hardware support and software 
upgrades for these systems.  The District’s entire collection was converted to RFID and AMH 
systems were installed in all urban branches, including a central sorter.  The District’s 
support contract required the equipment to be operational for at least 10 years.  Those 
systems are at the end of their life-expectancy.  The District completed an RFP replacing the 
end-of-life AMH systems in 2018, selecting a proposal from EnvisionWare and Lyngsoe 
Systems.  The District has replaced several end-of-life systems.  In 2021, Lyngsoe Systems 
purchased P.V. Supa.  Lyngsoe Systems’ purchase of P.V. Supa eliminated the urgency for 
replacing our end-of-life systems, because obtaining replacement parts and support for the 
end-of-life system is no longer an issue.  However, the District will continue to incrementally 
replace the end-of-life P.V. Supa equipment until they are all replaced/upgraded.  The AMH 
configuration for each library is as follows: 
 

Branch Sorter Size 
Installed 

Date 
Replacement 

Date Vendor 
Centennial Hills Three inlet, 10-bin Dec-08 Dec-18 P.V. Supa 
Distribution Center (at 
Centennial Hills) One inlet, 3-bin Nov-15 Nov-25 P.V. Supa 
Clark County Three inlet, 10-bin Oct-09 Oct-19 P.V. Supa 
Enterprise Three inlet, 7-bin Jan-09 Jan-19 P.V. Supa 
East Las Vegas Three inlet, 10-bin Apr-19 Apr-29 Lyngsoe 
Mesquite One inlet, 3-bin May-18 May-28 P.V. Supa 
Rainbow Three inlet, 10-bin Mar-09 Mar-19 P.V. Supa 
Sahara West Three inlet, 11-bin Jun-21 Jun-31 Lyngsoe 
Spring Valley Three inlet, 8-bin Dec-19 Dec-29 Lyngsoe 
Summerlin Three inlet, 6-bin Jun-09 Jun-19 P.V. Supa 
Sunrise  Three inlet, 6-bin Jun-09 Jun-19 P.V. Supa 
West Charleston Three inlet, 8-bin Nov-09 Nov-19 P.V. Supa 
West Las Vegas Two inlet, 6-bin Jun-21 Jun-31 Lyngsoe 
Windmill Three inlet, 10-bin Apr-11 Apr-21 P.V. Supa 
Central Sort (at 
Windmill Service 
Center) Two inlet, 42 bin Mar-20 Mar-30 Lyngsoe 
Whitney Three inlet, 6-bin Oct-09 Oct-19 P.V. Supa 

 
The District also uses several other solutions from EnvisionWare including, PC Reservation 
and Print Management, library document stations, security gates, and OneStop self-check 
kiosks. 

 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

29



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 17 

May 27, 2021 

Library’s Technology Goals and Objectives 
 
The Goals and Objectives identified are organized into three categories, Legacy 
Technologies, Facilities Master Plan Initiatives, and New Initiatives.  The following Goals and 
Objectives are established for the timeframe of this Technology Plan: 
 

LEGACY TECHNOLOGIES 
 

1. Financial Management System 
 
The District migrated to the Serenic Navigator enterprise resources planning solution in 
2016 for accounting.  However, the District has outgrown the solution and needs a more 
robust solution.  The District will seek a solution that includes fixed asset tracking and 
electronic procurement. 
 

2. Annual Computer Refresh Project 
 
The District maintains a fund for replacing aging technology assets, including computers, 
servers, and switches.  The industry accepted life-expectancy for computers is three years.  
However, the District is on a five-year computer replacement cycle.  The District replaces 
over 300 computers and laptops annually. 
 

3. Automated Materials Handling Systems (Sorters) and Security Gates  
 
The AMH systems implemented by the District in 2008 are at the end of their life 
expectancy.  The District will replace a portion of these systems annually until they have all 
been replaced.  
 

4. New Self-Check Solution 
 
The previous Technology Plan identified the need to optimize space in the branches, 
improve customer experience, and integrate payment card industry standards into a new 
self-check solution.  A new self-check pilot implementation was completed at the East Las 
Vegas Library.  The District will expand this pilot solution to the remaining branches. 
 

5.  Move to Cloud 
 
The District has migrated several on-premise solutions to the cloud, including our website, 
facilities booking solution, and human resources information system.  The District will 
continue to seek opportunities to migrate on-premise legacy solutions to the cloud.  
 
 

FACILITIES MASTER PLAN INITIATIVES 
 

6. Makerspaces 
 
The District currently offers Makerspace services, including 3D printers, computers with 
specialized software, craft and hardware supplies, tools, etc. at several branches.  The 
Facilities Master Plan identified these services for expansion to all urban branches, including 
the Laughlin Library, that do not currently offer these programs. 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

30



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 18 

May 27, 2021 

 
7. Homework Help Centers 

 
Homework Help Centers offer dedicated spaces, where students of all ages can visit the 
library and work on their homework independently or with the help of volunteer tutors in 
several branches.  These spaces are equipped with comfortable furniture, WiFi, computers 
with internet access, and printers for student use.  The Facilities Master Plan identified these 
services for expansion to all the urban branches, including the Laughlin Library, that do not 
currently offer these programs. 
 

8. Computer Centers 
 
The District has a staffed, dedicated computer center in several of the urban branches.  
While all of our libraries offer public access computers, not all branches have a dedicated 
space and staffing for this service.  The Facilities Master Plan identified these services for 
expansion to all the urban branches, including the Laughlin Library, that do not currently 
offer these programs. 
 

9. Distribution Center Expansion/Relocation 
 
The Distribution Center, currently located in the expansion area of the Centennial Hills 
Library, will need to be relocated to make room for the library services identified in the 
Facilities Master Plan.  The Facilities Master Plan identified the removal of shelving at all 
branches to make space for the addition of other library services.  As the physical collection 
in the branches are reduced, the Distribution Center may need to be expanded to store the 
additional materials. 
 

10. Business Hubs 
 
Business Centers are dedicated spaces that provide office supplies, print and copy services, 
fax services, and other business-related services.  These spaces would also offer offices, 
meeting rooms, and telephone services for entrepreneurs to use for their businesses.  The 
District will investigate the addition of these spaces in all of the urban branches during the 
implementation of the Facilities Master Plan. 
 

11. Digital Signage 
 
The District implemented internal and external digital signage at the newly constructed 
branches.  The digital signage system provides for easy identification of the library branches 
within our communities and allows the branches to advertise branch programs internally via 
large monitors.  This solution can also include interactive customer engagement solutions 
using interactive monitors that would allow customers to touch the screen to get branch 
navigational information, information about the library, and other local information.  The 
Facilities Master Plan identified these services for expansion to all the urban branches, 
including the Laughlin Library, that do not currently have these capabilities. 
 
 
 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

31



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 19 

May 27, 2021 

12. Meeting Room Presentation 
 
The District currently provides meeting rooms and study rooms for customers to rent.  This 
project will integrate technologies onto these spaces to allow customers to collaborate with 
internal and external attendees.  This solution may include digital whiteboards and web-
conferencing technologies.  The Facilities Master Plan identified these services for addition at 
all of the urban branches, including the Laughlin and Mesquite libraries.  
 
 

NEW INITITATIVES 
 

13. Circulating Technology 
 
The District currently offers iPads and hotspots for customer checkout.  This project will 
seek to increase the number of devices available and expand those services and explore 
additional technologies that can be checked out by customers.  Additional technologies 
could include e-book readers and smart phones. 
 

14. Social Media Presence 
 
The District has established Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, and Instagram accounts.  Social 
media continues to be an evolving technology that public libraries use to connect with their 
customers.  The District will continue to monitor trends in social media sites to determine if 
additional presence would be beneficial.  Additionally, because of the COVID-19 pandemic 
the District will continue to investigate investments in virtual programming for our 
customers using remote conferencing solutions, such as Zoom and Webex. 
 

15. Big Data Reporting 
 
The District currently compiles statistical data from many different systems across different 
departments for reporting purposes.  The data includes circulation statistics, gate count 
information, computer usage, program attendance, website visits, and numerous other 
statistics.  The data is manually gathered and compiled.  This Project will create an 
automated, central repository for gathering the information from the various systems and 
departments to improve reporting efficiency and accuracy. 
 

16. Cashless System 
 
District staff currently collect cash from customers for various services at the branches.  The 
District implemented a pilot solution at the East Las Vegas which allows customers to use a 
kiosk to add funds to their accounts using cash or credit card.  The funds can be used to pay 
for various services, such as fines, copying, faxing, printing, etc.  This solution reduces the 
number of point-of-sale locations and services that currently accept cash, but does not 
completely eliminate the need for staff to accept cash.  We plan to refine the pilot and 
expand this solution to other branches. 
 

17. Digital Self-Publishing 
 
The previous Technology Plan identified a goal for providing a community-based publishing 
service that would allow customers to print, bind, and trim quality paperbacks of their own 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

32



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 20 

May 27, 2021 

written work.  After some research, we have determined that this would not be a practical 
solution for us to provide.  Instead, the District will implement a digital self-publishing 
solution where library customers can create, share, and discover works from other members 
of the local community. 
 

18. In-Library Customer Flow Analysis/Beacon Technology 
 
The District will seek a solution that can help us understand how customers are moving 
about our buildings.  This solution would allow for the anonymous tracking of customer 
movement between the various areas inside of the library to facilitate the smooth 
movement of customers, understand peak times of library use, and help with the design and 
placement of services. 
 

19. Mobile App 
 
The District has used the Innovative Interfaces Inc. MyLibrary! smart phone app for several 
years.  The app provides basic services such as searching the catalog and checking account 
information.  The District will investigate other solutions to determine if there is a better 
option for our customers. 
 

20. Mobile Staff Service Model 
 
The District implemented a pilot solution at the East Las Vegas Library as identified in the 
Vision 2020 Strategic Plan.  This service provides staff with a mobile cart with computer and 
telephone services, to allow staff to “roam” around the library and assist customers where 
they are and improve customer service. 
 

21. Electronic Signatures 
 
The District currently stores physical signed documents in boxes and files for staff, 
customers, and vendors.  The HR department recently migrated to a cloud-based human 
resources information system, which will allow the department to gather employee 
signatures electronically.  The IT department recently developed a policy and implemented a 
solution for allowing vendors to execute vendor contracts electronically.  Library Operations 
currently maintains paperwork signed by customers for various purposes.  The District will 
seek a solution to allow staff to collect and store customer signatures electronically. 
 

22. Expand Digital Access 
 
The District will seek ways to extend access to online resources for customers who do not 
currently have a library card.  This goal may include services such as Instant Digital Cards 
which would allow customers to use their mobile phone to access the digital collection or 
Pop-up libraries which would allow customers to access digital content at convenient 
locations such as buses, hospital waiting rooms, or the DMV without having Internet access. 
 

23. Technology Bus 
 
The Technology Bus is a mobile classroom that would enable the District to bring specialized 
library programming and technologies to the outlying branches, outreach events, and the 
urban branches that do not yet have these services.  Included in this service would be the 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 20

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

33



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 21 

May 27, 2021 

ability to bring technologies, such as hotspots, laptops, 3D printer, etc. and programs to 
these locations and events. 
 

24. Community Share 
 
The District will form a partnership with the Clark County School District and other local 
library district and K-12 institutions to establish a process that will allow students to obtain 
easy access to a library card and the District’s services.  The students’ access would be 
curated and focused to provide support for the K-12 curriculum. 
 

25. Digital Repository 
 
The District has volumes of boxes with paper records, including purchasing documents, 
Board meeting notes, etc.  This project would digitize and index the paper documents to 
reduce physical storage requirements while make the data searchable and more easily 
retrieved. 
 

26. Customer Satisfaction Survey 
 
The District will explore ways to solicit customer feedback from library users in an effort to 
improve services to the public. 
 

27. Cybersecurity 
 
The District has always invested in information technology security.  However, the threat 
landscape for information technology continues to evolve as more and more sophisticated 
attack vectors are developed by hackers.  The District will continue to invest in tools and 
training to stay ahead of these security challenges. 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 21

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

34



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 22 

May 27, 2021 

Staff Development Strategy and Public Training 
 
The Information Technology Department 
 
The District’s Information Technology department has a formal training plan and IT 
department staff receive off-site technical training.  In the past, staff was able to attend 
offsite training locally through The Learning Center.  However, advanced technical training 
classes are no longer available locally.  IT department staff generally must travel out-of-
state for training.  However, in 2020, the IT department did not send any staff to out-of-
state training because of the pandemic.  The IT department currently consists of 17 full-
time employees: 

 
• 1.0 Chief Information Officer 
• 1.0 Assistant IT Director 
• 1.0 IT Assistant 
• 1.0 Systems and Network Supervisor 
• 1.0 Systems and Network Security Analyst 
• 1.0 Network and Integrated Library Systems Analyst 
• 1.0 Systems and Network Analyst 
• 4.0 Microcomputer and Network Analysts 
• 1.0 Microcomputer Specialist 
• 4.0 Microcomputer Technicians 
• 1.0 Makerspace Specialist 

 
The District’s Microcomputer Technicians provide end-user support to staff.  The 
Microcomputer Technicians require specialized training to ensure that they have the 
necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities to competently accomplish the full range of duties 
they are expected to perform. This includes, but is not limited to, Microsoft approved 
certification training such as: 

• Installing, Configuring, and Administering Microsoft Windows 10 
• Installing, Configuring, and Administering Microsoft Windows 2019 Server 
• A+ Accelerated Hardware & Software  

The IT Makerspace Specialist position was created in 2019 and works closely with the 
Microcomputer Technicians to provide support for makerspace technologies, such as 3D 
printers, laser engravers, etc. 
 
The District’s Network Analysts provide systems support.  The knowledge, skills, and 
abilities of the District’s Network Analysts and their supervisor are maintained and enhanced 
by participating in Microsoft, Cisco, and VMware training courses. This includes but is not 
limited to training courses such as: 

• Installing, Configuring, and Administering Microsoft Windows 2019 Server  
• Building Cisco Multilayer Switched Networks 
• VMware vSphere: Install, Configure, Manage Version 6.6  

 
Staff development opportunities for the IT Assistant is primarily Microsoft application related 
such as: 

• Microsoft Word 2019 Advanced 
• Microsoft Access 2019  
• Microsoft Windows 10 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 22

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

35



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 23 

May 27, 2021 

 
Other Departments 
 
Several departments are involved in providing training for District staff. 
 
The Electronic Resources department (ER) leads, coordinates, and supports the collection 
and management of all online resources available through the Library District.  The types of 
online resources include databases, ebook platforms, streaming services, and online 
learning tools. ER staff provides instruction in the use of online resources and mobile 
devices.  Delivery of instruction includes hands-on practice, system tutorials, vendors 
training, and webinars.  ER staff is available to provide training in the branches upon 
request and on a one-on-one basis.  Staff can also receive training on any application that is 
supported by the District and training from a local training center via vouchers from the HR 
department.  ER staff also provides training to the District’s Call Center provider on how to 
resolve customer related issues and is responsible for providing support for customers using 
the District’s online resources.  The Distribution Center offers training on using collection 
management tools, such as collectionHQ and Decision Center, etc., and Access Services also 
provides Sierra related training for staff. 
 
The HR department’s Training and Development Manager is responsible for developing 
training programs for all employees and includes the administration of all of the District’s 
annual mandatory staff training, such as sexual harassment training, diversity in the 
workplace, etc.  The District’s mandatory staff training is administered through the 
BizLibrary Employee Training web service.  BizLibrary also offers an extensive catalog, with 
thousands of courses in a variety of formats, covering such topics as business training, 
professional skills, employee computer training, employee communication, management 
training, and customer service training. 
 
The District’s staff training budget includes funds for conference attendance, tuition 
assistance, department specific training, and the annual Staff Day. 
 
The District encourages staff to be active in professional library associations such as the 
Nevada Library Association, the American Library Association, and the Public Library 
Association. Some of these continuing education opportunities are technology related, while 
others deal with different dimensions of library service.  A limited number of staff is allowed 
to attend each conference annually. The Human Resources department generally sends an 
e-mail to all staff inviting their participation. 
 
The District offers tuition reimbursement for staff obtaining their undergraduate and 
graduate degrees. The District currently has a partnership with the University of Nevada Las 
Vegas, the Nevada State Library, and the University of North Texas to obtain an IMLS grant 
that would give funding to allow prospective library school students to obtain their graduate 
degree online.  
 
A staff member receiving tuition assistance is requested to sign an agreement indicating 
that they will continue to work for the District for a designated period of time following the 
completion of specialized training paid for by the District or repay the assistance.  
 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 23

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

36



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 24 

May 27, 2021 

The policy states: 
 

For each training opportunity per fiscal year up to $500.00 received by 
Employee, Employee is expected to continue his/her employment with the 
District for a period of at least six (6) months following the date Employee’s 
training is completed. For each training opportunity per fiscal year over 
$500.00 received by Employee, Employee is expected to continue his/her 
employment with the District for a period of at least twelve (12) months 
following the date Employee completed training. In the event Employee 
receives multiple training opportunities and/or the training received exceeds 
$2,000.00 in a fiscal year, Employee shall be obligated to continue his/her 
employment for no less than twenty-four (24) months following the date 
Employee completed training. 

 
Technology Training for the Public 
 
The District is committed to assisting library users in becoming familiar with technology and 
with the numerous electronic databases, software applications, and other technology 
resources offered by the District.  On a daily basis, library staff provide one-on-one 
instruction to library users who wish to learn how to access the library catalog, locate 
information on the District’s website, surf the Internet or locate specific websites or have a 
question about basic computer operations. This instruction is usually provided by the 
computer centers and ER department during open hours, and by the District’s Call Center 
after hours.  
 
The ER department provided regularly-scheduled technology training classes for the public 
until 2017 but ceased providing this service because of a staffing shortage.  The department 
hopes to resume these services if staff is available.  ER staff, with after-hours assistance of 
the Unique Call Center, provides instruction to customers over the telephone, through 
email, and via vendor-provided tutorials. The ER department is responsible for creating help 
documents related to online resources and accommodates various learning styles and 
experience levels. 
 
The District offers online tools, such as LinkedIn Learning, Niche Academy, Gale Courses, 
and one-on-one training, to customers on a variety of topics that involve computer 
technology at all of the District’s urban branches and at some outlying branches.  
 
In 2015, the District created a Teen TechArt Studio Program to teach teens digital media 
technologies, such as storyboarding, graphic design, video game making, digital 
photography, music editing, and DJ skills.  In 2017, the District received a grant from Best 
Buy, which partnered with The Clubhouse Network, and created a Best Buy Teen Tech 
Center to help teens develop critical skills through hands-on activities that explore their 
interests in programming, film-making, music production and design.  Additional programs, 
such as the East Las Vegas Library Built From Scratch, West Las Vegas Library Switch 
Robot Lab, and Enterprise Library Cox Teen STEAM Lab, etc. were developed to provide 
expanded technology access and makerspace training for teens. 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 24

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

37



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 25 

May 27, 2021 

Timeline and Estimated Costs 
 
The time coverage for this Technology Plan is the five-year period between mid-2021 and  
mid-2026. 

  Goals Completion Estimated Cost 

        

1 Financial Management System Dec 2025  $1,000,000 

2 Annual Computer Refresh Project (annually) Jun 2026 $300,000 

3 
Automated Materials Handling Systems/Sorters 
and Security Gates (annually) Jun 2026 $350,000 

4 New Self-Check Solution (annually) Dec 2023 $100,000 

5 Migration to Cloud (annually) Ongoing TBD 

6 Makerspaces Master Plan TBD 

7 Homework Help Centers  Master Plan TBD 

8 Computer Centers Master Plan TBD 

9 Distribution Center Expansion\Relocation Master Plan TBD 

10 Business Hubs Master Plan TBD 

11 Digital Signage Master Plan TBD 

12 Meeting Room Presentation Master Plan TBD 

13 Circulating Technology (annually) Ongoing $25,000 

14 Social Media Presence Jun 2026 $1,000 

15 Big Data Reporting Dec 2023 $100,000 

16 Cashless System Dec 2023 $300,000 

17 Digital Self-Publishing Dec 2021  $50,000  

18 
In-Library Customer Flow Analysis/Beacon 
Technology Dec 2022 $100,000 

19 Mobile App Jun 2022 $50,000 

20 Mobile Staff Service Model Dec 2022 $150,000 

21 Electronic Signatures Dec 2022 $50,000 

22 Expand Digital Access Jun 2022 $50,000 

23 Technology Bus Dec 2024 $250,000 

24 Community Share (annually) Ongoing $25,000 

25 Digital Repository Dec 2024 $50,000 

26 Customer Satisfaction Survey (annually) Ongoing $25,000 

27 Cybersecurity (annually) Ongoing $50,000 

28 Training (annually) Ongoing $50,000 

  Total   $3,076,000  

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 25

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

38



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 26 

May 27, 2021 

Evaluation 
 
To measure the effectiveness of this Plan’s technology strategies and investments, The 
District will conduct evaluation activities subsequent to implementing the technologies 
identified in this Plan, according to the following evaluation requirements: 
 

• Examine actual implementation of new or replacement technology by comparing 
Technology Plan goals with staff and vendor activities. 
 

• Test and compare customer and staff usage of new technologies to ensure that 
appropriate training is in place and that they operate as required. 

 
• Compare statistical and usage figures for new public devices and operating systems 

to identify how successful the implementation of these technologies has been. 
 

• Identify the projects that have been completed and the completion dates.  
Additionally, identify projects that are no longer relevant and remove them from the 
Technology Plan. 

 
• Identify goals, objectives, or projects that have not been met.  Why are they unmet?  

Are there ways to overcome the implementation barriers? 
 

• Create a plan for meeting unmet goals, objectives, or projects. 
 

• Identify any additional needs that have emerged since this Plan was adopted. 
 
 
The Information Technology department will monitor the progress of the Goals and 
Objectives identified in the Plan and provide status updates in the department’s monthly 
Board Report.  A summary of the status of all the identified goals will be prepared at the 
end of this Plan.

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 26

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

39



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 27 

May 27, 2021 

Attachment 1: Technology Inventory 
 
The following is a snapshot of the District technology inventory: 
 

 
 
The above image provides a summary of the total number of District network nodes, including 
the number of workstations, laptops, servers, etc. 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 27

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

40



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 28 

May 27, 2021 

 
 
The above image provides a summary of the current number of Microsoft Windows Operating 
Systems in use by the District. 
 
 
 

 
 
The above image shows provides a summary of the current primary hardware vendors used 
by the District. 
 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 28

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

41



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 29 

May 27, 2021 

 
 
The above image provides a summary of the current age of the District’s assets. 
 
 
 

 
 
The above image provides a summary of the current endpoint security solutions used by the 
District.  

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 29

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

42



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 30 

May 27, 2021 

 
An inventory of the Information Technology department staff is included in the table below. 
 
Staff Assets 
  
Chief Information Officer General supervision\direction 
Assistant IT Director Direct supervision 
Systems & Network Supervisor Network supervision 
IT Assistant Admin support 
Systems & Network Security Analyst Network security 
Network and ILS Analyst Library Services Platform Support 
Systems & Network Analyst Level 2 network support 
Microcomputer & Network Analyst (4) Network support 
IT Makerspace Support Specialist Makerspace support 
Microcomputer Specialist Computer support/liaison 
Microcomputer Technician (4) Computer support 

 
 

 
 
 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 30

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

43



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 31 

May 27, 2021 

Attachment 2: Network Diagram 
 

 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 31

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

44



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 32 

May 27, 2021 

Attachment 3: Internet and Wireless Use Policy 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 32

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

45



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 33 

May 27, 2021 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 33

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

46



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 34 

May 27, 2021 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 34

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

47



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 35 

May 27, 2021 

Attachment 4: Additional Information Needed for E-Rate 
Application 
 
 

 
 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 35

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

48



 Technology Plan for Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Page 36 

May 27, 2021 

 

June 25, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting 
Appendix B - Page 36

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

49



 

 

PROPOSED MINUTES 
LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ MEETING 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 
Friday, June 25, 2021 

 
The Board of Trustees of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District met in retreat session in the 
East Las Vegas Library, Las Vegas, Nevada, and via Webex at 8:30 a.m., Friday, June 25, 2021. 
 
Present: Board: F. Ortiz, Chair  K. Benavidez 
   E. Foyt    S. Ramaker 
   J. Meléndrez  N. Waugh 
   B. Wilson   K. Rogers 
   J. Jiron   K. Turner Whiteley 
    
 Counsel: G. Welt – via Webex 
   
 Absent: None 
 
 Staff: Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
  Leo Segura, Library Operations Director 
  Floresto Cabias, CFO/Financial Services Director 
  Danielle Milam, Development and Planning Director 
  Betsy Ward, Branding and Marketing Director 
  John Vino, General Services Director 
  Matt McNally, Community Engagement Director 
  Jeff Serpico, Human Resources Director 
  Al Prendergast, IT Director/CIO 
  Keeley Walker, Training and Development Manager 
  Allison Boyer, Executive Assistant 
 

 Guests: Jason Taruc, Deputy Attorney General (Nevada Attorney General’s 
office) 

  Veronda Pitchford, Retreat Facilitator 
  Luis Herrera, Retreat Facilitator  

 
F. Ortiz, Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:41 a.m. 

 

Roll Call and Pledge 
of Allegiance                     
(Item I.)  

All members listed above represent a quorum.  Appendix A. 

Chair Ortiz led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Public Comment 
(Item II.) 

None. 

Agenda                     
(Item III.) 

Trustee Ramaker moved to approve the Agenda as proposed. There 
was no opposition and the motion carried. 

Retreat Discussion 
(Item IV.) 

Chair Ortiz welcomed everyone, and encouraged those present to get 
up and stretch and walk around as the meeting was planned to take all 
day. 

Executive Director Watson also welcomed everyone and said he would 
try to frame the day.  Watson said staff had put in a lot of work on the 
proposed strategic plan, and he emphasized the role of each group in 

ITEM IV.B. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

50



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 2  

 
order for the District to accomplish the goals. He then asked the 
Administration Team (AT) to introduce themselves, followed by the 
Retreat Facilitators, as well as Keeley Walker, the District’s Training 
and Development Manager. 

AT members (in no particular order): 

Matt McNally, Community Engagement (CE) Director, has been with the 
District for about seven and half years. 

Floresto Cabias, CFO/Financial Services (FS) Director, has been with 
the District 18 years.  He grew up in Las Vegas, using the District 
libraries. 

Leo Segura, Library Operations (LO) Director, has been with the 
District nearly 24 years.  He is a transplant in Las Vegas, but considers 
it his home. 

Betsy Ward, Branding and Marketing (BAM) Director, has been with the 
District five years.  She came to the District from R&R Partners, where 
she worked in advertising, marketing, and PR for 18 years.  She has 
been in Las Vegas about 23 years. 

Danielle Milam, Development and Planning Director, has been with the 
District and in Las Vegas since the end of 2008.  She came to the 
District with ten years at the Urban Libraries Council.  The strategic 
plan was added to her responsibilities in 2015. 

Jeff Serpico, Human Resources (HR) Director, has been with the 
District and in Las Vegas one year as of last week.  He has 25 years of 
experience in the HR field. 

John Vino, General Services (GS) Director, has just under 15 years at 
the District. 

Al Prendergast, Information Technology Director/CIO, has been with 
the District for over 21 years. 

Keeley Walker, who works for Mr. Serpico in HR, is the District’s 
Training and Development Manager, and has been with District just shy 
of two years. 

Retreat Facilitators: 

Veronda Pitchford is the Assistant Director of the Califa Group, a 
nonprofit library membership consortium representing 230 libraries in 
California committed to unleashing the impact of libraries.  As part of 
her role, she serves as a strategic partner for several national grant 
projects and manages Infopeople, Califa’s national training that 
delivers online learning for library people.   

She is an active American Library Association (ALA) member and 
currently serves on the ALA Business Advisory group, the United for 
Libraries board and ALA’s Center for the Future of Libraries Advisory 
Group.  

In her consulting practice and previous professional positions, she has 
facilitated strategic planning and board retreats for library boards and 
trustees. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

51



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 3  

 
She was named a Library Journal Mover and Shaker in 2005, was 
awarded the 2018 American Library Association Cathleen Bourdon 
Service Award for her outstanding service, and sustained library 
leadership in advocacy for expanding eBook access for libraries to 
better meet community reading and learning needs. 

She has a master’s degree in library and information science from 
North Carolina Central University, a historically black college in 
Durham, North Carolina, and an undergraduate degree in public 
relations from Central Michigan University. 

Luis Herrera retired in 2018 after more than forty years in public library 
service.  In 2005 then Mayor Gavin Newsom appointed him as City 
Librarian for the San Francisco Public Library. During his tenure, Mr. 
Herrera led the largest capital improvement program for the library 
system that saw the renovation of 16 neighborhood branches and 
construction of 8 new libraries.  Prior to his experience in San 
Francisco, he directed the Pasadena Public Library and served as 
deputy director for the San Diego and the Long Beach Public Library 
Systems. 

He has served as President of the Public Library Association, the 
California Library Association and REFORMA, the National Association to 
Promote Library Services to the Spanish Speaking.  In January 2012, 
Luis was named Library Journal’s Librarian of the Year.  In 2014, Mr. 
Herrera was appointed by then President Barack Obama to serve on 
the Institute of Museum and Libraries and continues his work on the 
board.    

Mr. Herrera’s vision is to position urban libraries as vital community 
assets that serve as anchor institutions promoting life-long learning 
and community development.  To that end, he is passionate about the 
future of libraries and currently serves as the Chair of the American 
Library Association’s Center for the Future of Libraries.  Recent 
consulting projects have included the Kansas City Public Library Board 
of Trustees and Executive Team and a strategic planning process for 
the Tacoma Public Library. 

He is past chair of Cal Humanities, and a founding board member of 
the Digital Public Library of America. More recently, Luis has been 
active as trustee of the Latino Community Foundation, the San 
Francisco Museum of Modern Art and the Golden Gate National Parks 
Conservancy.  He lives in Benicia, California with his wife Nancy who is 
also a librarian. 

Mr. Watson hoped Trustees would get a lot out of the collaborative 
retreat discussion planned for today in order to see where the District 
had come from via Vision 2020 and move forward with a new strategic 
plan.  He thanked Ms. Pitchford and Mr. Herrera for coming.  Watson 
specifically chose them to facilitate the discussion and he believes it 
would become clear as the day goes on why he chose them. 

Nevada Open 
Meeting Law 
Review.            

Chair Ortiz introduced Justin Taruc, Assistant Attorney General (AG) in 
the Nevada Attorney General’s office to review Nevada’s Open Meeting 
Law (OML). 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

52



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 4  

 
(Item IV.A.) Counsel Taruc’s presentation is attached as Appendix B. 

Trustee’ comments and questions are summarized below: 

Trustee Wilson asked about collective discussions and issues of 
violation of the OML in terms of emails sent to all by a Trustee or the 
Director. Trustee Ramaker also had questions if the public sent an 
email to the Trustees. Counsel Taruc explained that emails sent out to 
all Trustees are fine; the problem arises when the responses are sent 
to everyone as well.  The entity should have a policy on responses for 
communications to the Board from the public. 

Trustee Ramaker also had questions about whether Trustees’ sitting 
together at a social event was a violation of the OML.  She asked about 
where public comments need to be agended so no one is missing the 
opportunity to comment on an item on the agenda, or under the 
responsibility of the particular board. Ramaker asked about the notice 
requirements to members of the public who had requested to receive 
notice about meetings.  Counsel Taruc discussed maintaining proof of 
mailing by 9:00 a.m. of the third working day prior to the meeting.  He 
also reminded Trustees that notice requests are only valid for six 
months and the individual must renew their requests. 

In response to a comment from Chair Ortiz, Counsel Taruc explained 
the setup in the Attorney General’s office, Boards and Open 
Government Division, where he works.  In addition, he explained the 
purpose of the hotline which he encouraged Trustees to call if they had 
questions.  Each Deputy AG in the office is in a rotation to respond to 
questions staff receives in the office. 

Counsel Welt asked, if the District was open seven days a week, if 
anything had changed in the OML regarding working days.  Counsel 
Taruc responded that working days still do not include Saturdays, 
Sundays, and holidays. 

Trustee Waugh asked about whether the use of overflow rooms are fine 
for open meetings. Counsel Taruc replied that they are, as long as 
those in the overflow rooms are able to hear, observe, and participate 
in the meeting. 

Trustee Benavidez asked the proper wording for closed sessions on an 
agenda.  Counsel Taruc reviewed the wording on the District’s Regular 
Meeting agendas.  “Executive Session regarding litigation, budget and 
labor issues.”  With the exception of the budget listing, he felt that 
should suffice for litigation and labor issues.  Taruc was not sure about 
the budget listing.  He reminded Trustees that closed sessions have to 
be recorded so that if there is an issue, the Attorney General’s office 
can review it. 

Trustee Benavidez then asked about the statute of limitations.  Counsel 
Taruc explained that if an OML violation is filed within 120 days of the 
alleged violation, the AG’s office MUST investigate that complaint.  If 
the OML violation is filed after the 120 day cutoff, the AG’s office MAY 
investigate, unless the violation comes under a few areas that always 
must be investigated.  Counsel Taruc will provide those specific areas.  
In addition, the person filing the complaint has to be somehow related 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

53



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 5  

 
to the jurisdiction of the body. This covered a question Trustee Waugh 

had about a resident of another taxing district filing a complaint about 
the District. 

Trustee Ramaker asked how long the AG’s office has to respond to the 
complaint.  Counsel Taruc explained that within 14 days of receipt of 
the complaint, the office must issue a letter to the complainant and the 
public body that a complaint has been received and the office is 
investigating.  As for a determination, Taruc said there is nothing in the 
statute with a deadline requirement. 

Chair Ortiz asked if he called for a break was called in the midst of 
public comment, would that be considered halting public comment.  
Counsel Taruc said no; the Chair cannot just stop someone from 
making a public comment UNLESS it is unduly repetitive. 

Trustee Benavidez asked about the Board communicating after 
receiving public comment from an individual.  Counsel Taruc explained 
that NRS 241.020 (3)(d)(3) does not limit public comment and 
discussion.  What Trustees cannot do is move from discussion to 
deliberation. 

Trustee Benavidez asked what issues would arise if the public body is 
behind on approving minutes.  Counsel Taruc explained that that is a 
technical OML violation.  That would probably be a finding.  However, if 
a violation is found, and the Trustees acknowledge it, and take 
accountability for the violation, it will lessen the blow of criminal and 
civil penalties that may be assessed. Trustee Waugh asked about 
approving minutes with very brief descriptions of what happened and 
amending the minutes later.  Counsel Taruc has seen instances where 
boards have done amended minutes; e.g., where the public body has 
found something that needed to be corrected or fleshed out after the 
fact. 

Chair Ortiz asked about how the Board dealt with an anonymous 
complaint to the Board, not necessarily to the AG’s office.  Counsel 
Taruc explained that if it was not sent as an OML complaint, it is up to 
the public body to deal with it as per their policy.  Taruc completed his 
presentation by directing Trustees to the AG’s website for the Open 
Meeting Law manual and phone numbers to call with questions. 

Chair Ortiz recessed the meeting at 9:51 a.m. 

Discussion on the 
District’s proposed 
new Strategic Plan, 
Playbook 2026.  
(Item IV.B.) 

Chair Ortiz reconvened the meeting at 10:01 a.m. 

Mr. Watson introduced discussion of the District’s proposed new 
Strategic Plan, Playbook 2026 by asking Ms. Milam to summarize from 
the previous strategic plan, Vision 2020. 

Ms. Milam’s presentation is attached as Appendix C. 

Questions and comments from Trustees are summarized. 

Trustee Benavidez acknowledged the work of staff in running with 
Vision 2020 and wanted to make sure that all staff are told they 
accomplished a great job. All the other Trustees echoed these 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

54



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 6  

 
comments and appreciated the information provided. 

 

Trustee Foyt asked about the data sources. Ms. Milam explained that 
demographics come from the U.S. Census and the American 
Community Survey.  The market segmentation data system is called 
Landscape. She also explained how it is compiled and how staff uses it. 

Trustee Rogers asked about the formative and summative assessment 
measures.  Ms. Milam has explained that the industry has been 
working on this for at least 40 years and it is still a work in progress. 

Trustee Wilson asked how the District used the market segmentation 
groups and whether staff focused on the top ten displayed in the 
presentation or did they drill down deeper.  Ms. Milam explained that 
staff looked at all the market segments for each branch.  There are 
roughly 59 different market segment groups spread around the 
District.  Staff break down the segments for each branch so they could 
understand better what service directions to take for individual 
branches. 

Mr. Watson explained that he asked Danielle to summarize the Vision 
2020 plan to explain where the District was now and how it had gotten 
here.  He remembered when he was interviewing for this position, 
there were several questions about his experience with strategic 
planning and he knows that is an important priority for the Trustees. 
Ms. Milam and the team were already in the process of working on the 
plan, so he provided some guidance.  And, in addition, since Watson 
really likes football, the Playbook got its name.  Today he is presenting 
a proposed action plan for Board discussion and feedback.  Mr. Watson 
plans to bring the Playbook back to the Board in July for adoption.  This 
is a high-level presentation and then the AT is going to come in and 
describe how each area will participate in the overall plan with “plays.” 

Mr. Watson’s presentation is attached as Appendix D. 

All Trustees commented that they appreciated the amount of work that 
went into the development of the Playbook and welcomed tying all 
different areas of the District together to achieve its goals 

Trustee Benavidez liked the incorporation of employee, family, and 
organizations in the plan, and the emphasis on making sure the 
District’s customers and staff (both inside and out) can see themselves 
at the library.  She emphasized that she hopes everyone is on board 
with the plan.  Also, Benavidez wass happy to see many newcomers in 
senior positions as she believes that will help the District reimagine 
what it will become.   

Trustee Whiteley appreciated the focus on listening.  Listening to what 
staff and customers want. Trustee Waugh also appreciated the focus on 
staff culture and being the employer of choice. 

Chair Ortiz praised Mr. Watson on his efforts to visit many critical 
individuals in the community who are willing to help the District out, 
spending time to evaluate the District and community resources, and in 
reaching out to the staff.  There can only be one leader with a direction 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

55



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 7  

 
and the Playbook is very good.  

Overview of Board 
Roles and 
Responsibilities.  
(Item IV.C.) 

Team-building 
challenges and 
exercises. 
(Item IV.D.) 

Ms. Pitchford and Mr. Herrera combined Items IV.C. and IV.D. as part 
of the Retreat Discussion. They opened with a presentation that 
focused on the outcomes Pitchford and Herrera would like to see.  The 
list is based upon discussions with Mr. Watson, those Trustees who 
took the opportunity to speak with Pitchford and Herrera prior to the 
Retreat, and those Trustees who took the opportunity to participate in 
an anonymous survey prior to the retreat.  The outcomes for the 
Retreat are: 

• Clarify roles and expectations 

• Setting goals and vision for the future 

• Deepening engagement between District, Trustees, and staff 

• Tools to be effective stewards and advocates 

• Work together as a collaborative team 

Their presentation is attached as Appendix E. 

Chair Ortiz recessed the meeting at 12:20 p.m. for lunch. 

Chair Ortiz reconvened the meeting at 1:18 p.m.  

Ms. Pitchford and Mr. Herrera continued with their discussion with the 
Trustees which focused on discussing how Trustees wanted to achieve 
the above outcomes as well as the following: 

• Discussion of how involved individual Trustees could be within 
OML limitations and best practices for governing boards 

• How could Trustees get to know each other within OML 
limitations and best practices.  These two items transitioned into 
each Trustee providing information on their background, 
approach to Board governance and their specialties’ that could 
help the District achieving its goals. 

• How best to approach staff with concerns or requests for 
information and how to receive information utilizing the Director 

All Trustees participated and the discussion was lively. 

Presentations by 
each Administrative 
Team Member. 
(Item IV.E.) 

The AT made their presentations, which as Mr. Walker explained, tied 
together information on each of their areas to the goals detailed in the 
Playbook describing specific plays their areas were planning to take.  
After each presentation Trustee questions and comments are 
summarized.  

John Vino - General Services Department – Appendix F 

Trustee Rogers suggested establishing a baseline for each “play”, and 
then reporting if the plays worked out or if not, why they did not.  He 
believed this was applicable to all the presentations. 

Trustee Waugh was floored by the West Las Vegas Library 
improvements and the speed at which they were achieved.  Other 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

56



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 8  

 
Trustees echoed his comments. 

 

Trustee Turner Whitely asked what Mr. Vino thought would be the 
biggest opportunity in his area to make a difference in the next six 
months.  Vino said he was most excited to sit down with each branch 
to determine their priorities and, if the District can afford it and there is 
an opportunity to do it, get the projects done.  Obviously, some 
priorities are more complex and require more work than others.  

Trustee Turner Whiteley then asked about safety and security training 
and how often and what types are done. Vino explained that every 
employee in the District received active shooter training two years ago, 
and that would be repeated very soon.  He also discussed Code Adam 
drills and lockdowns; staff need more training on lockdowns as these 
are increasing around the District.  The lockdown procedure is different 
due to the separate law enforcement agencies who may get involved, 
depending on whether the branch is located in the city or the county. 

Chair Ortiz appreciated staff incorporating the electric vehicles into the 
District’s programs. 

Al Prendergast – Information Technology Department - Appendix G 

Trustee Rogers appreciated increasing computer literacy among District 
stakeholders and increasing access to different emerging technologies. 

Trustee Ramaker appreciates, from her Windmill Service Center tour, 
all the different services which provide opportunities for children and 
adults for education and job searches.  She especially appreciated the 
District providing Wi-Fi during the pandemic shutdown.  That alone was 
heavily used and greatly appreciated by the residents of Mesquite.  She 
also can appreciate the technology behind the electronic sorting 
equipment that allows so much material to be moved around. 

Chair Ortiz commented on the improvement in access to Wi-Fi for the 
District’s customers, which is a reduction in the digital divide for the 
District’s underserved populations dating back to when he was first 
appointed to the Board. He emphasized that this strategic plan is an 
opportunity to really capture the underserved population regardless of 
race, color, creed, religion, etc.; noting that the first thing someone 
loses when they are broke is internet access. 

Trustee Jiron is very excited to work with the District and the Clark 
County School District to get databases in the hands of students so 
that they remember the library is here and what it can help them to 
do. 

Trustee Meléndrez appreciated that there is a focus to bridge the 
digital divide, increase community shares, and establish a Technology 
bus to bring internet access to additional people.  He also wanted to 
stress the importance of cybersecurity. 

Mr. Watson reminded Trustees that all of the opportunities mentioned 
were aspirational and some are more risky than others.  The plan is an 
opportunity to take risks and try to do things that have not yet been 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

57



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 9  

 
done before. 

 

Jeff Serpico– Human Resources Department - Appendix H  

Trustee Ramaker asked about difficult situations such as complaints 
and discipline.  Mr. Serpico explained that is be handled through the 
Employer Relations and Labor Relations function, which is more of a 
day-to-day administrative role. 

Trustee Waugh asked about District affinity groups for employees.  He 
knows that it has been discouraged at the District in the past and he 
wondered if it might be a good time to look at it again for employees. 
Mr. Watson said that staff could certainly look at it.  However, in his 
experience, affinity groups can sometimes create more silos. He 
believes there might be another way to go forward, using the District’s 
Diversity Committee, which is a holistic group focusing on diversity as 
a whole.  The District can still provide some of those same resources 
and support versus creating individual silos.  Watson emphasized that 
he has communicated to the AT and the staff that he is the Chief 
Diversity Officer at the District and the AT represents him.  That is his 
approach.  He will certainly look at implementing the same things that 
affinity groups would be able to deliver as well. 

Trustee Turner Whiteley believes the Playbook is an example of 
forward thinking and she is really looking forward to what the District 
does with the town halls. 

Chair Ortiz complimented Mr. Serpico on jumping right in on his arrival 
to deal with many issues that needed to be addressed immediately. 

Danielle Milam – Development and Planning - Appendix I  

Trustee Benavidez appreciated Ms. Milam discussed putting the 
Foundation Directors together with the Trustees, especially since they 
have a common goal of enthusiastically supporting the District as well 
as getting to know the Foundation members. 

Trustee Foyt was pleased that the volunteer level is increasing again.  
She asked if any Book sales were scheduled and Ms. Milam said that 
she is hoping to announce some soon.  She discussed some ideas to 
make it easy for teachers to come in with their ID and get their 
discount year-round, not just at special sales. 

Trustee Turner Whiteley commented that she was very happy the 
Foundation’s revenues were going to specific programs.  Milam 
responded by saying that she believes that one of the advantages of 
the Foundation is that its overhead is covered by the District and so 
staff can tell donors and funders that every single dollar goes to the 
program they want to fund. 

Chair Ortiz recessed the meeting at 3:54 p.m. and called it back to 
order at 4:04 p.m.  Ortiz also announced that Nevada State Library 
representative Norma Fowler would not be presenting at the meeting, 
but the material she has provided is available to the Trustees on 
Diligent. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

58



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 10  

 
Matt McNally – Community Engagement – Appendix J 

Trustee Turner Whiteley appreciated that staff were looking into 
reducing or eliminating fines.  She also appreciated that one of the 
listed goals was to recognize staff who implement innovative ideas.  
She hopes that is given some thought, considering that some other 
libraries are not even opened back up. 

Trustee Waugh appreciated the focus on e-sports and other digital 
offerings.  Other Trustees echoed his comments. 

Chair Ortiz said the pandemic was a stress test for the District and he 
believed Mr. McNally’s department met the challenge in the changes to 
the District capacity limits and programs during the pandemic as well 
as in their planning for future programs. 

Trustee Meléndrez was glad to see the District opening up again which 
other Trustees echoed. 

Trustee Foyt asked whether the District would be sponsoring a water 
donation drive or distribution during the summer.  She remembers that 
happening in the past.  McNally said that it may have been a one-time 
event at only one of the branches, but he can certainly discuss that 
with the Director.  

Betsy Ward – Branding and Marketing – Appendix K 

Chair Ortiz said that five years ago, he had requested that staff 
continue to work on improving the District’s marketing in Spanish.  As 
staff work on the budget, he requested that staff make sure that there 
is money to advertise the District’s programs in Spanish. 

Trustee Turner Whiteley asked if there was a paid strategy for the 
District’s advertising.  Ms. Ward discussed what has worked and not 
worked in the past. 

Floresto Cabias – Financial Services – Appendix L 

Chair Ortiz requested that Financial Services put together an after-
action report on how the District managed during the pandemic that 
could be used as a guide. He commented that it seems as though the 
District faces something major every eight or nine years. 

Leo Segura – Library Operations – Appendix M 

Chair Ortiz asked Mr. Segura how many staff were in Library 
Operations.  Segura said that there were currently 480 employees. 

Trustee Waugh wanted to ensure that with three proposed Regional 
Manager positions, that Mr. Segura keeps an eye on equity between 
branches.  Waugh hopes that dividing the branches that way will allow 
Regional Managers to hone in on each branches specific needs.  Segura 
said that the addition of these three positions would provide more 
branch support and attention to their specific needs, especially for the 
outlying branches. 

Trustee Waugh also suggested cross training between BAM and LO so 
the District can utilize embedded content creators at each branch.  Mr. 
Segura agreed, talking about the training that had already been done 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

59



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Retreat 
June 25, 2021 
Page 11  

 
and that staff are starting to utilize a program called Biblioboard, which 
allows for additional posting of not only staff, but also customer 
content created through the District at the branches.   

Chair Ortiz thanked everyone for spending the day together.  He felt it 
had been an opportunity for the Trustees to learn and weigh in on the 
District’s priorities as well as ensure the Director has what he needs in 
order to succeed.  

Mr. Herrera and Ms. Pitchford agreed they saw movement forward and 
were pleased that the outcomes that were discussed at the beginning 
of the Retreat came to fruition.  There was a lot of discussion, back-
and-forth between everyone and lots of good questions and 
conversation about the role of the Board.  The leadership is evolving 
and Herrera saw the Trustees developing and moving forward as they 
continue in their roles.  He and Ms. Pitchford thanked Trustees for the 
honor of working with them, as well as their energy and participation. 

Mr. Watson thanked everyone who participated in the retreat, and said, 
bringing the discussion back to the Playbook, he has always said that 
practice makes perfect.  This is where the District is now.  This is the 
beginning.  This is the creation of the ecosystem that connects the 
Playbook strategies to the District’s departmental operations and its 
organizational plan and its operational plans to teamwork.   

Mr. Watson asked that Trustees be the ambassadors of the Playbook – 
it is not his Playbook, it is the District’s Playbook.  The Playbook would 
not have been completed without the input from the staff and 
stakeholders.  And having all those insights and aspirations to the 
service and supporting the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District and 
becoming one of the greatest libraries and destinations, period, in the 
world. 

Trustees individually thanked facils staff and expressed appreciation to 
the entire district.   

Announcements      
(Item IX.) 

The next Board Meeting will be held Thursday, July 8, 2021 at the West 
Charleston Library at 6:00 p.m. 

Public Comment 
(Item X.) 

None. 

Adjournment    
(Item XIII.) 

Chair Ortiz adjourned the meeting at 5:32 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kelly Benavidez, Secretary 
 
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

60



2021 ATTENDANCE June 25, 2021 Regular and Retreat Board Meetings

Appendix A

2021 Ja
nu

ar
y 

8 
S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
 R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 1

1 
R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 2

3 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

B
rd

 M
tg

A
pr

il 
8 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it

A
pr

il 
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ay

 2
0 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 5
 S

pe
ci

al
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C
m

te

Ju
ne

 1
0 

N
om

in
at

in
g 

C
m

te
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

B
oa

rd
 R

et
re

at

Benavidez Kelly P P P P P P P P P A-E P P
Bilbray-Axelrod* Shannon P P P X X X X X X X X X X X
Francis Drake*** Marilyn P P P P P P P X X X X X X X
Foyt Elizabeth P P P P P P P P P A-E A-E P P
Meléndrez José P P P P  A-E A-E A-E P P A-E P P
Ortiz Felipe P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Wadley-Munier*** Robin P P P P P P P X X X X X X X
Ramaker Sandra P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Wilson Brian P P P P A-E A-E A-E P P P P P P P
Rogers Keith A-E P P P P P P P P P P P
Waugh** Nathaniel X X X P P P P P P P P P P P
Jiron**** Jennifer X X X X X X X P P P P P P P
Turner Whiteley**** Kate X X X X X X X P P P P P

attended Committee meeting but not a member
 

A-E Excused Absence
A-U Unexcused Absense

*Shannon Bilbray-Axelrod's term expired March 1, 2021
**Nathaniel Waugh was appointed March 2, 2021
*** Term expired April  18, 2021
**** Appointed to term beginning April 19, 2021

as of June 28, 2021

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

61



Open Meeting Law Training
Justin Taruc, Deputy Attorney General

Boards and Open Government
2021 Training

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

62



Applicability of the Open Meeting Law

• The Open Meeting Law (“OML”) applies to meetings of public bodies.  
NRS 241.016(1).

• A “public body” is “[a]ny administrative, advisory, executive or 
legislative body of a State or a local government consisting of at least 
two persons which expends or disburses or is supported in whole or 
in part by tax revenue or which advises or makes recommendations 
to any entity which expends or disburses or is supported in whole or 
in part by tax revenue. . . .”  NRS 241.015(4).

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

63



NRS Chapter 241

• The OML is found in NRS Chapter 241.

• Legislature declared in statute that it is the intent of the law that 
public bodies take action openly and that their deliberations be 
conducted openly.  NRS 241.010(1).

• “The spirit and policy behind the OML favors open meetings and any 
exceptions thereto should be strictly construed.”  McKay v. Board of 
Supervisors, 102 Nev. 644, 730 P.2d 438 (1986).

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

64



What is a “Meeting”?

• NRS 241.015(3) defines “meeting” as “[t]he gathering of members of a 
public body at which a quorum is present, . . . to deliberate toward a 
decision or to take action on any matter over which the public body has 
supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory power.”

• Quorum: a simple majority of the membership of a public body or 
another proportion set by law.  NRS 241.015(5).

• Deliberation: collectively examine, weigh, and reflect upon the reasons 
for or against an action.  NRS 241.015(2).

• Action: a decision, commitment, or promise  made by a majority of the 
members present during a meeting.  NRS 241.015(1).

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

65



Serial Communications

• A meeting also includes serial communications

• What is serial communication?
1. A series of gatherings of members of a public body;
2. Less than a quorum is present at any individual gathering;
3. The members of the public body attend one or more of the 

gatherings collectively constitute a quorum; and
4. The series of gatherings was held with the specific intent to avoid 

the provisions of the OML

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

66



What is a Meeting? – Exceptions (NRS 241.015(3)(b))

• The definition of a “meeting” does not include:

• Social Functions where there is no deliberation or action taken on any 
matter over which the public body has supervision, control, jurisdiction, 
or advisory power

• Attorney-Client Litigation Sessions – to receive information from the 
body’s attorney regarding potential or existing litigation matter over 
which the public body has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory 
power.

• Training Regarding Legal Obligations of the Public Body

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

67



Meeting Notice and Agenda Requirements –
(NRS 241.020)
• Written notice must be given at least 3 working days before the 

meeting, which requires:
1. Time, place, and location of the meeting;
2. List of the locations where the notice was posted;
3. The name, contact information, and business address for the 

person from whom a member of the public may request 
supporting materials and a list of the locations where the 
supporting materials is available to the pubic or information 
about how to find supporting material on the Internet; and

4. An agenda

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

68



Meeting Notice and Agenda Requirements

• Agenda must consist of a clear and complete statement of the topics 
scheduled to be considered

• Action items must be clearly denoted as ”for possible action”
• Public comment, to be taken at the beginning/end of meeting or before 

any action taken on an item
• If any portion of the meeting will be closed to consider the character, 

alleged misconduct, or professional competence of a person, the name of 
the person

• If the public body will consider whether to take administrative action 
regarding a person, the name of the person

• Notification that items on the agenda may be taken out of order, may be 
combined for consideration, and may be removed from the agenda or 
delayed for discussion at any time

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

69



What Does it Mean to be “Clear and 
Complete”?
• Agenda items must be clear and complete.  NRS 241.020(2)(d)(1).

• A higher degree of specificity is necessary for topics of substantial public 
interest.  Sandoval, 119 Nev. at 154-55, 67 P.3d at 906.  Factors to consider 
include:

• Does the topic generate public comment?
• Does the topic generate debate among the members of the body?
• Does the topic generate media interest/coverage?

Ask yourself – does the notice provide enough information to the public of 
its government is doing, has done, or may do?

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

70



Minimum Public Notice – NRS 241.020(4)

• Must post a copy of the notice at least the following:
1. Principal office of the public body;
2. If meeting is held using a remote technology system and no physical 

location, post on the public body’s Internet website;
3. Official Notice website of the State; and
4. Provide a copy to any person who has requested notice of the meetings

• Must be posted no later than 9 a.m. of the third working day before the meeting.

• Additional notice requirements for consideration of character, misconduct, 
competence, or physical or mental health: 5 days personal service or 21 days 
certified mail.  NRS 241.033. 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

71



Additional Requirements

• Must make reasonable efforts to assist and accommodate persons 
with physical disabilities desiring to attend.  NRS 241.020(1).

• Must make reasonable efforts to ensure the facilities for the meeting 
are large enough to accommodate the anticipated number of 
attendees.  NRS 2410.020(2).

• At least one copy of the notice, agenda, and supplemental materials 
must be made available to the public at the meeting. NRS 241.020(7).

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

72



Emergency Meetings – NRS 241.020(9)

An emergency meeting may only be called where the need to act upon a 
matter is truly unforeseen and circumstances dictate that immediate action 
is required. 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

73



Closed Meetings – NRS 241.030

• Closed sessions may be held by any public body to:
1. Consider character, alleged misconduct, professional 

competence, or the physical or mental health of a person, with 
some exceptions;

2. Prepare, revise, administer, or grade examinations administered 
on behalf of the public body;

3. Consider an appeal by a person of the results of an examination 
appeal by a person of the results of an examination administered 
on behalf of the public body.  

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

74



Closed Meetings – NRS 241.030

• Closed sessions may not be held:
• To discuss the appointment of any person to public office or as a 

member of a public body.  
• To consider the character, alleged misconduct, or professional 

competence of an elected member of a public body, or a person 
who is an appointed public officer or who serves at the pleasure of 
a public body as a chief executive or administrative officer or in a 
comparable position

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

75



Public Comment

• Restrictions on public comment must be specified on the Notice

• Restrictions must be reasonable “time, place, and manner” 
restrictions.  NRS 241.020(d)(7).  This means NO:

• Halting comment based on viewpoint of speaker;
• Halting comment upon belief defamation is occurring; or
• Halting comment critical of a public official.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

76



Public Comment

• A presiding officer may halt comments that become unduly repetitive 
or that stray from the scope of a specified agenda topic for which 
comment is offered, or halt conduct that is willfully disruptive.  See 
Kindt v. Santa Monica Rent Control Bd., 67 F.3d 266 (9th Cir. 1995); 
White v. City of Norwalk, 900 F.2d 1421, 1425-26 (9th Cir. 1990).

• The OML does not “[p]revent the removal of any person who willfully 
disrupts a meeting to the extent that its orderly conduct is made 
impractical.”  NRS 241.030(4)(a).

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

77



Teleconferencing and Videoconferencing –
NRS 241.023
• Public body may conduct a meeting via teleconference or videoconference if:

1. There is a quorum present either in person or by electronic means; and
2. Either:

A. There is a physical location where the public is permitted to attend and 
participate; or

B. They can hear and observe the meeting, participate in the meeting by 
telephone, and provide live public comment during the meeting.

• Public body must make reasonable efforts to ensure that the members and the 
public can hear and observe each other.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

78



Meeting Records – NRS 241.035

• The public body shall keep written minutes of each meeting, including:
• Date, time, and place of the meeting;
• Roll call of members;
• Substance of all matters proposed, discussed, or decided;
• Substance of remarks made by the public if request is made that minutes 

reflect the remarks, or if written remarks are prepared, a copy of the remarks 
if submitted for inclusion in the minutes

• Public body shall approve the meeting minutes within 45 days after the meeting 
or at the next meeting

• Meeting minutes are public records

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

79



Violations

• Action taken in violation of the OML is void.  NRS 241.036

• The OAG has statutory enforcement powers under the OML and the 
authority to investigate and prosecute violations of the OML.  NRS 
241.037; NRS 241.039; NRS 241.040.

• If a violation is found, the public body must include an item on its next 
agenda which acknowledges the OAG’s findings, and the OAG’s opinion 
must be treated as supporting material for the item.  NRS 241.0395.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

80



Violations – Corrective Action

• When a violation of the OML occurs or is alleged, the OAG recommends 
that the public body made every effort to promptly correct the apparent 
violation.  NRS 241.0365.

• Corrective action is prospective only.  NRS 241.0365(4).
• Corrective action requires that the public body engage in an 

independent deliberative action in full compliance with the OML. Page v. 
Mira Costa Community College Dist., 102 Cal. Rptr. 3rd 902, 930 (Cal. Ct. 
App. 2009).

• Corrective action must be clearly denoted by placing the term “for 
possible corrective action” next to the appropriate agenda item. 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 20

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

81



Violations – Criminal and Civil Penalties

• Each member of a public body who attends a meeting where any 
violation of the OML occurs, has knowledge of the violation, and 
participates in the violation, is guilty of a misdemeanor.  NRS 241.040.

• In addition to any criminal penalty, members may be subject to 
administrative fines ($500 for first offense, $1,000 for second offense, 
$2,500 for third offense)

• No criminal or civil penalty may be imposed against a member if 
reliance on legal advice provided by an attorney of the public body.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 21

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

82



Assembly Bill 253  (2021)

• Public bodies not entirely comprised of elected officials may conduct 
meetings exclusively by means of remote technology systems

• To be able to hold a meeting using a remote technology system and 
no physical location, the public body must:

1. Have an Internet website; and
2. Post to that website the Notice and Agenda and supporting 

materials

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 22

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

83



Assembly Bill 253  (2021)

• If conducting a meeting using a remote technology system and no 
physical location, notice must also include information on how the 
public may use the remote technology system to hear and observe 
the meeting, participate in the meeting by telephone, and provide 
live public comment during the meeting.

• Agenda and notice must be posted to the public body’s website not 
later than 9 a.m. on the third working day before the meeting

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 23

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

84



Additional Points

• Parliamentary procedure is not addressed in the OML – Duties of the 
presiding officer, recognizing speakers, motions and voting, making a 
clear record.  See, e.g., Robert’s Rules of Order (11th ed. 2011).

• Disclosure and abstention prior to consideration of a topic in 
conformance with Ethics in Government Law (NRS Chapter 281A).  
Abstain only in a clear case where the independence of judgement of 
a reasonable person in your situation would be materially affected by 
the conflict of interest disclosed.  See NRS 281A.420; see also 
Carrigan v. Commission on Ethics, __ Nev. __, 313 P.3d 880 (2013).

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 24

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

85



Questions?

• Nevada Open Meeting Law Manual:
http://ag.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/agnvgov/Content/About/Governmental_Affairs/
2019-03-26_OML_12TH_AGOMANUAL.pdf

• Nevada Attorney General Phone Numbers:
• (775) 684-1100
• (702) 486-3420

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix B 

Page 25

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

86



1

NOW TO NEXT
Building Blocks of Library District 
Present Strategic Plan

Danielle Milam
Director of Development and Planning

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

87



2

VISION 2020 (v.2020)
Building for the Future
2016-2020
Adopted by the Library District Board of Trustees January 2016

Mission:
The Las Vegas-Clark County Library District nurtures the educational, economic, 
and social well-being of individuals and communities in southern Nevada. The 
District is committed to building communities of people who can come together to 
pursue their individual and group aspirations.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

88



3

V.2020 PLANNING PROCESS & CONTEXT
 Customer- and Community- Driven  Design for our service area based on 

community demographics and market segment data.  Test with community 
leader and partner organization conversations/input.

 Future Forward   Understand the global forces shaping and/or disrupting our 
world, industry, and community are changing rapidly and constantly, and shape 
a plan that is flexible, adaptable, and responsive

 Industry Transformation  The business of public libraries is undergoing a radical 
change - from a focus on transactions to one of transformation:

 Passive to Interactive
 Information to Learning and Experiences
 Physical and Virtual
 Outputs to Outcomes
 Static Plans to Flexible Decision Frameworks

 Asset-Based How does the Library District mobilize and maximize its public 
assets for the well-being, success, and vitality of people and communities in the 
region?

 Performance Framework   Districtwide and Branch Level Service Plans

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

89



4

CUSTOMER- AND COMMUNITY-DRIVEN

Mobile (46% of local households moved here since 2010)

Growing Diversity 
9.7% Black
9.3% Asian
Two or more races 21.6%
Latinx 36.7%

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

90



5

Black Population Asian Population Latinx Population

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

91



6

 49% of adults 25+ have a high school diploma or less

EDUCATION

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

92



7

 45% of Households Live on 
$50K or less 

INCOME

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

93



8

RAPID GROWTH

2020
895,184 Households

2040
1,099,137 Households

2030
1,004,064 Households

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

94



9

Market 
Segmentation
Our Service 
Area is 
Fragmented 
and Extremely 
Diverse
59 of 65 National Market 
Segments (LandScape)

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

95



10

The Top 10 Market 
Segments 
Comprise 52% of 
our Population

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

96



11

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

97



12

 Sitting Pretty (142,479) – Young, married couple families, some with children, 
working white-collar jobs enjoying good income but probably have debt – house, 
car, school  

 Educated Earners (123,600) – Well-educated young singles, many with children, 
living in suburbs with career advancement opportunities

 Suburban Singles (90,872) – Young singles with young children, lower education 
levels, earning $30-40K annually, limited career advancement opportunities

 Solo Acts (90,535) – Young and single, some with children, live in urban 
environments

 Proud Parents (87,435) – Young, single parents, many Latinx, with limited 
education struggling to make ends meet

 The Singles (87,035) – Predominantly single parents, many Latinx, who rely on 
blue-collar jobs and public assistance for income

 Hard Workers (81,245) – Young single parents with young children who rely on 
blue-collar jobs and public assistance for income, many Latinx

 Hard Act to Follow (65,817) – single 30-40, $30-50K annual income, with few kids
 Sublime Suburbia (61,249) – Married couples without children in their 30s with 

incomes between $50-60K annually
 Regents (61,074) – Married couples in 40s with children, living in urban 

neighborhoods making above average incomes

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

98



13

Each Segment Has 
Extensive 
Information About 
Lifestyle, Life 
Stage, Learning 
and Information 
Preferences

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

99



14

Kids

Move up

Heavy tech

Current Events

Travel Abroad

Make food

No kids

Happy right here

Light tech

Celebrity gossip

Stay home 

Frozen meals

20 – 40K
White collar
Single
Late 20’s -30’s
Movies/drinking
Diet/cooking concerns
Streaming services
Community & Culture

Educated Earners

Hard Act to Follow

14 Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

100



15

SUNRISE

MESQUITEMESQUITE

CENTENNIAL HILLS

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

101



16

CORE 
CUSTOMERS

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

102



17

NON-
CUSTOMERS

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

103



18

BUILDING MARKET SHARE
Board of Trustees' Retreat 

June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 
Page - 18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

104



19

V.2020 PLANNING PROCESS & CONTEXT
 Customer and Community Conditions

 Future Forward – Forces Around Us Disrupting and/or Shaping Our Business 

 Service Transformation  
 Passive to Interactive
 Information to Learning and Experiences
 Physical and Virtual
 Outputs to Outcomes
 Static Plans to Flexible Decision Frameworks

 Asset-Based How does the Library District mobilize and maximize its public 
assets for the well-being, success, and vitality of people and communities in the 
region?

 Performance Framework   Districtwide and Branch Level Implementation

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

105



20

LIMITLESS 
LEARNING

BUSINESS & 
CAREER

GOVERNMENT & 
SOCIAL SERVICES

COMMUNITY & 
CULTURE

V.2020 STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 20

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

106



21

Education Gap Interest Driven Learning

Literacies

 Ready for  Kindergarten
 Homework Help 
 More STEAM and TechArt programs
 Expand English language instruction 
 Expand access to technology – PCs, 

devices, digital media equipment

 Customer-driven program design
 Variety of  formats in our collections
 Maker, DIY, DJ programs that grow life 

and workplace skills
 Apps that make it easy for people to find 

materials and programs

 Digital, coding, health, financial literacy
 Meetups, programs, materials
 Expansion of partnerships with other 

organizations that have training and 
expertise

 Implement more online learning

Strategies for Limitless Learning
Board of Trustees' Retreat 

June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 
Page - 21

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

107



22

Job & Career Path Support Partnerships, Networking, 
Meet-ups

Business & Career Center

 Grow access to resources for job seekers: 
resume, interview, tech skills, finance

 Integrate  career pathing into CALL
 Partner to develop workforce readiness 

and skills
 Tool up computer labs with new workforce 

skills, job assessment and search 
trainings

 Focus on small business development

 Tap local expertise and employers
 Be the meet-up space for locals
 Grow career path programs, mentors
 Stream content on business basics
 Partnerships with SCORE, Vets, ASU, 

Nevada Workforce Connections, CSN, 
UNLV

 Printers, copiers, fax machines, 
scanners, computers

 Phone room, consultation meeting 
rooms

 Resources online and one-on-one
 Online support, ex. Health Cards

Strategies for Business & Career 
Success

Business Incubator

 Programs on all aspects of business 
planning and development 

 Online tools
 Streaming content on business basics
 Business conversation circle

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 22

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

108



23

Resources Partnerships

The Public’s Trust

 Live Links on Website
 One-stop for materials and e-materials
 Meeting rooms
 Wi-Fi (citywide)
 Computers/Devices
 Public training
 Staff training  
 Copiers and fax machines

 Other libraries
 Government agencies
 Nonprofits
 Social workers *UNLV Study
 School counselors
 Food banks
 211 Services

 Trusted resource
 Friendly atmosphere
 Public space
 Expertise
 Professional staff
 Unbiased advice
 Public’s best interest

Strategies for Government & 
Social Services

23 Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 23

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

109



24

Third Place Open Door

Enrich Community & Life

 Sanctuary away from home
 Open space, comfortable 

seating, work spaces, café
 Physical environment conducive 

to formal/informal learning
 Wi-Fi, copier, ample outlets, fax, 

good lighting

 Welcoming environment
 Community living room
 Sense of belonging
 Variety of library material 

formats for diverse audiences
 Strong social media presence
 Inviting interactive website

 Diverse programming tailored 
to interests of local audiences

 Variety of materials & formats 
 Offerings at art galleries and 

theatres
 Outreach
 Hub for civic engagement

Strategies for Community & 
Culture

Creative Collaboration
 Create collaborative opportunities
 Meet-up atmosphere 
 Social media, sharing, and 

learning sites
 DJ/Tech Art Studio/Productions
 Makerspace
 Paid experts, knowledgeable staff

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 24

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

110



25

How Did We Implement V.2020?

25

Changed Corporate Culture and Mindset – EMBRACED AND LED CHANGE!

Quick and Responsive to TRENDS, TECHNOLOGY, AND PANDEMIC CONDITIONS

Created Stronger CUSTOMER SERVICE CULTURE in Buildings and Online

Created ADAPTABLE Staffing Models and Facility Plans for Multi-Use Spaces 

Formed PARTNERSHIPS, Fostered ENGAGEMENT, Used COMMUNITY EXPERTS and 
MENTORS

Supported an Inviting & Interactive DIGITAL PRESENCE

REALIGNED EXISTING RESOURCES and Found NEW FUNDING SOURCES

EXPERIMENTED, PROTOTYPED, LEARNED FROM FAILING, AND INNOVATED 
SUCCESSFULLY

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 25

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

111



26

Library Facilities Master Plan Decision Framework
Passed by LVCCLD Board of Trustees  September 2018

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 26

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

112



27

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 27

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

113



28

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 28

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

114



29

Questions?

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix C 

Page - 29

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

115



Playbook 2026
All In To Win
Inclusion x Innovation x Involvement

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

116



TEAM ROSTER  
Coach:Kelvin Watson 

2

Sylvia Riesselmann
Leo Segura
Jeff Serpico
Thomas Sommer
Natalia Tabisaura
David Tran
Lisa True
John Vino
Sherry Walker
Betsy Ward
Valerie Warren
Jennifer Weitz

Joanna Goddard
Hannah Im
Gloria Jertberg
Darren Johnson
Raychel Lendis
Juliette Loebl
Paula Loop
Matt McNally
Jack Meyer
Danielle Milam
Penny Premstit
Al Prendergast

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

117



VISION

MISSION
▪ Limitless Learning

▪ Business & Career Success

▪ Government & Social 
Services

▪ Community & Culture

HOW WILL WE SUCCEED?
All people in Southern Nevada thrive and 
enjoy educational , economic, and social 
well-being.

The Las Vegas-Clark County Library District 
nurtures the educational, economic, and 
social well-being of individuals and 
communities in Southern Nevada. The 
District is committed to building 
communities of people who come together 
to pursue their individual and group 
aspirations.

LAS  VEGAS - CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

3

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

118



4

2019 Demographic 
Survey
• District wide and all 

branches
• American Community 

survey conducted 
annually so data is 
current

• Market Segmentation 
Data

UNLV Student 
Evaluation Surveys
• January –February 

2021
• 244 Employees
• 4 Board Trustees
• 40 Partners

Staff Survey
• Disruptive trends
• Positive trends
• Challenges 
• Strengths 
• Most impactful 

programs
• Refining strategies 
• Ways to increase 

library effectiveness 
• 10 year headlines

• Fall 2019

• Questions to 
community 
thought 
leaders

DATA POINTS
Board of Trustees' Retreat 

June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 
Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

119



CHALLENGES OF INCLUSION 

INCLUSION

Growing 
Diversity

Growing 
Poverty, Low 

Education, 
Limited 

English, Social 
Service Issues

16% Population

Over 65, many 
Home Alone

Many Diverse 
Families, 

Mostly Young 
Parents with 

Young Children

Transient/
Mobile 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

120



COMMUNITY CONDITIONS

 Leadership interviews of biggest challenges- education, 
unemployment, small business vitality, family sustaining wages, 
lack of technology skills

 Impacts of Pandemic- Unemployment still at 230,000
Mismatch of worker skills with emerging employment 

opportunities
DEIA and Systems of Bias- inequities in education, health, food 

and housing, security, policing, incarceration, LGBTQ+
Mental health, substance abuse, addiction
Growing homeless population and no solutions to scale
 Limited and low quality child care sector

6

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

121



GLOBAL FORCES OF CHANGE
REINVENTION OF THE PUBLIC LIBRARY

X SOCIAL- Young Families, 
Aging Populations, Customization, 
Responding to Customer Interests, 
Building Cultures of Inclusion, Equity, 
Diversity and Access

o LEARNING- Virtual and Live, 
New Learning Platforms, Project-Based 
Learning, Multi-Cultural Content, Digital 
Divide, Special Needs Learners, Focus on 
Customer Experience, Experiential and Lab 
Environments

X ECONOMIC- Pandemic 
Instability and Distress, Unemployment, 
Affordable Housing, Workforce Skills 
Mismatch with Available Jobs, Automation, 
Remote Work, Gig Economy, Sustainable 
Wages

O TECHNOLOGY- Mobile 
Apps, Cloud, and Virtual Platforms, 
Exponential Change, Fast Adoption, Rising 
Demand for Digital Products and Virtual 
Services, Multi-Channel Customer Care

X COMPETITION-Online 
Search, Online Services, Home Delivery, 
Virtual and Shared Work, Google, Amazon, 
YouTube, Tik Tok, Instacart, WeWork

O PANDEMIC- Wild Cards that 
Turn the World Upside Down

7

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

122



PLAYBOOK INNOVATION
Pre- and Post-Pandemic Feedback on V.2020 Strategic Directions

Tweaks Trash Transformation

How Do We Activate the Strategies
What plays can we make to be more inclusive, responsive, relevant and adaptive?

Powerful People Powerful Places Powerful 
Partnerships Powerful Platforms

8

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

123



9

LIMITLESS 
LEARNING

BUSINESS AND 
CAREER SUCCESS

CONNECTING TO 
GOVERNMENT 

AND SOCIAL 
SERVICS

COMMUNITY 
AND CULTURE

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

124



LIMITLESS LEARNING

Close the Education Gap
 Build the learning pipeline- early learning leads to Kindergarten readiness and K-12 school success and 

graduation 
 STEAM learning opportunities lead to workforce opportunities and greater earning potential
 Alternative adult learning opportunities- expanded programs, trainings, technology assistance, English 

instruction, certifications
 Libraries are essential supports for virtual learning

Interest-Driven Learning
 Customers drive their own learning
 We need to listen and respond
 Take & Makes with learning objectives
 Maker Spaces

Increase Literacies in All Areas
 Reading, Digital, Health, Financial, Media

Fun and Fresh
 Utilize multiple channels, Learning Modalities
 Do the unexpected, both in the libraries and out in the community where people already gather 10

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

125



Powerful

Places
Powerful 
Platforms

Powerful 
Partnerships

Powerful 
People

Limitless Learning

• Customers, 
community thought 
leaders, influencers

• Staff, community 
experts, training 
partners, book group , 
DIY enthusiasts, 
makers

• Educators
• Volunteers, mentors, 

coaches
• Donors
• CCSD  leadership and 

CCSD Partnership 
Office

• Local Employers

• Place for the whole family 
to engage in learning 
activities

• Learning Labs, Maker 
Spaces, Computer Labs, 
Device Advice

• Events at libraries and pop-
up community places

• Place to master new 
technologies

• District service model is 
embedded in all branches

• Branch flavors are 
encouraged, cultivated, and 
celebrated

• Casinos, local employers
• Maker spaces

• Early learning organizations 
and child care community

• CCSD, Charter Schools, K-
12 educators, tutors

• Adult Education Ecosystem
• Post- secondary partners-

CSN, UNLV, NSC, trade 
schools, certifications

• Out of school time 
partners- City of Las Vegas, 
Clark County, nonprofits

• Chambers of Commerce
• NSLAPR, IMLS
• DISCOVERY Children’s 

Museum 
• North Las Vegas, Boulder 

City  and Henderson Library 
Districts

• Vegas PBS
• Cooperative Extension
• Veterans

• Library as learning place 
for families, students, 
adults

• Online learning –
databases, courses, 
apps, COHS, adult 
education

• Social media
• We are a learning 

organization
• Outreach Services 

delivers broadly

11

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

126



BUSINESS & CAREER SUCCESS

Employment and Career Path Support
 Resume, interview, job fairs
 Adult education, English language Instruction
 Technology training
 Online courses and certifications
 Events that support remote workers
 Services and events for re-entry populations
 Services and events for  veterans
 Free printing

Business Development, Hubs, and Incubators
 Small business development services, individual and group
 Business networking events
 Online business resources and courses
 Programs for gig economy workers
 Access to office equipment, lounges, conference rooms

12

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

127



Powerful

Places
Powerful 
Platforms

Powerful 
Partnerships

Powerful 
People

Business & Career Success

• Adult Learning 
Program staff

• CCSD HS counselors
• Computer lab staff
• Teen media 

specialists
• Outreach staff
• One-Stop staff
• Recruiters
• Social service agency 

liaisons
• Apprenticeship 

liaisons
• LVCCLD HR
• LVCCLD training staff
• Volunteers
• Trainers
• Local Entrepreneurs 

and Employers

• One-Stop Career Center
• Employ NV 
• Chambers of Commerce
• Smith Center
• CCSD high schools
• LVCCLD community spaces 

and study rooms
• Adult services desk
• Maker Spaces
• Computer Labs
• Casino employee break 

rooms and day cares
• City parks
• Community Centers
• Convention Centers
• UNLV, CSN,NSC
• RTC
• Office space, business hubs, 

co-working spaces, 
conference rooms

• Other regional libraries

• Workforce Connections
• CCSD, CSN, UNLV, NSC
• Goodwill
• FIT
• Payback
• NV Small Business Development 

Center
• City of Las Vegas Innovation 

Center
• Chambers of Commerce
• Local Unions
• Greater Las Vegas Assoc Realtors
• Trade schools, re-entry programs
• The Harbor
• NPHY, Shade Tree, Project 150
• YMCA
• Goodwill 
• Governor’s Office of Economic 

Development, LVGEA, OWIN, 
DETR, Dept of Ed, Business and 
Industry

• Veteran Organizations

• Nevada Career Explorer
• Employ NV
• LVCCLD social media
• WebEx, Zoom
• Lifeworksnv.org
• Online career coaching and 

training
• LVCCLD website, e-resources
• Teen job fairs
• Job Now
• Monthly newsletters
• Career Online High School
• Biz Library
• Staff Day
• OLLI at UNLV
• One-Stop outreach
• PIC Manual 
• Marketing outreach and video 

demo of online services
• Adult learning classes and 

certifications
13

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

128



GOVERNMENT & SOCIAL SERVICES

Intelligent Referrals
 Knowledge and current database/web resources for government agencies and services
 Knowledge and current database/web resources on social service populations and issues
 Staff training on working with difficult and special needs customers
 Current information for homeless, mental health, substance abuse, re-entry populations, and veterans

Public Access Devices and Wi-Fi
 Technology
 Training – staff and public

Effective Partnerships
 CCSD Counselors, social service agencies, mental health providers, homeless and domestic abuse shelters, Three 

Square, 211, Nevada Partnership for Homeless Youth, Southern Nevada Housing Authority, The Center, Veterans 
Affairs

14

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

129



Powerful

Places
Powerful 
Platforms

Powerful 
Partnerships

Powerful 
People

Government & Social Services

• Community leaders at 
City and County, CIS, 
NV Cooperative 
Extension, United 
Way, social workers, 
faith leaders, police, 
fire, health providers

• Job seekers, new 
residents, anyone in 
need of services

• HR training, staff, 
customers, students, 
parents, youth, people 
waiting in line

• Security and LV Metro 
Police 

• Local medical 
community

• Libraries, community 
centers, churches, 
YMCA, shelters, 
foster care, WIC 
clinics, hospitals, 
addiction clinics, 
SNHD, family service 
providers, DMV 
locations, RTC buses, 
senior centers

• Library computer 
labs, One-Stop, 
consultation rooms

• Social service and 
health fairs

• Other  regional 
libraries

• Library Directory of 
Social Service 
partnerships

• CCSD counselors, CIS, NV 
Cooperative Extension, 
United Way, Urban 
League, Workforce 
Connections, NPHY, 
Three Square, SafeKey, 
DHHS, veterans 
organizations, DETR, 
SNHD, The Harbor, The 
Center, Hope for 
Prisoners

• HELP of SNV
• UNLV school of social 

work
• SN Housing Authority
• Veterans Organizations
• Local Health 

Organizations

• Pop-Up libraries, 
Government services 
kiosks (DMV, USPS)

• Facebook, Twitter, 
Snapchat, Instagram, 
LVCCLD website, TikTok

• Voyager, BizLibrary
• Libby, Hoopla, LVCCLD 

databases
• Library collections
• LVCCLD website connects 

to referral agencies and 
nonprofits

• Branding and Marketing

15

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

130



COMMUNITY & CULTURE

Third Place
 Sanctuary away from home and work
 Open, comfortable, flexible spaces and furniture
 Good lighting, great spaces inside and out

Welcoming Place
 Culture of respect and recognition
 Listening to all voices
 Open door, feeling of belonging
 Diverse and inclusive collections, programs, events, activities
 Access to technology for learning, entertainment, play, interaction
 Enrich community life
 Strong multi-cultural and multi-channel communications and media partners
 Collaborative and engaging experiences and events
 Meet-ups, networking events
 Make and share, create and share, production showcases
 A place where all voices are heard and celebrated
 District is a community culture catalyst
 Branches reflect the cultures of the neighborhoods and interests of residents

16

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

131



Powerful

Places
Powerful 
Platforms

Powerful 
Partnerships

Powerful 
People

Community & Culture

• Staff practice and 
promote DEIA 
throughout the 
organization 

• BIPOC, LGBTQ+, 
Disabled 
populations seen, 
heard, celebrated 
in all activities

• Environmentally 
conscious users

• Gig workers, 
makers, creatives, 
performers, artists

• Cultural 
competencies

• Attractive and 
accessible 
branch facilities

• Farmers 
markets and 
other places 
where people 
gather

• Parks
• Consuls
• First Fridays
• Galleries
• Multipurpose 

and Performing 
Arts spaces

• Living Room feel

• UNLV and CSN Centers 
for Social Justice

• Delivery/gig companies
• Autism groups
• People First of Nevada
• Gender Justice of NV
• Parks and Recreation
• Community gardens
• Small local businesses
• Environmental 

organizations 
• Opportunity Village
• PIMA Medical Institute
• Local sports teams
• Local performance and 

art groups

• Mission 
Statement

• DEIA is top of 
mind to build 
learning circles

• Virtual spaces 
• Environment
• Social Justice
• Art Galleries
• BiblioBoard
• Website and 

Social Media
• Multicultural, 

Multichannel 
Media

17

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

132



INVOLVEMENT 
 When we are all in, all win
 Employer of choice
 Organizational culture is driven by equity, 

inclusion, diversity, and access for all
 Transform from within to transform services
 Service decisions driven by community and customer 

perspectives, interests, and experiences
 Staff are aware, visible, valued, engaged and empowered
 Everyone feels welcome
 All regional residents are aware of library resources and assets
 Relevance is local
 District-wide customer experience standards
 Branches have flavors
 Public trust is North Star

18

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

133



19

POWERFUL 
PEOPLE

POWERFUL 
PLACES

POWERFUL 
PARTNERS

POWERFUL 
PLATFORMS

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix D 

Page 19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

134



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

135



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

136



Outcomes
Clarify roles & expectations

Setting goals & vision for the future
Deepening engagement between district, trustees, & staff

Tools to be effective stewards & advocates
Work together as collaborative team

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

137



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

138



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

139



What’s your 
vision for the 
library? 

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

140



Strategic Plan Playbook

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

141



What are the top challenges?

Rebounding beyond the pandemic
Adapting to change 

Facility & Infrastructure needs
Solidifying Board Governance 

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

142



What does the library do well?

Pivoted during pandemic
Provides something for everyone!

Provides breadth of resources & programs
Changed business model

Financially secure
Outstanding staff & great service

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

143



What do you envision in the future?
A dynamic leader

Growth including  new libraries, mobile outreach & community 
development

A premier & innovative library committed to celebrating culture 
of Southern Nevada that is welcoming to all

An advisory board engaged in policy direction

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

144



What do you see as your role in shaping the future?

Raising awareness

Providing support to advance library goals

Asking the tough questions

Gaining a better understanding of staff experiences and their ideas 
on services to the community

Facilitating community connections 

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

145



What top goals would you like for the library to focus on 
in the next three to five years? 

Innovation: What can we do that no other library is doing?

Building the west side library & maintaining facilities

Expanding services in underserved communities

Serving as a catalyst for the well-being of the community

Serving as an agent for education and workforce development

Remaining debt free

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

146



The Role of an Advisory Board 

*Advises on policy setting

*Works with library administration in planning & goal setting

*Advises in financial & capital planning

*Advocates & influences

*Supports the CEO

 

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

147



The most common mistakes directors make are: 

1. They don’t do their homework, so they just come in with opinions.
2. They don’t understand the social dynamic and culture of the board. 
3. Not realizing where the power on the board really lies. 
4. Not investing the time with the CEO to truly gain their trust and understand 

what they’re trying to do. 

Adapted from Forbes Magazine, June 2018

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

148



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

149



 Parks Conservancy Community Agreements 
 
• We care for ourselves and others. We take care of physical, mental, and emotional 
needs. We help make our workplace physically safe – free of hazards – and emotionally 
safe – a place where everyone has a voice to share ideas and opinions.  

• We listen to learn and understand. We listen first and acknowledge what we hear – 
even if we don’t agree with it – before expressing our own point of view. We are 
personally aware of how background, education, race, and experience may give some 
people a different advantage than others.  

• We speak from our own perspective. Experiences in our lives help shape who we are, 
how we think, and what we value. We use “I” statements and avoid generalizing about 
other people or other groups of people. 

• We take responsibility for accidental hurt. In order to make a workplace where we can 
learn together, grow together, and trust one another, we take responsibility if we say or 
do something that hurts our colleagues, even if we didn’t mean to hurt them. 

August 2020

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

150



Executive Team Agreements
• We engage many perspectives in our deliberations 

and once a decision is made, we all honor and commit 
to the outcome.

• We trust that we each bring our best intentions to 
work. 

• We acknowledge the impacts of our decisions and our 
work.

• We lead boldly, kindly, and inclusively.
• We speak and hear truths in real time, 

compassionately, and with humor and forgiveness. 
• We take initiative, learn, and adapt. 
• We strive to be of service, with empathy, 

vulnerability, and accountability

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

151



What distinguishes an exemplary board*

● A Robust Social System
● A Cycle of Respect, Trust and Candor
● A Culture of Open Dissent
● A Variety of Roles
● Individual Accountability 
● Collective Assessment

*From Harvard Business Review

Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

152



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

153



Board Meeting Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix E 

Page 20

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

154



1

General 
Services
John Vino  
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

155



2

GENERAL SERVICES
Services Statement

The General Services Division provides services over a broad spectrum of areas  
including procurement, asset management, maintenance and capital improvement and 
construction.

Our Mission
General Services will strive to develop, 
support and operate sustainable, 
attractive, well-maintained, safe and 
secure facilities for the benefit of 
District patrons and employees and in 
support of the 2026 PLAYBOOK . 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

156



3

GENERAL SERVICES
Administration

Construction 
Administration

Courier 
Services

Facilities 
Services

Fleet
Management

Purchasing

Risk
Management

Safety and 
Security

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

157



4

GENERAL SERVICES
Responsibility Overview 

• 25 Full-time - 5 Part-time
• Contracted Services Staff:  110 

District Locations – 18 Owned, 7 Leased   

• 25 Branches locations
• 1 Facilities warehouse
• 1 Future development site location

Total Square Footage – 767,424 

Acreage:
• 83 - Currently managed
• 15 - Future development 

Staffing

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

158



5

Administration/Purchasing

• Ensuring bidding in accordance with N.R.S. and District policies and procedures.
• Outreach to minority, disadvantaged and emerging small businesses.
• Prepare formal and informal bids.
• Procurement of District Goods and Services. 

Activities:

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

• Powerful Partnerships - Increase our outreach to minority, disadvantaged and emerging 
small businesses.
o We will have pre-bid outreach classes to help explain the Districts bid process and to 

help with preparing of bid document.
o We will identify minority, disadvantaged business and work with them to become listed 

on the Nevada Government Marketplace.
Powerful Places – Expansion of Teen Zones and Teen Tech Center - Collaborate with staff 
to provide innovative products for staff programs as well as equipment and furniture. 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

159



6

Courier Services 
• Sort, transport, and deliver library materials to 25 District 

locations and 4 contract locations
• Sorts library holds and new materials using centralized 

automated materials handling system.

Powerful Platforms – in support of the District expand 
services with mobile kiosks and other Digital Library 
platforms, we will expand our delivery and service 
routes.
Powerful People – We will provide drive training to 
ensure staff safety and compliance with department 
procedures.

Activities:

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

160



7

Safety and Security
Develop and manage District safety policies, procedures, and practices to ensure compliance 
with OSHA, State and Federal laws and regulations.
Responsible for managing and training of 30 safety programs
Conduct scheduled and unscheduled safety inspections
Administer Armed Security Officer Services Contract

Activities:

For staff to feel empowered and valued they first need to first feel safe and secure.
• Powerful People - Establish a culture of safety by working with staff to empower them to 

take action when needed and providing the resources to achieve results.
o We plan to increase staff training, expanding CPR and AED classes to all staff who 

wish to participate.  
o We will retrain all staff on active assailant procedures and policies.
o We will continue to provide enhanced cleaning and PPE as needed.

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

161



8

Risk Management
Risk management is the responsibility for identifying and mitigating risk inherent  to the daily 
operations of the District.

o Identifying Potential Risk  - Periodic inspections
o Minimizing Risk  - Implementing procedures, controls, and programs
o Mitigating Risk - Investigating safety related incidents and taking corrective measures
o Transferring Risk – Insurance Policies 

Powerful Platforms - Expand and implement our Cyber Liability Coverage and Media Liability 
coverage in support the District’s expanding online and digital programing.
Powerful People  - Empowering staff through training to identify and mitigate risk and hazards.

Activities:

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

162



9

Fleet  Services
General Services is responsible for the purchase, outfitting, and maintenance of vehicles 
and other equipment used by the District. 

Inventory - 32 Vehicles, 1 Trailer  9 Man-Lifts

Powerful Places and Sustainability
• Add Electric Vehicle to District Fleet.
• Expand Electric Vehicle charging station by 5 additional stations.
• Expand Programing advertising on District Vehicles. 

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

163



10

Facilities Services
Facilities Services provides a full range of preventive and corrective maintenance for 
District facilities to promotes a safe, healthy environment for District staff and patrons and 
Assists with building renovations and other capital improvements.

Activities:

• Powerful Places – working with staff to create new Teen Zones and Teen Tech 
Centers. 

• Closing the Digital Divide
o Expanding the West Las Vegas Computer Lab from 24 computer to 36
o Increase patron access to convenience outlets and charging stations 

District-wide. 
• Facilities Development

o We will work with staff to identify immediate branch service needs and 
initiate innovative and cost effective solutions to provide those services.

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

164



11

Facilities Services
West Las Vegas Library Modification

New Teen Zone 

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

165



12

Facilities Services
West Las Vegas Library Modification

Multipurpose Room

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

166



13

Construction Administration
General Services provides all services needed to complete the construction of new 
District buildings, remodels and capital renewal projects.

• Feasibility and Cost Studies for Proposed Projects.
• Selection of Architect and Contractors.
• Bidding and Management of Building and Remodel Construction.

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT
• Feasibility and Cost Studies for the new West Las Vegas Library.

o Interlocal agreement with the City.
o Initiation of Programing Analysis.
o Selection of Architect.

• Secure three additional building sites for future libraries.
• Management of Capital Renewal Program  - FY22  - 40 Projects. 

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES/OBJECTIVES

Activities:

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

167



14

Year Estimated Costs 
2019 1,030,792$                
2020 2,825,856$                
2021 837,738$                   
2022 330,910$                   
2023 1,510,541$                
2024 3,134,130$                
2025 1,579,726$                
2026 1,612,656$                
2027 1,623,942$                
2028 1,472,359$                
2029 3,060,428$                
2030 1,853,247$                
2031 2,380,741$                
2032 231,894$                   
2033 1,771,673$                
2034 560,011$                   
2035 671,751$                   
2036 1,672,544$                
2037 694,687$                   
2038 2,446,433$                
2039 955,359$                   

Total 32,257,417$               

20 YR Maintenance  Renewal Cost Estimates 
by Year

Construction Administration
20 YEAR MAINTENANCE RENEWAL PLAN

20 Year Renewal Plan by Year 

2026 PLAYBOOK INITIATIVES

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

168



15

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix F 

Page 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

169



1

Information
Technology

Albert Prendergast
Chief Information Officer

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

170



2

Division Org Chart (for illustration only)

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

171



3

IT Division
Chief Information Officer Al Prendergast
Functions: Access Services, Collection & Bibliographic 
Services (CBS), and Information Technology (IT)
o Employees: 48/ FTE: 44.66/ Operating Budget: $18,150,285

Access Services Manager Sufa Anderson
Functions: Distribution Center, Electronic Resources, and 
Interlibrary Loan
o Employees: 11/ FTE:  8.58/ Operating Budget: $1,139,565
Head of CBS Rebecca Colbert
Functions: Acquisitions, Cataloging, and Collection 
Development
o Employees: 19/ FTE:  18.08/ Operating Budget: $12,937,872
Assistant IT Director Ron Melnar
Functions: Enterprise Applications, Telecommunications, and 
Help Desk
o Employees: 18/ FTE:  18/ Operating Budget: $4,072,848

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

172



4

2026 PLAYBOOK PLAYS
o TECHNOLOGY PLAN

o Track progress of the Technology Plan, which includes new technologies for the branches and          
technologies to support services identified in the Master Facilities Plan, such as Makerspaces, 
Computer Center, Homework Help Centers, etc.

o Adjust the Plan accordingly to address new challenges and opportunities

o Pre-K and K-12 SUPPORT
o CBS & ER will implement solutions such as Community Share and Axis 360 to support K-12 by 

removing barriers to access of library resources
o ER staff will assist K-12 students with creating Treehouse and IXL accounts and promoting homework 

help services, such as Brainfuse
o IT will provide technical support and CBS will provide supplies for STEAM learning, using Ozobots,   

Makey-Makey, Cubelets, etc.
o CBS will provide a responsive collection to help students find a wide breadth of materials

o ADULT EDUCATION SUPPORT
o Provide technical support and technology initiatives for STEAM learning, such as 3D printing,

laser engraving machines, etc. to introduce now technologies to customers
o Provide technical support and technology initiatives for the Adult Learning Program by collaborating 

with ALP staff to support online testing,  language learning, etc.
o Provide responsive collections and online resources to help promote workforce development

provide a diverse collection to engage different ethnic, religious, and other groups.

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

173



5

2026 PLAYBOOK PLAYS (2)
o EMPLOYMENT AND CAREER PATH SUPPORT

o Provide online resources, such as VetNow and JobNow, to assist customer find assistance with 
employment

o Provide public access computers and Wi-Fi access to help bridge the digital divide and aid
those seeking employment or reemployment

o Provide printing, scanning, faxing, and copying services to help job seekers find employment

o BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
o Provide online business resources to help entrepreneurs research and find resources to start a new 

business
o Provide cost-effective printing, scanning, faxing, and copying services to help new small business 

conduct their operations

o WELCOME PLACE
o Provide access to technologies and collections for learning and entertainment
o Provide kits to support book clubs to help support a “community” of readers

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

174



6

2026 PLAYBOOK PLAYS (3)
o CLOSING THE DIGITAL DIVIDE

o Implement a tablet computer vending pilot lending program to allow disadvantaged customers to come 
into the digital age and increase their comfort-level with technology

o Increase the number of hotspots available for customer checkout to provide home connectivity to 
disadvantaged customers

o Provide public access computers and Wi-Fi access to get online for collaboration and communication
o Implement TV White Space to push wireless network access into the outlying branches allow 

residents to access the network
o Investigate the possibility of implementing a Technology Bus to help bring technology to underserved 

communities
o Implement a pilot technology “petting zoo” to allow customers to “play” with different technologies to 

increase their proficiency and comfort level with technology

o POWERFUL PLATFORMS
o Replace end-of-life sorters for more efficient operations by staff and customers 
o Finalize the Cashless Pilot Program and expand to five other branches to meet compliance 

requirements and improve services to customers
o Implement new people counters to more accurately measure branch visits for planning purposes
o Update the District technology infrastructure by replacing several end-of-life systems, including 

network switches and network diagnostic application
o Improve the District cybersecurity posture and prevent network breach
o Investigate the possibility of moving service to the cloud to reduce operational costs

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

175



7

Questions?
Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Meeting 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix G 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

176



1

Human 
Resources

Jeffrey P. Serpico
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

177



2

Human Resources (HR)

HR Mission
“Develop an organizational culture that 
drives employee engagement by 
attracting, selecting, and retaining the 
best people; engaging them in open 
and honest communication; and 
providing them with individual and team 
based growth opportunities in a 
Diverse, Equitable, Inclusive and 
Accessible environment.”

HR Programs and Key 
Activities

• Staffing (Recruiting, Selection, 
Employment)

• Employee/Labor Relations
• Compensation and Classification
• Benefits and Leave Administration
• Organizational Development (Training 

and Education)
• Human Resources Information 

Systems (HRIS)
• Workers Compensation and 

Unemployment

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

178



3

HR Team Members

Abigail Rodriguez Coordinator II 
Joy LeFave Coordinator II
Christopher Coligado Coordinator III
Christine Dinino Human Resources Manager
Cheryl Kranitz-Dykes Special Projects
Glodia Thomas HRIS Manager
Tricia Pavone Benefits Manager
London Porter Human Resources Manager
Keeley Walker Training and Development Manager 
Jeff Serpico Human Resources Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

179



4

How Does HR 
Support the 
District’s Strategic 
Plan?

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

180



5

2021 – 2026 Related HR Strategy and Goals

Related HR Strategy

“Be recognized as a Public 
Employer of Choice in 

Nevada”

Related HR Goals

1. Develop and maintain a competitive Total 
Rewards program

2. Develop, enhance and maintain intra-
organizational communication methods 
and frequency to enhance employee 
engagement

3. Develop and enhance organizational and 
individual development opportunities

4. Evolve and champion a culture of Diversity, 
Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility (DEIA) 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

181



6

Goal 1:  Develop and Maintain a competitive Total Rewards 
program

2021 - 2022

Fiscal Year 
Plays 

(Objectives)

Conduct a direct and indirect compensation analysis to competitively 
benchmark the District’s Total Rewards policies and practices against 
comparable organizations 

Review and explore feasibility of amending the 457 Plan and the 
Vacation & Sick Plan to allow (electively) up to eighty (80) hours of 
Vacation or Sick accruals to be deferred (pre-tax) annually 

Develop and implement Employee Wellness Program (Phase 1) focusing 
on Mental/Behavioral Health and Nutrition

Develop a plan to revise our current Staff Day and Service Awards 
programs into an annual Employee Recognition Picnic for FY23

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

182



7

Goal 2:  Develop, enhance and maintain intra-organizational 
communication methods and frequency to enhance employee 
engagement

2021 - 2022

Fiscal Year 
Plays

(Objectives)

Conduct quarterly Labor & Management communication 
meetings

Develop format and conduct two (2) bi-annual Town Hall 
meetings with the Executive Director 

Leverage recently implemented Human Resources Information 
System (UKG) self-service functionality to enhance efficiency

Enhance Employee Benefits section on Voyager (Intranet) site

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

183



8

Goal 3:  Develop and enhance organizational and individual 
development opportunities

2021 - 2022

Fiscal Year 
Plays 

(Objectives)

Introduce and develop organizational learning model (Pyramid)

Develop and implement one (1) new Leadership Development class 
(New Manager)

Develop and implement one (1) new Organizational Development class 
(Customer Service) 

Identify opportunities to collaborate with external partners to enhance 
Leadership Development resources

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

184



9

Goal 4:  Evolve and champion a culture of Diversity, Equity, 
Inclusion, and Accessibility (DEIA)

2021 - 2022

Fiscal Year 
Plays 

(Objectives)

Introduce new Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and 
Accessibility (DEIA) plan

Implement FY 2021 – 2022 DEIA plan 
objectives 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

185



10

Key HR Reporting Tools
LVCCLD FY 2020-2021 HUMAN RESOURCES 

DASHBOARD
Quarter 1 of FY 2020-2021 Quarter 2 of FY 2020-2021 Quarter 3 of FY 2020-2021 Quarter 4 of FY 2020-2021 FY 

Running 
Total (RT) 
TOTAL  FY 
2020-2021 

FY 
Average    
FY 2020-

2021 

Prior FY 
Average    
FY 2019-

2020 
Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Metric 
A Total Employees (Headcount) NA 689 658 644 641 639 640 638 638 628 NA 646 A

B Full-Time Employees  60 hours or more (Headcount) NA 329 306 306 307 308 309 309 310 307 NA 310 B

C Part -Time Employees  59 hours or less (Headcount) NA 360 352 338 334 331 331 329 328 321 NA 336 C

D Full-Time-Equivalent (FTE-District) NA N/A N/A N/A NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA D

E Average Years of Service (District) NA 9.9 9.9 9.3 9.3 9.4 9.4 9.5 9.6 9.7 NA 9.6 E

Talent Acquisition & Management
F Open Positions (FY 20-21 Budget) = 778 NA 89 120 134 137 139 143 140 140 150 NA 132 F

G Positions Posted (Approved to Fill) NA 1 11 6 10 6 4 2 7 9 NA 6 G

H Applications Received NA 107 476 673 831 321 281 354 424 518 3985 443 H

I Interviews Conducted NA 0 5 7 2 7 4 7 8 4 44 5 I

J New Hires NA 0 0 1 0 0 5 2 3 3 14 2 J

K Promotions NA 4 2 9 3 3 1 5 7 1 35 4 K

L Lateral Transfers NA 0 1 4 2 2 0 1 0 0 10 1 L

M Demotions NA 0 0 1 2 0 0 2 1 0 6 1 M

N Employees Successfully Completing Probationary Period NA 7 1 6 1 1 0 0 0 0 16 2 N

O (1) Average Cost Per New Hire NA TBD TBD $4,835.04 $0.00 $0.00 $21,384.
96

$19,880.
85

$12,793.
43

$9,354.3
5 $68,248.63 $9,749.80 O

Separations & Turnover
P Total Separations from Employment NA 18 31 15 3 2 4 4 3 13 93 10 P

Q Voluntary Separations NA 17 30 14 3 2 4 4 3 13 90 10 Q

R Involuntary Separations NA 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0.33 R

S Turnover (Entire District) NA 2.61% 4.71% 2.33% 0.47% 0.31% 0.63% 0.63% 1.19% 2.00% 14.88% 1.65% S

T Turnover (Without Page Positions) NA 5.56% 4.25% 1.24% TBD TBD 0.16% NA 3.78% 1.40% 16.39% 2.73% T

U Annualized Twelve Month Turnover  (Entire District) NA 31.35% 43.94% 38.61% 30.36% 25.04% 22.12% 20.03% 19.31% 19.83% NA 27.85% U

V Vacancy Rate (Open Positions) / (Total Employees + Open Positions) NA 11.44% 15.42% 17.22% 17.61% 17.87% 18.38% 17.99% 17.99% 19.28% NA 17.02% V

W Average Years of Service (Voluntary Separations) NA 15.9 30.1 11.2 12.5 2.1 6.3 9.6 5.3 5.9 NA 11.0 W

X Average Years of Service (Involuntary Separations) NA 3.9 0.7 22.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 NA 3.0 X

Training & Talent Development
Y Employee Attending New Hire Orientation NA 0 0 0 1 0 5 2 1 5 14 1.56 Y

Z Total Employee Training Encounters NA 246 9 23 38 23 45 55 197 129 765 85 Z

AA Virtual NA 245 9 10 30 19 41 55 191 112 712 79 AA

BB Live On-Site NA 1 0 11 1 0 0 0 0 12 25 3 BB

CC External Conferences NA 0 0 2 7 4 4 0 6 5 28 3 CC

DD Total Training Cost NA $219.00 $176.00 $2,646.00 $  
1,243.00 

$  
3,917.00 

$24,118.
66

$4,349.6
4

$2,779.4
4

$4,189.0
0 $43,637.74 $4,848.64 DD

EE Total Tuition Reimbursements NA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.0
0 $0.00 $23,403.

66 $548.64 $2,000.0
0

$2,000.0
0 $28,952.30 $3,216.92 EE

FF Undergraduate NA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.0
0 $0.00 $4,403.6

6 $548.64 $0.00 $0.00 $5,952.30 $661.37 FF

GG Graduate NA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,000.
00 $0.00 $2,000.0

0
$2,000.0

0 $23,000.00 $2,555.56 GG

HH (2) Annual Required Compliance Training Completion NA 97.00% 97.00% 97.00% 98.00% 99.00% 7.50% 93.00% 98.70% 98.70% NA 87.32% HH

Benefits & Wellness
II Staff Utilizing FMLA or Unpaid Authorized Leave >  4 weeks NA 9 9 6 6 6 7 4 3 2 NA 6 II

JJ Total Leave Hours Utilized NA 332.00 468.00 382.00 326.00 326.00 376.00 236.00 156.00 118.00 2720.00 302.22 JJ
(1)  8% of Base Salary if less than $35,000 & 10.5% of Base Salary if Greater than $35,000 (Source SHRM 
2020)

(2) January 21 - Begin new compliance training 
cycle.  

September restate August - Yellow 

NOTES:

EEO-4 Instruction Booklet - Race and Eth transition match EEO1

Data Pull 03/31/21 

*N= 634

** N= without Page Job Title - 484

*** July 2019 US Census Bureau - Clark County

Quarter 1 2021 (Initial)

A * **Race and Ethnicity Identification ***Clark County (CC) *All District % Variance CC **Without Page % Variance CC
1 Hispanic or Latino (b) 31.60% 143 22.5552% -9.04% 94 19.42% -12.18%

2 White (Not Hispanic or Latino) (41.7%) white alone (a) 41.70% 318 50.1577% 8.46% 253 52.27% 10.57%
3 Black or African American (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 13.10% 65 10.2524% -2.85% 57 11.78% -1.32%
4 Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 0.90% 11 1.7350% 0.84% 9 1.86% 0.96%

5 Asian (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 10.40% 74 11.6719% 1.27% 52 10.74% 0.34%
6 Native American or Alaska Native (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 1.20% 3 0.4732% -0.73% 3 0.62% -0.58%
7 Two or More Race (Not Hispanic or Latino) (Combination - 2,3,4,5,6) 4.90% 20 3.1546% -1.75% 16 3.31% -1.59%

(2-6) Overlap 2 or more 103.80% 634 100.00% 484 100.00%

B * **Sex / Gender Identification ***Clark County (CC) *All District % Variance CC **Without Page % Variance CC
1 Female 50.10% 437 68.93% 18.83% 319 65.91% 15.81%
2 Male 49.90% 197 31.07% -18.83% 165 34.09% -15.81%
3 Non Identifying 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00%

100.00% 634 100.00% 484 100.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total

C Job Categories (EE0-4) Hispanic or Latino White (Not Hispanic or Latino) 
(41.7%) white only 

Black or African 
American (Not Hispanic 

or Latino)

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 
(Not Hispanic or Latino) Asian (Not Hispanic or Latino)

Native American or Alaska 
Native (Not Hispanic or 

Latino)

Two or More Race (Not Hispanic 
or Latino) (Combination -

2,3,4,5,6)

1 Officials and Administrators 8 47 17 0 8 0 2 82
2 Professionals 16 34 6 1 11 0 4 72
3 Technicians 10 26 6 2 5 1 0 50
4 Protective Service Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 Paraprofessionals 18 63 9 2 18 0 1 111
6 Administrative Support Workers (Including Clerical and Sales) 91 139 22 5 32 2 10 301
7 Skilled Craft Workers 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
8 Service/Maintenance Workers 0 7 5 1 0 0 3 16

Total 143 318 65 11 74 3 20 634

*Original Job Class-PERCENT-DIST-CC 1 2 3 4 5 6

D Job Categories (EE0-4) Hispanic or Latino White (Not Hispanic or Latino) 
(41.7%) white only 

Black or African 
American (Not Hispanic 

or Latino)

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 
(Not Hispanic or Latino) Asian (Not Hispanic or Latino)

Native American or Alaska 
Native (Not Hispanic or 

Latino)

Two or More Race (Not Hispanic 
or Latino) (Combination -

2,3,4,5,6)
Job Class Count 

Job Class % 
of all 

Positions

1.0 Officials and Administrators 8 47 17 0 8 0 2 82 12.93% Gender Count %

1.1 District Job Class % 9.76% 57.32% 20.73% 0.00% 9.76% 0.00% 2.44% 100.00% Female 49 59.76%

1.2 Variance from CC -21.84% 15.62% 7.63% -0.90% -0.64% -1.20% -2.46% Male 33 40.24%

Non 0 0.00%

2.0 Professionals 16 34 6 1 11 0 4 72 11.36% Gender Count %

2.1 District Job Class % 22.22% 47.22% 8.33% 1.39% 15.28% 0.00% 5.56% 100.00% Female 51 70.83%

2.2 Variance from CC -9.38% 5.52% -4.77% 0.49% 4.88% -1.20% 0.66% Male 21 29.17%

Non 0 0.00%

3.0 Technicians 10 26 6 2 5 1 0 50 7.89% Gender Count %

3.1 District Job Class % 20.00% 52.00% 12.00% 4.00% 10.00% 2.00% 0.00% 100.00% Female 19 38.00%

3.2 Variance from CC -11.60% 10.30% -1.10% 3.10% -0.40% 0.80% -4.90% Male 31 62.00%

Non 0 0.00%

4.0 Protective Service Workers - Outsourced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

5.0 Paraprofessionals 18 63 9 2 18 0 1 111 17.51% Gender Count %

5.1 District Job Class % 16.22% 56.76% 8.11% 1.80% 16.22% 0.00% 0.90% 100.00% Female 85 76.58%

5.2 Variance from CC -15.38% 15.06% -4.99% 0.90% 5.82% -1.20% -4.00% Male 26 23.42%

5.3 Non 0 0.00%

6.0 Administrative Support Workers (Including Clerical and Sales) 91 139 22 5 32 2 10 301 47.48% Gender Count %

6.1 District Job Class % 30.23% 46.18% 7.31% 1.66% 10.63% 0.66% 3.32% 100.00% Female 233 77.41%

6.2 Variance from CC -1.37% 4.48% -5.79% 0.76% 0.23% -0.54% -1.58% Male 68 22.59%

Non 0 0.00%

7.0 Skilled Craft Workers 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.32% Gender Count %

7.1 District Job Class % 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% Female 0 0.00%

7.2 Variance from CC -31.60% 58.30% -13.10% -0.90% -10.40% -1.20% -4.90% Male 2 100.00%

Non 0 0.00%

8.0 Service/Maintenance Workers 0 7 5 1 0 0 3 16 2.52% Gender Count %

8.1 District Job Class % 0.00% 43.75% 31.25% 6.25% 0.00% 0.00% 18.75% 100.00% Female 0 0.00%

8.2 Variance from CC -31.60% 2.05% 18.15% 5.35% -10.40% -1.20% 13.85% Male 16 100.00%

Non 0 0.00%

Total 143 318 65 11 74 3 20 634 100.00%

HR Dashboard Diversity Dashboard 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

186



11

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix H 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

187



1

Development 
& Planning

Danielle Milam
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

188



2

Development & Planning Reports to Library District 
Executive Director and Foundation Board of Directors

Danielle Milam
Director of Development and Planning

Leslie Valdes
Volunteer Coordinator

Sherry Walker
Development Officer

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

189



3

Development and Planning District
Strategic Planning (Danielle and Sherry)
o Plan development (cross-organization and community input)
o Plan updates/tracking and implementation
o Recognition (Foundation sponsored v.2020 Awards annually)

o Development Activities  (Danielle and Sherry)
o #/year varies, terms of grant vary, increasingly complex projects with multiple departments and 

community partners
o Proposal development
o Grant management, including grant data collection and reporting
o Project media and donor recognition

o Volunteer Program (Leslie and Sherry)
o Better Impact database management and training
o Sterling Volunteer database management and training (background checks)
o Annual volunteer coordinator training and oversight
o Volunteer recruitment, training, recognition events (District branches and Foundation bookstores)
o Volunteer management and scheduling (pre-pandemic between 350 and 450 volunteers active)

o Special Projects (Danielle and Sherry)
o Vegas Strong Academy
o E-rate
o Government Relations (federal and state delegation visits, communications, lobbyist contract)
o Partner and Foundation relations

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

190



4

2020-2021 Library District Grant Awards
Grantor Program Amount

IMLS-LSTA Museum Passes
Home Child Care 
Outreach

$55,000
$74,000

IMLS CARES ACT Hot Spots $54,727

FEMA COVID Signage $10,279

Department of 
Education/AEFLA

Adult Education $890,330

E-Rate Technology $504,215

LSTA Evolving Needs iPad/Android Vending $112,000

Bezos Family Foundation Early Childhood $62,500

TOTAL $1,763,051

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

191



5

Development and Planning Foundation
Book Store Operations  (Leslie Valdes)
o District-Foundation agreement to be sole recipient of donations and discards (2024 next renewal)
o 14 branch bookstores
o Used book warehouse operations (one employee, volunteers, Amazon and third party sales)
o Special book sales (holiday, teachers, seasonal, branch)

Foundation Board Meetings (Danielle, Sherry, Foundation Board)
o Quarterly
o Annual financial statement and taxes
o D and O Insurance, workers comp, payroll services
o Annual budget
o Fundraising plans
o Donor cultivation
o Gift cultivation, retention, and recognition
o Grant development, management, data collection and reporting 

o Priority projects – teacher tutors, tech labs, early childhood initiatives (Raising Las Vegas)
o Pilot projects and service innovations

o Manage East Las Vegas and Mesquite QALICB nonprofits – annual meetings, audits, and community 
benefit reports 

o Promotional materials development, including annual report
o Media outreach
o Website and social media management
o Partner, donor, corporate, and foundation relations

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

192



6

2020-2021 Foundation Funding

Source Program Amount

United Way of Southern 
Nevada

Teachers in Libraries $33,000

Union Pacific Tech Instruction $20,000

NV Energy Tech Classes $5,000

Best Buy Tech Center Support $80,000

Windsong Trust Teachers in Libraries $125,000

Raiders Foundation Teachers in Libraries $25,000

Individual Donations Various $26,440

Book Store Sales Library District $267,947

TOTAL $582,387

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

193



7

BOOK SALES FUNDED LIBRARY DISTRICT PROGRAMS

o Adult Education Staff Training
o Book Clubs
o Branch Grand Openings
o Career Online High School 
o CCSD Buses to Gallery Openings
o Coffee with a Cop
o Comic Book Festival
o DISCOVERY Children’s Museum 

Passes
o Engineering for Kids Programs
o Family Pride Day
o Gallery Openings
o Kick-Off to Kindergarten Events

o Green Room Supplies
o Holiday Parties
o Las Vegas Book Festival
o Movie Screenings
o Nevada Career Explorer Trainings
o Outreach Events
o Painting Parties
o Play Works Partnership
o West Las Vegas Performing and 

Visual Arts Camp 
o Reader’s Circle
o Staff Day
o Daniel Tiger’s Neighborhood –

Vegas PBS

o Staff Training on Teen Tech
o STEAM Equipment
o Summer Learning Challenge
o Tea Parties
o Teen Tuesday
o Trivia Contest
o V.2020 Awards
o Vegas Strong Academies
o Volunteer Appreciation 

Events and Awards
o Winter Reading Program
o Youth Services Summit
o Community Halloween 

Events

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

194



8

2026 PLAYBOOK POWERFUL DISTRICT PLAYS

o STRATEGIC PLAN
o Track Progress on 2026 PlayBook, create recognition program with Executive Director
o Contribute to relevant service innovations (i.e. social service planning project with UNLV)

o EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT
o Position Library District as state leader in early childhood development and education
o Outreach services LSTA grant with Urban League, Federal Reserve, Workforce, DHHS-DWSS
o Participation on state initiatives to grow sector, seats, quality training (Mind in the Making)

o ADULT EDUCATION
o Adult learning program growth and alignment with employment and business objectives

o CLOSING THE DIGITAL DIVIDE
o Technology grants - development and management with IT department

o FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT
o Community assessment on new WV Library, potential other branch renovation projects

o VOLUNTEER PROGRAM
o Build volunteer program back to full strength with new opportunities related to 2026 PlayBook

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

195



9

2026 PLAYBOOK POWERFUL FOUNDATION PLAYS
TEACHERS IN LIBRARIES

o 8 branch locations
o $240,000/year
o Free, drop-in after-school tutoring from 4-6 Monday through Thursday
o Align with UNLV School of Education tutors deployed at 12 branch locations 7 days a week

TEEN TECH CENTERS
o 4 branch locations
o Corporate funding
o Expanding technology access to local teens for workforce and business success
o Develop mentor program – coding, digital media, music production, AR/VR

FUNDRAISING PLAN DEVELOPMENT
o Campaign to secure multi-year Foundation priority project funding
o Capital Campaign – new buildings, branch renovations, opportunistic improvements
o Donor cultivation, donor recognition, and event planning
o Queue up potential New Market Tax Credit projects (8 branch libraries in distressed census tracts)

LIBRARY DISTRICT – FOUNDATION BOARD EVENT

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

196



10

2026 PLAYBOOK POWERFUL DEPARTMENT PLAYS

o Good customer service to Executive Director, District departments, 
and boards

o Contribute powerful data, stories, and project impact that 
demonstrates value of the Library District and Foundation to our 
community

o Continue to build strong department operational systems

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

197



11

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix I 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

198



1

Community
Engagement

Matt McNally
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

199



2

Community Engagement

Adult Programs   Youth Programs  Adult Learning Program   Visual Arts  Outreach
Partnerships

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

200



3

Vision 2020 to Playbook 2026
Community Engagement Service Examples

Limitless Learning
Youth Storytimes, Summer Challenge, Winter 

Reading Challenge, 1,000 Books Before 
Kindergarten, Family Place, Culinary Kitchen, 

Podcasting, Production Recording Studio, STEAM 
Initiatives, English Language Learners, Adult 
Basic Education, Career Online High School, 

Tutoring, E-media Classes

Let’s build upon our Vision 2020 work with Playbook 2026…

Business & Career Success
One-Stop Career Centers, Employ NV Business 
Hub, High School Equivalency, National Career 
Readiness Certificate, Integrated Education and 
Training, Resume Writing Workshops, Job Fairs, 

Nevada Career Explorer   

Government & Social Services
Safe Place, Ask-A-Lawyer Series, Blood Drives, 
Tax Assistance, Census, Elections, Coffee with a 

Cop, Immunization Clinics, Social Work 
Presentations, ADA services, Health Fairs   

Community & Culture
Meeting Rooms, Theaters, Cultural Performances, 
Films, Exhibits, Classes, Lectures, Art Galleries, 
Artists Receptions, Workshops, Permanent Art 

Donations & Commissions, Venue Capital 
Improvements, Vegas Valley Comic Book Festival, 

Teen Anime Festival 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

201



4

Playbook 2026 CE Power Plays
Powerful People

Elevate Customer Service to Exceptional Levels to retain and excite existing customers and partners.  
• Encourage a personalized approach, welcome customers at events, one-on-one assistance, tours of 

rental venues, promote similar library services and the collection at events.

Invest in our Staff with Professional Development to foster artist relationships, provide diverse 
offerings, and increase staff knowledge.  

• Attend non-library conferences/trainings such as APAP, Western Arts Alliance, Arts Midwest, USITT, 
SNAEYC, Commission on Adult Basic Education, CASAS and LACES systems training.

Invest in our Staff with Internal Processes to improve efficient and effective operations. 
• Partnership agreement, marketing rider for contracting talent, integrate reservation accessibility for 

Performing Arts Centers on to Communico.
• Review and refine department policies and procedures.

Reach Out to Untapped Market Segments to create new customers and serve the underserved.
• Veterans (Nellis AFB; Veteran’s Connect; Share Village; USO), casino’s, local businesses, sports 

teams, incarcerated offenders (workforce re-entry; video visitation; access to library resources), early 
childhood education providers, add an adult engagement component to Summer Challenge, local 
artists and arts organizations, community partners to help market and deliver services.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

202



5

Playbook 2026 CE Power Plays
Powerful Places

Position the Library District as an Educational Institution to help prepare our community for school 
readiness, student achievement, high school completion, and workforce readiness.

• ALP (Adult Learning Program in more libraries; community centers; virtual experiences), early 
childhood education trainings for pre-schools, museums, CCSD, etc., refine composition of youth 
program storytimes, better communicate opportunities to partner agencies and organizations.

Workforce Development to better serve the unemployed and under-employed, and to help diversify 
sectors of Nevada’s workforce.

• Further activate One-Stop Career Centers, strengthen the referral process between education services 
and workforce opportunities, create operations standards, create small business incubators for private 
work, host hiring events of local elected officials, workforce classes, and electronic job search events.

Makerspaces, Classes, and Camps to foster innovation and STEAM related learning.
• Construction, welding, pottery, glass blowing, 3D printing, robotics, electrical circuitry, simulators 

(driver’s education; forklift operation; piloting), coding, and wood working.

Innovative Ideation to distinguish the Library District as unique and cutting edge.
• Artist in residency program, support new teachers with traveling library collections, e-sports and 

gaming for teens, set Guinness World Records, host special literary festivals with authors, celebrities, 
and local interests, activate the outdoor amphitheater space at Rainbow Library.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

203



6

Playbook 2026 CE Power Plays
Powerful Partnerships

Partnership Development to accomplish more than what we alone can provide; support our community 
for what they cannot accomplish unaided.

• Strengthen the quality of existing partnerships by engaging at senior administrative levels to create 
stronger organizational connections.

• Improve/Increase programs of diversity, equity, inclusion, and accessibility through events designed for 
heritage months, seniors, women, LGBTQ+, holidays, and other reoccurring annual events.     

• Continue empowerment of Library District staff to develop, lead, and execute partnership initiatives.
• Elevate the Library District:

• Locally by becoming a stronger convener of partners.
• Nationally by implementing innovative ideas and telling our story well.

Strengthen Our Relationship with Clark County School District to provide greater access for students 
to Library District resources.

• Eliminate barriers allowing a student to use their school ID to access library resources.
• Provide access to e-resources through Follett Destiny using Axis 360 Community Share.
• Strengthen organizational commitment to the Summer Challenge initiative.
• Prepare parents and students for Kindergarten readiness.
• Align staff training and professional development opportunities to eliminate duplicity.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

204



7

Playbook 2026 CE Power Plays
Powerful Platforms

Increase Accessibility and Inclusion to keep customers connected with Library District Resources.
• Virtually:

• Recorded programs (YouTube, social media, website), streaming programs, conferencing 
programs using WebEx or Zoom, and hybrid approaches.

• In the community:
• Pop-Up Libraries for remote access at parks & recreation facilities, WIC clinics, fitness centers, 

court system, student unions, hospitals, DMV, mall food courts.
• Overdrive with RTC busses/terminals for the promotion of e-books, audiobooks, and videos.

• Read value fines programs to reduce amounts owed:
• Reading and volunteering initiatives at the library.
• Donation opportunities to help our community.

Advantage Marketing to give our community investment opportunities in Library District services. 
• Build standards for revenue-based and creative marketing opportunities.
• Seek co-sponsorships, advertising, in-kind exchanges, solicitations, and donations to offset Library 

District expenses.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

205



8

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix J 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

206



1

Branding & 
Marketing

Betsy Ward
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

207



2

Who We Are

Digital Content Team Design Studio

Gene Kilchenko
Juanita Aiello
Cierra Pedro

Ryan Simoneau
Paula Loop

Betsy Ward
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

208



3

What We Do

Telling the Library District’s 
story every day.

Working closely with each 
department to:
o Spotlight their stellar programs 

and services
o Assist in communicating their 

efforts, both internally to staff, and 
externally to the public, the media, 
our major partners, and other 
community stakeholders

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

209



4

How We Do It

o Internal Communications
 Voyager, Staff Updates, Infographics, etc.

o External Communications
 Website, Social Media, Graphic Design, Highlights 

eNewsletter, Annual Major Promotions

o Overarching Strategy:
 Driving awareness of the Library District brand 

& how we deliver on 21st Century needs
 Getting more library card registrations
 Elevating Engagement

• More important than ever to bounce back 
from the pandemic

• In-person within our branches, and virtually, 
on our website & social media channels

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

210



5

Supporting the Pillars of Playbook 2026

Capitalize on Successes with 
New Tools/Strategies:

o Inclusion
 Expand our reach to attract 

new audiences

o Innovation
 Build on proven strategies and invest in 

new communications tools

o Involvement
 Convey a library brand that says 

“all are welcome”

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

211



6

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Audience & Services Web Pages
These pages pull together themed items from 
our catalog and make it easier for the public 
to access resources that address their needs 
and interests, and relate to their lived 
experiences. New pages will be inspired by 
our new Powerful Partnerships:

African American

Native American
Veterans

Latinx

LGBTQ+

AAPI

o Current Examples 
 LGBTQ+
 African American
 Latinx
 Tools for School 

Success
 Learn & Earn 

(Literacy)

o Powerful 
Partnerships
 Healthy Meals on 

a Budget with 
Three Square

 Science Learning 
with Discovery 
Children’s Museum 
& Channel 13

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

212



7

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Increase Social Media Engagement
o Create more viral campaigns that 

connect library programs & promotions 
to trending pop culture, sports, and 
news stories. 

o Continue to rebuild our YouTube & 
IGTV channels with new video content, 
working in partnership with Community 
Engagement and Library Operations 
staff. 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

213



8

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Expand Facebook & Instagram Advertising 
o Summer Challenge investment in this area has spiked our total reach and user engagement 
o Enables us to geo-target residents across Southern Nevada who don’t currently follow the 

Library District 

Facebook:
Total Impressions: 634,926 (+971%)
Total Post Engagements: 14,654 (+667%)
Total Link Clicks: 4,914 (+2,297%)

Instagram:
Total user engagement: 1,934 (+11%)
Total Impressions: 76,245 (+29%)
Top post Engagement: 232 (+87%)
Instagram Stories Impressions: 13,542 (+21%)

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

214



9

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Media Relations to Reach Diverse Audiences
o Build on current success with local Latinx and African American media outlets, the mainstream 

media, and expanding to the Asian American-Pacific Islander media. Tools will include more 
frequent outreach with press releases and promotional launch kits.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

215



10

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Library Highlights 
eNewsletter
o Build on the success

of this twice monthly 
eBlast series, which goes 
to 318,000 cardholders 
plus media contacts

o 20% open rate shows that 
customers want to know 
more about Library 
District programs & 
services

o Expand our mailing list to 
include elected officials, 
influencers, and our 
library partners

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

216



11

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Print & Digital Graphic Designs to 
Promote Events, Classes & Programs
o Continue to support library branches’ 

individual needs to maintain a quality 
brand image and to aspire to drive higher 
event attendance

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

217



12

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

BiblioBoard
o New opportunity for libraries &  

publishers to work together
o Partnering with Macmillan publishers 

for state-wide access to Dan Rather’s 
new eBook novel, “What Unites Us: 
Reflections on Patriotism”

o Indie Authors Project for self-
published eBooks – coming soon

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

218



13

Supporting Playbook 2026
Tools/Strategies

Expanding Audience Reach 
Orange Boy Email Marketing Software
o Uses customer data pulled from Sierra 

to build thriving, engaged relationships
o Enables dynamic customer segmentation 

using real-time data
o Deep data mining across many categories 

allows use by any department for planning

New Pathways for Diversity Outreach
o Sharing library event info through Latin, 

Urban, Asian Chambers and the LGBTQ+ 
Center of Southern Nevada

o Explore adding Tagalog as a new translated 
language option on website

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

219



14

Supporting Playbook 2026
Powerful Promotional Partnerships

Current
o Vegas Golden Knights
o Las Vegas Lights FC

Pre-Pandemic
o Vegas Aces WNBA
o Life is Beautiful

Potential
o Las Vegas Raiders

Powerful Results
o Attracting potential customers 

who are unfamiliar with the library
o Benefitting from top brand 

recognition

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

220



15

Supporting Playbook 2026
Powerful Messaging

Branding Campaign –
Coming Soon!
o BAM has been working with Mr. 

Watson on a Branding Campaign 
that will bring Playbook 2026 to life 
for the public

o Please stay tuned for updates!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

221



16

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix K 

Page 16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

222



1

Financial 
Services

Floresto Cabias
Chief Financial Officer

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

223



2

Financial Services
Department Overview
Financial Services provides a wide range of services to the 
District’s team members, customers, vendors, and other 
stakeholders through the development and operation of the 
budget, accounting, and finance functions.

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

224



3

Playbook 2026 – Inclusion
Budget Goal: Promote transparency and 
engagement with regard to financial information

Develop an interactive budgetary tool for internal and external 
users
o Allows District team members and customers to explore budget 

documents
o Helps users understand the budgeting process
o Demonstrates how budget resources are distributed internally among 

departments and externally across service areas

Increase Finance and Audit Committee Meetings
o Additional meetings with members of the Board of Trustees provide 

more periodic financial updates
o These opportunities for discussion will provide invaluable feedback and 

guidance for staff and support communication with the public

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

225



4

Playbook 2026 – Innovation
Accounting Goal: Make financial information and 
services accessible and digestible

Powerful People:
o Educate team members across the District with a thorough 

understanding of budget logistics
o Increase visits to branches and departments to review internal controls 

and emphasize fiduciary responsibilities
o Train departments to manage unexpected and unavoidable spending to 

promote financial engagement and reinforce expenditure control

Powerful Places:
o Incorporate analytics into the five-year Capital Improvement Plan that 

considers places identified by the Playbook 2026 to prioritize projects

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

226



5

Playbook 2026 – Innovation (Cont.)
Accounting Goal: Implement technology that 
drives cost savings

Powerful Partnerships:
o Utilize additional services from financial institutions

o Purchasing Card (P-Card) Program
o Automate payment functions to eliminate paper-based processes

Powerful Platforms:
o Upgrade Financial Management System

o Cloud-based system to perform tasks and access information more 
conveniently

o Incorporate analytical tools to improve data usefulness
o Integrate vendor access and other District interfaces (Sierra, 

Cashless Pilot Program) to streamline processes and add 
efficiencies
o Vacancy control using HR Information System

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

227



6

Playbook 2026 – Involvement
Finance Goal: Establish a cross-functional 
decision-making framework for long-term 
financial planning

Align resources with strategic priorities based on feedback 
gathered:
o An interactive budgetary tool provides an engagement medium for 

internal and external users
o Enables team members to help make beneficial budget decisions

o The financial management system empowering users contributes to a 
cost-saving culture

o The Financial Services team will participate in department and branch 
meetings to answer questions and measure strategic compliance

o Periodic Finance and Audit Committee meetings allows refinement to the 
long-term financial plan

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

228



7

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
July 25, 2021 - Appendix L 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

229



1

Library 
Operations

Leo Segura
Director

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

230



2

Leo Segura
Library Operations 

Director

Cherrie DeLaney
Acting Regional Library 

Operations Manager

Key Activities
• Daily operation of 26 locations with 485 staff.  

o 13 urban branches, 12 outlying branches, and 
Detention Center 

• Ensures equitable access to library materials, 
collections and services

• Monitor staffing levels to ensure established service 
levels

• Participate in District-wide planning activities
• Responsible for $31.6M department budget
• Develops and updates patron policies, procedures 

and guidelines
• Handles and resolves patron complaints that rise to 

Administration levels

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

231



3

Work with Director Watson and HR Director Serpico to implement 
Regional Managers as a solution to ensure that our staffing model 
accurately accounts for service needs. 

o Expedites administrative support by splitting into three (3) 
geographic regions

o Streamline communication by ensuring all branches receive the 
same communication regardless of location

o Improves morale by validating the importance of library services 
to our rural communities

o Improves competition and collaboration, and
o Takes into consideration travel and transportation as part of the 

administrator’s duties

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

232



4

Regions

Outlying
Outlying

Outlying

LO 

SPS/AS Assist.

1-PT

SPS/AS Assist.

1-PT

SPS Assistant

2-PT

SPS DH

1

SPS Assistant

2-PT

3-FT/3-PT3-FT/4-PT

YS Assistant

YS DH

YS Assistant

CL Assistant YS Librarian

1

Teen DH Multinedia Sup

2-FT/2-PT 3-FT/1-PT

SPS DH

1

SPS Assistant

2-PT

SPS DH

1

SPS Assistant

2-PT

SPS/AS Assist.

1-PT

SPS Assistant

2-PT

SPS DH

1

2-FT/3-PT

1-PT

MS Assistant

2-PT

Page

Maker Specialist

1

Teen Specialist Page

VACANT 1

1 1

AS DH/ABMAS DH/ABM

1

AS Librarian

1

AS Assistant

1

2-FT/2-PT 1-FT/1-PT

1 1

CL DH

11 1 11 1 1

CL DH YS DHCL DH

Regional Director

East Region (1)

Regional Director

1

1 1 11 1 11 Vacant

24

AS Librarian AS Librarian AS LibrarianAS Librarian AS Librarian

WV BM

UrbanUrban

EN BM

3-FT/2-PT

1

1

Page

3

AS DH/ABM

1

AS Librarian

Library Assistant Library Assistant

Library Assistant

Library Assistant

1

12

SPS DH

1

SPS Assistant

MS Assistant

1-FT/3-PT

1 1

1

1

ME

MT MV

SA

SE

Library Assistant Library Assistant Library Assistant

Library Assistant

21 2-PT

Library Assistant

SPS DH

1

SPS Assistant

2-PT

1

5-FT/2-PT

BDGS IS MC

Page

17 1819

PageMS Assistant

2-FT/1-PT2-FT/1-PT

MS Assistant MS AssistantMS Assistant Page

YS Assistant

3-FT/1-PT

16 7

131-PT

PageTeen Librarian MM Specialist PagePage

1-PT1 1 2-PT1-FT/2-PT 16

BK

YS Assistant

1 12111 1

YS Assistant

2-FT/2-PT

MS Librarian

1 12

1-PT

Page

1

MM Specialist

1

MS Assistant

2

SPS DH

1

SPS Assistant

YS LibrarianPage YS Librarian YS Librarian

2-PT

Page

10

YS Librarian

YS AssistantYS Assistant YS Assistant

MM Supervisor

2-PT

YS Assistant

YS Librarian YS Librarian YS LibrarianYS Librarian YS Librarian

11 1 3-FT/1-PT11 1

Page

YS Assistant

2 1

CL Assistant CL Assistant

1-PT

11-PT 4-PT

YS DH

4-PT 3-PT

YS DH YS DH

1

SPS/AS Assist.

CL AssistantCL Assistant CL Assistant CL Assistant

YS Assistant

CL DH

CL Assistant

2-FT/4-PT 3-FT/4-PT

CL DHCL DH CL DH CL DHCL DH

3-FT/4-PT3-FT/3-PT 3-FT/4-PT 2-FT/4-PT2-FT/4-PT 2-FT/3-PT

1

YS Assistant

CS Assistant CS Assistant

4-FT/3-PT4-FT/4-PT 2-FT/4-PT

1-FT/4-PT

1

CS AssistantCS Assistant CS Assistant

CL Assistant

CS AssistantCS Assistant CS Assistant CS Assistant

1 111 1

1

4

1

11

CS DH CS DH CS DHCS DH CS DHCS DH

Page

CL Manager

CS DH

1-FT

CS Assistant

YS DH

1

1 1

YS Assistant

1-FT/4-PT

6

3-PT

Page

2-FT/4-PT 2-FT/1-PT2-FT/3-PT2-FT/4-PT 2-FT/1-PT 2-FT/1-PT

CS DH

1

CS Assistant

1

CS Assistant

CS DH CS DH

11 1

CS DH CS DH

YS DH YS DH YS DH YS DH

3-PT

AS AssistantAS Assistant AS Assistant AS Assistant

1-FT/2-PT

CS DH

2-FT/4-PT

AS Assistant

1-FT/3-PT4-FT/1-PT 1-FT/2-PT 3-FT/2-PT

YS Librarian CL Assistant

2-PT

CS Assistant

Library Assistant

AS AssistantAS Assistant AS Assistant

2 111

CS Assistant

2-FT/4-PT

YS DH

AS Assistant

1-FT/1-PT

YS Librarian

3-FT/4-PT

1

SPS DH

1

1

YS Librarian

1

YS Assistant

1-PT

Library Assistant

AS Assistant

AS Librarian

1

1

AS Assistant

AS Librarian

Page

14

3-FT/4-PT

MS Assistant

2-FT/2-PT 1

SPS/AS Assist.

1-PT

YS DH

YS DH

1

AS DH/ABM AS DH/ABM

WM BM

AS DH/ABMAS DH/ABM AS DH/ABM

Outlying DH

AS DH/ABM

AS DH/ABMAS DH/ABM AS DH/ABM

SV BM SM BMWC BMWH BM

1

YS Librarian

AS Librarian AS Librarian

23

Leo Segura

Acting LO Director

CH BMCC BM EV BM

LA BM

MQ BM

RB BMSW BM

AS DH/ABM

1

AS Librarian AS Librarian

AS Assistant AS Assistant

5-PT 3-PT

Urban

SU BM

AS DH/ABM

1

West Region (2)

Regional Director

North Region (3)

Increase the speed of business 
by

o Standardizing and increasing 
Library Operations 
Administrative Visits

o Reducing the amount of time 
it takes to approve orders 
and requests or implement 
change

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

233



5

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

234



6

To better streamline and improve service and improve staff 
efficiency Library Operations will 
• Work with General Services and IT to implement 

consolidated service points at three locations this fiscal 
year; Centennial Hills, Spring Valley and West Las Vegas 
Libraries. 

• Identify and Develop plans to implement similar plans at 
three or more additional locations the following year.   

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

235



7

East Las Vegas was designed with 
a consolidated desk combining 
Reference and Circulation staff at 
one service point with “roving” 
staff support .

The Mesquite redesign 
consolidated three departments, 
Youth Services, Adult, and 
Circulation, into one main service 
desk with “roving” staff support   

Roving Staff:
Library equipment is mounted to 
an Ergotron style cart securing a 
branch laptop connected to the 
catalog, scanner, and receipt 
printer thereby allowing staff to 
be where the customers are to 
assist with:
• Reference/Reader Advisory
• Circulation
• Holds
• Collection Development
• Computer Classes 
• 3D Printing
• And more … 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

236



8

INCREASE DISCOVERABILITY &
Extend Reach: “Yes Libraries Do That!”

In order to make Plays to be more Relevant, Responsive, Inclusive, 
Adaptive, and Innovative Library Operations will

o Implement staff run book clubs across the district
o Ask Branch Managers to identify community partners where they 

can speak about library offerings and services and distribute 
information

o Encourage customer-facing staff in Adult Services, and Computer 
Labs to host a monthly program that supports library services or 
resources.  

o Implement Biblioboard Create for staff and community input not 
limited to art, maker spaces, performances, or historical collections

o Set benchmarks for Branches to submit staff lists in support of BAM 
and Collection Development 

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

237



9

To improve proficiency of Library Operations staff 
o Implement staff training on Storytime

 Start with our District-Wide library staff
 By end of fiscal year extend to all staff in customer-facing 

positions
o Complete Apprentice Person-in-Charge Training for the inaugural group 

and identify and continue to further develop staff and improve customer 
service

o Add minimum requirements for staff training in databases and services 
so that staff can communicate effectively with patrons about our online 
offerings and not have to transfer them to a support department

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

238



10

To improve how customers see us as their Third Place
o Work with Branch Staff and General Services to identify and implement 

additional branch improvements and implement programming around 
changes 

o Teen Zone
o Podcasting Studio
o Amphitheater
o Computer Lab expansions

o Work with Branch Staff and General Services to identify and implement 
additional branch improvements around seating and access

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

239



11

Thank you!

Board of Trustees' Retreat 
June 25, 2021 - Appendix M 

Page 11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

240



 

PROPOSED MINUTES 
LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ EMERGENCY MEETING 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 
Tuesday, July 6, 2021 

 
The Board of Trustees of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District met in emergency session in 
via WEBEX, at 7:00 a.m., Tuesday, July 6, 2021. 
 
Present: Board: B. Wilson, Chair  E. Foyt  
   N. Waugh   S. Ramaker    
   J. Meléndrez  J. Jiron    
    
 Counsel: G. Welt 
   
 Absent: K. Benavidez 
  F. Ortiz 
  K. Rogers 
  K. Turner Whiteley 
 
 Staff: Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
  Allison Boyer, Executive Assistant 
 

 Guests:   
 
B. Wilson, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:05 a.m. 

 

Roll Call and Pledge 
of Allegiance                     
(Item I.)  

All members listed above represent a quorum.  Appendix A. 

Public Comment 
(Item II.) 

None. 

Agenda                     
(Item III.) 

Trustee Waugh moved to approve the Agenda as proposed. There was 
no opposition and the motion carried. 

New Business   
(Item IV.) 

 

For discussion and 
possible Board 
action to adopt 
Resolution 2021-02 
naming Kelvin 
Watson as the duly 
authorized 
representative of 
the Las Vegas-Clark 
County Library 
District for the 
checking account 
along with the 
Board of Trustees 
Treasurer, Nathaniel 
P. Waugh.        

Chair Wilson advised the attendees that due to the temporary inability 
of Chief Financial Officer, Financial Services Director, Floresto Cabias, 
to perform his duties, the Board needs to approve a new signatory for 
the District’s checking account and authorize the immediate installation 
of Kelvin Watson, Executive Director, as duly authorized representative 
of the District for the checking account along with the Board of 
Trustees’ Treasurer, Nathaniel P. Waugh.   

Mr. Watson will remain in place as signatory on the District’s checking 
account until an Acting Chief Financial Officer is appointed or until 
Floresto Cabias returns to his duties as Chief Financial Officer. 
Proposed Resolution 2021-02 is enclosed for Trustee review.  Human 
Resources Director Jeff Serpico will be a backup. 

Trustee Waugh moved to adopt Resolution 2021-02 naming Kelvin 
Watson as duly authorized representative of the District for the 

ITEM IV.C. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

241



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Emergency Meeting 
July 6, 2021 
Page 2  

 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Elizabeth Foyt, Secretary 
 
  

(Item IV.A.) checking account along with the Board of Trustees’ Treasurer, 
Nathaniel P. Waugh.  There was no opposition and the motion carried. 

Resolution 2021-02 is attached as Appendix B. 

Public Comment 
(Item V.) 

None. 

Adjournment    
(Item VI.) 

Chair Wilson adjourned the meeting at 7:12 a.m. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

242



2021 ATTENDANCE July 6, 2021 Emergency Board Meeting

Appendix A

2021 Ja
nu

ar
y 

8 
S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
 R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 1

1 
R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 2

3 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

B
rd

 M
tg

A
pr

il 
8 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it

A
pr

il 
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ay

 2
0 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 5
 S

pe
ci

al
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

m
te

Ju
ne

 1
0 

N
om

in
at

in
g 

C
m

te
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

B
oa

rd
 R

et
re

at

Ju
ly

 6
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Benavidez Kelly P P P P P P P P P A-E P P A-E
Bilbray-Axelrod* Shannon P P P X X X X X X X X X X X X
Francis Drake*** Marilyn P P P P P P P X X X X X X X X
Foyt Elizabeth P P P P P P P P P A-E A-E P P P
Meléndrez José P P P P  A-E A-E A-E P P A-E P P P
Ortiz Felipe P P P P P P P P P P P P P P A-U
Wadley-Munier*** Robin P P P P P P P X X X X X X X X
Ramaker Sandra P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Wilson Brian P P P P A-E A-E A-E P P P P P P P P
Rogers Keith A-E P P P P P P P P P P P A-E
Waugh** Nathaniel X X X P P P P P P P P P P P P
Jiron**** Jennifer X X X X X X X P P P P P P P P
Turner Whiteley**** Kate X X X X X X X P P P P P A-E

attended Committee meeting but not a member
 

A-E Excused Absence
A-U Unexcused Absense

*Shannon Bilbray-Axelrod's term expired March 1, 2021
**Nathaniel Waugh was appointed March 2, 2021
*** Term expired April  18, 2021
**** Appointed to term beginning April 19, 2021

as of July 7, 2021

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

243



 

PROPOSED MINUTES 
LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ MEETING 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 

Thursday, July 8, 2021 
 
The Board of Trustees of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District met in regular session in the 
West Charleston Library, Las Vegas, Nevada, and via Webex at 6:00 p.m., Thursday, July 8, 2021. 
 
Present: Board: B. Wilson, Chair  J. Jiron 
   E. Foyt    N. Waugh 
   S. Ramaker  F. Ortiz  
   J. Meléndrez  K. Rogers 
        
 Counsel: G. Welt 
   
 Absent: K. Benavidez 
  K. Turner Whiteley 
 
 Staff: Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
  Numerous Staff 
 

 Guests: Chelsea Capurro of the Griffin Company  
 
B. Wilson, Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Roll Call and Pledge 
of Allegiance                     
(Item I.)  

All members listed above represent a quorum.  Trustee Foyt attended via 
telephone.  Trustee Ramaker attended via Webex. Trustee Meléndrez 
arrived at 6:05 p.m. Appendix A. 

Chair Wilson led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Public Comment 
(Item II.) 

None. 

Agenda                     
(Item III.) 

Trustee Waugh moved to approve the Agenda as proposed. There was no 
opposition and the motion carried. 

Approval of 
Proposed Minutes 
Special Meetings, 
June 5, 2021 and 
June 10, 2021. Risk 
Management 
Committee Meeting, 
June 10, 2021 and 
Nominating 
Committee Meeting, 
June 10, 2021. 
(Item IV.A-D.) 

Trustee Rogers moved to approve the following minutes in one Motion: 

• Special Board Meeting, June 5, 2021 

• Risk Management Committee Meeting, June 10, 2021 

• Nominating Committee Meeting, June 10, 2021 

• Special Board Meeting, June 10, 2021 

There was no opposition and the motion carried.  

 

Chair’s Report       

Presentation to 
former Chair Felipe 
A. Ortiz.            
(Item V.A.) 

Chair Wilson presented a gift to Trustee Ortiz to honor him for his 
service as Chair. He stated the following: 

“Tonight we would like to honor the service of Felipe A. Ortiz, who 
served as Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Las Vegas-Clark County 

ITEM IV.D. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

244



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 2  

 
Library District from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021. 

In his time of Board leadership, the organization went through one of 
the most disruptive times in history, the COVID-19 pandemic. Chair 
Ortiz led the Board through adjustments to hours of operation, budgets, 
agreements with the Teamsters 14 Union, implementation of a major 
voluntary employee separation program, and service responses to 
unprecedented conditions. In this time, the Library District stayed 
strong, stayed open, and launched innovative services such as the 
Vegas Strong Academies and curbside services while maintaining the 
highest standards for health and safety, as mandated by the Governor.’ 

As Chair, he led two successful searches: the first for the current 
Human Resources Director – the second for the current Executive 
Director.  

Chair Ortiz led the Board’s 2021 Nevada legislative agenda and 
successfully testified for new Board powers which passed this legislative 
session. 

Chair Ortiz always made himself available to serve other organizational 
functions. He was a keynote speaker at the Career Online High School 
graduation. He serves on the board of the East Las Vegas QALICB, Inc. 
and the Library District Foundations. He opened the new Employ NV 
Business Hub in October 2020, and has been an effective community 
advocate for leveraging and promoting Library District assets and 
partnerships. 

Chair Ortiz has been a strong, visionary leader who clearly sees how the 
Library District is a powerful community change agent. He has used his 
Chair position to continue to push transformative Library District 
investments, including: 

• Identifying opportunities for new branches in new growth areas 

• Overseeing the Board vote to support the development of a new 
library in West Las Vegas, and 

• Before the pandemic hit, an ambitious plan to renovate 13 
branches to the Library District’s new service model which leads 
the nation in breadth and depth of services designed to change 
community conditions. 

Today we would like to present Chair Ortiz with a small token of our 
appreciation for his service as Board Chair for the past two years.” 

Individual Trustees thanked Trustee Ortiz as well. 

Possible Board 
discussion 
regarding the 
makeup of Board 
Committees for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 
2021-2022.       
(Item V.B.) 

Chair Wilson asked Trustees to review the list of Board Committees 
provided them with the Board meeting documents.  He asked them to 
contact him with their interest prior to the September Board Meeting. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

245



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 3  

 
Report on the 
American Library 
Association’s 
Annual Meeting 
(Virtual) by Trustee 
Elizabeth Foyt.  
(Item V.C.) 

Trustee Foyt had nothing to add to her written report provided as part 
of the Board packet but expressed appreciation for the opportunity to 
participate in the American Library Association (ALA) Annual Meeting, 
held virtually in June. 

 

Library Reports   
(Item VI.) 

Trustee Waugh moved to accept Reports VI.A.1-3. There was no 
opposition and the reports were accepted. 

Acting Executive 
Director’s Report               
(Item VI.A.) 

Executive Director Kelvin Watson said he had nothing to add to his 
written report since it was such a short time since his last report. 
Trustee Ortiz asked if the Library staff was at 100%. Mr. Watson replied 
that all libraries are operational and are 100% open to the public. 

Trustee Ortiz asked whether staff had done any assessment on post-
pandemic statistics.  Mr. Watson stated that assessment would be 
available at the next Board meeting. 

Counsel Welt commented that he visited San Diego the week before and 
their library just started in-person services, so the Library District is far 
ahead.  

Library Operations, 
Security Reports 
and Monthly 
Statistics (Item 
VI.A.1.a.) 

Chair Wilson requested that future reports please reference the 2019 
data, in addition to the 2020 data as a basis to compare numbers. 

Branding and 
Marketing Report 
and Electronic 
Resources Statistics 
(Item VI.A.2.a.) 

Chair Wilson requested information on unsubscribed rates occurring in 
relation to the District’s email marketing; specifically how often and how 
many addresses are unsubscribed when staff sends an email goes out.  

Community 
Engagement Report 
and Monthly 
Statistics               
(Item VI.A.2.b.) 

Chair Wilson asked if staff could determine the contributing factor to the 
huge bump of Career Online High School graduate numbers compared 
to previous years. Mr. McNally answered that there are a lot of 
individuals who are trying to get their education and get back into the 
workforce. They are using library services. He stated he would have to 
circle back to the Literary Services Manager and Executive Director 
Watson to provide detailed information. 

Chair Wilson asked if there was a special program or promotion/ 
advertising that was done during the pandemic to result in such a 
significant jump. Mr. McNally replied that it is a core service of our 
Literacy Services Department and Branding and Marketing Department 
to put that information and resources out. He thought it might have 
been a contributing factor. 

Development and 
Planning Report 
(Item VI.A.2.c.) 

No questions. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

246



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 4  

 
Information 
Technology Report              
(Item VI.A.2.d.) 

No questions. 

Financial Services 
Report              
(Item VI.A.3.a.) 

No questions. 

General Services 
Report              
(Item VI.A.3.b.) 

No questions. 

Human Resources 
Report              
(Item VI.A.3.c.) 

No questions. 

Unfinished Business 

 Final Report on 
2021 Nevada 
Legislature issues 
by Chelsea Capurro 
of The Griffin 
Company          
(Item VII.) 

Ms. Capurro reported that the District’s Bill (AB 258) was passed 
successfully and was signed by the Governor. She explained that the 
legislators were not able to work on redistricting during the regular 
legislative session. The census data was delayed by COVID and will 
have to be done in a special session. She expects it should happen end 
of summer or early fall.  

Ms. Capurro also mentioned that the District should be aware of and 
watch for new federal funds available, specifically from the American 
Rescue Plan. She also explained the difference between interim sessions 
and regular sessions.  

There were no questions from the Trustees. 

New Business 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to approve a 
revision to the 
District’s Circulation 
Policy, last revised 
and adopted on 
March 12, 2015, and 
effective March 13, 
2015.  (Item 
VIII.A.) 

Director of Library Operations Leo Segura explained that the Board of 
Trustees adopted the Circulation Policy on March 22, 1995. Several 
revisions have been made over the years including 1996, 2002, 2007, 
2011, and 2015. 

Most public libraries in the country adopted circulation policies to 
register users who are permitted to borrow items; to help ensure that 
patrons receive consistent and equitable access to products and 
services; to ensure that borrowed materials would be returned; and to 
ensure that patrons have clear expectations of their rights as 
cardholders. 

In response to COVID-19, the District adopted an eCard with an online 
application with patron authentication. This type of card has proven 
invaluable for both patrons and staff and we are proposing that we 
officially adopt the Instant eCard, remove additional barriers to access, 
clarify the Borrowing Guidelines, and extend the library card renewal 
period. During the process of developing the proposed version, staff 
evaluated circulation policies of similar-sized public libraries nationally, 
as well as considered the District’s Playbook 2026 strategic initiatives. 

Major changes to the Policy include changes to types of cards available 
including the addition of the Instant eCard, lengthening expiration 
dates, removing many barriers to access in the Requirements to apply 
section. The revisions also include clarification of rules; on cardholder’s 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

247



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 5  

 
responsibilities, use of materials, fines and fees, notices, loss of 
privileges, and Interlibrary Loan. In addition, staff moved the fines and 
fees schedule to the staff Borrowing Guidelines to streamline the 
process so that when there are changes in replacement costs they 
would not necessarily change the District’s policy. 

Mr. Segura asked that the revised Circulation Policy be approved 
effective July 14, 2021, not the original date listed in the material.  

Trustee Ortiz asked, if a North Las Vegas Library (NLV) or Henderson 
Library card holder does not return an item, would the Library District 
have assistance from other districts to get the material back? 

Mr. Segura stated that there is a reciprocating agreement with both NLV 
and the Boulder City Library (BC). The Library District collects fines for 
them and returns materials to them. If either NLV or BC check out 
District materials that do not get returned, they are under the same 
policies and procedures as the District’s patrons. Similarly, if District 
patrons borrow from NLV or BC, they follow their borrowing rules.  

Trustee Ortiz asked if other library districts have similar policies as the 
District. Mr. Segura stated that Access Service Manager, Sufa Anderson, 
has been in negotiations to agree to a five-year renewal process, similar 
to the District.  

Trustee Waugh moved to approve the proposed revisions to the 
Circulation Policy, to address the eCard and remove barriers to access, 
effective on July 14, 2021. There were no oppositions and the motion 
carried.  

The approved Circulation Policy is attached as Appendix B. 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to approve a 
revision to the 
District’s Collection 
Development Policy, 
last revised and 
adopted on 
November 14, 2002.  
(Item VIII.B.) 

Chief Information Officer Al Prendergast introduced Head of Collection 
of Bibliographic Services Rebecca Colbert who introduced changes to 
the District’s Collection Development Policy. 

The existing Collection Development Policy (Policy) was last revised in 
2002 and needs to be updated to reflect current standards regarding 
the selection of materials, access, and purpose of the Library District’s 
collection. 

The Policy is one of the fundamental policies for any public library. Just 
as the Circulation Policy determines who may check out materials and 
for how long, the Collection Development Policy defines the overall 
purpose of the Library’s collection and what materials will be acquired. 

The Policy reflects the core mission of the Library District: to support 
the pursuit of lifelong learning through responsive collections and digital 
resources. The Policy outlines how collection development fulfills the 
District’s goals through the selection criteria. Finally, the Policy affirms 
the principles of intellectual freedom and the District’s commitment to 
diverse and accessible content. 

The scope of the District’s collection has changed since 2002. Digital 
resources including eBooks, audiobooks, and streaming music and video 
are a major focus of our collection in 2021. Our commitment to 
resources that inform and entertain is unwavering but the formats 
through which that mission is fulfilled have greatly expanded in the last 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

248



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 6  

 
decade. The Collection Development Department is committed to 
acquiring quality materials in multiple formats and making sure the 
public has access to a wide variety of popular and informative titles in 
the greatest quantity and format available. 

The adoption of a revised Policy is a significant step toward ensuring 
that the public is serving the needs of the community and 
demonstrating the commitment of the Library District to a robust and 
relevant materials collection. 

Chair Wilson asked if any of the policy changes have an effect on day-
to-day operations. Ms. Colbert replied that the changes are mostly 
housekeeping, as the Policy has not been revisited since 2002. She 
stated that the most frequent use of the Policy is when a patron submits 
a Request for Reconsideration and response to those requests. Ms. 
Colbert explained that during the review and response, staff quotes the 
Policy often and want an up-to-date relevant policy.  

Trustee Ramaker asked if donated books go into circulation or if they go 
out on the market for resale. Ms. Colbert replied that donations are 
incorporated if they are current. She added that if the Library District 
does not already own the material, the book donation has to meet the 
same selection requirements that it would if the District purchased the 
book.  

Trustee Ortiz asked Mr. Watson if the revised Policy fit with his direction 
of purchasing books. He also asked who was in charge of tracking 
whether a book is read or not and who is responsible for purchasing the 
books. Mr. Watson stated that Ms. Colbert and her team are responsible 
for monitoring collection and circulation as well as reviewing public 
suggestions for material purchases as well as the Interlibrary Loan 
process. 

Mr. Prendergast added that the Distribution Center Manager manages 
the Distribution Center and the maintenance of the collection. Mr. 
Prendergast stated that in his reports there are statistics reflecting how 
many titles the District has, how many items are in the collection, how 
many circulate and how many were withdrawn from the collection.  

Trustee Waugh moved to approve the revised Collection Development 
Policy. There was no opposition and the motion carried. 

The approved Collection Development Policy is attached as Appendix C. 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to approve a 
joinder with Clark 
County for the 
purchase of general 
office supplies from 
Staples.            
(Item VIII.C.) 

Mr. John Vino explained that funds are allocated in the General Fund to 
purchase general office supplies for the District. Nevada Statutes and 
Board Policy require that a request for bids be advertised for purchases 
exceeding $75,000 within a fiscal year. In lieu of advertising a request 
for bids, the District may, in accordance with NRS 332.195, use a 
previously bid contract of a government entity with the authorization of 
the contracting vendor. 

Clark County has in place a contract for general office supplies with 
Staples. The contract offers discounts and requires no minimum 
purchase. The Contract is in its third renewal year, effective through 
June 30, 2022, and has one further renewal year. Staples has 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

249



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 7  

 
authorized the District’s use of the County contract. The District has 
previously joindered onto Clark County’s contract with Staples. 

There were no questions. 

Trustee Waugh moved to authorize staff to utilize Clark County’s 
contract with Staples for the purchase and direct delivery of general 
office supplies and to authorize staff to extend the contract for the 
remaining one-year renewal subject to funding being available and the 
vendor continuing to meet specifications as outlined in the contract 
documents. There was no opposition and the motion carried.  

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to declare 
fines and fees of 
approximately      
$1,624,345.64 that 
are five years old, 
dating from the year 
2016, as 
uncollectable, and 
purge from District 
records. 
(Item VIII.D.) 

Mr. Prendergast introduced Access Service Manager, Sufa Anderson. 
Ms. Anderson manages the Library Services platform and is responsible 
for all of the reporting. Mr. Prendergast presented on uncollectible fines 
and fees that are five years old, dating from the year 2016.  

In September 2000, the Board authorized staff to contract with a 
collection agency, Unique Management Services, Inc. (Unique) to 
pursue the collection of delinquent fines and fees owed to the District. 
At that time, the Board approved a motion to expunge fines and fees 
owed prior to January 1999. The rationale for forgiving this debt was 
that the fines and fees preceding the implementation of the former 
automation system (DRA) were considered uncollectible. 

For the past 21 years, since contracting with collection agencies, the 
District has recovered over $12,371,254.89 in items and $7,788,475.54 
in fines and fees. The District is currently under contract with Unique. 

In June 2004, the Board authorized staff to declare fines and fees 
totaling $704,763.00 that were five years old, dating from 1999, as 
uncollectible and to purge these from District records. At that time, staff 
recommended that each year delinquent fines and fees that are older 
than five years be reported to the Board for the purpose of being 
declared uncollectible. 

Currently, there are 25,368 outstanding accounts from the year 2016. 
Collection agencies advise that debts older than five years are not likely 
to be recoverable. Given the age of the debt and the transient nature of 
the District’s population, it is unlikely that the District will collect a 
significant portion of the debt. 

Staff again recommends that the Board declare fines and fees that are 
older than five years as uncollectible. Currently there is approximately 
$1,624,345.64 in outstanding fines and fees that accrued in 2016. By 
clearing these fines and fees, the District will be able to purge these 
inactive patrons and delete these items from its database. 

Trustee Rogers asked what would happen with the individuals who had 
debts and were cleared off the books. Would they be in good standing 
again to get a library card? Ms. Anderson answered that those 
individuals would be purged from the system and their account would 
go to zero. She also explained the process that the District and its 
vendors go through to get them to that point.  In most cases, the 
individuals have moved away. 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

250



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 8  

 
Trustee Waugh moved to declare fines and fees of approximately       
$1, 624, 345.64 as uncollectible dating from the year 2016, and 
authorize staff to purge from District records. There was no opposition 
and the motion carried.  

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to appoint 
the East Las Vegas 
QALICB, Inc. Board 
of Directors. 
(Item VIII.E.) 

Director of Development and Planning, Danielle Milam explained that it 
was time to appoint the East Las Vegas QALICB, Inc. Board of Directors.  

Trustee Waugh asked how Ms. Milam determines who the slate will be. 
Ms. Milam clarified that it was the for the most part the same list of 
individuals that was appointed at the establishment of the QALICB.  

• Kelvin Watson, President 

• Keiba Crear, Secretary-Treasurer 

• Directors:  Senator Mo Denis, Felipe Ortiz, and Michael Saunders 

Trustee Waugh moved to appoint the slate of officers and directors 
listed above to the East Las Vegas QALICB, Inc. Board of Directors. 
There was no opposition and the motion carried. 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action to approve 
the District’s 
Playbook 2026 
Strategic Plan. 
(Item VIII.F.) 

Executive Director, Kelvin Watson presented the District’s Playbook 
2026 Strategic Plan. 

At the June 25, 2021 Board of Trustee Meeting and Retreat, Executive 
Director Kelvin Watson presented the proposed Playbook 2026 Strategic 
Plan (Playbook 2026), followed by individual Administration Team 
presentations on department plays.   

The Playbook 2026 cued up from work done by a cross-organizational 
team of Library District staff that began in 2019. The team reviewed 
and recommended revisions and additions to the previous Vision 2020 
Strategic Plan based on pre- and post-pandemic service area 
demographics, community conditions, public library industry evolution, 
and global trends and forces both shaping and disrupting Library District 
business. 

Executive Director Watson reshaped and redirected the team’s work to 
identify critical plays to activate more inclusive, responsive, Library 
District service strategies, including Powerful People, Powerful Places, 
Powerful Partnerships, and Powerful Platforms. 

These activators make the Playbook 2026 versatile and adaptive. 
Playbook 2026 is an inclusive and innovative strategic plan that invites 
involvement and engagement with all staff throughout the organization, 
as well as alignment with community partners and leaders. 

Over the next year, Playbook 2026 will be presented to a wide variety 
of community groups and audiences. It will be assessed, reviewed, and 
improved on an annual basis with the Board of Trustees to ensure 
maximum mobilization of Library District assets and to tell the powerful 
stories and powerful position the Library District plays as an agent of 
educational, economic, and social well-being of individuals and 
communities in southern Nevada. 

Chair Wilson asked if there were any major changes from the 
presentation that was given during the Board Retreat. Mr. Watson 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

251



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 9  

 
answered that there was not.  

Trustee Ortiz commented that the proposed plan was well vetted and 
moved to approve the District’s Playbook 2026 Strategic Plan as 
presented. There was no opposition and the motion carried. 

The Playbook 2026 Strategic Plan is attached as Appendix D. 

Discussion and 
possible Board 
action regarding 
approval of the 
District’s 2021-2022 
Diversity, Equity, 
Inclusion and 
Accessibility (DEIA) 
Action Plan. 
(Item VIII.G.) 

Director of Human Resources, Jeffrey Serpico presented the District’s 
proposed 2021-2022 Diversity Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility (DEIA) 
Action Plan.  

On October 14, 1999, the LVCCLD Board of Trustees voted to create a 
Diversity Competitive Workplace Committee. The original committee, 
composed of four Trustees, the Executive Director, HR Director, and 
four team members, met to examine the issues of recruitment and 
retention of diverse staff in the library profession at large, and in our 
Library District specifically. The original committee created the LVCCLD 
Diversity Action Plan in 2001, which highlighted four initiatives for the 
district and their committee: 1) Advocacy 2) Recruitment 3) Retention 
and 4) Implementation and Data Reporting.  

In January of 2019, eleven LVCCLD team members were chosen to 
serve on a new Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility (DEIA) 
Committee, to create and implement a new (DEIA) Action Plan to 
replace/update the 2013 - 2014 Diversity Action Plan. Due to the global 
pandemic in early 2020, diversity initiatives were paused and the new 
work environment offered an opportunity for the committee to further 
modify its goals and objectives. The (DEIA) Committee refined the 
mission statement, principles, goals, objectives, and strategies, all of 
which are detailed in the newly updated action plan. The final draft of 
the plan was presented to the Executive Director in May of 2021. 

The plan outlines five key goals for 2021-2022 including: (1) 
Developing and Implement the DEIA Action Plan; (2) Conducting a DEIA 
survey (District-Wide); (3) Performing a policy audit; (4) Increasing 
diversity related recruitment and outreach initiatives; and (5) Creating a 
DEIA resource page on Voyager (Intranet). Each of these goals includes 
a set of objectives for the action plan against which the District will 
measure success. 

Chair Wilson commented that there is a wide range of diverse 
community groups in Las Vegas. He stated that it is very important that 
these community groups be reflected in the staff of government 
agencies. Chair Wilson noted that Goal 4 in the plan is to specifically 
target the LatinX community for recruiting and hiring. He asked Mr. 
Serpico if that is because the LatinX community is underrepresented in 
the District currently relative to the valley population per the 
dashboard. Mr. Serpico stated that Chair Wilson was correct.  

Chair Wilson stated that he noticed the variance on male to female staff 
members is high and asked if that was due to the nature of libraries or 
if it was a recruiting issue.  Mr. Serpico stated that it was due to the 
nature of libraries, similar to the nature of the healthcare industry.  

Trustee Rogers asked if the action plan extends to procurement. Mr. 
Watson answered that Mr. Vino will be looking to expand opportunities 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

252



Minutes - Board of Trustees’ Meeting 
July 8, 2021 
Page 10  

 
for small, minority business owners. He added that Mr. Vino has a plan, 

not necessarily coupled with the DEIA plan, but is part of the overall 
objectives of the organization.  

Mr. Vino added that DEIA is built into the District’s Purchasing Policy. 
When looking at bids, there is a process to ensure that emerging small 
businesses, minority-owned businesses or disadvantaged businesses 
are considered.  

Trustee Waugh expressed his appreciation that opportunities for doing 
business are being made available to a wider pool of vendors.  

Trustee Waugh moved to adopt the final Las Vegas-Clark County Library 
District’s 2021-2022 Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility (DEIA) 
Action Plan, subject to any modifications as directed by the Board of 
Trustees. There was no opposition and the motion carried.  

The 2021-2022 Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility (DEIA) 
Action Plan is attached as Appendix E. 

Announcements      
(Item IX.) 

The August 12, 2021 Regular Board Meeting has been cancelled. 

The next Board Meeting will be held Thursday September 9, 2021 in the 
East Las Vegas Library at 6:00 p.m. 

Public Comment 
(Item X.) 

Trustee Ortiz thanked the Board of Trustees. 

Trustee Rogers thanked the library family for all of the condolences, 
cards, flowers, text messages and prayers received after the loss of his 
father. 

Trustee Ramaker thanked Mr. Segura for supporting Judith Sargent in 
Mesquite during the back-to-school supply drive. 

Executive Session    
(Item XI.) 

Removed from Agenda. 

Adjournment    
(Item XIII.) 

Chair Ortiz adjourned the meeting at 6:59 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Elizabeth Foyt, Secretary 
 
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

253



2021 ATTENDANCE July 8, 2021 Regular Board Meeting

Appendix A

2021 Ja
nu

ar
y 

8 
S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
 R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 1

1 
R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ar

ch
 2

3 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

B
rd

 M
tg

A
pr

il 
8 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it

A
pr

il 
8 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

M
ay

 2
0 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 5
 S

pe
ci

al
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C
m

te

Ju
ne

 1
0 

N
om

in
at

in
g 

C
m

te
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 1
0 

S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ne

 2
5 

B
oa

rd
 R

et
re

at

Ju
ly

 6
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
B
oa

rd
 M

tg

Ju
ly

 8
 R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
tg

Benavidez Kelly P P P P P P P P P A-E P P A-E A-U
Bilbray-Axelrod* Shannon P P P X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Francis Drake*** Marilyn P P P P P P P X X X X X X X X X
Foyt Elizabeth P P P P P P P P P A-E A-E P P P P
Meléndrez José P P P P  A-E A-E A-E P P A-E P P P P
Ortiz Felipe P P P P P P P P P P P P P P A-U P
Wadley-Munier*** Robin P P P P P P P X X X X X X X X X
Ramaker Sandra P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Wilson Brian P P P P A-E A-E A-E P P P P P P P P P
Rogers Keith A-E P P P P P P P P P P P A-E P
Waugh** Nathaniel X X X P P P P P P P P P P P P P
Jiron**** Jennifer X X X X X X X P P P P P P P P P
Turner Whiteley**** Kate X X X X X X X P P P P P A-E A-E

attended Committee meeting but not a member
 

A-E Excused Absence
A-U Unexcused Absense

*Shannon Bilbray-Axelrod's term expired March 1, 2021
**Nathaniel Waugh was appointed March 2, 2021
*** Term expired April  18, 2021
**** Appointed to term beginning April 19, 2021

as of July 12, 2021

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes

254



 

 

G:\Departments\AdministrationAssist\Board of Trustees Meetings\Working files for current meeting\0921-
AB-2022 Schedule.docx 

CHAIR’S REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #V.A: Possible Board discussion regarding the 2022 Board Meeting 
Schedule. 

2022 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PROPOSED MEETING DATES & LOCATIONS 
 

January 20 Clark County Library 

February 10 Rainbow Library 

March 10 Whitney Library 

April 21 Centennial Hills 

May 19 Windmill Library 

June 9 West Charleston Library 

July 14 East Las Vegas Library 

August 11 Clark County Library 

September 8 West Las Vegas Library 

October 13 Sahara West Library 

November 10 East Las Vegas Library 

December 8 Summerlin Library 

 
 
 
 
Notes:  
1 - All meeting days are Thursday, with start time of 6:00 p.m. 
2 - Windmill is the backup for all meetings except the February and May meetings 

(East Las Vegas) 
 
Recommended Action:   No vote is required for this item. 

            ITEM V.A. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item V - Chair's Report

255



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
To: Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
 
From: Floresto Cabias, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: July 1, 2021 
 
Subject: District Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic through fiscal year 2021 
 
 
During the first quarter of 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic caused 
significant volatility in U.S. and international economies and led to a global health 
emergency. All non-essential business operations in Nevada ceased on March 17, 
2020, and did not begin reopening until mid-May 2020. However, a significant 
portion of the District’s revenues are from property and consolidated sales taxes 
(CTX). Property taxes in Nevada are assessed on a fiscal year basis beginning July 1 
and were substantially collected for the year ended June 30, 2020, prior to the start 
of the pandemic. Thus, the impact on the District for the year ended June 30, 2020 
was minimal. 
 
However, the CTX is highly dependent on tourism and the closure of businesses 
caused by the pandemic had a significant negative impact on these revenues. To 
mitigate the pandemic impact, the District took immediate action to maintain 
financial sustainability. 
 
High-Yield Action Steps Taken 
 
A Voluntary Employee Separation Program (VESP) was implemented. The District 
spent $4.5M to buy out 47 employees who met established criteria and opted to 
leave the District voluntarily. This investment lowers personnel costs going forward 
as these vacated positions are filled at the lower end of their respective pay scales, 
or held open. The District is continuing to accumulate savings from these positions 
by delaying replacements and through organizational restructuring. The VESP cost 
was fully recovered by the end of FY 2021. 
 
Open positions were frozen and will only be filled on a case-by-case evaluation based 
on operational needs. Vacant positions were frozen at the beginning of the pandemic 
and subsequent vacancies were frozen throughout FY 2021. When vacancies required 
filling due to operational needs, positions were filled internally without filling the 
position left by the promoted team member, which maintained service coverage and 
vacancies as a source of cost recovery. This practice expedited recovery of the VESP 
cost, and provided an additional $2.5M in personnel cost savings compared to the FY 
2021 budget. Going forward, the opportunity to delay replacement and reorganize 

ITEM VI.A.1. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

256



September 9, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2 – Item VI.A.1. 

positions provides flexibility for Playbook 2026 and significant expenditure control 
and savings. In FY 2022, personnel costs represents 64% of total General Fund 
Expenditures. 
 
Voluntary furloughs were given to employees concerned with returning to work 
during the pandemic. Fifty-eight, mostly part-time staff, accepted voluntary 
furloughs between June 2020 and July 2020. Furloughs provided approximately $80K 
in personnel cost savings. Despite the size of the savings, making this option 
available provided much needed support to staff and contributed to morale. 
 
All branch renovation projects were put on hold and other capital projects were 
reduced to the minimum necessary to maintain operations. Transfers from the 
General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund were reduced from a budgeted $6M to 
$3M in FY 2020 to provide additional operating liquidity. In FY 2021, no transfers 
were budgeted to further build resources in the General Fund while the effects of the 
pandemic were analyzed. The District’s practice of maintaining a multiple-year 
reserve in critical capital programs (IT Replacements & Upgrades, Building 
Maintenance & Repair) supported strategic priorities. 
 
The services and supplies budget was decreased by approximately $1.2 million. The 
Administrative Team reviewed discretionary spending for FY 2021 to produce cost 
reductions. For example, rebranding and other marketing campaigns were put on 
hold, which provided savings of $150K in the General Fund and $250K in the Capital 
Projects Fund. Evaluating the long-term impact on group gatherings provided 
another $440K reduction to contracted services. Applying the same expenditure 
control approach for the FY 2022 budget, the General Fund services and supplies 
budget remained flat compared to the FY 2021 budget. 
 
These responses to the pandemic allowed the District to contain expenditures and 
redirect focus on services to meet the demands generated by the challenging 
economic environment. The District was among the first libraries in Nevada and the 
nation to safely bring on curbside and critical community services such as access to 
computers and Wi-Fi. Additionally, the District found ways to connect with 
customers, including driving digital business and developing new virtual programs. 
By being proactive, the District built resources and processes to continue making 
progress towards strategic goals while maintaining a sustainable budget. This 
ongoing approach helped the District become a debt-free organization that could 
recover more quickly. 
 
Future Strategies Learned and Improvements Implemented 
 
Budget transfers from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund. During 
economic distress, the District can rely on reducing transfers from the General Fund 
to the Capital Projects Fund to provide operating liquidity. As an additional 
precautionary measure, budgeting contingent Capital Projects Fund transfers to the 
General Fund will provide further liquidity, if needed, without requiring a budget 
augmentation. 
 
Maintain minimum cash balances in the Capital Projects Fund to minimize interest 
rate risk. This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. To accommodate emergency transfers from the 
Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund, as described above, earmarking a cash 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

257



September 9, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3 – Item VI.A.1. 

reserve will minimize interest rate risk by avoiding the need to urgently liquidate 
investments before their scheduled maturities. 
 
Collaboration with Teamsters Local Union No. 14. During the pandemic, the District 
sought economic concessions of $2.7M in reduced personnel costs to mitigate the 
adverse impact of projected revenue shortfalls. These concessions were agreed to by 
both parties after multiple meetings to discuss specific terms. Improved 
communications through preemptive discussions providing more financial and 
operational transparency will contribute to a more collaborative resolution to 
immediate needs. Working with the Union to incorporate a predetermined response 
to a crisis into the collective bargaining agreements will also minimize uncertainty 
that may adversely affect morale. 
 
Health and Safety Mitigation Taskforce (HSMT). The pandemic escalated at a rapid 
pace and challenged the District with continuously evolving impacts (e.g., business 
closures, reduced availability of critical staff, safety concerns). The HSMT included 
representatives from Financial Services, General Services, Human Resources, 
Information Technology, and Library Operations. The team was formed even prior to 
facility closures and worked closely with the Administrative Team to prepare the 
District for facility closures, facility reopenings, and complying with federal and state 
requirements, among other areas. Despite substantial efforts, ensuring reliable 
communications with all District staff during facility closures proved challenging. 
 
Communications Technology Team (CTT). The Administrative Team established the 
CTT to investigate and make recommendations for improving staff collaboration and 
communication to prepare for events similar to the pandemic in the future. The CTT 
is a cross-functional team like the HSMT. The team gathered feedback from staff 
about their experiences during required library closures and used the information to 
establish communication and reporting expectations for staff, identify essential tasks 
that must be completed when the District is forced to close, identify technologies 
that can be used to improve staff communication and collaboration, and make 
recommendations for technologies when working from home. As a result, equipment, 
technology, and guidelines have been deployed to ensure reliable communication 
during library closures. 
 
Staff will be available to answer any questions that you may have. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

258



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Mr. Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM:  Leo Segura, Library Operations Director 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: Library Operations Report, September 2021 

This report provides an overview of the Library Operations initiatives includes 25 
Branch Libraries and the Misdemeanant Jail Library. This report covers a two-month 
period from July 1, 2021 – August 23, 2021. 
 
POWERFUL PEOPLE 

• Two new Regional Managers were selected to help lead branch staff to 
Playbook 2026. 

• Staff met with City of Las Vegas Senior Buyer regarding extending Jail Library 
Contract for Fiscal Year 2022. 

• East Las Vegas Multimedia Supervisor Alex Acosta developed and 
implemented La Academia Hispana de Comunicacion, an 8-week program that 
will introduce Spanish-speaking members of the community to the career 
opportunities that are available in the world of Spanish radio, TV, and internet 
broadcasting. 

 
POWERFUL PLACES 

• Enterprise staff developed powerful plays that include developing and 
implementing sewing classes. 

• Staff at West Las Vegas and Rainbow Libraries implemented Teen Spaces so 
their teens feel included and have a place to H.O.M.A.G.O. 

• A Youth Services diversity programming committee was established to better 
assist staff with program planning and reach underserved populations.  

• Staff processed 130 (61 in June and 69 in July) passport applications and 
collected $5,174 ($2,711 in June and $2,463 in July) in fees.   

• Mesquite Library Adult Learning Center hosted technology classes that range 
from Computer 101 & 102, 3D Printing Steps 1-3, 3D Project Classes, Smart 
Phone Basics and Advanced Smart Phone Classes, Cricut Club, and Database 
Discovery Classes (LVCCLD’s) with great success and good attendance.  

• Library Operations is working with Community Engagement to transition 
Senior Center Partnerships from WOW to Adult Services Staff. 

ITEM VI.A.2.a. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

259



Library Operations Activity Report, April 2021  
March 25, 2021 – Page 2 
 
 

2 

 

 
POWERFUL PARTNERSHIPS 

• Completed Automation Agreement extensions with North Las Vegas Library 
District. Boulder City completed in June.  

• Met with Discovery Children’s Museum to implement on-site library access to 
support early childhood education programming for young children, families, 
teachers, and caregivers.  

• Staff met with Christian Echevarria, a sportscaster for Lotos Radio and the 
official “Voice of the Raiders” in Spanish. We are developing a play to 
livestream his commentary on the Raiders games live from EV. He is also now 
working with the Foundation to promote District programming to the Hispanic 
community and aims to improve the rider experience using an instant digital 
card to access books and magazines on Overdrive. The initiative will be 
advertised on busses, bus stops, and at transit centers. 

• Met with Misdemeanant Jail Lieutenant Dent to propose plays to expand 
services and programs at the Jail Library. 

 
 
POWERFUL PLATFORMS 

• Staff participated in District-wide training for a new digital content platform 
called Biblioboard. Biblioboard offers anyone (staff or customers) the 
opportunity to create their own collection of items in a single virtual space for 
others to discover: books, music, videos, blogs, podcasts, visual arts, oral 
history, etc. The platform also provides access to special initiatives like the 
Indie Author Project. 

• Staff have started developing Branch Power Plays that align with and support 
Playbook 2026. These Power Plays were presented at the Board of Trustees 
meeting on June 25. 

• Windmill Library is developing plays to add more non-book items for 
circulation.  

• Mesquite and Enterprise Libraries staff developed power plays to expand their 
services and add an Adult Maker Space.  Their vision includes being a third 
place that uses technology in a way that is fun and creative while offering a 
venue to build skills and develop people.  

• Staff met with outside libraries and internally with IT to purchase and deploy 
JAWS certified computers across the District.  
 

 
HIGHLIGHTED EVENT(S)  
Enterprise Library Youth Services recently 
acquired an After Mouse Play Table through 
the generous funding of The Foundation. 
The Play Table provides Enterprise Library 
the ability to link digital resources with 
physical resources for young users through 
gamification of the space.   

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

260



Library Operations Activity Report, April 2021  
March 25, 2021 – Page 3 
 
 

3 

 

The Play Table is situated in the preschool/toddler 
area of the Youth Services department and directed 
toward STEAM learning and interactive play. The 
Play Table features a variety of games that include 
fun learning with simple word and math play, eye 
and coordination skills with pop the balloons, or 
animal matching to just recreational play like air 
hockey. The interactive table adds more depth of 
creativity to a space that promotes both learning 

and literacy through imaginative play.  

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

261



 

MEMORANDUM  
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Mr. Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM:  Leo Segura, Library Operations Director 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: Security Report, August 2021  
 
This report provides information regarding security and/or safety-related incidents that 
occurred in District branches from June 1, 2021 – June 30, 2021 and FY analysis. 
 
In June 2021, there were 59 incidents, which is an decrease of -59% from the total in 
June 2020 and a decrease of -4.8% from June 2019. During this period, the District 
recorded 297,190 in-person visits. This ratio is one incident for every 5,037 visits.  
 
The Clark County Library experienced the highest number of incidents, in which 
the branch recorded 19 incidents matching the previous month but an increase of 4 
from 2019. The remaining branches reported between 0-6 incidents.    
 
District branches encountered the following types of incidents this month: 
 

• Patron Disturbance 
• Other 
• Patron Illness (health or medical emergency) 
• Patron Injury 
• Theft of Patron Property 
• Library Property Damage 
• Emergency Lockdown 
• Safety 
• Theft of Customer Property 

 
Of the above incident types, staff handled 35 patron disturbances, which accounts for 
the majority of incident types at 59%. This is a decrease of 8% in patron disturbances 
from the previous month. This ratio is one disturbance for every 8,491 visits.  
 
Eight (8) one-year trespasses and three (3) shorter term bans were issued in June and 
staff made two (2) calls to law enforcement.   
 
Trendlines for the past fiscal year show that the year shifted downward but follows a 
similar trendline over the last three years.   
 
Clark County Library continues to handle the most incidents which is influenced by the 
size of the library branch and number of customers served.  Although we saw a decrease 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

262



Security Report, February 2021 
January 28, 2021 – Page 2 
 
in customer gate at Clark County we did experience an increase in incedents mostly 
dealing with Problem Customers creating a disturbance. Similarly Customer 
Disturbances comprise the largest number of District-wide incidents at 62%. 
 
District-wide 19% of incidents started as a Masking issue eventhough the mask 
mandate was not in effect the entire year.  Customer Masking issues were the start of 
27% of Customer Disturbances.  
 
On average, Staff handled between 0 to 5 incedents per month with the top 10 handling 
a total of 274 incidents over the year. Half of these staff are supervisors and managers 
at Clark County Library.  Other branches with large numbers of incidents per Person-in-
Charge (PIC) include West Charleston, Whitney, East Las Vegas, Enterprise, and Spring 
Valley Libraries.  
 

… 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

263



Library Incident Reports August 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

264



Library Incident Reports August 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

265



Library Incident Reports August 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

266



Library Incident Reports August 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

267



Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

268



Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

269



Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

270



Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

271



 

MEMORANDUM  
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Mr. Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM:  Leo Segura, Acting Library Operations Director 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: Security Report, September 2021  
 
This report provides information regarding security and/or safety-related incidents that 
occurred in District branches from July 1, 2021 – July 31, 2021. 
 
In July 2021, there were 65 incidents, which is an increase of 28% from the total in 
July 2020. During this period, the District recorded 301,511 in-person visits. This ratio 
is one incident for every 4,639 visits.  
 
The Clark County Library experienced the highest number of incidents, in which 
the branch recorded 16 incidents which is an 11% decrease over the same month the 
previous year. The remaining branches reported between 0-13 incidents.    
 
District branches encountered the following types of incidents this month: 
 

• Customer Disturbance 
• Customer Illness (health or medical emergency) 
• Other 
• Library Property Damage 
• Theft of Customer Property 
• IT [THEFT OR DESTRUCTION OF EQUIPMENT ] 
• Customer Injury 

 
Of the above incident types, staff handled 35 patron disturbances, which accounts for 
the majority of incident types at 54%. This is a equil to customer disturbances from the 
previous month. This ratio is one disturbance for every 8,615 visits.  
 
Thirteen (13) one-year trespasses and three (3) shorter term bans were issued in July 
and staff made eight (8) calls to law enforcement.   

… 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

272



Library Incident Reports September 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

273



Library Incident Reports September 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

274



Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

275



Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

276



ITEM VI.A.3.a. 
 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:            Board of Trustees Through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
 
FROM:       Betsy Ward, Branding and Marketing Director 
 
DATE:       August 12, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Branding and Marketing Activity Report, August 2021 
 
 
This memorandum reports on the Branding and Marketing Department’s (BAM) activities and 
project updates for the month of July 2021 and analytics for the period from June 1-30, 2021. 
 
 
BIBLIOBOARD PUBLIC LAUNCH ON JULY 5: DAN RATHER eBOOK & INTERVIEW WITH 
KELVIN WATSON   

• BAM worked with IT to launch the new online resource BiblioBoard to the public on Monday, 
July 5. BAM created a dedicated landing page, which features the new graphic novel from 
legendary journalist and author Dan Rather, “What Unites Us: Reflections on Patriotism.” 
Through August 27, BiblioBoard, Macmillan, and the Library District are offering unlimited 
checkouts of this featured title, which can be instantly accessed by anyone within the state 
of Nevada via geolocation on BiblioBoard.  

• The landing page also features an exclusive interview that Executive Director Kelvin 
Watson conducted with Mr. Rather covering highlights of his esteemed career and the 
inspiration behind the book. This hour-long interview is also spotlighted on the Library 
District’s YouTube Channel, where is it has compiled 365 views through July 15. The landing 
page can be viewed HERE, and the video interview can be viewed HERE.  

• BAM is promoting the availability of BiblioBoard on LVCCLD.org, in Library Highlights 
eNewsletters, and on social media, where we have received support from Mr. Rather, 
sharing with his 2.9 million followers, along with BiblioBoard on their respective social media 
channels.  

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

277



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 2 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 

 
CONTINUED PROMOTION OF NEW LAS VEGAS LIGHTS FC LIBRARY CARD TARGETING 
LATINX COMMUNITY    

• BAM promoted the availability of the new Las Vegas Lights FC library card with a hero 
banner on the website homepage, and Spanish language browse pages. The Las Vegas 
Lights FC dedicated landing page launched on June 16, and through July 15, it has compiled 
917 Total Unique Page Views, with an average Dwell Time over 2 minutes. The 
landing page can be viewed HERE.  

• The Las Vegas Lights FC shared their first round of social media posts to promote the 
Library Card on Thursday, July 15. BAM reshared those posts and continue to tag the Las 
Vegas Lights FC in all of our dedicated social media posts.  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

278



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 3 
 

 
 

• BAM is working with the Las Vegas Lights FC to develop additional promotional 
opportunities for after their current season is complete.  
 

 
 
NEW LIBRARY DISTRICT VEHICLE WRAP 

• BAM worked with General Services Director John Vino to create a vehicle wrap on 
Outreach Services’ new van featuring the Library District’s popular #GetCarded messaging 
and brand colors. 

• This design will serve as a template and BAM will continue to work with General Services to 
update additional vehicles during FY 2021-2022. 
 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

279



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 4 
 

 
 

CONTINUED SUMMER CHALLENGE 2021 PROMOTION 
• BAM worked with Youth Services Manager Shana Harrington to compile bi-weekly 

Summer Challenge leaderboard updates for posting on social media. This fun promotional 
material was shared with CCSD and CCSD Faces, which they posted on their respective 
social media channels.   
 

 
 
DISCOVERY CHILDREN’S MUSEUM EXPANDED PARTNERSHIP 

• BAM, Executive Director Kelvin Watson, Library Operations Director Leo Segura, 
Community Engagement Director Matt McNally, and Outreach Services Manager Glenda 
Billingsley met with DISCOVERY Children’s Museum CEO Melissa Kaiser, Director of 
Education Laura Christian, and Director of Marketing & Communications Jodi Gutstein on 
July 1 to discuss new opportunities to expand the partnership between our organizations. 

• BAM proposed a new campaign idea to build library card awareness and sign-ups, launching 
during Library Card Sign-Up Month in September and continuing throughout the year. The 
goal will be to sign-up all employees of our partner organizations.  

• The tagline for the new promotion will be “Take the Library District’s #GetCarded 
Challenge!”  

• DISCOVERY Children’s Museum will be the first Library District partner to take the 
#GetCarded Challenge and BAM is providing them with co-branded promotional materials to 
display in their staff breakrooms and meeting rooms.  

• BAM also provided them with 2,000 of our new Power of a Library Card brochure, which was 
shared during the recent board retreat. These are on display at the museum for the public 
to take home. 

• BAM will take a tour of DISCOVERY Children’s Museum with Jodi Gutstein to further discuss 
co-branded promotional opportunities for Library Card Sign-Up Month in September.   

 
 
 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

280



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 5 
 

 
 

CLARK COUNTY JOB FAIR PROMOTION    
• BAM worked with Nevada Workforce Connections Coordinator Robbie DeBuff and Kathy 

Topp of Red 7 Communications to help promote the Clark County Job Fair on July 9. This 
was promoted as the first in-person job fair since the COVID-19 pandemic began, and the 
response was tremendous. 

• Through the combined promotional efforts of Clark County Commissioners Jim Gibson, 
Tick Segerblom, and Marilyn Kirkpatrick, the City of Las Vegas, along with Nevada 
Workforce Connections and the Library District, over 5,000 registrations were received 
ahead of the event, with another 1,900 on the day of the event, making for a grand total of 
nearly 7,000 attendees with hundreds of jobs offered during the Job Fair.  

• Following up on this huge show of interest in getting back to work, BAM is working with 
Robbie DeBuff and Kathy Topp to support another job-related workshop, The Great 
Resume Review, at the end of August. 

 
 
COMMISSIONER JUSTIN JONES STORYTIME APPEARANCE 

• BAM worked with Commissioner Justin Jones and the Sahara West Library staff to 
coordinate the storytime visit on Tuesday, June 29.  

• Photos and videos from BAM’s social media posts of the event have performed well, with 
Commissioner Jones sharing those and also posting his own native content as well: 

• Instagram video viewed 265 times with 559 impressions and 29 likes 
• Facebook posting reached 1,026 people with 56 total engagements, and 11 likes 
• Our Twitter posts compiled 5,034 impressions with 64 total engagements 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

281



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 MONTHLY HIGHLIGHTS eNEWSLETTER TO LIBRARY CARDHOLDERS 

• BAM continues to produce twice monthly Library Highlights eNewsletters to promote priority 
District-wide programs, upcoming PVS & YS events & classes, local partnerships, and online 
resources. 

• Topics in June included: 
• SUBJECT TITLE: Dan Rather eBook Available Statewide + Great Summer 

Reads & Activities + Teachers Book Sale 
• This edition of Highlights included the launch of the BiblioBoard service and 

statewide access to Dan Rather’s eBook, “What Unites Us – The Graphic 
Novel”; Head Collections & Bibliographic Services Rebecca Colbert’s newest 
“Literally” blog featuring “Our Favorite Reads for Summer”; the Clark County 
Job Fair on July 9; a Summer Challenge update + upcoming programming; 
Vegas PBS STEAM Camp; The Library District’s permanent art collection tour 
at Centennial Hills Library + current exhibits; Must-See events & 
Entertainment as provided by PVS; and the Library District Foundation Annual 
Teachers Book Sale, which runs through August 31.  

• This eNewsletter can be viewed HERE. 
• Sent out to 316,746 Library District cardholders on Monday, July 5, 2021 
• 64.024 unique opens with a 20.24% open rate 
• 4.234 unique clicks generated 
• 279 unsubscribes  
• Total subscribers declined from 317,191 to 316,746 (-.14%) 

 
• SUBJECT TITLE: Free eBooks From Local Authors + Sahara West Library 

Voted Best Art Gallery + Must-See Summer Events 
• This edition of Highlights shared the latest blog from Executive Director Kelvin 

Watson, which spotlights the availability of the new online resource 
BiblioBoard and state-wide availability of Dan Rather’s new graphic novel 
eBook; a Local Authors Fair on August 7; final call to complete Summer 
Challenge ahead of July 31; the availability of the new Las Vegas Lights FC 
library card; upcoming business certification series at the Employ NV Business 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

282



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 7 
 

 
 

Hub; Teen Gay-Straight Alliance at Mesquite Library on August 5; Sahara 
West Library voted Best Art Gallery at 2021 Best of Vegas Awards from Las 
Vegas Weekly; must-see events & entertainment as provided by PVS; and the 
continued promotion of the Library District Foundation Teachers Book Sale 
which runs through August 31.  

• This eNewsletter can be viewed HERE. 
• Sent out to 317,115 Library District cardholders on Tuesday, July 20, 2021 
• 62,179 unique opens with a 20.24% open rate 
• 3.796 unique clicks generated 
• 219 unsubscribes 
• Total subscribers increased from 316,746 to 317,115 (+.12%) 

 
 GOOGLE ADWORDS GRANT UPDATE 

• Google AdWords is Google’s online advertising platform in which advertisers bid 
on popular keywords & search phrases, in order for their clickable text-based ads to 
appear in Google’s search results. The Foundation and the Library District received 
a shared grant from Google for $10,000 per month in Google ad credits.  

• Nonprofit Megaphone is the agency of record that works with Google to manage the 
Library District’s monthly grant and helps us to optimize designated “keywords” that 
are selected from Library District and Foundation priorities promoted on LVCCLD.org. 

• These Google Grant campaigns help to increase our overall Google SEO and drives 
more qualified traffic to our website. When people conduct relevant searches on 
Google that incorporate our designated “keywords,” the Google AdWords campaign 
entices them to click on Library District search results, thereby increasing the 
opportunity for discovery of our programs and services. 

• The Google Studio Data Report updates in real-time on our current Google Grant Google 
AdWords campaigns, and can be viewed HERE.  

• Conversation tracking for priority Google AdWords campaigns (June 1-30): 
• We hit another record for our total Google Grant clicks to our website for the month, 

which was 3,923 new and unique victors discovering LVCCLD.org. This is up by 
almost 200 clicks over our previous record set last month.  

• 69 people successfully signed up for an Instant eCard from clicking on one of our 
ads.  

• 40 people engaged with our different Summer Challenge audience pages: 
 21 - Hey Kids 
 13 – Hey Parents (Birth-5) 
 6 – Hey Teens 

• 35 people were taken to our VGK landing page via an ad. 
• 22 clicks to the Las Vegas Lights FC landing page 
• 15 calls to our branches directly from clicking on an ad. 
• 12 clicks to the LVCCLD Foundation Teachers Book Sale blog post  

 
 SOCIAL MEDIA HIGHLIGHTS 

• BAM received social media support from Dan Rather, BiblioBoard, Boulder City Library, and 
the local public about the launch of the Library District’s newest online resource, along with 
the exclusive statewide availability of Mr. Rather’s new eBook “What Unites Us – The 
Graphic Novel.” 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

283



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 8 
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
 

 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

284



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 9 
 

 
 

• BAM shared the Library District Foundation’s Annual Teachers Book Sale, which runs 
through August 31 and received positive user response.   

 

     
 
 
• BAM continues to receive user-generated social media posts sharing kids’ & teens’ progress 

taking the Summer Challenge, plus support from adults too! 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

285



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 10 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

286



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 11 
 

 
 

 LIBRARY DISTRICT’S TOP POSTS (JUNE 2021) 
• Facebook: 

o Library memes continue to perform well across all platforms, especially on Facebook 
and Instagram.  

o BAM will continue to incorporate memes in our monthly social media calendar to 
share a sense of library humor and personality with our followers, in addition to our 
promotional posts.       

 

 
 

• Twitter: 
o BAM’s tweet to promote the upcoming event with authors and podcasters, Tom + 

Lorenzo was retweeted by the duo, which helped generate 76,854 impressions, 
1,054 engagements, and 35 reactions.  

o This demonstrates the power of the Library District working with influential 
performers, who are active on their own social media channels and can tag the 
Library District to help promote their upcoming events. This is how reach becomes 
exponential. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

287



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 12 
 

 
 

 

 
 

• Instagram: 
o The Library District’s most popular post for June was a Pride Month display at Spring 

Valley Library, which generated 83 total engagements; 77 likes, 5 positive user 
comments, and 1 save.  

o We continue to see strong user engagement on this platform when branch submitted 
photos are shared.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

288



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 13 
 

 
 

 
ANALYTICS FOR WEB & SOCIAL MEDIA –   
JUNE 2021 + 30 DAY COMPARISON + YEAR-OVER-YEAR 
 
LVCCLD Facebook 

  Fans Impressions Post Engagements Link Clicks 
June 2021 Statistics 12,897 261,384 6,143 1,081 
% Gain from Last Month +.1% -58% -58% -78% 
% Gain from June 2020 +4.5% +162% +34% +293% 
% Gain from June 2019 +10.5% +136% +25.5% +45% 

 
Notes: Our key analytics were down when compared to May’s stellar increase due to the launch of 
our Summer Challenge Ad campaign. We are still on an upswing for June compared to February-
April’s pre-Summer Challenge analytics. We are also up year-over-year in new fans, impressions, 
and link clicks.  
 
LVCCLD Twitter  

  Followers User Engagements Organic Impressions Link Clicks 
June 2021 Statistics 3,687 3,578 275,999 201 
% Gain from Last Month +1.1% +56% +54% -48% 
% Gain from June 2020 +9.5% +38% +70% +23% 
% Gain from June 2019 +33% +36% +47.5% -42% 

 
Notes: Impressions and engagements continue to grow in large part due to Summer Challenge 
with the help of our partners Likes and Retweets. Our most popular post this month was a video 
that our PVS performers Tom + Lorenzo shared with us to post about their event at the end of the 
month.  
 
LVCCLD Instagram 

  Followers User Engagement Impressions Total Likes  Total Comments 
June 2021 Statistics 4,389 1,904 78,365 1,633 144 
% Gain from Last Month +3% -2% +3% -4% +9% 
% Gain from June 2020 +31% +9% +45% +1% +106% 
% Gain from June 2019 +111% -48% +28% -51% -21% 

 
Notes:  We continue to see an increase in impressions on this social media platform due to our 
Summer Challenge digital advertising campaign on Facebook & Instagram, along with the help of 
our Summer Challenge partners to promote the program and properly tag us in their native social 
media posts.   
 
 
 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

289



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 14 
 

 
 

 
YouTube 

  
Channel 

Subscribers 
Total 

Impressions 
Total Channel 

Watch Time 
Average View 

Duration 

June 2021 Statistics 1,030 12,200 19.9 hrs 1min 22 sec 

% Gain from Last Month +2% -9% +10% -8% 

% Gain from June 2020 +79% -91% -91% -23% 

% Gain from June 2019 +1098% +578% +1144% +21% 
 
Notes: We continue to see an increase in total subscribers, as well as steady views and watch 
time. But our year-over-year analytics are considerably down because we have not been able to 
post any new virtual programming content since last July 2020. We are confident our monthly 
analytics will be significantly higher once virtual programming resumes and we can start sharing 
new content again consistently as YouTube’s algorithm prioritizes new content.  
 
Website Analytics 

  
Page  

Views 
Homepage 

Views 
Total 

 Visitors 
Unique 
Visitors 

Average  
Dwell Time 

June 2021 Statistics 1,653,738 297,368 162,138 140,496 53 Seconds 
% Gain from Last Month +4% +1% +2% +1% -2 Seconds Across Site 
% Gain from June 2020 -10% +43% +14% +14% -3 Seconds Across Site 
% Gain from June 2019 +15% N/A  +36% +42.5% +6 Seconds Across Site 

 
Notes: We are continuing to drive more people to the website and our year-over-year analytics 
reflect more unique visitors and homepage views.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

290



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
July 25, 2021  
Page 15 
 

 
 

TWO ADDENDUMS PER BOARD REQUEST: 
 
 
1-LIBRARY HIGHLIGHTS ANNUAL EDITORIAL CALENDAR (ATTACHED) 

• Attached is BAM’s annual Highlights calendar, which we use as a blueprint for our 
bi-weekly digital issues.  

• This is an overview document and does not include pop-up items that BAM inserts 
as they become available.  

• Regular sections include “Entertainment for All Ages,” a listing of priority events as 
designated by PVS & YS; online resources and major promotions (Summer 
Challenge, Library Card Sigh-Up, etc.); the “Literally” column by Rebecca Colbert 
(promoting themed catalog titles & hidden gems); Foundation initiatives (Donate, 
Smith’s Card, Teachers Book Sale, etc.) and priority partnership events (Workforce 
Connections, RTC, Three Square, etc.).  

• Ideas and feedback are always welcome and encouraged! 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

291



JANUARY Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Winter Reading Challenge •  Promote the annual Winter 
Reading Challenge, spotlight 
new blog post with entry details, 
age-specific staff lists, etc. 

First week of January Due to BAM by first week of 
December.

eBlast 2 Business & Career Success • Promote One Stop Career 
Center & Employ NV Business 
hub programming/landing pages
• Promote NV Career Explorer 
landing page

Third week of January Due to BAM by third week of 
December.

New Year, New You • Celebrating the new year with 
a themed round-up of the Library 
District’s free services, online 
resources, and titles from our 
collection along with any priority 
in-branch entertainment

FEBRUARY Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 African American History Month • Spotlight audience browse 
page on the website that has the 
Library District’s free services 
and special collections, online 
resources plus local & national 
resources, along with any 
priority in-branch programming

First week of February Due to BAM by first week of 
January.

Library Lovers/
I Love My Library Month

•  Spotlight priority services and 
online resources, different 
benefits to having a library card
Promote library card sign-up 
page on website

Third week of February Due to BAM by first week of 
January.

MARCH Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 National Craft Month • Promote online resources like 
Creativebug, as well as 
upcoming STEAM programming

First week of March Due to BAM by first week of 
February.

Women's History Month Promote catalog, themed staff 
lists, online resources, any 
pertinent programming

National Red Cross Month • Promote our partnership and 
the blood drives at our branches.

Read an eBook Week • First full week of March.
• Spotlight Hoopla Digital and 
Overdrive for Libraries online 
resources, along with staff lists 
on website that promote our 
digital collection 

eBlast 2 Enjoy Art at the Library • Promote the Library District’s 
free art galleries and upcoming 
exhibits.
• Promote Best of Las Vegas win 

Third week of March Due to BAM by third week of 
February.

Adult Learning Program 
• Semester enrollment (consult 
with Jill Hersha on exact dates)

Highlights Annual Editorial Calendar 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

292



APRIL Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 National Library Week 
(April 4-10, 2021)

• Promote getting a library card, 
spotlight different benefits of 
having a library card, online 
resources, and priority in-branch 
programming.

First week of April Due to BAM by first week of 
March.

National Poetry Month • Spotlight staff lists from our 
collection and any in-branch 
programming.

Annual Nevada Reads • Statewide book club

STEAM Carnival
• Confirm date with Shana 
Harrington

eBlast 2 Full STEAM Ahead • Promote upcoming priority in-
branch programming, tutoring, 
as well as online learning tools. 
Promote Teen Tech Centers 

Third week of April MSR to BAM by third week in 
April.

Earth Day – April 22 • Promote all of the energy 
saving and environmentally 
conscious elements of the 
district.

MAY Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Asian American Pacific Islander 
Heritage Month

• Spotlight Asian American 
Pacific Islander Heritage 
audience browse page on the 
website that has the Library 
District’s free services and 
special collections, online 
resources plus local & national 
resources, along with any 
priority in-branch programming

First week of May Due to BAM by first week of 
April.

Military Appreciation Month • Spotlight Military audience 
browse page on the website that 
has the Library District’s free 
services and special collections, 
online resources plus local & 
national resources, along with 
any priority in-branch 
programming

eBlast 2 Summer Challenge Launch • Encourage participation & logs 
for prizes
• Spotlight priority programming 
+ age-specific reading lists

Third week of May Due to BAM by third week of 
April.

JUNE Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Celebrating National LGBTQ+ 
PRIDE Month 

• Promote upcoming events, plus 
the free services and resources 
on the LGBTQ+ audience page 
on the website.

First week of June Due to BAM by first week of 
May.

eBlast 2 Summer Fun at the Library • Promote Summer Challenge, in-
branch programming, art 
galleries.

Third week of June Due to BAM by third week of 
May.

National DJ Month • Spotlight the Library District’s 
free DJ Labs.

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

293



African-American Music 
Appreciation Month

• Spotlight staff lists on the 
website, online resources

Audiobook Appreciation Month • Spotlight our collection on CD 
and downloadables for 
audiobook fans

Adult Learning Program •  Learn & Earn with Free 
English Language Classes (Cycle 
1 English sign-ups)

Three Square Summer Meals For 
Kids

• Meet Up & Eat Up

JULY Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Stay Cool at the Library District • Promote Art Galleries, Summer 
Challenge programming, live 
entertainment

First week of July Due to BAM by first week of 
June.

eBlast 2 Final Summer Challenge Call-To-
Action 

• Encourage participation & logs 
for prizes, share final 
programming and new reading 
lists.

Third week of July Due to BAM by third week of 
June.

AUGUST Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Back-to-School Support/
Tools For School Success

• Promote Limitless Learning 
page + online learning tools
2021-2022 in-branch tutoring 
schedule from LVCCLD 
Foundation.

First week of August Due to BAM by first week of 
July.

eBlast 2 Annual LVCCLD Foundation 
Teacher’s Book Sale 

• Typically held within the first 
two weeks of August, but last 
year they offered it for the 
entire month of August.

Third week of August Due to BAM by third week of 
July.

SEPTEMBER Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Library Card Sign-Up Month • This is an ALA initiative and 
has a different theme each year 
that helps encourage people to 
get a free library card.

First week of September Due to BAM by first week of 
August.

Teen AnimeFest • Annual event at Sahara West 
Library

eBlast 2 Hispanic Heritage Month • Sept 15 - Oct 15 
Spotlight Latinx & Espanol 
audience browse pages on the 
website that has the Library 
District’s free services and 
special collections, online 
resources plus local & national 
resources, along with any 
priority in-branch programming.

Third week of September Due to BAM by third week of 
August.

Family Pride Day • Typically late September
• Annual celebration of 
LGBTQIA+ kids, teens, and their 
families at Clark County Library.

OCTOBER Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Teen October • ALA/YALSA initiative to 
promote upcoming YS in-branch 
programming, Teen-specific 
online learning tools

First week of October Due to BAM by first week of 
September.

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

294



National Book Month • Spotlight our collection in print 
and digital as well as programs 
like book clubs and author visits.

eBlast 2 Vegas Valley Comic Book 
Festival 

• Library District Halloween 
programming and online 
resources like Creativebug   

Third week of October Due to BAM by third week of 
September.

Previewing for November: 
NaNoWriMo & Indie Author 
Project: Biblioboard

• National Novel Writing Month

NOVEMBER Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 Native American Heritage Month • Spotlight Native American 
audience browse page on the 
website that has the Library 
District’s free services and 
special collections, online 
resources plus location & 
national resources, along with 
any priority in-branch 
programming

First week of November Due to BAM by first week of 
October.

NaNoWriMo & Indie Author 
Project: Biblioboard

• National Novel Writing Month

eBlast 2 Adult Learning Program • Spotlight the webpage and 
encourage people to register for 
upcoming classes. 

Last week of November Due to BAM by third week of 
October.

DECEMBER Topic Creative Brief Target Release Date Deadline

eBlast 1 The Library District Is Your Home 
For The Holidays 

• Spotlight our holiday blog that 
features a roundup of free 
services, online resources and 
any priority in-branch 
programming.

First week of December Due to BAM by first week of 
November.

Annual LVCCLD Holiday Book Sale • Promote Annual LVCCLD 
Foundation Holiday Book Sale 
which typically runs Dec 12-14 at 
Sahara West Library 

eBlast 2 End-of-year recap • Message for the Executive 
Director that includes wrap up of 
key initiatives for the year, along 
with previewing what's coming 
to the Library District in the next 
year. 

Last week of December Due to BAM by third week of 
November.

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

295



2-SPANISH LANGUAGE OUTREACH 
 

• Attached is an overview of the Spanish language outreach that BAM has conducted over 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

o In addition to these ongoing promotional efforts, BAM launched a major campaign 
promoting the new Las Vegas Lights FC library card to the Spanish language 
and Bi-Lingual markets.  

o Outreach included advertising, public relations, social media (with support from Las 
Vegas Lights FC’s channels and an eBlast to their 30,000 fans), plus an extensive 
direct mail campaign to 116,600 residences and businesses.   

 
Advertising 

 
 

  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

296



 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

297



 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

298



 
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

299



Direct Mail 

  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

300



Website  

• Drop-down option for Google translation in Spanish across all pages LVCCLD.org. 

• Quick links to Spanish resources at the bottom of all pages of LVCCLD.org. 

• Dedicated Español audience page (with Library District services & resources, priority events, curated 
staff picks, a listing of local & national resources, online resources). https://lvccld.org/espanol/ 

• Dedicated Latinx audience page (with Library District services & resources, priority events, curated 
staff picks, a listing of local & national resources, online resources). https://lvccld.org/latinx/ 

• Dedicated Español portal on Summer Challenge landing page. https://lvccld.org/summer-challenge-
espanol 

• Spanish translations of all major Library District priority projects, partnerships, designated events). 

• Interactive resource guides (Limitless Learning, Business & Career Success). https://lvccld.org/wp-
content/uploads/sites/54/2021/04/LimitlessLearning_Handout_v2.pdf 

• https://d4804za1f1gw.cloudfront.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/54/2021/01/20123130/BCS-ALP_EN-
SP_PDFs.pdf 

• Listings of Spanish Media Coverage. 
https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage/?_ga=2.101101697.1090860617.1624905858-
2100720641.1603306753 

• Listing of Spanish Press Releases. https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/press_releases.cfm?y=2021&l=sp 

• COVID-19 Community resource blog en Español. 
  

  
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

301



Media Coverage  
 
6/30/20: El Tiempo: Se Restablecen Los Servicos Adicionales de Las Bibliotecas 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=141 
  
10/21/20: Telemundo Las Vegas: Ayuda Para Comercios Pequenos En El Valle 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=167 
  
10/21/20: Telemundo Las Vegas: Nueva Ayuda Para Empledores 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=166 
  
11/3/20: The Nevada Independent: Filas de Votacion, Cubrebocas y Letreros de Campana Abundan el Dia de 
la Eleccion 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=169 
  
12/14/20: Telemundo Las Vegas: El Distrito de Bibliotecas Del Condado de Las Vegas-Clark Anuncia Cierre 
Temporal de Sucursales y Servicios en la Acera a Partit Del 16 de Diciembre 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=176 
  
12/30/20: Univision: El Distrito de Bibliotecas de Las Vegas-Clark County Reestablece Ubicaciones Para 
Vegas Strong Academy Para El Segundo Semestre 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=183 
  
1/4/21: Telemundo Las Vegas: Abren Librerias Con Limitaciones 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=191 
  
1/7/21: Telemundo Las Vegas: El Distrito de Bibliotecas de Las Vegas-Clark County Reestablece Ubicaciones 
Para Vegas Strong Academy Para el Segundo Semestre 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=196 
  
1/8/21: El Tiempo: Restablecen Ubiacaciones Para Vegas Strong Academy 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=205 
  
1/8/21: The Nevada Independent: Reabren Bibliotecas del Condado Clark con Limite de Capacidad; Fecha 
Limite Para Inscribirse a Mercado de Seguros de Salud 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=192 
  
2/10/21: El Tiempo: Recibe Kelvin Watson Importante Nombramiento 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=211 
  
5/19/21: Reto de Verano 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=228 
  
6/3/21: Asistencia Gratuita Para Personas en Riesgo de Desalojo 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=235 
  
6/4/21: Univision: Alejandra Ochoa Investigo Que Ayuda Hay Disponible 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=236 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

302



  
6/23/21: El Tiempo: Nueva Credencial de Biblioteca “Las Vegas Lights FC” 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=243 
  
6/25/21: Bibliotecas del Condado…Aprendizaje de Verano con Mucha Diversion y Premios! 
Link: https://legacy.lvccld.org/media/coverage.cfm?cov=245 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

303



ITEM VI.A.3.a. 
 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:            Board of Trustees Through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
 
FROM:       Betsy Ward, Branding and Marketing Director 
 
DATE:       September 9, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Branding and Marketing Activity Report, September 2021 
 
 
This memorandum reports on the Branding and Marketing Department’s (BAM) activities and 
project updates for the month of August 2021 and analytics compiled from the period of  
July 1-31, 2021. 
 
Powerful Platforms & Partnerships 
 
LIBRARY CARD SIGN-UP MONTH – SEPTEMBER 1-30, 2021 

• To celebrate Library Card Sign-Up Month in September, BAM has created a new promotion 
called “Take the #GetCarded Challenge!” The goal is to encourage the public and our library 
partners, to sign up for a library card.  

• Public Campaign: 
 Materials will be developed to spotlight the challenge and encourage people to 

sign up and then enter their library card number for a chance to win a 
coveted #GetCarded T-shirt.  

 Branches will be receiving: 
• Exterior Building Banners 
• X-Banners & Small Desktop Library Card Displays (featuring evergreen 

library card info, which will stay up year round.) 
• Large Desktop Display Boards (18”x24”) and Posters (11”x17”), which 

feature the T-shirt giveaway. The Display Board and Posters will be 
discarded after September 30. 

 BAM will create a dedicated landing page, LVCCLD.org/GetCardedGiveaway, 
which will include: a link to sign-up for a free library card, a listing of all the 
benefits of having a library card, as well as a link to enter their library card 
number for a chance to win a coveted Library District #GetCarded T-shirt. 

 All library cardholders with a valid barcode number are eligible to win. 
 For the promotion, BAM updated our official giveaway rules & regulations, 

and received review and approval from Counsel Gerry Welt and Greenberg 
Traurig on Monday, August 16.  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

304



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
PARTNERSHIP WITH RTC TO PROMOTE LIBRARY DISTRICT APP TO BUS RIDERS   

• The Library District now offers a special landing page to encourage transit riders to 
download the Libby app while they ride, providing access to Libby at home or on the go. 
BAM attended a demo of the new landing page with the OverDrive marketing team on 
Tuesday, August 3, 2021. 

• In a series of meetings, BAM met with the RTC marketing team and planned a launch event 
and campaign to coincide with Library Card Sign-Up Month in September. BAM is executing 
the following action items:  

• RTC will provide advertising for the Library District messaging, which will appear on 
50 bus stops surrounding our urban branches, additional signage inside 400 busses, 
along with bus terminal signage, and a fully wrapped bus to promote the initiative.  

• BAM is designing promotional artwork for all uses, along with a custom design for 
our URL LVCCLD.org/Anywhere, which will link directly to the Libby landing page. 

• There will be a soft launch beginning September 7 (activating the URL and posting all 
artwork county-wide).  

• The launch event will take place on September 16 from 9:30 am – 10:00 am at the 
East Las Vegas Library. Media and community leaders will be invited to attend to 
ensure a large introduction to the public.  

• The campaign is planned to extend for 12 months minimum. 
     
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

305



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 3 
 

 
 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

306



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
DISCOVERY CHILDREN’S MUSEUM EXPANDED PARTNERSHIP UPDATE + #GETCARDED 
CHALLENGE 

• In advance of Library Card Sign-Up Month in September, BAM is working with the 
DISCOVERY Children’s Museum marketing department to invite all of their employees to 
take the Library District’s #GetCarded Challenge by signing up for a free library card.  

• The campaign is designed to increase library card awareness and sign-ups, and will launch 
during National Library Card Sign-Up Month (Sept. 1-30).  

• The #GetCarded theme will then continue throughout the year with additional Library 
District programming partners. The end goal will be to sign-up all employees at each of our 
partner organizations.  

• The official tagline for the new promotion will be “Take the Library District’s #GetCarded 
Challenge!”  

• BAM ordered #GetCarded 75 T-shirts for DISCOVERY Children’s Museum staff, which will be 
shipped directly to them. Upon delivery, Graphic Designer Cierra Pedro will be taking a 
photo of their staff in their new #GetCarded T-shirts, which will be shared on both 
organization’s social media channels.  

• BAM supported the Outreach Services department who set up a library card sign-up booth 
on August 14 at the DISCOVERY Children’s Museum using a newly designed, branded table-
drape using our new brand colors. 

 
CONTINUED PROMOTION OF LAS VEGAS LIGHTS FC LIBRARY CARD TARGETING LATINX 
COMMUNITY    

• BAM continues to promote the availability of the Las Vegas Lights FC library card on the 
website homepage and Spanish language browse pages, along with weekly social media 
posts. The Las Vegas Lights FC dedicated landing page launched on June 16, and through 
August 16, it has compiled 1,038 Total Unique Page Views, with an average Dwell Time 
of :45 seconds. The landing page can be viewed HERE.  

• The Las Vegas Lights FC shared their second round of social media posts to promote their 
official team Library Card on Thursday, July 22. BAM reshared those posts and continues to 
tag the Las Vegas Lights FC in all of our monthly dedicated social media posts, linking back 
to the landing page.  

• BAM conducted a marketing call on Friday, July 23 with Las Vegas Lights FC Partnership 
Manager Christian Garcia to develop additional promotional opportunities for after their 
current season is complete.  

• BAM provided revised creative graphics, dedicated Library Card Sign-Up graphics, as well as 
sample social media copy for the Las Vegas Lights FC to continue to promote the availability 
of the library card.  

• Las Vegas Lights FC will be doing PA announcements during their two September home 
games to encourage fans to sign-up for the official team library card in celebration of 
Library Card Sign-Up Month.  
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

307



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 5 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
POWERFUL PEOPLE 
 
 GOOGLE ANALYTICS REVIEW WITH CHAIR WILSON 

• The BAM team had a deep dive meeting with Chair Wilson regarding the Library 
District’s Google Analytics account on Friday, August 13 at the Windmill Library Service 
Center.  

• Chair Wilson shared his expertise in website structure and analytics to ensure that the 
Library District’s Google Analytics account is compiling accurate data, in order to report back 
to the Board of Trustees each month.  

• Per Chair Wilson’s instruction, beginning with this month’s Board Report, BAM will only 
report on external website analytics. This will better reflect BAM’s marketing efforts to 
people who access LVCCLD.org outside of our library branch computers. All end-of-FY 
reporting will also track these external analytics from now on.  

• Please refer to the provided website analytics on the last page of the BAM Board Report to 
view this updated reporting.  
 

POWERFUL PLATFORMS 
 
 MONTHLY HIGHLIGHTS eNEWSLETTER TO LIBRARY CARDHOLDERS 

• BAM continues to produce twice-monthly Library Highlights eNewsletters to promote 
priority District-wide programs, upcoming PVS & YS events & classes, local partnerships, 
and online resources. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

308



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 6 
 

 
 

• Topics in August included: 
• SUBJECT TITLE: Back To School For All Ages + Free Homework Help + Free 

Meals For Kids 
• This edition of Highlights included the Library District’s free services, 

resources & upcoming programming for Back To School support; Three 
Square meal programs, free tutoring & homework help from the LVCCLD 
Foundation, Local Authors Book Fair, #1OctoberMemorial survey from Clark 
County, Must-See events & Entertainment as provided by PVS; and the 
continued promotion of the Library District Foundation Annual Teachers Book 
Sale, which runs through August 31.  

• This eNewsletter can be viewed HERE. 
• Sent out on Tuesday, August 4, 2021 
• 68,031 unique opens with a 21.51% open rate 
• 5,160 unique clicks generated 
• 311 unsubscribes  
• Total subscribers declined from 317,115 to 316,606 (-.14%) 

 
• SUBJECT TITLE: The Great Resume Review + Teens Work Resources + 

Maker Fair 
• This edition of Highlights shared The Great Resume Review Week being 

offered at the One-Stop Career Centers located at Clark County Library, East 
Las Vegas Library & West Las Vegas Library Aug 31- Sept 2 in partnership 
with Nevada Workforce Connections, promoting access to LinkedIn Learning 
online resource, spotlighting the new Teens Work landing page on the website 
which has been adapted from the successful in-branch program at Sunrise 
Library, Three Square Kids Café afterschool meals at the Library District, 
eviction assistance from our partners at Legal Aid of Southern Nevada, Kickoff 
to Kindergarten at East Las Vegas Library, Maker Fair 2021 at West Las Vegas 
Library, along with Must-See events & Entertainment as provided by PVS, and 
the continued promotion of the Library District Foundation Annual Teachers 
Book Sale which runs through August 31.  

• This eNewsletter can be viewed HERE. 
• Sent out on Friday, August 20, 2021. 
• 67,162 unique opens with a 21.27% open rate 
• 4,133 unique clicks generated 
• 219 unsubscribes 
• Total subscribers declined from 316,606 to 316,258 (-.10%) 

 
TEENS WORK LANDING PAGE 

• BAM received an MSR submission to create a dedicated landing page based off the popular 
program at Sunrise Library, piloted by Natalia Tabisaura and Noel Jones, which helps local 
teens find employment.  

• Topics in July included: 
• Resume writing 
• Cover letter creation 
• Interview skills 
• How to dress for an interview 
• Where to look for employment by zip code with links to employment applications 

• BAM created special graphics for the page header and to help promote this new landing 
page on social media and our upcoming eNewsletters. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

309



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 7 
 

 
 

• The new landing page is a one-stop-shop for local teens to find helpful information on 
gaining employment, upcoming STEAM programming to build their employable skills, links 
to the Library District’s free online resources such as JobNow and NV Career Explorer, along 
with curated catalog carousels containing age-appropriate books to help aid teens in their 
job hunt.  

• The Teens Work landing page was published on July 16 and added to the Teens audience 
page and the website homepage spinner. The page can be viewed HERE. 

• Through August 16, the page has compiled 133 unique Pageviews, with user Dwell 
Time of 5 min and 32 sec.  

 

 
 
 GOOGLE ADWORDS GRANT UPDATE 

• Google AdWords is Google’s online advertising platform in which advertisers bid 
on popular keywords & search phrases, in order for their clickable text-based ads to 
appear in Google’s search results. The Foundation and the Library District received 
a shared grant from Google for $10,000 per month in Google ad credits.  

• Nonprofit Megaphone is the Library District’s agency of record that works with 
Google to manage our monthly grant and helps us to optimize designated 
“keywords” that are selected from Library District and Foundation priorities promoted 
on LVCCLD.org. 

• These monthly Google Grant campaigns help to increase our overall Google SEO and 
drives more qualified traffic to our website. When people conduct relevant searches 
on Google that incorporate our designated “keywords,” the Google AdWords 
campaign entices them to click on Library District search results, thereby increasing 
the opportunity for discovery of our programs and services. 

• The Google Studio Data Report updates in real-time for all our current Google Grant Google 
AdWords campaigns, and can be viewed HERE.  

• Conversation tracking for priority Google AdWords campaigns (July 1-31): 
• 60 people clicked on an ad about the LVCCLD Foundation’s Annual Teacher Book Sale 
• 52 successful Instant eCard sign-ups right from an ad 
• 22 people engaged with our Summer Challenge landing page from clicking on an ad 
• 22 calls to branches after clicking on an ad 
• 20 people have found our digital collection on OverDrive from clicking an ad 
• 10 people found our ads when searching for “Homework help” 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

310



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 8 
 

 
 

 
 SOCIAL MEDIA HIGHLIGHTS 

• BAM received social media support from Clark County Commissioner Michael Naft for our 
online Back To School event, which featured user-generated content from the Enterprise 
Library Back To School kickoff. 
 

   
 

• CCSD Faces helped promote the Library District’s Adult Learning program, upcoming 
registration, and available services.   

 

     
 
 

  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

311



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 9 
 

 
 

• BAM continues to receive positive user-generated social media posts in support of Summer 
Challenge, as well as our STEAM programs and services. 

    
 

 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

312



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 10 
 

 
 

 LIBRARY DISTRICT’S TOP POSTS (JULY 2021) 
• Facebook: 

o BAM’s initial Facebook post to promote the annual LVCCLD Foundation Teacher 
Booksale was our top-performing post of the month.  

o This post received 4,778 organic impressions, 20 user comments (all positive) and 
39 shares which helps to increase the total reach.       

 

 
 

• Twitter: 
o BAM’s tweet to promote the launch of Library District’s newest free online resource, 

BiblioBoard was retweeted by legendary news anchor and author, Dan Rather, which 
helped our tweet generate 969 impressions, 14 Retweets, 84 likes, and 89 link 
clicks back to LVCCLD.org/BiblioBoard.  

o This shows the power of the Library District working with influential programming 
partners, who are active on their own social media channels and can tag the Library 
District to help promote their upcoming events and programs.  
 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

313



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 11 
 

 
 

 
• Instagram: 

o The Library District’s most popular post for July was a photo carousel from the Back-
To-School event held at Windmill Library, which included a backpack giveaway with 
the Las Vegas Metro Police Department, as well as a visit from McGruff the Crime 
Dog generated 134 total user engagements.  

o We are continuing to see higher user engagement on this social media platform 
when branch submitted photos are shared.   

 

 
 
 
ANALYTICS FOR WEB & SOCIAL MEDIA –   
JULY 2021 + 30 DAY COMPARISON + YEAR-OVER-YEAR 
 
LVCCLD Facebook 

  Fans Impressions Post Engagements Link Clicks 
July 2021 Statistics 12,941 291,026 5,742 1,386 
% Gain from Last Month +.3% +11% -7% +28% 
% Gain from July 2020 +3.5% +92% -19% +127% 
% Gain from July 2019 +11% +195% +38% +82% 

 
Notes: Our key analytics on this social media platform received a boost from our final Summer 
Challenge digital advertising campaign that ran through July 16. We are also up year-over-year in 
total new fans, impressions, and link clicks which drive traffic back to LVCCLD.org.  
 
 
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

314



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 12 
 

 
 

LVCCLD Twitter  
  Followers User Engagements Organic Impressions Link Clicks 
July 2021 Statistics 3,724 3,628 750,510 332 
% Gain from Last Month +1% +1% +172% +64% 
% Gain from July 2020 +10% +12% +306% -16% 
% Gain from July 2019 +32% +21% +420% -16% 

 
Notes: We received a big boost in our total organic impression thanks to the support of our 
BiblioBoard promotion which received support from Dan Rather on his Twitter account by 
retweeting our launch post. This shows how a “Powerful Partnership” can help increase our monthly 
analytics when we receive social media support from our programming partners.  
 
 
LVCCLD Instagram 

  Followers User Engagement Impressions Total Likes  Total Comments 
July 2021 Statistics 4,465 1,949 163,685 1,730 128 
% Gain from Last Month +2% +2% +109% +6% -11% 
% Gain from July 2020 +28% -.5% +106% -5% +129% 
% Gain from July 2019 +106% -18% +189% -18% -35% 

 
Notes: This social media platform continues to be our fastest-growing month-over-month. We are 
still seeing an increase in impressions due in part to our Summer Challenge digital advertising 
campaign on Facebook & Instagram, along with the help of our Summer Challenge partners to 
promote the program and properly tag us in their native social media posts.   
 
 
YouTube 

  
Channel 

Subscribers 
Total 

Impressions 
Total Channel 

Watch Time 
Average View 

Duration 

June 2021 Statistics 1,042 12,200 19.9 hrs 1min 22 sec 

% Gain from Last Month +1% -9% +10% -8% 

% Gain from June 2020  +363%  -94%  -94%  31% 

% Gain from June 2019 +1041% +771% +1558% +86% 
 
Notes: We are continuing to see an increase in total subscribers, and we are holding steady on 
views and watch time. But outside of new followers, our year-over-year analytics are significantly 
down because we have not been able to post any new virtual programming content since July 
2020. We are confident that our monthly analytics will be much higher once virtual programming 
resumes and we can start sharing new content consistently as YouTube’s algorithm prioritizes fresh 
content.  
 
 
  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

315



 
Branding and Marketing Report 
 
September 9, 2021  
Page 13 
 

 
 

Website Analytics — External Users (Outside of the Library District) 

  
Unique 
Visitors 

Homepage 
Views 

Total User 
Sessions 

Average 
User 

Sessions 
Average  

Dwell Time 
July 2021 Statistics 91,287 172,539 234,657 2.57 3 min 58 sec 
% Gain from Last Month -6% +1% -3% +3% No Change 
% Gain from FY 20-21 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
% Gain from FY 19-20 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
Notes: BAM met with Chair Wilson to review the Library District’s Google Analytics account and 
monthly reporting metrics on Friday, August 13. Per Chair Wilson’s request, BAM will now be 
reporting only external analytics, which are the people accessing LVCCLD.org outside of the branch 
computers, which are all auto-set to the launch the LVCCLD.org homepage whenever the default 
internet browser is accessed by a user.  
 
This new approach allows BAM to apply more diversity to compiling the monthly analytics we track 
which is now capturing very focused data of users of the website outside the Library District. This 
updated strategy serves to better reflect BAM’s marketing efforts to reach people outside of our 25 
branches. Per Chair Wilson, BAM cannot provide previous FY analytics as they reflect a system-
wide security change to Google’s provided analytics which removed external and internal data, as 
well as skewed data during COVID-19 pandemic when the Library District was closed for several 
periods of time and more residents were home. Chair Wilson has asked that we use the current 
reporting period included in this month’s Board Report which reflect the start of FY 21-22 as the 
new website analytics baseline moving forward.  
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

316



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM: Matt McNally, Community Engagement Director 

DATE:  July 29, 2021 

SUBJECT: Community Engagement Report, August 2021 

This report provides an overview of District-wide Community Engagement initiatives 
including adult literacy services, art gallery services, outreach services, adult 
programming and venues services, and youth programming services.  This report 
covers a one-month period of staff activities from June 1, 2021 – June 30, 2021. 
 
POWERFUL PEOPLE 

• City of Las Vegas Ward 5 Councilman Cedric Crear provided the welcome 
address for Juneteenth Celebration at the West Las Vegas Library. 

• Met with CEO Jon Ponder and Angela Brookins from Hope for Prisoners 
regarding a grant proposal. The Library District intends to support the 
organization by providing adult education services to assist re-entry citizens.  

• Met with Opportunity Village Vice President of Business Development Kevin 
Abbott to discuss programmatic and facility partnerships. The Community 
Engagement administration team later conducted a site visit with Chief 
Program Officer Chuck Neuwohner and intends to develop partnership 
opportunities to better serve individuals with special needs. 

• Met with Deputy Regional Representative Taylor Murdock from U.S. Senator 
Rosen’s office to promote library services and discuss support opportunities 
for future program initiatives. 

• Showed support for local artists at art gallery receptions including: Tiffany 
Lin: A Systems Theory at Left of Center, Kristin Hough: SEEDED at Test Site 
Projects, Jennifer Henry: Oh, Yesterday! at ASAP Gallery, and Emotional 
Weather curated by Alisha Kerlin at the Winchester Dondero Cultural Center 
Gallery. 

• Attended Councilman Brian Knudson’s honoring of Asian American Pacific 
Islander Heritage Month at the reception for the exhibit Diaspora at the Las 
Vegas City Hall Chamber Gallery. 
 

POWERFUL PLACES 
• Conducted STEAM events about software and robotic learning experiences at 

the Winchester Cultural Center, CCSD SafeKey sites, and the Clark County, 
East Las Vegas, Enterprise, and Rainbow libraries. 

• A Youth Services diversity programming committee was established to better 
assist staff with program planning and better reach underserved populations. 

ITEM VI.A.3.b. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

317



Community Engagement Report July 29, 2021 – Page 2 
 
 

• Installed artwork in the Employ NV Business Hub. Library staff then trained 
business hub staff on how to rotate future art displays using the facility’s art 
hanging system. 

 
POWERFUL PARTNERSHIPS 

• Collaborated with Las Vegas Urban League and Discovery Children’s Museum 
to implement early childhood education programming. Staff taught executive 
function and early learning skills at pre-schools and for in-home childcare 
provider sites in fulfillment of a federal IMLS grant received by the Library 
District Foundation. 

• Free tax assistance programs in partnership with AARP concluded. Customers 
received assistance to file their returns during the 6-month long partnership. 

• The Library District partnered with PIMA Medical Institute to create training 
and program materials for adult customers with tactile sensory disabilities. 

• Continued discussions with Clark County School District about making 
additional Library District e-resources available to students through Follett 
Destiny. 

• The Library District strategized with Macmillan and made preparations to 
launch What Unites Us by Dan Rather from July 5 through August 27. The 
book, and interview of Mr. Rather by Executive Director Kelvin Watson, are 
both available online through Biblioboard to anyone in the state of Nevada. 

• Staff met with Southern Nevada Regional Transportation Commission to 
advance the Overdrive Commuter Campaign. A marketing initiative will launch 
on September 1 and aims to improve the rider experience. Riders may use an 
instant digital link to access books and magazines on the Libby app. The 
initiative will be advertised on buses, bus stops, and at transit centers. 

• Three Square Food Bank resumed summer meal distribution services on June 
1. All eligible libraries are serviced including: Clark County, East Las Vegas, 
Enterprise, Indian Springs, Rainbow, Sahara West, Searchlight, Spring Valley, 
Sunrise, West Charleston, West Las Vegas, and Whitney. 

• The Las Vegas Chapter of the Knights of Rizal loaned a bust of Filipino leader 
Jose Rizal to the Library District for the month of June. It includes information 
about him and is on display in the Windmill Library. Rizal is considered a 
national hero of the Philippines. The display celebrated Rizal’s birthday and 
created a significant connection to Library District Filipino customers. 

 
POWERFUL PLATFORMS 

• Participated in District-wide training for a new digital content platform called 
Biblioboard. Biblioboard offers anyone (staff or customers) the opportunity to 
create their own collection of items in a single virtual space for others to 
discover: books, music, videos, blogs, podcasts, visual arts, oral history, etc. 
The platform also provides access to special initiatives like the Indie Author 
Project. 

• Staff piloted a Biblioboard page for local musicians. It showcases their talent 
with uploaded synopses and samples of their work. 

• The Library District’s Communico Reserve platform was updated for meeting 
room and Performing Arts Center reservations. New photos were uploaded 
that reflect venue improvements made throughout the past year. 

• Staff developed department Power Plays that align with Playbook 2026. These 
Power Plays were presented at the Board of Trustees meeting on June 25. 

 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

318



Community Engagement Report July 29, 2021 – Page 3 
 
 
HIGHLIGHTED EVENTS IN JUNE 
 
Doktor Kaboom!     Yogapalooza 
Windmill Library     Windmill Library 

  
Summer Challenge Kickoff   Joseph Watson: Stories without Words 
Whitney Library    West Las Vegas Library 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Nima Abkenar: 211 Project   Juneteenth Celebration   
Sahara West Library    West Las Vegas Library 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

319



Community Engagement Report July 29, 2021 – Page 4 
 
 
COMING AUGUST HIGHLIGHTS 
 
EVENT    LOCATION     AUG. 
Congresswoman Susie Lee  Enterprise Library    4 
Mobile Office Hours 
 
Kid’s Café Meet Up & Eat Up  all eligible libraries    9 
Three Square After-School Snack 
Program 

Outreach Event   Library Card Sign-Up Event at Discovery 14 
     Children’s Museum 

Kickoff to Kindergarten  East Las Vegas Library   21 

Maker Fair    West Las Vegas Library   25 

Outreach Event   Cure for the Kids Back to School Fair 26 
 
 
COMING SEPTEMBER HIGHLIGHTS 
 
EVENT    LOCATION     SEP. 
Congresswoman Susie Lee  East Las Vegas Library   1 
Mobile Office Hours 

Annie!     West Las Vegas Library   3-5 

Tutoring Services Begin  Various locations    7 

Outreach Event   Las Vegas Lights FC Tailgate Party  8 

Jose Bellver: A Conjugation of Sahara West Library    9 
Light Art Exhibit 

Adult Learning Program  Online; Clark County & East Las Vegas 13 
Cycle II Registration   libraries  

The Fab    Windmill & Centennial Hills libraries  17, 19 

Caro Pierotto – Live in Concert West Charleston, Clark County, East 24-25 
     Las Vegas libraries 

Teen Anime Fest   East Las Vegas Library   25 

Outreach Event   Vegas PBS Be My Neighbor   26 

123 Andres    East Las Vegas, Windmill, West  30-2 
     Charleston, Summerlin, Whitney libraries 
 

… 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

320



 
Monthly Statistics 
Year over Year 

June 2019/ June 2021*

2019 2021 2019 2021
Library 2019 2021 Difference % Year to Date Year to Date Difference % 2019 2021 Difference % Year to DateYear to Date Difference %

Centennial Hills 52 24 -28 -54% 491 171 -320 -65% 1,713 1,582 -131 -8% 14,380 14,158 -222 -2%
Clark County 81 76 -5 -6% 695 300 -395 -57% 3,962 865 -3,097 -78% 37,518 5,477 -32,041 -85%
Clark County BBTTC 211 116 -95 -45% 1,696 1,148 -548 -32% 2,421 1,469 -952 -39% 27,559 12,023 -15,536 -56%
Enterprise 61 71 10 16% 591 501 -90 -15% 1,154 1,220 66 6% 10,421 10,499 78 1%
East Las Vegas 52 44 -8 -15% 412 169 -243 -59% 1,445 614 -831 -58% 5,681 4,497 -1,184 -21%
Meadows 4 0 -4 -100% 4 90 86 2150% 159 0 -159 -100% 159 649 490 308%
Rainbow 68 39 -29 -43% 720 297 -423 -59% 2,979 1,131 -1,848 -62% 26,562 6,979 -19,583 -74%
Sahara West 83 56 -27 -33% 644 411 -233 -36% 2,498 1,872 -626 -25% 20,185 7,606 -12,579 -62%
Spring Valley 76 167 91 120% 736 938 202 27% 2,566 3,769 1,203 47% 21,893 23,402 1,509 7%
Summerlin 53 71 18 34% 521 673 152 29% 2,565 2,973 408 16% 19,645 19,923 278 1%
Sunrise 93 78 -15 -16% 535 589 54 10% 1,786 1,506 -280 -16% 11,963 8,782 -3,181 -27%
West Charleston 34 74 40 118% 321 301 -20 -6% 624 822 198 32% 5,630 4,050 -1,580 -28%
West Las Vegas 54 45 -9 -17% 496 385 -111 -22% 404 397 -7 -2% 5,735 4,010 -1,725 -30%
Whitney 106 89 -17 -16% 803 469 -334 -42% 3,390 1,356 -2,034 -60% 28,056 10,688 -17,368 -62%
Windmill 51 20 -31 -61% 446 129 -317 -71% 2,028 1,576 -452 -22% 16,831 7,511 -9,320 -55%
Urban Totals 1,079 970 -109 -10% 9,111 6,571 -2,540 -28% 29,694 21,152 -8,542 -29% 252,218 140,254 -111,964 -44%

Blue Diamond 3 3 0 0% 36 17 -19 -53% 11 14 3 27% 418 55 -363 -87%
Bunkerville 13 2 -11 -85% 109 23 -86 -79% 145 18 -127 -88% 546 120 -426 -78%
Goodsprings 0 9 9 N/A 0 13 13 N/A 0 37 37 N/A 0 65 65 N/A
Indian Springs 38 25 -13 -34% 346 190 -156 -45% 245 263 18 7% 1,412 1,325 -87 -6%
Laughlin 23 20 -3 -13% 233 179 -54 -23% 346 362 16 5% 3,565 2,873 -692 -19%
Mesquite 82 56 -26 -32% 730 436 -294 -40% 1,712 621 -1,091 -64% 15,491 5,289 -10,202 -66%
Moapa Town 22 17 -5 -23% 214 103 -111 -52% 449 128 -321 -71% 2,381 390 -1,991 -84%
Moapa Valley 34 21 -13 -38% 336 38 -298 -89% 863 514 -349 -40% 5,036 750 -4,286 -85%
Mt. Charleston 0 7 7 N/A 2 23 21 1050% 0 49 49 N/A 51 121 70 137%
Sandy Valley 5 1 -4 -80% 59 4 -55 -93% 44 16 -28 -64% 849 48 -801 -94%
Searchlight 31 21 -10 -32% 264 209 -55 -21% 125 117 -8 -6% 2,181 2,307 126 6%
Outlying Totals 251 182 -69 -27% 2,329 1,235 -1,094 -47% 3,940 2,139 -1,801 -46% 31,930 13,343 -18,587 -58%

Outreach-Branch 16 10 -6 -38% 794 52 -742 -93% 1,275 530 -745 -58% 57,142 3,454 -53,688 -94%
Outreach-Department 102 26 -76 -75% 937 582 -355 -38% 1,582 495 -1,087 -69% 38,141 12,999 -25,142 -66%
Outreach-PVS 7 0 -7 -100% 59 0 -59 -100% 2,128 0 -2,128 -100% 2,892 0 -2,892 -100%
Outreach-YS Admin. 0 0 0 N/A 30 0 -30 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 2,650 0 -2,650 -100%
Outreach-Literacy 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Gallery Services 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A

Outreach Totals 125 36 -89 -71% 1,820 634 -1,186 -65% 4,985 1,025 -3,960 -79% 100,825 16,453 -84,372 -84%

Grand Totals 1,455 1,188 -267 -18% 13,260 8,440 -4,820 -36% 38,619 24,316 -14,303 -37% 384,973 170,050 -214,923 -56%

U
rb

an
 B

ra
nc

he
s

O
ut

ly
in

g 
B
ra

nc
he

s
O

ut
re

ac
h

Youth Services Programs Youth Services Attendance

*Due to the pandemic District Branches were closed beginning March 16th thru June 3rd. 1 Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

321



 
Monthly Statistics 
Year over Year 

June 2019/ June 2021

2019 2021 2019 2021
Library 2019 2021 Difference % Year to Date Year to Date Difference % 2019 2021 Difference % Year to DateYear to Date Difference %

Centennial Hills 22 24 2 9% 297 149 -148 -50% 355 405 50 14% 4,348 2,230 -2,118 -49%
Clark County 177 83 -94 -53% 1,888 1,351 -537 -28% 12,305 4,417 -7,888 -64% 75,789 15,638 -60,151 -79%
Enterprise 39 20 -19 -49% 445 168 -277 -62% 627 260 -367 -59% 9,682 2,562 -7,120 -74%
East Las Vegas 84 84 0 0% 276 1,417 1,141 413% 1,343 690 -653 -49% 3,554 7,339 3,785 106%
Meadows 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Rainbow 29 31 2 7% 623 279 -344 -55% 620 500 -120 -19% 15,996 4,406 -11,590 -72%
Sahara West 74 30 -44 -59% 1,150 294 -856 -74% 2,402 541 -1,861 -77% 36,053 7,136 -28,917 -80%
Spring Valley 21 17 -4 -19% 497 312 -185 -37% 145 330 185 128% 7,158 4,101 -3,057 -43%
Summerlin 39 28 -11 -28% 623 265 -358 -57% 2,089 2,696 607 29% 43,494 9,887 -33,607 -77%
Sunrise 25 13 -12 -48% 330 128 -202 -61% 1,527 176 -1,351 -88% 15,091 1,716 -13,375 -89%
West Charleston 32 13 -19 -59% 512 221 -291 -57% 1,721 390 -1,331 -77% 13,320 3,218 -10,102 -76%
West Las Vegas 60 27 -33 -55% 632 229 -403 -64% 3,229 1,493 -1,736 -54% 26,230 5,547 -20,683 -79%
Whitney 49 20 -29 -59% 541 260 -281 -52% 928 390 -538 -58% 15,058 2,124 -12,934 -86%
Windmill 57 19 -38 -67% 641 475 -166 -26% 3,177 805 -2,372 -75% 30,431 10,808 -19,623 -64%
Urban Totals 708 409 -299 -42% 8,455 5,548 -2,907 -34% 30,468 13,093 -17,375 -57% 296,204 76,712 -219,492 -74%

Blue Diamond 3 1 -2 -67% 31 1 -30 -97% 37 18 -19 -51% 441 18 -423 -96%
Bunkerville 0 0 0 N/A 2 0 -2 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 19 0 -19 -100%
Goodsprings 1 1 0 0% 72 27 -45 -63% 39 14 -25 -64% 268 100 -168 -63%
Indian Springs 2 9 7 350% 10 22 12 120% 8 206 198 2475% 43 562 519 1207%
Laughlin 18 34 16 89% 229 226 -3 -1% 144 438 294 204% 5,892 6,261 369 6%
Mesquite 37 50 13 35% 442 498 56 13% 325 399 74 23% 4,996 3,771 -1,225 -25%
Moapa Town 1 2 1 100% 5 10 5 100% 3 9 6 200% 18 67 49 272%
Moapa Valley 20 4 -16 -80% 217 4 -213 -98% 72 12 -60 -83% 1,035 12 -1,023 -99%
Mt. Charleston 2 4 2 100% 32 9 -23 -72% 40 48 8 20% 538 70 -468 -87%
Sandy Valley 1 0 -1 -100% 23 2 -21 -91% 4 0 -4 -100% 163 10 -153 -94%
Searchlight 1 3 2 200% 21 13 -8 -38% 11 26 15 136% 102 86 -16 -16%
Outlying Totals 86 108 22 26% 1,084 812 -272 -25% 683 1,170 487 71% 13,515 10,957 -2,558 -19%

Outreach-Branch 10 10 0 0% 162 26 -136 -84% 167 85 -82 -49% 4,800 386 -4,414 -92%
Outreach-Department 25 1 -24 -96% 395 134 -261 -66% 186 10 -176 -95% 4,440 4,195 -245 -6%
Outreach-PVS 1 0 -1 -100% 36 0 -36 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 3,768 0 -3,768 -100%
Outreach-YS Admin. 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-Literacy 0 1 1 N/A 0 2 2 N/A 0 100 100 N/A 0 500 500 N/A
Outreach-Gallery Services 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A

Outreach Totals 36 12 -24 -67% 593 162 -431 -73% 353 195 -158 -45% 13,008 5,081 -7,927 -61%

Grand Totals 830 529 -301 -36% 10,132 6,522 -3,610 -36% 31,504 14,458 -17,046 -54% 322,727 92,750 -229,977 -71%

O
ut

re
ac

h

Adult Programs Adult Attendance

U
rb

an
 B

ra
nc

he
s

O
ut

ly
in

g 
B
ra

nc
he

s

2
Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

322



 
Monthly Statistics 
Year over Year 

June 2020/ June 2021*

2020 2021 2020 2021
Library 2020 2021 Difference % Year to Date Year to Date Difference % 2020 2021 Difference % Year to DateYear to Date Difference %

Centennial Hills 0 24 24 N/A 364 171 -193 -53% 0 1,582 1,582 N/A 10,712 14,158 3,446 32%
Clark County 10 76 66 660% 544 300 -244 -45% 1,010 865 -145 -14% 24,014 5,477 -18,537 -77%
Clark County BBTTC 60 116 56 93% 1,351 1,148 -203 -15% 152 1,469 1,317 866% 19,519 12,023 -7,496 -38%
Enterprise 2 71 69 3450% 418 501 83 20% 41 1,220 1,179 2876% 6,929 10,499 3,570 52%
East Las Vegas 3 44 41 1367% 358 169 -189 -53% 295 614 319 108% 6,003 4,497 -1,506 -25%
Meadows 0 0 0 N/A 4 90 86 2150% 0 0 0 N/A 110 649 539 490%
Rainbow 7 39 32 457% 542 297 -245 -45% 899 1,131 232 26% 20,057 6,979 -13,078 -65%
Sahara West 3 56 53 1767% 535 411 -124 -23% 239 1,872 1,633 683% 15,321 7,606 -7,715 -50%
Spring Valley 5 167 162 3240% 654 938 284 43% 879 3,769 2,890 329% 19,758 23,402 3,644 18%
Summerlin 16 71 55 344% 390 673 283 73% 1,239 2,973 1,734 140% 18,649 19,923 1,274 7%
Sunrise 18 78 60 333% 449 589 140 31% 1,118 1,506 388 35% 9,382 8,782 -600 -6%
West Charleston 0 74 74 N/A 243 301 58 24% 0 822 822 N/A 3,670 4,050 380 10%
West Las Vegas 5 45 40 800% 360 385 25 7% 416 397 -19 -5% 4,118 4,010 -108 -3%
Whitney 3 89 86 2867% 700 469 -231 -33% 290 1,356 1,066 368% 25,611 10,688 -14,923 -58%
Windmill 3 20 17 567% 334 129 -205 -61% 128 1,576 1,448 1131% 12,927 7,511 -5,416 -42%
Urban Totals 135 970 835 619% 7,246 6,571 -675 -9% 6,706 21,152 14,446 215% 196,780 140,254 -56,526 -29%

Blue Diamond 0 3 3 N/A 33 17 -16 -48% 0 14 14 N/A 153 55 -98 -64%
Bunkerville 0 2 2 N/A 9 23 14 156% 0 18 18 N/A 111 120 9 8%
Goodsprings 0 9 9 N/A 2 13 11 550% 0 37 37 N/A 19 65 46 242%
Indian Springs 0 25 25 N/A 288 190 -98 -34% 0 263 263 N/A 1,677 1,325 -352 -21%
Laughlin 0 20 20 N/A 162 179 17 10% 0 362 362 N/A 2,856 2,873 17 1%
Mesquite 8 56 48 600% 477 436 -41 -9% 100 621 521 521% 8,776 5,289 -3,487 -40%
Moapa Town 0 17 17 N/A 154 103 -51 -33% 0 128 128 N/A 1,776 390 -1,386 -78%
Moapa Valley 3 21 18 600% 200 38 -162 -81% 41 514 473 1154% 3,236 750 -2,486 -77%
Mt. Charleston 0 7 7 N/A 0 23 23 N/A 0 49 49 N/A 0 121 121 N/A
Sandy Valley 0 1 1 N/A 26 4 -22 -85% 0 16 16 N/A 149 48 -101 -68%
Searchlight 0 21 21 N/A 222 209 -13 -6% 0 117 117 N/A 2,115 2,307 192 9%
Outlying Totals 11 182 171 1555% 1,573 1,235 -338 -21% 141 2,139 1,998 1417% 20,868 13,343 -7,525 -36%

Outreach-Branch 2 10 8 400% 241 52 -189 -78% 200 530 330 165% 20,826 3,454 -17,372 -83%
Outreach-Department 6 26 20 333% 711 582 -129 -18% 180 495 315 175% 28,098 12,999 -15,099 -54%
Outreach-PVS 0 0 0 N/A 30 0 -30 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 1,550 0 -1,550 -100%
Outreach-YS Admin. 0 0 0 N/A 20 0 -20 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 1,663 0 -1,663 -100%
Outreach-Literacy 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Gallery Services 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A

Outreach Totals 8 36 28 350% 1,002 634 -368 -37% 380 1,025 645 170% 52,137 16,453 -35,684 -68%

Grand Totals 154 1,188 1,034 671% 9,821 8,440 -1,381 -14% 7,227 24,316 17,089 236% 269,785 170,050 -99,735 -37%

U
rb

an
 B

ra
nc

he
s

O
ut

ly
in

g 
B
ra

nc
he

s
O

ut
re

ac
h

Youth Services Programs Youth Services Attendance

*Due to the pandemic District Branches were closed beginning March 16th thru June 3rd. 1 Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

323



 
Monthly Statistics 
Year over Year 

June 2020/ June 2021

2020 2021 2020 2021
Library 2020 2021 Difference % Year to Date Year to Date Difference % 2020 2021 Difference % Year to DateYear to Date Difference %

Centennial Hills 1 24 23 2300% 235 149 -86 -37% 32 405 373 1166% 4,040 2,230 -1,810 -45%
Clark County 0 83 83 N/A 1,724 1,351 -373 -22% 0 4,417 4,417 N/A 53,104 15,638 -37,466 -71%
Enterprise 1 20 19 1900% 441 168 -273 -62% 1,000 260 -740 -74% 11,235 2,562 -8,673 -77%
East Las Vegas 3 84 81 2700% 774 1,417 643 83% 15 690 675 4500% 17,761 7,339 -10,422 -59%
Meadows 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Rainbow 1 31 30 3000% 394 279 -115 -29% 36 500 464 1289% 6,872 4,406 -2,466 -36%
Sahara West 1 30 29 2900% 877 294 -583 -66% 2,714 541 -2,173 -80% 23,622 7,136 -16,486 -70%
Spring Valley 12 17 5 42% 347 312 -35 -10% 57 330 273 479% 4,262 4,101 -161 -4%
Summerlin 7 28 21 300% 404 265 -139 -34% 249 2,696 2,447 983% 31,028 9,887 -21,141 -68%
Sunrise 1 13 12 1200% 337 128 -209 -62% 14 176 162 1157% 10,108 1,716 -8,392 -83%
West Charleston 10 13 3 30% 444 221 -223 -50% 1,220 390 -830 -68% 10,588 3,218 -7,370 -70%
West Las Vegas 3 27 24 800% 480 229 -251 -52% 556 1,493 937 169% 17,655 5,547 -12,108 -69%
Whitney 4 20 16 400% 485 260 -225 -46% 49 390 341 696% 12,182 2,124 -10,058 -83%
Windmill 3 19 16 533% 505 475 -30 -6% 2,029 805 -1,224 -60% 28,638 10,808 -17,830 -62%
Urban Totals 47 409 362 770% 7,447 5,548 -1,899 -26% 7,971 13,093 5,122 64% 231,095 76,712 -154,383 -67%

Blue Diamond 0 1 1 N/A 19 1 -18 -95% 0 18 18 N/A 247 18 -229 -93%
Bunkerville 0 0 0 N/A 15 0 -15 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 29 0 -29 -100%
Goodsprings 10 1 -9 -90% 75 27 -48 -64% 10 14 4 40% 170 100 -70 -41%
Indian Springs 0 9 9 N/A 17 22 5 29% 0 206 206 N/A 77 562 485 630%
Laughlin 1 34 33 3300% 232 226 -6 -3% 200 438 238 119% 3,871 6,261 2,390 62%
Mesquite 4 50 46 1150% 361 498 137 38% 40 399 359 898% 3,279 3,771 492 15%
Moapa Town 0 2 2 N/A 3 10 7 233% 0 9 9 N/A 20 67 47 235%
Moapa Valley 0 4 4 N/A 187 4 -183 -98% 0 12 12 N/A 770 12 -758 -98%
Mt. Charleston 0 4 4 N/A 24 9 -15 -63% 0 48 48 N/A 440 70 -370 -84%
Sandy Valley 0 0 0 N/A 10 2 -8 -80% 0 0 0 N/A 47 10 -37 -79%
Searchlight 0 3 3 N/A 21 13 -8 -38% 0 26 26 N/A 159 86 -73 -46%
Outlying Totals 15 108 93 620% 964 812 -152 -16% 250 1,170 920 368% 9,109 10,957 1,848 20%

Outreach-Branch 1 10 9 900% 67 26 -41 -61% 22 85 63 286% 2,179 386 -1,793 -82%
Outreach-Department 0 1 1 N/A 252 134 -118 -47% 0 10 10 N/A 3,986 4,195 209 5%
Outreach-PVS 0 0 0 N/A 14 0 -14 -100% 0 0 0 N/A 873 0 -873 -100%
Outreach-YS Admin. 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-Literacy 0 1 1 N/A 1 2 1 100% 0 100 100 N/A 300 500 200 67%
Outreach-Gallery Services 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A

Outreach Totals 1 12 11 1100% 334 162 -172 -51% 22 195 173 786% 7,338 5,081 -2,257 -31%

Grand Totals 63 529 466 740% 8,745 6,522 -2,223 -25% 8,243 14,458 6,215 75% 247,542 92,750 -154,792 -63%

O
ut

re
ac

h

Adult Programs Adult Attendance

U
rb

an
 B

ra
nc

he
s

O
ut

ly
in

g 
B
ra

nc
he

s

2
Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

324



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM: Matt McNally, Community Engagement Director 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: Community Engagement Report, September 2021 

This report provides an overview of District-wide Community Engagement initiatives 
including adult literacy services, art gallery services, outreach services, adult 
programming and venues services, and youth programming services.  This report 
covers a one-month period of staff activities from July 1, 2021 – July 31, 2021. 
 
POWERFUL PEOPLE 

• Worked with Deputy District Director Gabby Everett from the Office of 
Congresswoman Susie Lee to host events for mobile office hours. 

• Met with New York Times best-selling author (Mind in the Making) and 
research scientist Ellen Galinsky to keynote the Library District’s Youth 
Services staff summit in December.  

• Co-facilitated the professional development seminar Lose the Lecture, with 
renowned author and trainer Dr. Teresa Byington for an international early 
childhood education train-the-trainer cohort. 

• 58 staff attended child development specialist Jim Gill’s educational workshop 
on how to integrate music into early childhood education programs. 

• Hosted County Commissioners Tick Segerblom and William McCurdy II for two 
local recovery town hall meetings at the East Las Vegas Library. 

• Trustee Rogers introduced staff to community leaders interested in speaking 
on various topics of mental health, racial inclusion, and small business 
development. Staff are coordinating details to present these speakers this fall. 

• Welcomed UNLV Master of Fine Arts Candidate Emily Sarten as summer 
intern. Ms. Sarten assisted with day-to-day Gallery Services operations and 
aided in the photo-documentation of the Library District’s permanent art 
collection. 

• Las Vegas Mayor Carolyn Goodman attended the West Charleston Library 
gallery reception for Jeanne Maxwell Williams’ A Life in the Arts. A portrait of 
the Mayor is featured in the exhibit along with some of the late artist’s other 
paintings, busts, and sculptures. 

• English as a Second Language (ESL) instructors participated in the annual 
Adult Learning Program (ALP) kickoff. Instructors were provided resources 
and professional development. 

• Discussed opportunities with Dream Big Las Vegas Director Astrid Silva and 
Deputy Director Dulce Valencia for DACA student participation in ALP’s ESL 
classes and High School Equivalency (HSE) preparation and testing. 

ITEM VI.A.3.b. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

325



Community Engagement Report August 23, 2021 – Page 2 
 
 

• Met with CSN President Dr. Federico Zaragoza and Chief of Staff & Director of 
Diversity Lawrence Weekly to implement fall CSN courses in the East Las 
Vegas Library. 

• Participated in Regional Library Operations Manager interviews. 
 
POWERFUL PLACES 

• Implemented Governor Sisolak’s mask mandate for everyone, regardless of 
vaccination status, beginning July 30 at all library branches. The Governor 
allowed for certain exceptions with regards to performers. Staff addressed 
operational changes with all contracted services, vendors, rental users, and 
customers attending events.  

• Added hand sanitizing stations and mask signage in the backstage areas of all 
Performing Arts Centers. 

• Installed two television monitors in the Clark County Library theater lobby. 
These provide a live feed of programming occurring in the theater for 
individuals needing to excuse themselves from the performance or for 
overflow seating. 

• Re-activated the West Las Vegas Library Conference Room following a facility 
renovation. The room is now available for programming and rental 
reservations. 

• The Sahara West Library galleries were voted as Best Art Gallery in the Las 
Vegas Weekly’s 2021 Best of Vegas contest. Staff joined Executive Director 
Kelvin Watson and Trustee Nathaniel Waugh at Area 15 for the award 
celebration. 

• Represented the Library District at the Marjorie Barrick Museum of Art’s 
closing reception for Future Relics: Artifacts for a New World. The exhibit 
celebrated local Latinx art. 

• ALP Cycle I classes began at full capacity for 22 in-person ESL classes at nine 
libraries and one community center. Class expansion is planned at four 
additional locations for Cycle II. 

 
POWERFUL PARTNERSHIPS 

• Updated partnership contact information of 264 individuals representing 230 
different relationships and secured contact information for the leader of each 
organization. Staff will use this information to connect with partners in the 
launch of different initiatives throughout the year. 

• Met with Discovery Children’s Museum to discuss partnership opportunities 
including library card sign-ups, exhibiting museum items, and marketing 
initiatives. 

• Discussed partnership possibilities with the Las Vegas Raiders. 
• Collaborated with Vegas PBS to assist a Community Assets and Needs 

Assessment study. 
• Participated in the Southern Chapter of the Nevada Association for the 

Education of Young Children (NevAEYC) annual joint leadership event 
planning session. 

• Presented Mind in the Making Foundations mini-conference with Acelero 
Headstart, UNR Extension, Las Vegas Urban League, and NevAEYC.  

• Trustee Jose Melendrez connected staff to Educate Nevada Now. The partner 
was invited to attend the Back to School Fair at Whitney Library on August 7. 

• This year’s PVAC (Performing and Visual Arts Camp) in partnership with the 
City of Las Vegas focused on film and video production. The camp culminated 
with two screenings of the movie that students created during the camp. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

326



Community Engagement Report August 23, 2021 – Page 3 
 
 

• Summerlin Library hosted two dance concerts in partnership with New Dance 
Foundation for the Arts Inc. to honor the late artistic director Kelly Roth. 

• Strategized with Southern Nevada Health District to create pop-up Covid-19 
testing sites at library branches to aid in community footprint coverage. The 
testing program is expected to launch in late August at Whitney, Sunrise, 
West Las Vegas, Windmill, Sahara West, and Enterprise libraries. 

• In partnership with Legal Aid of Southern Nevada and Commissioner Justin 
Jones and Michael Naft, the Library District hosted six programs to help 
customers facing eviction. 

• Met with Asian Community Development Council staff to tour their new 
facilities and scope opportunity to provide onsite ESL classes during Cycle II. 

• Transitioned responsibilities of serving senior facility homes via outreach visits 
to Library Operations staff which ensures continuity of service. 

• Attended the Asian Chamber of Commerce luncheon. 
• Engaged in an operations meeting with Workforce Connections. 
• Strategized with staff from Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) to 

launch the Overdrive Commuter Campaign beginning September 1. RTC 
riders will be able to instantly borrow e-books, audiobooks, and magazines 
utilizing their library card or via an instant access link. RTC will assist with 
marketing initiatives including signage on busses, at bus stops, and at transit 
centers. 

• Committed $5,000 to the Las Vegas Book Festival as a Silver Sponsor. 
 
POWERFUL PLATFORMS 

• Summer Challenge 2021 ended on July 31. Here’s a recap by the numbers: 
o 130,000 brochures distributed through CCSD. 
o 6,901 participants; 1,808 completions. 
o 4,092 participants and 1,036 completions of the 900-Volt Challenge. 
o 3,402,956 minutes read, K-12. 
o 36,749 books read, ages 0-5. 
o 38,367 learning activities completed. 

• Began a revision project for the collection of programming statistics. A new 
format will digitalize the collection process and will include measurements of 
programs, attendance, strategic plan, DEIA (diversity, equity, inclusion, and 
accessibility), public and state surveys, and recurring programs. 

• Participated in a DiSC personality assessment with other Administration Team 
colleagues. 

• Updated internal guidelines and procedures for staff including: Alcohol 
Exemption Procedures, Contracted Services Procedures, and Payment 
Standards. 

• Committed participation to the International Mr. Rogers Neighborhood 
Working Cohort scheduled to begin in August. 

• Youth Services Administration led the Apprentice PIC (Person-In-Charge) 
Training to discuss youth-related issues that occur at the Library District. The 
three-hour training concluded with a Safe Place refresher training for staff on 
how to respond to a youth-in-crisis. 

• Developed a local author program launching in August at the Clark County 
Library that introduces local authors to the new BiblioBoard platform.  

• Met with vendor representatives from Gale/Cengage as a possible alternative 
for the Career Online High School. The Library District’s current vendor 
(Gale/Cengage) announced that a partnership split with Smart Horizons will 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

327



Community Engagement Report August 23, 2021 – Page 4 
 
 

require them to develop an alternative option to continue offering adult high 
school diploma services. 

 
HIGHLIGHTED EVENTS IN JULY 
 
STEAM Friday     Outreach 
Rainbow Library    Baby University     

 
Jim Gill Staff Training   Shadow Puppets    
Sahara West Library    Sunrise Library 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Eviction Aid     Summer Concert Souvenairs 
Clark County Library    Clark County Library 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

328



Community Engagement Report August 23, 2021 – Page 5 
 
 
 
Town Hall     Dance in the Desert   
East Las Vegas Library   Summerlin Library 

 
Freedom Force    Greg Lauck: Facescale  
Sahara West Library    Spring Valley Library 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Jeanne Maxwell Williams: A Life in the  Summer Book Club; Murder on the Orient 
the Arts     Express 
Sahara West Library    Clark County Library; ALP 

 
  
 

      
 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

329



Community Engagement Report August 23, 2021 – Page 6 
 
 
Back to School Fair    Summer Challenge 2021  
Enterprise Library    District-wide 

 
 
UPCOMING SEPTEMBER HIGHLIGHTS 
 
EVENT    LOCATION     SEP. 
Congresswoman Susie Lee  East Las Vegas Library   1 
Mobile Office Hours 

Annie!     West Las Vegas Library   3-5 

Tutoring Services Begin  Various locations    7 

Outreach Event   Las Vegas Lights FC Tailgate Party  8 

Jose Bellver: A Conjugation of Sahara West Library    9 
Light Art Exhibit 

Adult Learning Program  Online; Clark County & East Las Vegas 13 
Cycle II Registration   libraries  

The Fab    Windmill & Centennial Hills libraries  17, 19 

Caro Pierotto – Live in Concert West Charleston, Clark County, East 24-25 
     Las Vegas libraries 

Teen Anime Fest   East Las Vegas Library   25 

Outreach Event   Vegas PBS Be My Neighbor   26 

123 Andres    East Las Vegas, Windmill, West  30-2 
     Charleston, Summerlin, Whitney libraries 
 
 
UPCOMING OCTOBER HIGHLIGHTS 
     
EVENT    LOCATION     OCT. 

Teentober Strange and Unusual Various libraries    1-31 

¡Viva el Mariachi!   Clark County Library    1 

BANFF Film Festival   Clark County Library    2 

Summerlin Fall Festival  Summerlin Library    2 

Outreach Event   Meadows Mall LVMPD National Night Out 5 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

330



Community Engagement Report August 23, 2021 – Page 7 
 
 
Outreach Event   Lieburn Senior Center Resource Fair 7 

Outreach Event   Suncoast Hotel Senior Pro Expo Fair 14 

The Neon Museum Presents: West Las Vegas Library   14  
Creative Aging Art Exhibit 

Kybele Dance Theatre  West Las Vegas, Clark County libraries 15-16 

Outreach Event   Las Vegas Lights FC Tailgate Party  16 

Adult Learning Program  Various libraries and locations  13 
Cycle II Classes Begin   

Outreach Event   Las Vegas Book Festival   23 

Outreach Event   Bob Price Community Center Halloween 28 
     Harvest Festival 

Outreach Event   Pearson Community Center Safe Night 31 
     Out Trunk-or-Treat 
 

… 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

331



 
Monthly Statistics 
Year over Year 

July 2020/ July 2021*

2020 2021 2020 2021
Library 2020 2021 Difference % Year to Date Year to Date Difference % 2020 2021 Difference % Year to DateYear to Date Difference %

Centennial Hills 12 15 3 25% 12 15 3 25% 556 950 394 71% 556 950 394 71%
Clark County 8 50 42 525% 8 50 42 525% 115 871 756 657% 115 871 756 657%
Clark County BBTTC 63 121 58 92% 63 121 58 92% 484 1,969 1,485 307% 484 1,969 1,485 307%
Enterprise 22 57 35 159% 22 57 35 159% 562 607 45 8% 562 607 45 8%
East Las Vegas 12 33 21 175% 12 33 21 175% 67 480 413 616% 67 480 413 616%
Meadows 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Rainbow 12 56 44 367% 12 56 44 367% 287 1,517 1,230 429% 287 1,517 1,230 429%
Sahara West 10 46 36 360% 10 46 36 360% 169 1,087 918 543% 169 1,087 918 543%
Spring Valley 28 241 213 761% 28 241 213 761% 1,211 4,292 3,081 254% 1,211 4,292 3,081 254%
Summerlin 18 77 59 328% 18 77 59 328% 1,778 2,155 377 21% 1,778 2,155 377 21%
Sunrise 34 75 41 121% 34 75 41 121% 559 1,289 730 131% 559 1,289 730 131%
West Charleston 9 66 57 633% 9 66 57 633% 117 772 655 560% 117 772 655 560%
West Las Vegas 9 61 52 578% 9 61 52 578% 168 442 274 163% 168 442 274 163%
Whitney 16 74 58 363% 16 74 58 363% 600 1,391 791 132% 600 1,391 791 132%
Windmill 6 21 15 250% 6 21 15 250% 211 1,272 1,061 503% 211 1,272 1,061 503%
Urban Totals 259 993 734 283% 259 993 734 283% 6,884 19,094 12,210 177% 6,884 19,094 12,210 177%

Blue Diamond 0 5 5 N/A 0 5 5 N/A 0 30 30 N/A 0 30 30 N/A
Bunkerville 0 2 2 N/A 0 2 2 N/A 0 38 38 N/A 0 38 38 N/A
Goodsprings 0 6 6 N/A 0 6 6 N/A 0 18 18 N/A 0 18 18 N/A
Indian Springs 0 33 33 N/A 0 33 33 N/A 0 340 340 N/A 0 340 340 N/A
Laughlin 7 16 9 129% 7 16 9 129% 158 259 101 64% 158 259 101 64%
Mesquite 21 51 30 143% 21 51 30 143% 425 817 392 92% 425 817 392 92%
Moapa Town 0 38 38 N/A 0 38 38 N/A 0 105 105 N/A 0 105 105 N/A
Moapa Valley 0 38 38 N/A 0 38 38 N/A 0 693 693 N/A 0 693 693 N/A
Mt. Charleston 0 8 8 N/A 0 8 8 N/A 0 48 48 N/A 0 48 48 N/A
Sandy Valley 0 4 4 N/A 0 4 4 N/A 0 45 45 N/A 0 45 45 N/A
Searchlight 0 23 23 N/A 0 23 23 N/A 0 118 118 N/A 0 118 118 N/A
Outlying Totals 28 224 196 700% 28 224 196 700% 583 2,511 1,928 331% 583 2,511 1,928 331%

Outreach-Branch 0 21 21 N/A 0 21 21 N/A 0 833 833 N/A 0 833 833 N/A
Outreach-Department 13 30 17 131% 13 30 17 131% 354 1,886 1,532 433% 354 1,886 1,532 433%
Outreach-PVS 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-YS Admin. 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-Literacy 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Gallery Services 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A

Outreach Totals 13 51 38 292% 13 51 38 292% 354 2,719 2,365 668% 354 2,719 2,365 668%

Grand Totals 300 1,268 968 323% 300 1,268 968 323% 7,821 24,324 16,503 211% 7,821 24,324 16,503 211%

U
rb

an
 B

ra
nc

he
s

O
ut

re
ac

h
O

ut
ly

in
g 

B
ra

nc
he

s

Youth Services Programs Youth Services Attendance

*Due to the pandemic District Branches were closed beginning March 16th thru June 3rd. 1 Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

332



 
Monthly Statistics 
Year over Year 

July 2020/ July 2021

2020 2021 2020 2021
Library 2020 2021 Difference % Year to Date Year to Date Difference % 2020 2021 Difference % Year to DateYear to Date Difference %

Centennial Hills 7 23 16 229% 7 23 16 229% 119 395 276 232% 119 395 276 232%
Clark County 49 41 -8 -16% 49 41 -8 -16% 340 1,114 774 228% 340 1,114 774 228%
Enterprise 7 36 29 414% 7 36 29 414% 307 329 22 7% 307 329 22 7%
East Las Vegas 14 94 80 571% 14 94 80 571% 87 863 776 892% 87 863 776 892%
Meadows 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Rainbow 2 28 26 1300% 2 28 26 1300% 43 378 335 779% 43 378 335 779%
Sahara West 6 37 31 517% 6 37 31 517% 96 769 673 701% 96 769 673 701%
Spring Valley 10 20 10 100% 10 20 10 100% 110 357 247 225% 110 357 247 225%
Summerlin 19 35 16 84% 19 35 16 84% 78 1,333 1,255 1609% 78 1,333 1,255 1609%
Sunrise 4 12 8 200% 4 12 8 200% 83 159 76 92% 83 159 76 92%
West Charleston 16 16 0 0% 16 16 0 0% 62 391 329 531% 62 391 329 531%
West Las Vegas 8 29 21 263% 8 29 21 263% 17 1,243 1,226 7212% 17 1,243 1,226 7212%
Whitney 4 20 16 400% 4 20 16 400% 39 295 256 656% 39 295 256 656%
Windmill 17 21 4 24% 17 21 4 24% 293 1,161 868 296% 293 1,161 868 296%
Urban Totals 163 412 249 153% 163 412 249 153% 1,674 8,787 7,113 425% 1,674 8,787 7,113 425%

Blue Diamond 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Bunkerville 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Goodsprings 1 1 0 0% 1 1 0 0% 6 15 9 150% 6 15 9 150%
Indian Springs 0 7 7 N/A 0 7 7 N/A 0 74 74 N/A 0 74 74 N/A
Laughlin 2 22 20 1000% 2 22 20 1000% 25 255 230 920% 25 255 230 920%
Mesquite 13 48 35 269% 13 48 35 269% 101 399 298 295% 101 399 298 295%
Moapa Town 0 10 10 N/A 0 10 10 N/A 0 6 6 N/A 0 6 6 N/A
Moapa Valley 0 8 8 N/A 0 8 8 N/A 0 43 43 N/A 0 43 43 N/A
Mt. Charleston 0 6 6 N/A 0 6 6 N/A 0 58 58 N/A 0 58 58 N/A
Sandy Valley 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Searchlight 0 2 2 N/A 0 2 2 N/A 0 16 16 N/A 0 16 16 N/A
Outlying Totals 16 104 88 550% 16 104 88 550% 132 866 734 556% 132 866 734 556%

Outreach-Branch 0 4 4 N/A 0 4 4 N/A 0 6 6 N/A 0 6 6 N/A
Outreach-Department 4 2 -2 -50% 4 2 -2 -50% 95 40 -55 -58% 95 40 -55 -58%
Outreach-PVS 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-YS Admin. 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-Literacy 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A
Outreach-Gallery Services 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 0 N/A

Outreach Totals 4 6 2 50% 4 6 2 50% 95 46 -49 -52% 95 46 -49 -52%

Grand Totals 183 522 339 185% 183 522 339 185% 1,901 9,699 7,798 410% 1,901 9,699 7,798 410%

U
rb

an
 B

ra
nc

he
s

O
ut

re
ac

h
O

ut
ly

in
g 

B
ra

nc
he

s

Adult Programs Adult Attendance

2
Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

333



 

 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

TO:  LVCCLD Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM: Danielle Patrick Milam, Director of Planning and Development 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: Development and Planning Department Report, September 2021 

Development and Planning Department FY 20-21 End-of-Year and July 2021 

 

 

Development and Planning closed out FY 20-21 with unaudited revenues of $2,361,436, with 
$1,763,051 in Library District (LVCCLD) grants; $315,699 in Library Foundation (LVCCLDF) grants 
and gifts; and $282,687 in Library Foundation restricted revenues from book sales.  This is on par 
with the pre-pandemic levels of fundraising, reflecting the full deployment of department staff, 
except for two weeks pandemic closure in December 2020.   

The Library District’s Volunteer Program saw a dramatic drop in volunteer hours donated to the 
District, with only a limited number of volunteers deployed from July 1 through April 15 for 
Library Foundation book store operations in branches and the warehouse.  The Volunteer Program 
reopened fully in mid-April as pandemic building capacity restrictions were lifted.  July volunteer 
hours are now back to 50% of pre-pandemic rates, with 1,871 hours donated in July 2021. 

 

ITEM VI.A.3.c. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

334



Development and Planning Office Report 
August 23, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 

Other major FY 20-21 Development and Planning Department accomplishments included: 

 the completion of the PlayBook 2026 strategic plan 

 oversight and management of existing Library District grant projects related to support for 
a partnership with DISCOVERY Children’s Museum for circulating museum passes; 
expanded Outreach Services programs and services for child care providers; expanded 
Library District WiFi hotspots and devices for public use; and support for a variety of 
branch programs for adults and children. 

 oversight and management of Library Foundation priority programs and grants related to 
the Teachers in Libraries tutor program; STEAM Lab Programs; technology support for four 
library Vegas Strong Academy sites; support for Career Online High School; staff and 
equipment support for the Best Buy Teen Tech Center at Clark County Library; mentors for 
all Library District teen tech labs; support for research on Family, Friend, and Neighbor 
child care providers; and support for Google Ads. 

 oversight and management of Library Foundation used book sales.  Despite low branch 
traffic and intermittent closures, branch book sales revenues only fell from $200,000 pre-
pandemic to $144,000 in FY 20-21. 

 $-

 $10,000.00

 $20,000.00

 $30,000.00

 $40,000.00

 $50,000.00

 $60,000.00

 $70,000.00

CC EN EV LA MQ RB SW SV SM SU WC WV WH CH WM

Book Store Sales 

2020-2021 2020-2019 2019-2018

 

Development and Planning Department Powerful Plays in July 2021 

Powerful People 

 The Library Foundation audit firm, Hilburn & Lein, was retained to prepare the FY20-21 
Financial Statements.   

 60 CCSD Teachers were retained to provide live homework help tutoring at eight library 
branches.  Teacher tutor services will resume on September 7.  UNLV education student 
tutor services will resume September 13 at twelve metro library locations. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

335



Development and Planning Office Report 
August 23, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 

Powerful Places 

 Laughlin, Enterprise, and East Las Vegas Libraries have received record revenues from 
book sales, as people found good deals at the library book sales to stock up for summer 
reading.  Many thanks to the extra efforts of staff and volunteers at these locations. 

 The Clark County Library’s Best Buy Teen Tech Center received kudos from the national 
evaluators that visited the site and held interviews with staff and Foundation 
representatives.  The evaluators, from the Best Buy Foundation and ClubHouse Network 
remarked that this site was one of the best organized and attended sites during the 
pandemic, in part because the Foundation provided subsidies for additional hours of 
operations, a pantry for pandemic essentials, new equipment, and expansion of live 
mentor services related to coding, VR/AR, PhotoShop, and music production. 

Powerful Partners 

 The Library District and Foundation submitted five new grants to federal partners in 
response to remainder funds from the CARES Act of 2020 and the American Rescue Plan 
(ARP) Act of 2021, as follows: 

o closing the local digital divide ($4,102,807 ARP pre-proposal to the County from the 
Library District  for three years funding for expanded numbers and check-out 
periods for free Wifi hotspots and devices.  The request also includes the purchase 
of four new device lending machines) 

o homework help support for local students ($840,000 ARP pre-proposal to the 
County from the Library Foundation for three years support of eight sites of 
Teachers in Libraries tutor program and $420,000 ARP proposal to the City from 
the Library Foundation to support three years of teacher tutors at four sites) 

o strengthening the child care sector ($143,449 CARES proposal to the Institute of 
Museum and Library Services from the Library District for Outreach Services work 
with home-based child care providers) 

o supporting student success ($50,000 ARP proposal to the Institute of Museum and 
Library Services from the Library District for purchasing AXIS 360 collection for 
student support partnership with CCSD) 

 The Library District Outreach team worked with the Las Vegas Urban League to roll out a 
new grant that provides support for early childhood development and home-based child 
care provider training. 

Powerful Platforms 

 The Library Foundation’s biggest FaceBook post of the month (4,443 people reached, 258 
shares) related to the Teacher Book sale, which was conducted at both Sahara West and 
Clark County Foundation Book Stores.  Teachers received notice via social media, the 
CCSD partnership office, and the Library District’s Highlights e-newsletter.  Teachers were 
able to purchase books for their classrooms at 25 cents each throughout the months of 
July and August. 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

336



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM: Albert G. Prendergast, Chief Information Officer 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: Information Technology Report, September 2021 

The Information Technology Division, comprised of the following departments-- 
Access Services (AS) Collection and Bibliographic Services (CBS) and the 
Information Technology (IT) Department, is pleased to share the following updates 
for July and August. 
 
 

POWERFUL PEOPLE 

• Interlibrary Loan (ILL) staff provided several one-on-one virtual trainings for 
staff and Electronic Resources (ER) staff hosted one virtual CultureGrams 
training to help District-wide staff improve work performance and better 
assist our customers. 

• CBS staff provided collection development training for District-wide staff on 
using vendor tools for procuring library materials to help build a robust 
materials collection and the Distribution Center (DC) staff provided collection 
maintenance training to help staff maintain a current and responsive 
collection for our customers. 

• CBS staff attended OverDrive’s virtual Digipalooza annual conference focused 
on e-books and audiobooks to learn best practices for providing digital 
content for our customers. 

 

POWERFUL PLACES 

• IT continues to investigate the possibility of expanding wireless Internet 
access into the surrounding communities at the outlying branches to help 
close the digital divide. Staff attended demonstrations from three vendors and 
is preparing a proposal for presentation. Staff also continues to work with 
Development and Planning on potential sources for funding. 

• CBS staff visited multiple branches to offer collection development assistance 
to help maintain a healthy and responsive collection and DC staff provided 
fresh content to the outlying branches to keep the collections relevant for 
customers. 

ITEM VI.A.3.d. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

337



Technology Monthly Report 
August 23, 2021         Page 2 

 
POWERFUL PARTNERSHIPS 

• District staff continues to work with stakeholders and OverDrive on the 
implementation of the Instant Digital Card for inclusion with the Regional 
Transportation Commission Partnership to expand access to the collection to 
potential new customers. 

• CBS staff completed implementation of the Reciprocal Lending Agreement 
with the Henderson Public Library District to expand customer access to 
digital resources. 

• District staff continues to work with the Clark County School District (CCSD) 
and Baker & Taylor on the implementation of Axis 360 for the Community 
Share Project to remove barriers to library access for all CCSD students. Over 
500 items were ordered for the Axis 360 collection and staff continues to work 
with Baker & Taylor to resolve cataloging issues to enable customers to find 
the items in the catalog. Axis 360 was added to our website in August and will 
officially launch in October. 

• ER staff supported K-12 students who needed access to Online Resources for 
school by assisting with creating eCards, Treehouse, and IXL accounts and 
responded to 561 e-mails to the ASK account in June and 586 e-mails to the 
ASK account in July. 

 

POWERFUL PLATFORMS 

• CBS staff prepared an order for 1,050 Pre-K to Second grade Playaway 
tablets using ARP funds to support early learning. 

• CBS staff completed an order for 74 new video game titles for the branches to 
enhance the collection for learning and entertainment of our customers. 

• CBS staff added 5,627 titles with 10,831 new items to the collection and 
withdrew 5,802 items from the library catalog in June and added 3,984 titles 
with 10,321 new items to the collection and withdrew 6,944 items from the 
library catalog in July. The withdrawn items are either resold or discarded. 

• AS implemented a new Auto-renew feature to our catalog which automatically 
renews materials checked out by our customers if there are no pending Holds. 

• ER staff promoted homework help services, such as Brainfuse on our website 
to students now that the new school year has started. 

• DC staff provided book club kits to the branches to help support a community 
of readers. 

• IT completed the replacement of the end-of-life sorters at the Sahara West 
and West Las Vegas libraries and the replacement of end-of-life security gates 
at the Summerlin and West Charleston libraries to improve staff and customer 
efficiency. Ten end-of-life sorters and the end-of-life security gates for two 
branches still need to be replaced. 

• IT migrated the Blue Diamond and Searchlight libraries to the new Cox 
network. The bandwidth at both locations was increased from five Mbps to 10 
Mbps. The migration of the remaining outlying branches remains in progress. 

• IT completed the replacement of the end-of-life core network switch at the 
Windmill data center. 

• IT staff developed short-term and long-term plans for upgrading the Serra 
Library Services Platform. The short-term upgrade/migration will be 
completed by the end of this calendar year and the long-term plan is 
expected to be completed by the end of calendar year 2022. 

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

338



FY 2020-2021 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES STATISTICS
June 2021

Customer Support Jun-20 Jun-21 % Change  FY19-20 FY20-21 % Change  

Number of Phone Calls to Electronic 

Resources 147 164 11.56% 1358 1,900 39.91%

Length of Calls in Hours, Minutes, and 

Seconds 16:48:27 18:55:10 12.57% 147:28:51 236:23:13 60.28%

Number of emails to ask@lvccld.org 1,368 561 -58.99% 8,253 10,375 25.71%

Number of Classes 0 0 5 0

Number of Attendees 0 0 14 0

Downloadables and Streaming 

Circulation Jun-20 Jun-21 % Change  FY19-20 FY20-21 % Change  

eBooks 138,354 130,178 -5.91% 1,453,462 1,603,872 10.35%

Audiobooks 79,469 89,487 12.61% 1,009,929 1,015,694 0.57%

Magazines 9,884 6,731 -31.90% 127,455 124,021 -2.69%

Movies and TV 16,540 10,940 -33.86% 167,835 156,572 -6.71%

Music 29,600 19,774 -33.20% 341,221 304,835 -10.66%

Total 273,847 257,110 -6.11% 3,099,902 3,204,994 3.39%

Online Resources Usage by Category

Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals

Business and Careers 1,007 15,399 594 15,995 -41.01% 3.87% 11,410 319,755 9,094 216,670 -20.30% -32.24%

Health and Wellness 190 461 293 1,010 54.21% 119.09% 4,693 7,611 5,811 16,181 23.82% 112.60%

Homework Help 675 55,123 871 39,831 29.04% -27.74% 7,963 446,889 9,688 707,913 21.66% 58.41%

Online Learning 3,557 10,186 1,554 5,791 -56.31% -43.15% 38,330 98,820 32,290 77,777 -15.76% -21.29%

A-Z Resources (All Others) 14,486 51,012 12,454 83,629 -14.03% 63.94% 157,789 467,298 223,182 899,192 41.44% 92.42%

Retrievals: the number of full-content units or descriptive records examined, downloaded, or otherwise supplied to customers from electronic collections

Sessions: the number of times an electronic resource is accessed

% ChangeJun-20 Jun-21 % Change FY19-20 FY20-21

Top Online Resource From Each 

 Category Based on Retrievals

Online Resource Category Top Resource Sessions Retrievals

Business and Careers Reference Solutions 385 10,860

Health and Wellness Health Source - Nursing 7 323

Homework Help IXL 100 36,824

Limitless Learning LinkedIn Learning 170 4,686

A-Z Resources (All Others) Newsbank - LVRJ 2,015 31,983

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

339



FY 2020-2021 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES STATISTICS
July 2021

Customer Support Jul-20 Jul-21 % Change  FY20-21 FY21-22 % Change  

Number of Phone Calls to Electronic 

Resources 157 142 -9.55% 157 142 -9.55%

Length of Calls in Hours, Minutes, and 

Seconds 15:34:40 13:58:05 -10.33% 15:34:40 13:58:05 -10.33%

Number of emails to ask@lvccld.org 1,184 586 -50.51% 1,184 586 -50.51%

Number of Classes 0 0 0 0

Number of Attendees 0 0 0 0

Downloadables and Streaming 

Circulation Jul-20 Jul-21 % Change  FY20-21 FY21-22 % Change  

eBooks 141,169 133,616 -5.35% 141,169 133,616 -5.35%

Audiobooks 80,806 91,339 13.03% 80,806 91,339 13.03%

Magazines 10,801 7,683 -28.87% 10,801 7,683 -28.87%

Movies and TV 15,910 12,158 -23.58% 15,910 12,158 -23.58%

Music 29,943 19,940 -33.41% 29,943 19,940 -33.41%

Total 278,629 264,736 -4.99% 278,629 264,736 -4.99%

Online Resources Usage by Category

Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals Sessions Retrievals

Business and Careers 981 16,381 555 11,014 -43.43% -32.76% 981 16,381 555 11,014 -43.43% -32.76%

Health and Wellness 384 477 212 211 -44.79% -55.77% 384 477 212 211 -44.79% -55.77%

Homework Help 629 26,411 822 56,750 30.68% 114.87% 629 26,411 822 56,750 30.68% 114.87%

Online Learning 3,474 7,616 1,148 5,791 -66.95% -23.96% 3,474 7,616 1,148 5,791 -66.95% -23.96%

A-Z Resources (All Others) 27,436 70,351 12,476 74,759 -54.53% 6.27% 27,436 70,351 12,476 74,759 -54.53% 6.27%

Retrievals: the number of full-content units or descriptive records examined, downloaded, or otherwise supplied to customers from electronic collections

Sessions: the number of times an electronic resource is accessed

% ChangeJul-20 Jul-21 % Change FY20-21 FY21-22

Top Online Resource From Each 

 Category Based on Retrievals

Online Resource Category Top Resource Sessions Retrievals

Business and Careers Reference Solutions 324 6,836

Health and Wellness Academic Search Main 40 44

Homework Help IXL 112 53,567

Online Learning LinkedIn Learning 144 5,059

A-Z Resources (All Others) Newsbank - LVRJ 2,026 32,671

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

340



  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
  
FROM: Floresto Cabias, Chief Financial Officer 

DATE:  July 31, 2021 

SUBJECT: Financial Services Report, August 2021 

This report summarizes the Financial Services Department’s activities and 
accomplishments in the month of July 2021. 

Administration 

• Updated the District’s cash flow analysis 
• Submitted the annual Indebtedness Report, Debt Management Policy, and Capital 

Improvement Plan to the State of Nevada Department of Taxation and the Clark 
County Debt Management Commission, per NRS requirement 

• Lynn Wing worked with District staff regarding purchasing training and 
procedures 

• Lynn Wing created and updated vendor and customer accounts for accounts 
payable and accounts receivable in the Microsoft Serenic Navigator system 

• Lynn Wing created and updated staff user accounts for online ordering of 
supplies from Staples, Office Plus, and Brodart (contract vendors); worked with 
District staff and vendors to update information and resolve issues  

• Lynn Wing prepared and followed up on Agreements for Services for Literacy 
instructors and for performances scheduled for District-wide events 

• Lynn Wing prepared weekly bank deposits 
• Lynn Wing attended RISE training 
• Prepared monthly Budget Status Reports  
• Scanned documents and updated files 
 
Accounting 

• Coded and verified all transactions ($2.2M for the month of July) 
• Financial Services and Human Resources staff met to discuss payroll and other 

shared topics 
• Attended UKG Ready (HRIS) meetings and training sessions 
• Completed fixed assets inventories for all urban branches 
• In FY 2022, staff will visit branches to review compliance with internal control 

procedures related to cash handling 
• Performed all payroll related duties 
• Performed all accounts payable duties  
• Performed all accounts receivable duties, including collections for overdue 

accounts 

ITEM VI.A.4.a. 

August 2021 

  

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

341



Financial Services Report 
July 31, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

• Prepared year-to-date detail transaction reports for each location/department 
• Reviewed and reconciled outstanding invoices 
• Reconciled daily cash reports received from branches to bank deposits 
• Provided detail budget status for staff as required 
• Prepared and scanned monthly journal voucher entries 
• Reconciled monthly bank statements 
• Prepared and mailed Financial Services invoices  
• Processed refunds for cancelled Room Reservations 
• Reviewed e-fines and patron inquiries regarding online payments 
• Reconciled copier meter reading reports from branches/departments to invoices 
• Staff cross-trained in payroll, fixed assets, cash receipts, and other Financial 

Services procedures 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

342



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
To: Kelvin Watson, Executive Director  
 
From: Floresto Cabias, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: July 31, 2021 
 
Subject: July 2021 Budget Status Report 
 
 
Enclosed are the budget status reports for July 2021. According to governmental 
accounting standards, property tax and sales tax revenues collected in July and 
August are recorded as prior-year revenue. Therefore, minimal property tax and no 
consolidated sales tax revenue is reflected in the month of July. 
 
General Fund expenditures indicate that 8% of the allocated budget has been spent. 
Based on ratable spending levels (spending occurs approximately at the same rate 
every month), General Fund expenditures are on target. All departments and library 
branches are within their budgets, and show between 87% and 97% left to spend. 
 
Staff will be available to answer any questions that you may have. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

343



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

General Fund - 100
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Tax Revenue 77,787.81                         53,100,000.00 53,022,212.19             99.85%
Intergovenmental Revenue -                                     23,400,000.00 23,400,000.00             100.00%
Charges for Services 4,861.25                           500,000.00      495,138.75                   99.03%
Fines & Forfeits 50,255.84                         500,000.00      449,744.16                   89.95%
Miscellaneous 36,193.81                         810,000.00      773,806.19                   95.53%

Total Revenues 169,098.71                       78,310,000.00 78,140,901.29             99.78%

Expenditures
Salaries 2,242,436.62                   32,562,438.00 30,320,001.38             93.11%
Benefits 785,022.54                       13,125,445.00 12,340,422.46             94.02%
Supplies & Services 1,524,702.52                   15,356,409.00 13,831,706.48             90.07%
Capital Outlay 1,232,713.28                   10,767,307.00 9,534,593.72               88.55%

Total Expenditures 5,784,874.96                   71,811,599.00 66,026,724.04             91.94%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (5,615,776.25)                  6,498,401.00   12,114,177.25             7.84%

 

1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

344



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By Department

General Fund - 100
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget

Dollar Budget 
Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
   
110 Administration - Executive 45,766.62                         949,020.00                  903,253.38      95.18%
120 Administration - Library Operations 72,895.23                         1,741,177.00               1,668,281.77   95.81%
200 Financial Services 111,068.21                       1,867,973.00               1,756,904.79   94.05%
215 Community Outreach 37,095.28                         525,357.00                  488,261.72      92.94%
216 Youth Services 40,130.90                         386,363.00                  346,232.10      89.61%
220 Development and Planning 39,069.62                         590,056.00                  550,986.38      93.38%
240 General Services/Facilities 1,071,752.77                   10,498,423.00             9,426,670.23   89.79%
250 Human Resources 121,755.06                       2,674,812.00               2,553,056.94   95.45%
251 HR-Work Insurance 9,761.28                           1,501,744.00               1,491,982.72   99.35%
260 Information Technology 520,455.67                       4,072,848.00               3,552,392.33   87.22%
270 Literacy Department 32,134.77                         397,676.00                  365,541.23      91.92%
280 Branding and Marketing 77,700.13                         1,864,914.00               1,787,213.87   95.83%
290 Access Services Department 70,314.86                         1,139,565.00               1,069,250.14   93.83%
310 Collection and Bibliographic Services 1,477,751.39                   12,937,872.00             11,460,120.61 88.58%
320 Gallery Services 13,545.64                         183,616.00                  170,070.36      92.62%
330 Facilities 206,351.68                       3,031,596.00               2,825,244.32   93.19%
340 Community Engagement 15,804.26                         458,550.00                  442,745.74      96.55%
400 Library Operations 1,821,521.59                   26,990,037.00             25,168,515.41 93.25%

Total 5,784,874.96                   71,811,599.00             66,026,724.04 91.94%

2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

345



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By Location

General Fund - 100
Library Operations - Dept 400
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
100 Blue Diamond 5,275.66                           76,057.00                         70,781.34                      93.06%
110 Bunkerville 4,002.08                           61,328.00                         57,325.92                      93.47%
120 Clark County Library 190,910.75                       2,779,346.00                   2,588,435.25                93.13%
130 Enterprise Library 105,468.54                       1,441,669.00                   1,336,200.46                92.68%
140 Goodsprings 6,120.27                           82,779.00                         76,658.73                      92.61%
160 Indian Springs 8,512.12                           110,509.00                       101,996.88                   92.30%
180 Laughlin 54,208.01                         726,089.00                       671,880.99                   92.53%
190 Mesquite 77,229.08                         1,072,843.00                   995,613.92                   92.80%
200 Moapa Town 4,640.38                           58,868.00                         54,227.62                      92.12%
210 Moapa Valley 22,875.84                         328,880.00                       306,004.16                   93.04%
220 Mount Charleston 4,983.54                           65,763.00                         60,779.46                      92.42%
230 Rainbow Library 128,187.21                       1,842,222.00                   1,714,034.79                93.04%
240 Sahara West Library 171,284.99                       2,584,240.00                   2,412,955.01                93.37%
250 Sandy Valley 5,952.61                           96,110.00                         90,157.39                      93.81%
260 Searchlight 4,568.85                           62,466.00                         57,897.15                      92.69%
270 Spring Valley Library 126,134.17                       1,721,165.00                   1,595,030.83                92.67%
280 Summerlin Library 107,103.02                       1,531,780.00                   1,424,676.98                93.01%
290 Sunrise Library 95,229.08                         1,547,932.00                   1,452,702.92                93.85%
300 West Charleston Library 114,839.45                       1,685,830.00                   1,570,990.55                93.19%
310 West Las Vegas Library 102,008.02                       1,663,433.00                   1,561,424.98                93.87%
320 Whitney Library 100,441.97                       1,559,832.00                   1,459,390.03                93.56%
360 Meadows Library 6,772.09                           99,539.00                         92,766.91                      93.20%
370 Centennial Hills 113,952.29                       1,923,480.00                   1,809,527.71                94.08%
380 Windmill Library 130,090.36                       1,830,571.00                   1,700,480.64                92.89%
390 East Las Vegas Library 127,159.60                       1,989,585.00                   1,862,425.40                93.61%
605 City Misdemeanant 3,571.61                           47,721.00                         44,149.39                      92.52%

Total 1,821,521.59                   26,990,037.00                 25,168,515.41              93.25%

3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

346



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

General Fund - 100
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
51100 Salaries - Full Time 1,790,869.70                   24,921,202.00                 23,130,332.30                 92.81%
51200 Salaries - Part Time 418,085.81                       6,199,467.00                   5,781,381.19                   93.26%
51300 Overtime Pay 1,501.26                           55,000.00                         53,498.74                         97.27%
51400 Call Back Pay 1,060.26                           8,595.00                           7,534.74                           87.66%
51500 Standby Pay 5,323.99                           50,366.00                         45,042.01                         89.43%
51600 Longevity Pay 23,074.18                         377,808.00                       354,733.82                       93.89%
51700 Separation Pay 2,521.42                           450,000.00                       447,478.58                       99.44%
51800 Leave Buyout -                                     500,000.00                       500,000.00                       100.00%
55100 Employees Retirement 557,445.54                       7,938,096.00                   7,380,650.46                   92.98%
55200 Group Insurance 173,474.22                       4,072,148.00                   3,898,673.78                   95.74%
55300 Workers' Comp. Payments -                                     271,544.00                       271,544.00                       100.00%
55400 Medicare Coverage Expense 54,102.78                         768,657.00                       714,554.22                       92.96%
55500 Unemployment Insurance -                                     75,000.00                         75,000.00                         100.00%
61100 Office Supplies 23,948.09                         559,357.00                       535,408.91                       95.72%
61110 Operating Supplies 27,006.79                         597,065.00                       570,058.21                       95.48%
61120 Software & User Licenses -                                     521,994.00                       521,994.00                       100.00%
61130 Software Maintenance 350,484.08                       841,400.00                       490,915.92                       58.35%
61200 Book Materials & Supplies 1,388.44                           120,409.00                       119,020.56                       98.85%
61205 Interlibrary Loan -                                     4,500.00                           4,500.00                           100.00%
61210 Small Equipment 8,575.61                           478,000.00                       469,424.39                       98.21%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint. 1,110.09                           690,280.00                       689,169.91                       99.84%
61410 Contracted Services 396,231.34                       5,441,007.00                   5,044,775.66                   92.72%
61420 Building Repair & Maint. 13,514.71                         218,200.00                       204,685.29                       93.81%
61500 Rental Expenses 2,071.75                           47,316.00                         45,244.25                         95.62%
61600 Telephone 39,336.41                         600,000.00                       560,663.59                       93.44%
61700 Utilities 112,478.79                       1,935,071.00                   1,822,592.21                   94.19%
61800 Insurance & Bonds 357,053.45                       355,000.00                       (2,053.45)                          -0.58%
61900 Professional Services 130,175.43                       932,700.00                       802,524.57                       86.04%
61910 Legal Services 3,674.23                           394,500.00                       390,825.77                       99.07%
62200 Collection Agencies 4,387.50                           310,000.00                       305,612.50                       98.58%
62300 Board Compensation -                                     6,200.00                           6,200.00                           100.00%
62500 Postage 25,000.00                         75,100.00                         50,100.00                         66.71%
62510 Advertising 10,000.00                         88,700.00                         78,700.00                         88.73%
62600 Community Events -                                     23,750.00                         23,750.00                         100.00%
62620 Recruitment 104.09                               625.00                               520.91                               83.35%
62700 Education & Training 5,142.00                           310,735.00                       305,593.00                       98.35%
62800 Travel & Transportation 594.72                               285,250.00                       284,655.28                       99.79%
62900 Printing & Reproduction 2,730.60                           99,250.00                         96,519.40                         97.25%
63000 Dues & Subscriptions 3,811.91                           43,200.00                         39,388.09                         91.18%
65000 Miscellaneous Expenses 213.98                               41,800.00                         41,586.02                         99.49%
65100 Bank Charges 5,668.51                           20,000.00                         14,331.49                         71.66%
67000 Rental Expenses to QALICBs -                                     315,000.00                       315,000.00                       100.00%
81700 Library Books 1,232,713.28                   10,767,307.00                 9,534,593.72                   88.55%

Total 5,784,874.96                   71,811,599.00                 66,026,724.04                 91.94%

4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

347



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Grant Fund - 220
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Intergovenmental Revenue -                                     1,800,000.00 1,800,000.00               100.00%
Total Revenues -                                     1,800,000.00 1,800,000.00               100.00%

Expenditures
Salaries 22,124.88                         480,000.00     457,875.12                   95.39%
Benefits 8,770.86                           210,000.00     201,229.14                   95.82%
Supplies & Services 7,928.66                           500,000.00     492,071.34                   98.41%
Capital Outlay 40,225.00                         610,000.00     569,775.00                   93.41%

Total Expenditures 79,049.40                         1,800,000.00 1,720,950.60               95.61%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (79,049.40)                        -                   79,049.40                     4.39%

 

5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

348



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Grant Fund - 220
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
51100 Salaries - Full Time 22,012.17                         480,000.00                       457,987.83                       95.41%
51600 Longevity Pay 112.71                               -                                     (112.71)                             
55100 Employees Retirement 6,594.70                           162,356.79                       155,762.09                       95.94%
55200 Group Insurance 1,857.37                           43,576.29                         41,718.92                         95.74%
55400 Medicare Coverage Expense 318.79                               4,066.92                           3,748.13                           92.16%
61100 Office Supplies 8.66                                   1,223.54                           1,214.88                           99.29%
61110 Operating Supplies -                                     2,400.00                           2,400.00                           100.00%
61120 Software & User Licenses -                                     55,000.00                         55,000.00                         100.00%
61210 Small Equipment 7,920.00                           -                                     (7,920.00)                          
61410 Contracted Services -                                     424,040.00                       424,040.00                       100.00%
62800 Travel & Transportation -                                     7,121.12                           7,121.12                           100.00%
65000 Miscellaneous Expenses -                                     10,215.34                         10,215.34                         100.00%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major 40,225.00                         460,000.00                       419,775.00                       91.26%
81700 Library Books -                                     150,000.00                       150,000.00                       100.00%

Total 79,049.40                         1,800,000.00                   1,720,950.60                   95.61%

6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

349



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Gift Fund - 230
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Miscellaneous 3,851.35                           815,000.00     811,148.65                   99.53%
Total Revenues 3,851.35                           815,000.00     811,148.65                   99.53%

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 3,757.40                           715,000.00     711,242.60                   99.47%
Capital Outlay -                                     100,000.00     100,000.00                   100.00%

Total Expenditures 3,757.40                           815,000.00     811,242.60                   99.54%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 93.95                                 -                   (93.95)                           -0.01%

 

7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

350



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Gift Fund - 230
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
61100 Office Supplies -                                     20,000.00                         20,000.00                         100.00%
61110 Operating Supplies 158.68                               15,000.00                         14,841.32                         98.94%
61210 Small Equipment -                                     15,000.00                         15,000.00                         100.00%
61410 Contracted Services -                                     250,000.00                       250,000.00                       100.00%
61500 Rental Expenses -                                     315,000.00                       315,000.00                       100.00%
61900 Professional Services 3,112.50                           100,000.00                       96,887.50                         96.89%
65000 Miscellaneous Expenses 486.22                               -                                     (486.22)                             
81600 Capital Equipment - Major -                                     100,000.00                       100,000.00                       100.00%

Total 3,757.40                           815,000.00                       811,242.60                       99.54%

8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

351



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Capital Projects Fund - 510
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Miscellaneous 5,857.72                           30,000.00         24,142.28                     80.47%
Total Revenues 5,857.72                           30,000.00         24,142.28                     80.47%

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 270,875.07                       3,980,300.00    3,709,424.93               93.19%
Capital Outlay 5,788.02                           1,961,200.00    1,955,411.98               99.70%

Total Expenditures 276,663.09                       5,941,500.00    5,664,836.91               95.34%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (270,805.37)                     (5,911,500.00)  (5,640,694.63)              -14.87%

 

9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

352



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Capital Projects Fund - 510
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
61110 Operating Supplies -                                     43,500.00                         43,500.00                         100.00%
61120 Software & User Licenses -                                     250,000.00                       237,760.00                       95.10%
61130 Software Maintenance 12,240.00                         50,000.00                         43,059.77                         86.12%
61210 Small Equipment 6,940.23                           1,191,800.00                   1,184,859.77                   99.42%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint. 237,649.41                       645,000.00                       407,350.59                       63.16%
61420 Building Repair & Maint. 10,119.00                         800,000.00                       789,881.00                       98.74%
61900 Professional Services -                                     960,000.00                       960,000.00                       100.00%
65100 Bank Charges 3,926.43                           40,000.00                         36,073.57                         90.18%
81500 Capital Improvements -                                     861,200.00                       861,200.00                       100.00%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major 5,788.02                           1,100,000.00                   1,094,211.98                   99.47%

Total 276,663.09                       5,941,500.00                   5,664,836.91                   95.34%

10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

353



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 2050 - Furniture Replacement
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61210 Small Equipment  6,940.23                               75,000.00          68,059.77                            91%

Total Expenditures 6,940.23                               75,000.00          68,059.77                            91%

510
Capital Projects Fund

11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

354



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 2200 - Financial Services Projects
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        185,000.00        185,000.00                          100%
65100 Bank Charges  3,926.43                               40,000.00          36,073.57                            90%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  -                                        80,000.00          80,000.00                            100%

Total Expenditures 3,926.43                               305,000.00        301,073.57                          99%

510
Capital Projects Fund

12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

355



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 4010 - Tech Replacements & Upgrades
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61120 Software & User Licenses  -                                        250,000.00        250,000.00                          100%
61130 Software Maintenance  12,240.00                             50,000.00          37,760.00                            76%
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        455,000.00        455,000.00                          100%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint.  237,649.41                           545,000.00        307,350.59                          56%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  3,860.22                               285,000.00        281,139.78                          99%

Total Expenditures 253,749.63                           1,585,000.00     1,331,250.37                       84%

Capital Projects Fund
510

13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

356



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 5010 - Bldg Repair & Maintenance
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61110 Operating Supplies  -                                        43,500.00          43,500.00                            100%
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        100,000.00        100,000.00                          100%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint.  -                                        100,000.00        100,000.00                          100%
61420 Building Repair & Maint.  10,119.00                             800,000.00        789,881.00                          99%
61900 Professional Services  -                                        800,000.00        800,000.00                          100%
81500 Capital Improvements  -                                        700,000.00        700,000.00                          100%

Total Expenditures 10,119.00                             2,543,500.00     2,533,381.00                       100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

357



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 5015 - Construction Projects
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Revenues
45200 Interest Earnings -                                        30,000.00          30,000.00                            100%

Total Revenues -                                        30,000.00          30,000.00                            100%

Expenditures
61900 Professional Services  -                                        160,000.00        160,000.00                          100%
81500 Capital Improvements  -                                        400,000.00        400,000.00                          100%

Total Expenditures -                                        560,000.00        560,000.00                          100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

358



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 5020 - PVS Projects
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        376,800.00        376,800.00                          100%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  1,927.80                               346,200.00        344,272.20                          99%

Total Expenditures 1,927.80                               723,000.00        721,072.20                          100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

359



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 9010 - Vehicle Purchase and Replacement
From 07/01/2021 through 07/31/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  -                                        150,000.00        150,000.00                          100%

Total Expenditures -                                        150,000.00        150,000.00                          100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

360



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Debt Service Fund - 610
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Miscellaneous 2.70                                   10,000.00 9,997.30                       99.97%
Total Revenues 2.70                                   10,000.00 9,997.30                       99.97%

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 1,125.00                           10,000.00 8,875.00                       88.75%
Debt Service -                                     -             -                                 

Total Expenditures 1,125.00                           10,000.00 8,875.00                       88.75%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (1,122.30)                          -             1,122.30                       11.22%

 

18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

361



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Debt Service Fund - 610
From 07/01/2021 Through 07/31/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
65100 Bank Charges 1,125.00                           10,000.00                         8,875.00                           88.75%

Total 1,125.00                           10,000.00                         8,875.00                           88.75%

19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

362



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12714 6/28/2021 1017 AAA Air Filter Company, Inc. RB,SM,WV: Air Filter Changes 798.30                          
12716 6/28/2021 10331 New Horizons Learning Group IT Training hours good thru 12/2022 20,000.00                     
12718 6/28/2021 10989 Judy Chappell June 10 Board Meetings 365.50                          
12719 6/28/2021 11030 Robco Electric Inc CC: (PVS) Audio Installation 4,646.24                       
12720 6/28/2021 11132 The Griffin Company Legislative Affairs  - May 2021 6,250.00                       
12721 6/28/2021 11608 3F Initiatives LLC Translation Services  April-June 2021 1,659.00                       
12722 6/28/2021 1201 Best Janitorial Services of Nevada Extra Janitorial Services - MAY 2021 1,925.00                       
12723 6/28/2021 1429 D.C. Thomas BD Rent July 2021 1,468.00                       
12724 6/28/2021 1457 Demco, Inc. 1000 Books B4K Milestone Stickers - SV 290.33                          
12725 6/28/2021 1590 Mergent, Inc. Principal International Dir 7/1/21-6/30/22 2,816.00                       
12726 6/28/2021 1620 Full Compass Systems Ltd GTB-UHD-HBT 4K Ultra HD Extender 842.32                          
12727 6/28/2021 1753 InfoUSA Marketing, Inc.-A Sub of Infogroup Inc. DATA AXLE REF USA package 6/15/21-6/14/22 71,335.00                     
12728 6/28/2021 2307 Progressive Elevator CC: Elevator 697.00                          
12729 6/28/2021 2486 Sonitrol Of Southern NV Various: Alarm response/repair 61420 122.84                          
12730 6/28/2021 2733 Phoenix Fire Protection, LLC RB: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 1,445.00                       
12731 6/28/2021 2741 Westgate Book Exchange used paperbacks for MISD 5,000.00                       
12732 6/28/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 17,436.25                     
12733 6/28/2021 2799 CDW Government Inc, Cat6 Cables for Core Replacement 931.00                          
12734 6/28/2021 2852 Chem-Aqua, Inc. EV: Monthly HVAC Chemical Service 1,185.70                       
12735 6/28/2021 2853 Dick Blick Spectra glitter pnk - SU 577.16                          
12736 6/28/2021 2860 Las Vegas Review Journal June purchasing ad - El Tiempo 43.75                            
12737 6/28/2021 3073 Hammond Sheet Metal, Inc. WM: Restroom Dispenser Repairs 234.00                          
12738 6/28/2021 3435 Ace Fire Systems, Inc. CC: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 525.00                          
12739 6/28/2021 3776 Got Bugs LLC MQ: Pest Control 400.00                          
12740 6/28/2021 4604 Brodart Library Supplies & Furnishings Deluxe Mobile Art supply Cart -SM 797.70                          
12741 6/28/2021 5001 UniFirst Corporation Uniform Rental 108.26                          
12742 6/28/2021 5130 OverDrive Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 154,205.89                  
12743 6/28/2021 5244 A&B Printing & Mailing Lights postcard invoice - underpaid 90.00                            
12744 6/28/2021 5769 The Penworthy Company  Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 4,030.31                       
12745 6/28/2021 7371 EnvisionWare, Inc. RFID tags 2x3BL 7,453.00                       
12746 6/28/2021 7419 EDS Electronics Inc. SW: Fire Alarm Tests / Inspections 330.00                          
12747 6/28/2021 7655 Gill's Printing and Color Graphics Whitecloud bookmarks and SC21 flyers 4,366.36                       
12748 6/28/2021 7975 Mary Gound Writing 439 5/7/21-6/18/21 567.00                          
12749 6/28/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Cardholder silver - EV 10,047.87                     
12752 6/28/2021 9074 Statewide Fire Protection - Western States CH: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 175.00                          
12753 6/28/2021 9133 Ted Wiens Tire & Auto Centers #49: Replace (2) tires 740.58                          
12754 6/28/2021 9191 Canon Solutions America, Inc. Monthly Maint 04/15/21-05/14/21 - RB 302.74                          
12755 6/28/2021 9383 Office Plus Crtdg,lsr,bk,27k - EN 1,505.96                       
12756 6/28/2021 9431 B&H Photo-Video GOOGLE GOOGLE HOME MINI - CHALK/REG 234.83                          
12757 6/28/2021 9483 Tecre Co., Inc. "1"" button maker for MV" 2,721.87                       
12759 7/5/2021 10129 Fun Express LLC Sea Life mochi squishies - RB 467.88                          
12761 7/5/2021 1017 AAA Air Filter Company, Inc. RB,SM,WV: Air Filter Changes 3,211.55                       
12763 7/5/2021 10572 Mesquite Electric LLC MQL: Service Call - Lighting Wiring Issues 75.00                            
12764 7/5/2021 10604 Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC RB: May Service Call for ADT Panel 18.95                            
12765 7/5/2021 1064 Allied Refrigeration Inc. Various 515.88                          
12766 7/5/2021 10804 The Lindi Corporation MQL: Service Call - Backflow Leak 457.00                          
12767 7/5/2021 10809 Sandra Kay Ramaker June 2021 Board Meetings 80.00                            
12768 7/5/2021 10864 Brian M. Wilson June 2021 Board Meetings 80.00                            
12769 7/5/2021 10927 CenturyLink Service June 2021 2,064.72                       
12770 7/5/2021 10970 Laura L. Nguyen Virtual CASAS SI 6/22-6/23 324.00                          
12771 7/5/2021 11055 Bryant K. Rogers June 2021 Board meetings 80.00                            
12772 7/5/2021 1157 AZ Partsmaster Various 247.98                          
12773 7/5/2021 11598 Joseph F. Cortese VIRTUAL CASAS SI 6/22-6/23 324.00                          
12774 7/5/2021 11626 Jay Atwood Piano Tuning Services - SM 185.00                          
12776 7/5/2021 11652 Nathaniel Paul Waugh June 2021 Board Meetings 80.00                            
12777 7/5/2021 11657 Maria A. Preston Virt CASAS SI 6/22-6/23 324.00                          
12778 7/5/2021 11681 Jennifer L. Jiron June 2021 Board meetings 80.00                            
12779 7/5/2021 1180 Baron Pest Solutions, Inc. LA: Pest Control 37.00                            
12780 7/5/2021 1240 Brady Industries of Nevada, LLC Various 102.72                          
12782 7/5/2021 1457 Demco, Inc. Sphero Terrain Park, Cubelets Bluetooth Hat 152.16                          
12783 7/5/2021 1580 Ferguson Enterprises, LLC Various 1,343.92                       
12784 7/5/2021 1757 Ingram Library Services Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 24,024.73                     
12785 7/5/2021 1837 Johnstone Supply Various 622.69                          
12786 7/5/2021 1950 Liberty Lock and Security SM (4) Filing Cabinets Keys 11.80                            
12788 7/5/2021 2152 Nedco Supply #52 Electrical Supplies 96.14                            
12789 7/5/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 05/22/21-06/22/21 MT 222.50                          
12790 7/5/2021 2362 Refrigeration Supplies Distributor Various 504.05                          
12791 7/5/2021 2471 Silver State Glass & Mirror WH:  Door Install & Weatherstripping 1,780.00                       
12792 7/5/2021 2567 Teamsters Local Union #14 Union Dues - July 2021 8,420.00                       
12793 7/5/2021 2702 Grainger, Inc. Stock #9942872939 Safety Equipt: 109.14                          
12794 7/5/2021 2891 AFLAC Premium June 2021 815.32                          
12795 7/5/2021 3309 Batteries Plus WO-4637 #P39361086 EV (4) Faucet Batteries 51.96                            
12796 7/5/2021 3435 Ace Fire Systems, Inc. WC: Service Call - Fire Panel 233.00                          
12797 7/5/2021 3770 Cox Communications of Las Vegas Service 06/17/21-07/16/21 12,363.76                     
12798 7/5/2021 4676 Color Reflections Board of Trustees 2021 Sign 36.00                            
12799 7/5/2021 4721 Sweetwater  Podcasting - EN 2,579.00                       
12800 7/5/2021 5001 UniFirst Corporation Uniform Rental 99.36                            
12801 7/5/2021 6646 Aqua Serv Engineers, Inc. HVAC Water Treatment 4,279.82                       
12802 7/5/2021 7419 EDS Electronics Inc. SW: Replace failed Pull Station 336.12                          
12803 7/5/2021 7943 Communication Electronic Systems Inc CC: Service Call - Door Holder Wiring Issue 492.00                          
12804 7/5/2021 8010 Allied Universal Security Services PVS Event Guards 05/28/21-06/10/21 - SM 90,959.87                     
12806 7/5/2021 8557 Guaranteed Pest Solutions LLC Urban: Bed Bug Inspections 168.75                          
12807 7/5/2021 8670 Nelson Hiniker Striping, Inc. Stock:  Sandbags 60.00                            
12808 7/5/2021 8718 Library Ideas, LLC  Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 934.80                          
12810 7/5/2021 9133 Ted Wiens Tire & Auto Centers #42: Troubleshooting & Brake Repairs 1,655.36                       
12811 7/5/2021 9332 Felipe A. Ortiz June 2021 Board meetings 80.00                            
12812 7/5/2021 9383 Office Plus Toner,414a,hy,bk - IT 997.92                          
12813 7/5/2021 9431 B&H Photo-Video GOOGLE GOOGLE HOME MINI - CHALK/REG 1,938.94                       

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

363



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12814 7/5/2021 9511 Manny David Ford Virt CASAS SI 6/22-6/23 324.00                          
12815 7/5/2021 9553 Ashworth and Belcastro Systems (ABS) June 2021 QI Deficiency Repairs 45.00                            
12816 7/5/2021 9649 Freeman's Carpet Service, Inc. WM: Electrical / Floor Repair 568.00                          
12817 7/5/2021 9730 Commercial Lighting Specialties WO-5485 #86886 WV Lighting 55.00                            
12818 7/12/2021 10017 CDA Media Relations July purchasing ad 350.00                          
12819 7/12/2021 10212 Virgin Valley Water District Service 05/20/21-06/20/21 1,371.41                       
12820 7/12/2021 10808 Patron Point, Inc. Patron Point Annual Subs. End: 6/30/22 27,600.00                     
12821 7/12/2021 10912 SNEZH, LLC Flashforge Guider II 3D Printer - 3,345.21                       
12822 7/12/2021 1757 Ingram Library Services summer challenge book prizes 28,820.49                     
12823 7/12/2021 2698 Virgin Valley Disposal Rental Fee/Toter Svc Service June 2021 132.45                          
12824 7/12/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 53,091.10                     
12825 7/12/2021 2822 City of Mesquite Sanitation Service Jul, Aug, & Sept 2021 570.97                          
12826 7/12/2021 2860 Las Vegas Review Journal AFR publication 429.04                          
12827 7/12/2021 3307 Unique Management Services, Inc. Placements - Jun 2021 5,973.75                       
12828 7/12/2021 3324 Rio Virgin Telephone Co. Service July 2021 427.76                          
12829 7/12/2021 3500 Garda CL West, Inc Armored Transportation - Jul 2021 2,907.69                       
12830 7/12/2021 4897 Public Employees Benefits Program State of NV Acct #750 Ins. Premium - Jul 2021 7,239.86                       
12831 7/12/2021 5130 OverDrive Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 82,797.21                     
12832 7/12/2021 6254 College of Southern Nevada Sewer Services 07/01/21-09/30/21 1,543.70                       
12833 7/12/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA 5.475 gallon store it all tote - CC 3,307.54                       
12835 7/12/2021 9383 Office Plus Crtdg,lsr 414xc - WM 1,331.02                       
12837 7/12/2021 9869 Unique Integrated Communications Call Center Operations 11,568.76                     
12838 7/12/2021 9907 PLIC-SBD Grand Island (Principal) Premium July 2021 21,619.97                     
12839 7/12/2021 9928 Stimulus Technologies Service July 2021 MC 1,047.90                       
12840 7/19/2021 1017 AAA Air Filter Company, Inc. CH: Air Filter Changes 2,816.00                       
12841 7/19/2021 10442 LV.Net Service 08/01/21-09/01/21 1,026.00                       
12842 7/19/2021 10686 NLS Grounds Management, LLC LA: Retrofit Irrigation and Replace Rock 358.70                          
12843 7/19/2021 1429 D.C. Thomas BD Rent Aug 2021 1,468.00                       
12844 7/19/2021 1950 Liberty Lock and Security Various: Misc service 61420 1,318.50                       
12845 7/19/2021 2098 Moapa Valley Water District Service 06/05/21-07/06/21 344.73                          
12846 7/19/2021 2215 OCLC Inc.  Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 5,043.33                       
12847 7/19/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 06/01/21-07/01/21 MQ 1,963.64                       
12848 7/19/2021 2465 Russell Sigler Inc. WV Theater: HVAC Repair 46.18                            
12849 7/19/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Service for July 2021-June 2022 130,863.06                  
12850 7/19/2021 2819 CenturyLink Communications, LLC Service July 2021 13,944.42                     
12851 7/19/2021 2860 Las Vegas Review Journal RJ advertising for June 2021 3,600.00                       
12852 7/19/2021 2914 Iron Mountain Service Jun 2021 495.58                          
12853 7/19/2021 3058 EBSCO Information Services EBSCO Databases 188,655.00                  
12854 7/19/2021 3061 Facts on File/Infobase Learning Invoice INV416043 & INV416039 27,417.57                     
12855 7/19/2021 3355 Teamsters Security Fund S. Nevada  Premium July 2021 347,035.95                  
12856 7/19/2021 4042 Baker & Taylor, Inc. TS360 Sub Fees 7/1/2021-6/30/22 4,100.00                       
12857 7/19/2021 4517 Fingerprint Pros, Inc. 7 pre-employment finger prints 413.00                          
12858 7/19/2021 4604 Brodart Library Supplies & Furnishings 5-side display cube - LA 2,073.99                       
12859 7/19/2021 4649 H & E Equipment Services Inc. 2021 Annual Lift Inspections 320.63                          
12860 7/19/2021 5130 OverDrive Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 12,500.00                     
12861 7/19/2021 7188 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.  Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 254.25                          
12862 7/19/2021 7371 EnvisionWare, Inc. LDS Fax Overage Aug 2020 to June 2021 1,000.25                       
12863 7/19/2021 7583 Boulder City Public Library District Annual Fines/Fee Payment - FY 20-21 1,374.49                       
12864 7/19/2021 7655 Gill's Printing and Color Graphics 1,500 Business Cards 373.28                          
12865 7/19/2021 7671 Rentokil EN - Service Call: Bees in valve box 500.00                          
12866 7/19/2021 8010 Allied Universal Security Services PVS Security 06/25/21-07/08/21 - CC/SM/WM 86,193.95                     
12867 7/19/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Folder sturdy chart size - LA 1,036.94                       
12870 7/19/2021 8718 Library Ideas, LLC  Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 1,258.50                       
12871 7/19/2021 9383 Office Plus Oem toner HP 648a -  RB 6,284.68                       
12872 7/19/2021 9431 B&H Photo-Video GOOGLE GOOGLE HOME MINI - CHALK/REG 1,858.09                       
12873 7/19/2021 9553 Ashworth and Belcastro Systems (ABS) June 2021 QI Deficiency Repairs 275.00                          
89608 7/1/2021 10084 A Public Fit Staged reading title TBA on June 25, 2021 700.00                          
89609 7/1/2021 10162 CenturyLink Service July 2021 143.90                          
89610 7/1/2021 10176 Jonathan Karrant Concert SM 6-25-21 2,000.00                       
89611 7/1/2021 10253 Elizabeth Ann Foyt June 2021 Board meetings 80.00                            
89612 7/1/2021 10568 Katherine Wind Three 60-min performances 375.00                          
89614 7/1/2021 11697 Emily Vaughn Kline Refund of overpayment P2228841 27.99                            
89615 7/1/2021 11703 Kathleen Hagen Turner Whiteley May/June Board Meetings 120.00                          
89616 7/1/2021 11813 Capitol Door Service SM - Service Call: West Patio Doors 379.90                          
89617 7/1/2021 1458 State Collections & Disbursement Unit Mandated Court Payment 1,317.90                       
89620 7/1/2021 1991 Lowe's Improvement May - June 2021 Various 1,658.38                       
89621 7/1/2021 2175 NV Energy Service 05/19/21-06/18/21 CH 8,336.94                       
89622 7/1/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 05/23/21-06/21/21 CH 335.99                          
89623 7/1/2021 2838 Verizon Wireless Service 05/21/21-06/20/21 2,320.20                       
89624 7/1/2021 2861 Jay D. Whipple MV: Pest Control 40.00                            
89628 7/1/2021 3383 Home Depot Credit Services May - June 2021 Various 2,279.48                       
89629 7/1/2021 5026 Nevada State Treasurer Mandated Court Payment 8.00                               
89630 7/1/2021 5246 Kelly D. Benavidez June 2021 Board meetings 80.00                            
89631 7/1/2021 5463 Displays2Go WV Teen Lounge 1,189.40                       
89632 7/1/2021 5932 Vortex Industries, Inc. Ann'l Fire Door/Curtains Testing 2,970.00                       
89633 7/1/2021 6817 Reliance Connects Service July 2021 640.45                          
89634 7/1/2021 7369 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON Amazon 061521 27,389.28                     
89635 7/1/2021 9696 Truly Superb Painting, LLC SV: Paint Lobby area 3,420.00                       
89636 7/1/2021 9711 Jose L. Melendrez June 2021 Board Meetings 80.00                            
89637 7/1/2021 9937 AFLAC Premium Holding Premium June 2021 2,390.96                       
89638 7/1/2021 11706 Leanne Thacker Payroll Replacement Check 06/01/2021 302.89                          
89639 7/8/2021 10049 State of NV Department of Business and Industry EMRB Annual Assessment 1,137.00                       
89640 7/8/2021 11636 Thomas Fitzgerald Tom + Lorenzo Author Visit  - 6/30/21 1,500.00                       
89641 7/8/2021 11684 Creel HoldCo LLC dba Creel Summer Challenge Brochure 2021 15,093.81                     
89642 7/8/2021 11691 Leslie Trevizo Macrame Classes on June 19, 23, 24 900.00                          
89643 7/8/2021 11700 Cynthia Amaro Mileage RMB 6/24-6/25 34.61                            
89644 7/8/2021 11708 Miriam E. Jani Jeppe Lifelock reimbursment 2021 209.99                          
89645 7/8/2021 11709 Salvador Avila Order PUR014056 349.99                          

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

364



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

89647 7/8/2021 2097 Moapa Valley Telephone Co. Inc. Service 06/26/21-07/25/21 1,621.85                       
89648 7/8/2021 2159 AT&T SBC Service 06/25/21-07/24/21 546.03                          
89649 7/8/2021 2175 NV Energy Service 05/25/21-06/24/21 EV 5,828.48                       
89650 7/8/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 05/27/21-06/24/21 SW 479.68                          
89653 7/8/2021 3149 Midwest Tape Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 14,462.53                     
89654 7/8/2021 4540 Office Team Temp Pay wk 4/30/21 4,123.17                       
89655 7/8/2021 8731 UNUM Life Insurance Co. of America Premium July 2021 355.40                          
89656 7/8/2021 9677 Elm USA, Inc. Eco Pro 2 Disc Cleaner for Small Branches 8,645.70                       
89657 7/8/2021 9895 National Benefit Services, LLC Admin Fee June 2021 417.00                          
89659 7/12/2021 9966 The Sherwin-Williams Co. WO-5251 #1807-3 RB Painting 41.24                            
89660 7/15/2021 10166 Growing Minds Media LLC Muzzy Club Online & fees July 2021-June 2022 7,500.00                       
89661 7/15/2021 10952 askART, Inc. 1 Yr AskArt sub 9/3/21-9/3/22 5,000.00                       
89662 7/15/2021 10998 Sprint Service 05/27/21-06/26/21 16,197.97                     
89663 7/15/2021 11009 KME Architects WV: Arch'l Srvcs to expand Computer Lab 9,640.00                       
89664 7/15/2021 11576 Robertson Industries, Inc. EV: Rubberized Resurfacing of exterior YPL 2,065.00                       
89665 7/15/2021 11581 Kerala Association of LV Refund Deposit  - Conference Rm 8/15/21 105.00                          
89667 7/15/2021 11662 Tyler Technologies, Inc. Renewal for Software & Supp. End: 6/30/22 7,250.00                       
89670 7/15/2021 11692 Wallis Consulting ALP Working Genius Worshop June 2021 240.00                          
89671 7/15/2021 11693 Richard James Cisneros Las Vegas Classica Music - June 14th 500.00                          
89672 7/15/2021 11705 Transparent Language, Inc. TL online renewal 7/1/21-6/30/22 20,000.00                     
89673 7/15/2021 11710 Voki Kalfayan Refund for returned item 20.99                            
89674 7/15/2021 11788 Carlotta Dickerson Lifelock reimbursement 349.99                          
89675 7/15/2021 11813 Capitol Door Service WC - Service Call: East side interior auto door 454.90                          
89676 7/15/2021 11856 BiblioLabs, LLC BiblioBoard Library Licensing Fee 7,500.00                       
89677 7/15/2021 1354 City Of Las Vegas-Sewer Fin & Bus Svcs Service 08/01/21-10/31/2021 EV 8,252.85                       
89678 7/15/2021 1366 Clark County Water Reclamation District Service 07/01/21-06/30/22 WH 26,546.31                     
89679 7/15/2021 1458 State Collections & Disbursement Unit Mandated Court Payment 1,317.90                       
89680 7/15/2021 1710 Henri Specialties CC: Restroom latches and hardware 692.40                          
89681 7/15/2021 2053 Matthew Bender & Co., Inc. NV Rev Stats & Court Rules 10,363.20                     
89682 7/15/2021 2175 NV Energy Summary Billing May 21 & Jun 21 65,284.75                     
89683 7/15/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 06/05/21-07/01/21 LA 168.00                          
89687 7/15/2021 2837 Republic Services 620 Recycling  Svc 06/01-06/30 WM 29,226.06                     
89688 7/15/2021 3149 Midwest Tape Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 15.60                            
89689 7/15/2021 3559 Diane Dewar (Other-PC) Replenishment of FAC Petty Cash 82.04                            
89690 7/15/2021 4111 Discovery Children's Museum Family Adventure Passes 30,000.00                     
89691 7/15/2021 5026 Nevada State Treasurer Mandated Court Payment 8.00                               
89692 7/15/2021 6700 SAGE Publications, Inc. CQ Researcher Arch Update 9/1/21-8/31/22 7,475.00                       
89693 7/15/2021 7865 Kevin Menegus 13 children's marionette shows 4,338.75                       
89694 7/15/2021 8148 North Las Vegas Library District Annual Fine/Fee Payment - FY20-21 7,426.84                       
89695 7/15/2021 8192 AT&T Service July 2021 48.10                            
89696 7/15/2021 8934 Zonar Systems, Inc. #62: GPS Activation 25.00                            
89697 7/15/2021 9696 Truly Superb Painting, LLC WV: Paint Conference Room 1,775.00                       
89699 7/22/2021 10641 Quench USA, Inc. Filtered Drinking Water 850.00                          
89700 7/22/2021 10877 Findaway World, LLC Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 3,405.30                       
89701 7/22/2021 10881 Cosco Fire Protection, Inc. EV: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 174.00                          
89703 7/22/2021 11003 Koo Koo Kanga Roo One 45 minute children's concert 2,000.00                       
89704 7/22/2021 11119 Tamaria Anderson Lifelock reimbursement 2021 349.99                          
89705 7/22/2021 11607 Operations Service Systems LLC Training for A-Team 1,505.00                       
89706 7/22/2021 11644 Advent Cleaners SC/Exec Suite: Dry-Clean Tablecloths & Skirts 111.00                          
89707 7/22/2021 11686 Reliable Pump & Motor WV: Replace Sump Pump & Clean Sump Basin 3,419.90                       
89708 7/22/2021 11707 Paul B. Schwartz Souvenairs Concert - July 17 2021 600.00                          
89709 7/22/2021 11721 Natalia Valencia PR Replacement 07/16/21 705.47                          
89710 7/22/2021 11801 Jeffrey Scott Trower SM Drum Circle 7-11-21 350.00                          
89711 7/22/2021 1366 Clark County Water Reclamation District Service 07/01/21-06/30/22 WM 21,309.86                     
89712 7/22/2021 2159 AT&T SBC Service 07/11/21-08/10/21 565.94                          
89713 7/22/2021 2175 NV Energy Service 06/02/21-07/01/21 WM 17,670.65                     
89714 7/22/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 06/13/21-07/13/21 CC 382.59                          
89721 7/22/2021 3149 Midwest Tape Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 45,968.39                     
89722 7/22/2021 4540 Office Team Cynthia Amaro - Wk 7/9/21 877.96                          
89723 7/22/2021 7465 Bell Trans Transportation for Yogapalooza June 2021 630.42                          
89724 7/22/2021 7740 Gaudin Ford Various 260.30                          
89725 7/22/2021 9706 Carlos Nieto III 12 one hour manga workshops 3,600.00                       
89726 7/23/2021 11720 Francienne Gutierrez Payroll Check 07/23/21 - A. Adler 385.48                          

Total 100 - General Fund 2,084,802.13               

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

365



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Grant Fund - 220
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12748 6/28/2021 7975 Mary Gound Writing 439 5/7/21-6/18/21 1,890.00                       
12749 6/28/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Cardholder silver - EV 602.59                          
12758 7/5/2021 10114 Vickie Thompson ABE Virtual Acad Adv 433-1 6/3-6/30 1,296.00                       
12775 7/5/2021 11640 Adrian M. Gee HiSET Prep class 435 5/15-6/26 540.00                          
12781 7/5/2021 1455 Dell Marketing L.P. Dell Order for ALP at CC 4,199.90                       
12833 7/12/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA 5.475 gallon store it all tote - CC 353.95                          
12868 7/19/2021 8511 GHA Technologies LSTA Early Childhood Grant 7,920.00                       
89613 7/1/2021 11671 Marc B. Leeds TISOH 432 5/17-6/29 2,133.00                       
89662 7/15/2021 10998 Sprint Service 05/27/21-06/26/21 4,558.08                       
89670 7/15/2021 11692 Wallis Consulting ALP Working Genius Worshop June 2021 2,760.00                       

Total 220 - Grant Fund 26,253.52                    

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

366



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Gift Fund - 230
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12717 6/28/2021 10746 Santiago Ricoy BBTTC instruction 1,400.00                       
12749 6/28/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Cardholder silver - EV 163.57                          
12751 6/28/2021 8671 Eurie Creative, Inc. Design Services 2,550.00                       
12867 7/19/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Folder sturdy chart size - LA 35.19                            
89698 7/22/2021 10539 Jonathan Watson EN DJ instruction 112.50                          
89702 7/22/2021 10889 Kenneth C. Harmon BBTTC instruction 800.00                          

Total 230 - Gift Fund 5,061.26                       

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

367



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Capital Projects Fund - 510
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12715 6/28/2021 10305 A Affordable Striping & Sealing LLC RB: Restripe Parking Lots 1,913.00                       
12733 6/28/2021 2799 CDW Government Inc, Cat6 Cables for Core Replacement 746.05                          
12750 6/28/2021 8511 GHA Technologies For Public Urban Printer Upgrades 19,083.24                     
12760 7/5/2021 10147 CompuNet, Inc. Replacement EOL 820 DNS systems, End: 2/24 2,280.38                       
12762 7/5/2021 10305 A Affordable Striping & Sealing LLC WV: Restripe Parking Lots 4,372.60                       
12787 7/5/2021 2015 Machabee Office Environments WV-Strive Chairs 4,663.40                       
12805 7/5/2021 8502 Regina L. Schweska RB Labor Compliance-Chiller 4,216.00                       
12813 7/5/2021 9431 B&H Photo-Video GOOGLE GOOGLE HOME MINI - CHALK/REG 2,520.00                       
12834 7/12/2021 9191 Canon Solutions America, Inc. Copier for Goodsprings 1,833.00                       
12836 7/12/2021 9612 MakerBot For MakerBot Method X Printer 599.00                          
12842 7/19/2021 10686 NLS Grounds Management, LLC LA: Retrofit Irrigation and Replace Rock 36,880.00                     
12874 7/19/2021 9612 MakerBot For MakerBot Method X Printer 7,710.26                       
89646 7/8/2021 11818 Stewart Legacy Construction, LLC SW Nv Hub Sub: Powerwash Patio Area 2,375.76                       
89666 7/15/2021 11645 Harris Las Vegas, LLC RB: Chiller Replacement (Proj #2107) 2,002.47                       
89668 7/15/2021 11665 SunStone Building Specialties WV: MPR - Repair/replace room divider 13,669.55                     
89669 7/15/2021 11690 Warrior Wraps LLC #61: Create and install new van wrap 2,750.00                       

Total 510 - Capital Projects Fund 107,614.71                  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

368



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Debt Service Fund - 610
From 06/25/2021 Through 07/25/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12869 7/19/2021 8531 FHN Financial Main Street Advisors, LLC Apr-Jun 2021 79.71                            

Total 610 - Debt Service Fund 79.71                            

Total - All Funds 2,223,811.33               

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

369



  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
  
FROM: Floresto Cabias, Chief Financial Officer 

DATE:  August 31, 2021 

SUBJECT: Financial Services Report, September 2021 

This report summarizes the Financial Services Department’s activities and 
accomplishments in the month of August 2021. 

Administration 

• Updated the District’s cash flow analysis 
• Submitted the Quarterly Economic Survey to the State of Nevada Department of 

Taxation per NRS requirement 
• Submitted required quarterly financial reports and compliance certificates to the 

Mesquite and East Las Vegas New Markets Tax Credit programs (QALICBs) 
• Published, submitted, and distributed the Fiscal Year 2022 Adopted Budget Book 
• Prepared for the Fiscal Year 2021 annual independent audit 
• Floresto Cabias and Lynn Wing worked with District staff regarding purchasing 

training and procedures; held purchase order training sessions for outlying 
branch staff 

• Lynn Wing created and updated vendor and customer accounts for accounts 
payable and accounts receivable in the Microsoft Serenic Navigator system 

• Lynn Wing created and updated staff user accounts for online ordering of 
supplies from Staples, Office Plus, and Brodart (contract vendors); worked with 
District staff and vendors to update information and resolve issues  

• Lynn Wing prepared and followed up on Agreements for Services for Literacy 
instructors and for performances scheduled for District-wide events 

• Lynn Wing prepared weekly bank deposits 
• Prepared monthly Budget Status Reports  
• Scanned documents and updated files 
 
Accounting 

• Coded and verified all transactions ($4.2M for the month of August) 
• Attended UKG Ready (HRIS) meetings and training sessions 
• Completed fixed assets inventories for all urban branches 
• In FY 2022, staff will visit branches to review compliance with internal control 

procedures related to cash handling 
• Performed all payroll related duties 
• Performed all accounts payable duties  

ITEM VI.A.4.a. 

September 2021 

  

 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

370



Financial Services Report 
August 31, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

• Performed all accounts receivable duties, including collections for overdue 
accounts 

• Prepared year-to-date detail transaction reports for each location/department 
• Reviewed and reconciled outstanding invoices 
• Reconciled daily cash reports received from branches to bank deposits 
• Provided detail budget status for staff as required 
• Prepared and scanned monthly journal voucher entries 
• Reconciled monthly bank statements 
• Prepared and mailed Financial Services invoices  
• Processed refunds for cancelled Room Reservations 
• Reviewed e-fines and patron inquiries regarding online payments 
• Reconciled copier meter reading reports from branches/departments to invoices 
• Staff cross-trained in payroll, fixed assets, cash receipts, and other Financial 

Services procedures 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

371



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
To: Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director  
 
From: Floresto Cabias, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: August 31, 2021 
 
Subject: August 2021 Budget Status Report 
 
 
Enclosed are the budget status reports for August 2021. According to governmental 
accounting standards, property tax and sales tax revenues collected in July and 
August are recorded as prior-year revenue. Therefore, approximately $1.5 million of 
property tax revenue only (no consolidated sales tax) is reflected in the month of 
August. Staff will provide a more comprehensive analysis of revenues and 
expenditures for FY 2021 at the next Finance and Audit Committee meeting. 
 
General Fund expenditures indicate that 13% of the allocated budget has been 
spent. Based on ratable spending levels (spending occurs approximately at the same 
rate every month), General Fund expenditures are on target. All departments and 
library branches are within their budgets, and show between 73% and 94% left to 
spend. 
 
Staff will be available to answer any questions that you may have. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

372



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

General Fund - 100
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Tax Revenue 1,468,859.98                   53,100,000.00   51,631,140.02               97.23%
Intergovenmental Revenue -                                     23,400,000.00   23,400,000.00               100.00%
Charges for Services 7,302.22                           500,000.00        492,697.78                     98.54%
Fines & Forfeits 116,579.95                       500,000.00        383,420.05                     76.68%
Miscellaneous 39,899.15                         810,000.00        770,100.85                     95.07%

Total Revenues 1,632,641.30                   78,310,000.00   76,677,358.70               97.92%

Expenditures
Salaries 3,681,024.15                   32,562,438.00   28,881,413.85               88.70%
Benefits 1,500,897.17                   13,125,445.00   11,624,547.83               88.56%
Supplies & Services 2,413,321.08                   15,356,409.00   12,943,087.92               84.28%
Capital Outlay 1,903,785.95                   10,767,307.00   8,863,521.05                 82.32%

Total Expenditures 9,499,028.35                   71,811,599.00   62,312,570.65               86.77%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (7,866,387.05)                  6,498,401.00     14,364,788.05               11.14%

 

1

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

373



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By Department

General Fund - 100
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget

Dollar Budget 
Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
   
110 Administration - Executive 78,048.26                         949,020.00                     870,971.74        91.78%
120 Administration - Library Operations 130,395.74                       1,741,177.00                 1,610,781.26     92.51%
200 Financial Services 172,645.05                       1,867,973.00                 1,695,327.95     90.76%
215 Community Outreach 67,064.00                         525,357.00                     458,293.00        87.23%
216 Youth Services 54,784.71                         386,363.00                     331,578.29        85.82%
220 Development and Planning 66,280.80                         590,056.00                     523,775.20        88.77%
240 General Services/Facilities 1,535,003.33                   10,498,423.00               8,963,419.67     85.38%
250 Human Resources 205,448.54                       2,674,812.00                 2,469,363.46     92.32%
251 HR-Work Insurance 21,548.29                         1,501,744.00                 1,480,195.71     98.57%
260 Information Technology 1,108,878.07                   4,072,848.00                 2,963,969.93     72.77%
270 Literacy Department 57,241.45                         397,676.00                     340,434.55        85.61%
280 Branding and Marketing 131,531.25                       1,864,914.00                 1,733,382.75     92.95%
290 Access Services Department 118,893.07                       1,139,565.00                 1,020,671.93     89.57%
310 Collection and Bibliographic Services 2,251,333.62                   12,937,872.00               10,686,538.38   82.60%
320 Gallery Services 23,502.82                         183,616.00                     160,113.18        87.20%
330 Facilities 347,066.77                       3,031,596.00                 2,684,529.23     88.55%
340 Community Engagement 28,679.83                         458,550.00                     429,870.17        93.75%
400 Library Operations 3,100,682.75                   26,990,037.00               23,889,354.25   88.51%

Total 9,499,028.35                   71,811,599.00               62,312,570.65   86.77%

2

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

374



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By Location

General Fund - 100
Library Operations - Dept 400
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
100 Blue Diamond 8,989.73                           76,057.00                         67,067.27                     88.18%
110 Bunkerville 6,493.58                           61,328.00                         54,834.42                     89.41%
120 Clark County Library 316,883.25                       2,779,346.00                   2,462,462.75                88.60%
130 Enterprise Library 182,320.23                       1,441,669.00                   1,259,348.77                87.35%
140 Goodsprings 11,485.39                         82,779.00                         71,293.61                     86.13%
160 Indian Springs 14,490.77                         110,509.00                       96,018.23                     86.89%
180 Laughlin 90,835.96                         726,089.00                       635,253.04                   87.49%
190 Mesquite 131,970.65                       1,072,843.00                   940,872.35                   87.70%
200 Moapa Town 7,346.60                           58,868.00                         51,521.40                     87.52%
210 Moapa Valley 39,460.11                         328,880.00                       289,419.89                   88.00%
220 Mount Charleston 8,479.84                           65,763.00                         57,283.16                     87.11%
230 Rainbow Library 216,933.80                       1,842,222.00                   1,625,288.20                88.22%
240 Sahara West Library 294,426.58                       2,584,240.00                   2,289,813.42                88.61%
250 Sandy Valley 9,828.60                           96,110.00                         86,281.40                     89.77%
260 Searchlight 7,393.33                           62,466.00                         55,072.67                     88.16%
270 Spring Valley Library 216,188.67                       1,721,165.00                   1,504,976.33                87.44%
280 Summerlin Library 186,006.06                       1,531,780.00                   1,345,773.94                87.86%
290 Sunrise Library 163,009.69                       1,547,932.00                   1,384,922.31                89.47%
300 West Charleston Library 194,284.61                       1,685,830.00                   1,491,545.39                88.48%
310 West Las Vegas Library 168,387.13                       1,663,433.00                   1,495,045.87                89.88%
320 Whitney Library 180,020.87                       1,559,832.00                   1,379,811.13                88.46%
360 Meadows Library 12,392.93                         99,539.00                         87,146.07                     87.55%
370 Centennial Hills 187,659.95                       1,923,480.00                   1,735,820.05                90.24%
380 Windmill Library 220,866.37                       1,830,571.00                   1,609,704.63                87.93%
390 East Las Vegas Library 218,731.29                       1,989,585.00                   1,770,853.71                89.01%
605 City Misdemeanant 5,796.76                           47,721.00                         41,924.24                     87.85%

Total 3,100,682.75                   26,990,037.00                 23,889,354.25              88.51%

3

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

375



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

General Fund - 100
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
51100 Salaries - Full Time 2,953,295.46                   24,921,202.00                 21,967,906.54                 88.15%
51200 Salaries - Part Time 683,289.62                       6,199,467.00                   5,516,177.38                   88.98%
51300 Overtime Pay 4,880.23                           55,000.00                         50,119.77                         91.13%
51400 Call Back Pay 1,471.28                           8,595.00                           7,123.72                           82.88%
51500 Standby Pay 8,255.63                           50,366.00                         42,110.37                         83.61%
51600 Longevity Pay 23,074.18                         377,808.00                       354,733.82                       93.89%
51700 Separation Pay 6,757.75                           450,000.00                       443,242.25                       98.50%
51800 Leave Buyout -                                     500,000.00                       500,000.00                       100.00%
55100 Employees Retirement 914,580.52                       7,938,096.00                   7,023,515.48                   88.48%
55200 Group Insurance 497,893.24                       4,072,148.00                   3,574,254.76                   87.77%
55300 Workers' Comp. Payments -                                     271,544.00                       271,544.00                       100.00%
55400 Medicare Coverage Expense 88,423.41                         768,657.00                       680,233.59                       88.50%
55500 Unemployment Insurance -                                     75,000.00                         75,000.00                         100.00%
61100 Office Supplies 38,775.37                         559,357.00                       520,581.63                       93.07%
61110 Operating Supplies 35,730.64                         597,065.00                       561,334.36                       94.02%
61120 Software & User Licenses 3,686.89                           521,994.00                       518,307.11                       99.29%
61130 Software Maintenance 360,865.08                       841,400.00                       480,534.92                       57.11%
61200 Book Materials & Supplies 5,475.46                           120,409.00                       114,933.54                       95.45%
61205 Interlibrary Loan -                                     4,500.00                           4,500.00                           100.00%
61210 Small Equipment 22,793.30                         478,000.00                       455,206.70                       95.23%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint. 403,430.40                       690,280.00                       286,849.60                       41.56%
61410 Contracted Services 609,692.28                       5,341,007.00                   4,731,314.72                   88.58%
61420 Building Repair & Maint. 25,084.84                         218,200.00                       193,115.16                       88.50%
61500 Rental Expenses 4,351.23                           47,316.00                         42,964.77                         90.80%
61600 Telephone 94,342.72                         600,000.00                       505,657.28                       84.28%
61700 Utilities 233,036.45                       1,935,071.00                   1,702,034.55                   87.96%
61800 Insurance & Bonds 357,053.45                       455,000.00                       97,946.55                         21.53%
61900 Professional Services 138,947.59                       932,700.00                       793,752.41                       85.10%
61910 Legal Services 3,674.23                           394,500.00                       390,825.77                       99.07%
62200 Collection Agencies 4,387.50                           310,000.00                       305,612.50                       98.58%
62300 Board Compensation 560.00                               6,200.00                           5,640.00                           90.97%
62500 Postage 25,526.89                         75,100.00                         49,573.11                         66.01%
62510 Advertising 14,691.26                         88,700.00                         74,008.74                         83.44%
62600 Community Events 557.92                               23,750.00                         23,192.08                         97.65%
62620 Recruitment 104.09                               625.00                               520.91                               83.35%
62700 Education & Training 6,282.95                           310,735.00                       304,452.05                       97.98%
62800 Travel & Transportation 7,788.13                           285,250.00                       277,461.87                       97.27%
62900 Printing & Reproduction 3,793.37                           99,250.00                         95,456.63                         96.18%
63000 Dues & Subscriptions 6,013.88                           43,200.00                         37,186.12                         86.08%
65000 Miscellaneous Expenses 1,006.65                           41,800.00                         40,793.35                         97.59%
65100 Bank Charges 5,668.51                           20,000.00                         14,331.49                         71.66%
67000 Rental Expenses to QALICBs -                                     315,000.00                       315,000.00                       100.00%
81700 Library Books 1,903,785.95                   10,767,307.00                 8,863,521.05                   82.32%

Total 9,499,028.35                   71,811,599.00                 62,312,570.65                 86.77%

4

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

376



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Grant Fund - 220
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Intergovenmental Revenue -                                     1,800,000.00   1,800,000.00                 100.00%
Total Revenues -                                     1,800,000.00   1,800,000.00                 100.00%

Expenditures
Salaries 33,980.43                         480,000.00      446,019.57                     92.92%
Benefits 14,685.70                         210,000.00      195,314.30                     93.01%
Supplies & Services 22,177.80                         500,000.00      477,822.20                     95.56%
Capital Outlay 82,300.00                         610,000.00      527,700.00                     86.51%

Total Expenditures 153,143.93                       1,800,000.00   1,646,856.07                 91.49%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (153,143.93)                     -                    153,143.93                     8.51%

 

5

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

377



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Grant Fund - 220
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
51100 Salaries - Full Time 33,867.72                         480,000.00                       446,132.28                       92.94%
51600 Longevity Pay 112.71                               -                                     (112.71)                             
55100 Employees Retirement 10,106.43                         162,356.79                       152,250.36                       93.78%
55200 Group Insurance 4,090.45                           43,576.29                         39,485.84                         90.61%
55400 Medicare Coverage Expense 488.82                               4,066.92                           3,578.10                           87.98%
61100 Office Supplies 8.66                                   1,223.54                           1,214.88                           99.29%
61110 Operating Supplies 3,748.80                           2,400.00                           (1,348.80)                          -56.20%
61120 Software & User Licenses -                                     55,000.00                         55,000.00                         100.00%
61210 Small Equipment 9,840.00                           -                                     (9,840.00)                          
61410 Contracted Services 5,089.50                           424,040.00                       418,950.50                       98.80%
61600 Telephone 3,353.64                           -                                     (3,353.64)                          
62800 Travel & Transportation 137.20                               7,121.12                           6,983.92                           98.07%
65000 Miscellaneous Expenses -                                     10,215.34                         10,215.34                         100.00%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major 82,300.00                         460,000.00                       377,700.00                       82.11%
81700 Library Books -                                     150,000.00                       150,000.00                       100.00%

Total 153,143.93                      1,800,000.00                   1,646,856.07                   91.49%

6

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

378



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Gift Fund - 230
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Miscellaneous 3,958.35                           815,000.00  811,041.65                     99.51%
Total Revenues 3,958.35                           815,000.00  811,041.65                     99.51%

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 7,111.23                           715,000.00  707,888.77                     99.01%
Capital Outlay -                                     100,000.00  100,000.00                     100.00%

Total Expenditures 7,111.23                           815,000.00  807,888.77                     99.13%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (3,152.88)                          -                 3,152.88                         0.39%

 

7

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

379



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Gift Fund - 230
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
61100 Office Supplies -                                     20,000.00                         20,000.00                         100.00%
61110 Operating Supplies 566.86                               15,000.00                         14,433.14                         96.22%
61210 Small Equipment 230.82                               15,000.00                         14,769.18                         98.46%
61410 Contracted Services 2,000.00                           250,000.00                       248,000.00                       99.20%
61500 Rental Expenses -                                     315,000.00                       315,000.00                       100.00%
61900 Professional Services 3,712.50                           100,000.00                       96,287.50                         96.29%
62800 Travel & Transportation 11.20                                 (11.20)                               
65000 Miscellaneous Expenses 589.85                               -                                     (589.85)                             
81600 Capital Equipment - Major -                                     100,000.00                       100,000.00                       100.00%

Total 7,111.23                           815,000.00                      807,888.77                      99.13%

8

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

380



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Capital Projects Fund - 510
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Miscellaneous 5,857.72                           30,000.00          24,142.28                       80.47%
Total Revenues 5,857.72                           30,000.00          24,142.28                       80.47%

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 283,117.08                       3,925,300.00    3,642,182.92                 92.79%
Capital Outlay 5,788.02                           2,016,200.00    2,010,411.98                 99.71%

Total Expenditures 288,905.10                       5,941,500.00    5,652,594.90                 95.14%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (283,047.38)                     (5,911,500.00)   (5,628,452.62)                -14.66%

 

9

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

381



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Capital Projects Fund - 510
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
61110 Operating Supplies -                                     43,500.00                         43,500.00                         100.00%
61120 Software & User Licenses -                                     250,000.00                       237,760.00                       95.10%
61130 Software Maintenance 12,240.00                         50,000.00                         35,974.13                         71.95%
61210 Small Equipment 14,025.87                         1,191,800.00                   1,177,774.13                   98.82%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint. 237,649.41                       645,000.00                       407,350.59                       63.16%
61420 Building Repair & Maint. 15,275.37                         800,000.00                       784,724.63                       98.09%
61900 Professional Services -                                     960,000.00                       960,000.00                       100.00%
65100 Bank Charges 3,926.43                           40,000.00                         36,073.57                         90.18%
81500 Capital Improvements -                                     861,200.00                       861,200.00                       100.00%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major 5,788.02                           1,100,000.00                   1,094,211.98                   99.47%

Total 288,905.10                      5,941,500.00                   5,652,594.90                   95.14%

10

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

382



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 2050 - Furniture Replacement
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61210 Small Equipment  10,451.69                             75,000.00          64,548.31                            86%

Total Expenditures 10,451.69                             75,000.00          64,548.31                            86%

510
Capital Projects Fund

11

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

383



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 2200 - Financial Services Projects
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        185,000.00        185,000.00                          100%
65100 Bank Charges  3,926.43                               40,000.00          36,073.57                            90%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  -                                        80,000.00          80,000.00                            100%

Total Expenditures 3,926.43                               305,000.00        301,073.57                          99%

510
Capital Projects Fund

12

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

384



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 4010 - Tech Replacements & Upgrades
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61120 Software & User Licenses  -                                        250,000.00        250,000.00                          100%
61130 Software Maintenance  12,240.00                             50,000.00          37,760.00                            76%
61210 Small Equipment  3,574.18                               455,000.00        451,425.82                          99%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint.  237,649.41                           545,000.00        307,350.59                          56%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  3,860.22                               285,000.00        281,139.78                          99%

Total Expenditures 257,323.81                           1,585,000.00     1,327,676.19                       84%

Capital Projects Fund
510

13

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

385



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 5010 - Bldg Repair & Maintenance
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61110 Operating Supplies  -                                        43,500.00          43,500.00                            100%
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        100,000.00        100,000.00                          100%
61400 Equipment Repair & Maint.  -                                        100,000.00        100,000.00                          100%
61420 Building Repair & Maint.  15,275.37                             800,000.00        784,724.63                          98%
61900 Professional Services  -                                        800,000.00        800,000.00                          100%
81500 Capital Improvements  -                                        700,000.00        700,000.00                          100%

Total Expenditures 15,275.37                             2,543,500.00     2,528,224.63                       99%

510
Capital Projects Fund

14

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

386



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 5015 - Construction Projects
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Revenues
45200 Interest Earnings 5,857.72                               30,000.00          24,142.28                            80%

Total Revenues 5,857.72                               30,000.00          24,142.28                            80%

Expenditures
61900 Professional Services  -                                        160,000.00        160,000.00                          100%
81500 Capital Improvements  -                                        400,000.00        400,000.00                          100%

Total Expenditures -                                        560,000.00        560,000.00                          100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

15

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

387



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 5020 - PVS Projects
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
61210 Small Equipment  -                                        376,800.00        376,800.00                          100%
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  1,927.80                               346,200.00        344,272.20                          99%

Total Expenditures 1,927.80                               723,000.00        721,072.20                          100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

16

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

388



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District

Project 9010 - Vehicle Purchase and Replacement
From 08/01/2021 through 08/27/2021

 

 YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining
Percent Budget 

Remaining

Expenditures
81600 Capital Equipment - Major  -                                        150,000.00        150,000.00                          100%

Total Expenditures -                                        150,000.00        150,000.00                          100%

510
Capital Projects Fund

17

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

389



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Debt Service Fund - 610
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget
Dollar Budget Amount 

Remaining

Percent 
Budget 

Remaining
Revenues  

Tax Revenue 20.68                                 -              (20.68)                             
Miscellaneous 2.70                                   10,000.00  9,997.30                         99.97%

Total Revenues 23.38                                 10,000.00  9,976.62                         99.77%

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 1,125.00                           10,000.00  8,875.00                         88.75%

Total Expenditures 1,125.00                           10,000.00  8,875.00                         88.75%

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (1,101.62)                          -              1,101.62                         11.02%

 

18

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

390



Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
Summary Budget Comparison

By GL Account

Debt Service Fund - 610
From 08/01/2021 Through 08/27/2021

YTD Actual Budget YTD Variance
Percent Budget 

Remaining
   
65100 Bank Charges 1,125.00                           10,000.00                         8,875.00                           88.75%

Total 1,125.00                           10,000.00                         8,875.00                           88.75%

19

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

391



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12875 7/26/2021 10129 Fun Express LLC Bulk Mini Colorful Slime 240 pieces - SW 322.10                          
12876 7/26/2021 10184 City of Mesquite Athletics & Leisure Services Dept MQLC Landscape Maintenance 800.00                          
12877 7/26/2021 10305 A Affordable Striping & Sealing LLC SV: Reseal Parking Lot 375.00                          
12878 7/26/2021 10332 IXL Learning, Inc. IXL site license (Grades PK-12: 1,000 students) 18,495.00                     
12879 7/26/2021 10535 Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP EN: Fire Alarm Tests / Inspections 159.50                          
12881 7/26/2021 10654 Educational Testing Service (ETS) Testing Fee - June 2021 161.25                          
12882 7/26/2021 10686 NLS Grounds Management, LLC EV: Undeveloped Land 19,438.72                     
12883 7/26/2021 10834 Brittany Mangelson Court Reporter-  July 8 2021 205.00                          
12884 7/26/2021 11137 Vital Records Control Records Destruction for July 2021 148.10                          
12885 7/26/2021 11594 BDO USA, LLP Annual Audit 2021 1st progress billing 15,000.00                     
12886 7/26/2021 1201 Best Janitorial Services of Nevada Various: Janitorial - FY 2021 136,496.00                  
12887 7/26/2021 1300 Cashman Equipment Company SW: Generator 922.50                          
12889 7/26/2021 1566 Fairway Chevrolet WO-4889 #Q36481 LOF 134.48                          
12890 7/26/2021 1580 Ferguson Enterprises, LLC Various 290.02                          
12891 7/26/2021 1647 Global Equipment Company Inc. Bed Bug Spray 135.10                          
12892 7/26/2021 1678 Scholastic Library Publishing Scholastic GO 7/1/21-6/30/22 77,630.00                     
12893 7/26/2021 1742 Ideal Supply Company Inc. Various 576.08                          
12894 7/26/2021 1757 Ingram Library Services Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 21,834.24                     
12895 7/26/2021 1837 Johnstone Supply WO-5854 #388-S4975819.001 MV HVAC 14.97                            
12896 7/26/2021 1897 Lakeshore Learning Materials LIGHT TABLE MANIPS-LETTERS 1,014.44                       
12897 7/26/2021 1950 Liberty Lock and Security Various: Lock/Key Service 95.00                            
12899 7/26/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 06/08/21-07/08/21 MV 559.49                          
12900 7/26/2021 2290 Precision Pump, Inc. CC: Sump Pump 210.00                          
12901 7/26/2021 2702 Grainger, Inc. Various 289.52                          
12902 7/26/2021 2733 Phoenix Fire Protection, LLC WH: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 75.00                            
12903 7/26/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY2020-2021 26,304.96                     
12904 7/26/2021 2799 CDW Government Inc, LDS Barcode Scanners 1,353.45                       
12905 7/26/2021 2803 Boulevard Trophy Gift for Former Chair 273.00                          
12906 7/26/2021 2809 LVVWD Service May 21 & Jun 21 22,714.84                     
12907 7/26/2021 2887 West Payment Ctr Library Materials for MISD FY 2021-22 774.61                          
12908 7/26/2021 3309 Batteries Plus Various 104.15                          
12909 7/26/2021 3435 Ace Fire Systems, Inc. SU: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 85.00                            
12910 7/26/2021 3500 Garda CL West, Inc Excess Svc Jun 2021 44.56                            
12911 7/26/2021 4224 DataPLUS Communications WH: Fire Alarm Tests / Inspections 425.00                          
12912 7/26/2021 4513 Blackstone Publishing No Way Out AudioCD 466.94                          
12913 7/26/2021 4522 Quest Diagnostics pre-employment drug testing 179.94                          
12914 7/26/2021 4676 Color Reflections Trustee sign reprint after reappointment 36.00                            
12915 7/26/2021 5130 OverDrive Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 127,783.47                  
12916 7/26/2021 5769 The Penworthy Company Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 7,440.45                       
12918 7/26/2021 7592 Stanley Convergent Security Solutions SM - Service Call: Yellow alarm signal on FACP 665.80                          
12919 7/26/2021 7671 Rentokil Urban: Pest Control 1,413.00                       
12920 7/26/2021 7943 Communication Electronic Systems Inc CH: Fire Alarm Tests / Inspections 1,410.00                       
12921 7/26/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Cloth mask black - SM 2,012.47                       
12922 7/26/2021 8235 ZOHO Corporation OpManager Pro. Annu. Maint. & Supp., End 7/22 2,999.00                       
12923 7/26/2021 8718 Library Ideas, LLC Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 159,750.00                  
12924 7/26/2021 9074 Statewide Fire Protection - Western States WM: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 450.00                          
12925 7/26/2021 9101 O'Reilly Auto Parts Stock #3990-211308 #54 Wiper Fluid 18.32                            
12926 7/26/2021 9159 Mesquite Lumber /Ace Hardware MQLC: Toilet 208.95                          
12927 7/26/2021 9191 Canon Solutions America, Inc. Monthly Maint 04/15/21-05/14/21 - HR 5,142.33                       
12928 7/26/2021 9383 Office Plus Oem toner hp 410x yellow - CH 576.96                          
12930 7/26/2021 9489 Teledata Technologies CC: AV Upgrades to Large Conference Rm 1,028.00                       
12931 7/26/2021 9553 Ashworth and Belcastro Systems (ABS) SU: Fire Alarm Tests / Inspections 390.00                          
12932 7/26/2021 9612 MakerBot Rep+ Carriage Assembly 128.93                          
12934 7/26/2021 9928 Stimulus Technologies Service Aug 2021 1,047.90                       
12935 8/2/2021 10017 CDA Media Relations July print and digital ads 4,850.00                       
12936 8/2/2021 10179 Safe and Secure Alarms and Video WC: Alarm Monitoring - Burglar 54.00                            
12937 8/2/2021 10228 Sterling Volunteers 8 Volunteer back ground checks 145.00                          
12938 8/2/2021 10454 USI Insurance Services LLC Annual Insurance Premiums 357,053.45                  
12939 8/2/2021 10543 Kathleen San Nicolas ALP 2021 Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
12940 8/2/2021 10640 Susan Joan Hatch 2021 ALP Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
12941 8/2/2021 10683 Raul Eduardo Cannon-Perez ALP 2021 Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
12942 8/2/2021 10686 NLS Grounds Management, LLC Various: Landscape Maintenance 19,438.72                     
12943 8/2/2021 10927 CenturyLink Service Jul 2021 2,042.89                       
12944 8/2/2021 10970 Laura L. Nguyen ALP 2021 Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
12945 8/2/2021 11143 Dude Solutions, Inc. FAC: Asset Essentials Core 7,778.66                       
12946 8/2/2021 11598 Joseph F. Cortese 2021 ALP Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
12947 8/2/2021 1300 Cashman Equipment Company WV: Fire Pump Batteries 2,054.63                       
12948 8/2/2021 1580 Ferguson Enterprises, LLC Various 745.77                          
12949 8/2/2021 1854 Kamer Zucker Abbott Legal Services for June 2021 2,720.00                       
12950 8/2/2021 1954 The Library Store Inc. Book/Magazine File Case - Color Purple 276.47                          
12951 8/2/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 06/01/21-07/01/21 MQ 861.86                          
12952 8/2/2021 2486 Sonitrol Of Southern NV Various: Alarm Monitoring 3,693.00                       
12953 8/2/2021 2733 Phoenix Fire Protection, LLC SV: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 75.00                            
12954 8/2/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 27,781.96                     
12955 8/2/2021 2803 Boulevard Trophy Trustee sign holders 44.00                            
12956 8/2/2021 2853 Dick Blick "Blick Mesh Zipper Bags 12"" X 16" - SV 335.00                          
12957 8/2/2021 3435 Ace Fire Systems, Inc. MQL: Fire Sprinkler Tests / Inspections 467.00                          
12958 8/2/2021 3770 Cox Communications of Las Vegas Service 07/17/21-08/16/21 10,886.75                     
12959 8/2/2021 5001 UniFirst Corporation FAC Uniform Rental 401.04                          
12960 8/2/2021 5244 A&B Printing & Mailing Gen resource brochure June 2021 1,024.80                       
12961 8/2/2021 6501 RGS ReproGraphic Solutions FAC: Toner & Paper for Wide Format Printer 1,816.25                       
12962 8/2/2021 6704 Schneider Electric Various: DDC Controls 8,934.99                       
12963 8/2/2021 7188 Innovative Interfaces, Inc. Sierra Annual Maintenance: 7/1/21-6/30/22 275,559.54                  
12964 8/2/2021 7289 Allison Socha 2021 ALP Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
12965 8/2/2021 7943 Communication Electronic Systems Inc CH & WM: Burg/Fire Alarm Monitoring 130.00                          
12966 8/2/2021 8010 Allied Universal Security Services On-Site Security 07/09/21-07/22/21 - CH 89,057.33                     
12967 8/2/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Avry remov lsr 1x2 - SM 3,434.24                       
12968 8/2/2021 8501 The Original Roofing Company SC: Roof Repair 2,240.00                       

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

392



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12969 8/2/2021 8557 Guaranteed Pest Solutions LLC Various: Bed Bug Inspections 646.25                          
12970 8/2/2021 9082 Central Station Monitoring MQ: Alarm Monitoring 134.85                          
12971 8/2/2021 9383 Office Plus Crtdg,lsr,s,prt - WH 3,803.47                       
12972 8/2/2021 9553 Ashworth and Belcastro Systems (ABS) SU: Fire Alarm Monitoring 135.00                          
12973 8/2/2021 9631 Elliott's Sewer & Drain WH: (2) Service Calls - Plumbing 185.50                          
12974 8/2/2021 9758 ConvergeOne, Inc. Annual Maint. for Phone Switches, End: 6/30/22 17,040.00                     
12975 8/2/2021 9827 Vision Sign Inc. SV & SM: Sign Maintenance 420.00                          
12976 8/9/2021 10179 Safe and Secure Alarms and Video WC: Alarm Monitoring - Burglar 54.00                            
12978 8/9/2021 10804 The Lindi Corporation MQLC: Service Call - Foyer Restrooms 218.00                          
12979 8/9/2021 10808 Patron Point, Inc. Patron Point Verify FY 20-21 829.50                          
12980 8/9/2021 10834 Brittany Mangelson June Board Meetings 1,045.40                       
12981 8/9/2021 10877 Findaway World, LLC Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 539.90                          
12982 8/9/2021 11113 BT Supplies West, Inc. Gloves for Stock 3,105.00                       
12983 8/9/2021 11132 The Griffin Company June 2021 Services 6,250.00                       
12985 8/9/2021 11724 Greenberg Traurig, LLP Trademark 1,480.00                       
12986 8/9/2021 1180 Baron Pest Solutions, Inc. LA: Pest Control 37.00                            
12987 8/9/2021 1201 Best Janitorial Services of Nevada Various: Janitorial 136,316.00                  
12988 8/9/2021 1240 Brady Industries of Nevada, LLC Various 578.42                          
12990 8/9/2021 1457 Demco, Inc. ECR4Kids Spectator Adj Floor Chair - RB 844.02                          
12991 8/9/2021 1580 Ferguson Enterprises, LLC Stock #9017639 #59 Plumbing 2,970.42                       
12992 8/9/2021 1627 Cengage Learning, Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 343,109.27                  
12993 8/9/2021 1640 Gerald M. Welt, Chartered Services June 2021 13,355.96                     
12994 8/9/2021 1742 Ideal Supply Company Inc. WO-6155 #525529 WM Plumbing 227.28                          
12995 8/9/2021 1753 InfoUSA Marketing, Inc.-A Sub of Infogroup Inc. City Directories - Mid year 2,915.00                       
12996 8/9/2021 1757 Ingram Library Services Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 48,809.02                     
12997 8/9/2021 1837 Johnstone Supply Various 96.63                            
12998 8/9/2021 1950 Liberty Lock and Security Various 24.65                            
12999 8/9/2021 2002 Japanese American Citizens League Taiko Drumming 5-15-2021 500.00                          
13000 8/9/2021 2152 Nedco Supply Various 3,311.64                       
13001 8/9/2021 2215 OCLC Inc. Cataloging/ILL Charges FY2021-22 5,051.91                       
13002 8/9/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 06/22/21-07/22/21 MT 260.64                          
13003 8/9/2021 2307 Progressive Elevator CC Elevator 1,195.00                       
13004 8/9/2021 2362 Refrigeration Supplies Distributor Various 158.96                          
13005 8/9/2021 2471 Silver State Glass & Mirror CH: Service Call - Manual Door Lock Issue 150.00                          
13006 8/9/2021 2702 Grainger, Inc. Various 931.95                          
13007 8/9/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 20,178.74                     
13008 8/9/2021 2891 AFLAC Premium July 2021 815.32                          
13009 8/9/2021 3307 Unique Management Services, Inc. Placements - July 2021 4,387.50                       
13010 8/9/2021 3324 Rio Virgin Telephone Co. Service Aug 2021 427.76                          
13011 8/9/2021 3776 Got Bugs LLC MQL & MQLC: Pest Control 200.00                          
13012 8/9/2021 4676 Color Reflections EN BTS Banner 100.00                          
13013 8/9/2021 4723 Purvis Industries - Las Vegas NV WO-6305 #30569834 EN HVAC 8.47                               
13014 8/9/2021 5001 UniFirst Corporation FAC Uniform Rental 202.71                          
13015 8/9/2021 6646 Aqua Serv Engineers, Inc. Various: HVAC Water Treatment 4,192.32                       
13016 8/9/2021 7188 Innovative Interfaces, Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 350.25                          
13017 8/9/2021 7371 EnvisionWare, Inc. LDS Fax Overage Aug 2020 to June 2021 559.00                          
13018 8/9/2021 7592 Stanley Convergent Security Solutions RB,SM,SV,WV,LA: Fire Alarm Tests / Inspections 1,275.00                       
13019 8/9/2021 7655 Gill's Printing and Color Graphics Get Card Brochure 1,800.53                       
13020 8/9/2021 8010 Allied Universal Security Services PVS Security 07/09/21-07/22/21 - SM 112.23                          
13021 8/9/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA 2000 Plus HD Black Ink - EV 6.40                               
13022 8/9/2021 8155 Las Vegas Clark County Librar Dist Foundation Foundation Bookstore Sales - June 2021 17,338.14                     
13023 8/9/2021 8557 Guaranteed Pest Solutions LLC Various: Bed Bug Inspections 168.75                          
13024 8/9/2021 8565 WT Cox Information Services Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 36,176.93                     
13025 8/9/2021 8575 Intermountain Lock and Security Supply WO-6138 #2918817 CC Door Handle Covers 90.00                            
13026 8/9/2021 8934 Zonar Systems, Inc. Ignition Service 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 8,246.88                       
13027 8/9/2021 9101 O'Reilly Auto Parts Various 179.86                          
13028 8/9/2021 9133 Ted Wiens Tire & Auto Centers Various 1,067.50                       
13029 8/9/2021 9137 Ideco-NV, Inc. SC - Service Call: Diesel fuel tank test and 270.50                          
13030 8/9/2021 9159 Mesquite Lumber /Ace Hardware WO-6239 #357793 MQLC Plumbing 97.90                            
13031 8/9/2021 9180 MicroMain Corporation FAC: 5-Mo GLOBAL Renewal 4,010.00                       
13032 8/9/2021 9287 Otis Elevator Company WM: Elevator 1,591.76                       
13034 8/9/2021 9631 Elliott's Sewer & Drain CC: Service Call - Plumbing 141.75                          
13035 8/9/2021 9649 Freeman's Carpet Service, Inc. CC: Stage Flooring Repairs 692.61                          
13036 8/9/2021 9730 Commercial Lighting Specialties Various 1,124.39                       
13038 8/9/2021 9907 PLIC-SBD Grand Island (Principal) Premium August 2021 23,197.90                     
13039 8/9/2021 9965 The Countertop Shop, LLC WH: Countertop repair in Conf Rm kitchen 415.00                          
13040 8/9/2021 10184 City of Mesquite Athletics & Leisure Services Dept MQLC: Landscape Maintenance 800.00                          
13041 8/9/2021 11076 Quadient, Inc. Meter Rental 08/25/21-11/24/21 180.00                          
13042 8/9/2021 1627 Cengage Learning, Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 20,631.84                     
13043 8/9/2021 2687 Value Line Publishing, LLC VL RESEARCH CENTER 7/2021-8/2023 63,050.00                     
13044 8/9/2021 2698 Virgin Valley Disposal Rental Fee/Totter Svc Jul 2021 117.88                          
13045 8/9/2021 3500 Garda CL West, Inc Armored Transportation - Aug 2021 3,925.48                       
13046 8/9/2021 4517 Fingerprint Pros, Inc. 2 pre-employment fingerprints 118.00                          
13047 8/9/2021 4897 Public Employees Benefits Program State of NV Acct #750 Ins. Premium - Aug  2021 7,550.68                       
13048 8/9/2021 8565 WT Cox Information Services Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 8,348.72                       
13049 8/9/2021 9082 Central Station Monitoring MQ: Alarm Monitoring 134.85                          
13050 8/16/2021 10162 CenturyLink Service Aug 2021 136.83                          
13051 8/16/2021 10212 Virgin Valley Water District Service 06/20/21-07/20/21 1,244.39                       
13052 8/16/2021 10228 Sterling Volunteers 22 Volunteer background check 383.00                          
13053 8/16/2021 10321 Bags in Bulk backpacks for Back to School Fair-WH 432.00                          
13054 8/16/2021 10536 Ivan Aguirre DJ-ing at Enterprise 300.00                          
13055 8/16/2021 10686 NLS Grounds Management, LLC EN: Landscape Repair 508.90                          
13056 8/16/2021 10829 Ewa Honik 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13058 8/16/2021 11006 Michael Shon Thrower 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13059 8/16/2021 11123 Tenera Curtina Sanders 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13060 8/16/2021 11657 Maria A. Preston 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13061 8/16/2021 11677 Kronos SaaShr, Inc. Workforce Ready Subscription Services 3.76                               
13063 8/16/2021 1457 Demco, Inc. Acrylic Bookmark Dispenser  - SW 383.28                          

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

393



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

13064 8/16/2021 1620 Full Compass Systems Ltd Gefen EXT-PS24U1AIP-4P-6 power supply 4,690.39                       
13065 8/16/2021 1757 Ingram Library Services Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 40,447.89                     
13066 8/16/2021 1953 Library Of Congress Classification Web 10/28/21-10/27/22 525.00                          
13067 8/16/2021 2015 Machabee Office Environments WV: Teen Zone - New Furniture 162.32                          
13068 8/16/2021 2215 OCLC Inc. Cataloging/ILL Charges FY2021-22 4,747.16                       
13069 8/16/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 07/01/21-08/01/21 MQ 3,065.63                       
13070 8/16/2021 2307 Progressive Elevator CC: Service Call - Elevator 337.00                          
13071 8/16/2021 2471 Silver State Glass & Mirror CH: Service Call - Troubleshoot Door Alarm 75.00                            
13072 8/16/2021 2567 Teamsters Local Union #14 Union Dues - August 2021 8,338.00                       
13073 8/16/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 14,710.10                     
13074 8/16/2021 2799 CDW Government Inc, Replacement EOL UPS Battery Cartridges 2,018.88                       
13075 8/16/2021 2819 CenturyLink Communications, LLC Service Aug 2021 8,488.76                       
13076 8/16/2021 2852 Chem-Aqua, Inc. EV & RB: HVAC Water Treatment 869.75                          
13077 8/16/2021 2887 West Payment Ctr Library Materials for MISD FY 2021-22 774.61                          
13078 8/16/2021 2914 Iron Mountain Service July 2021 495.58                          
13079 8/16/2021 3022 Ellison Educational Equipment Inc. LA Die Cut Set for Take & Makes 53.99                            
13080 8/16/2021 3300 ProQuest LLC RNP LA Times 1/1/22-12/31/22 11,187.12                     
13081 8/16/2021 3355 Teamsters Security Fund S. Nevada  Premium August 2021 350,048.50                  
13082 8/16/2021 3435 Ace Fire Systems, Inc. WC: Fire Alarm Monitoring 135.00                          
13083 8/16/2021 3677 Maria Cecilia P. Ordinario 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13084 8/16/2021 4522 Quest Diagnostics 2 pre-employment drug tests 87.44                            
13085 8/16/2021 5001 UniFirst Corporation FAC Uniform Rental 104.81                          
13086 8/16/2021 5130 OverDrive Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 215,403.98                  
13088 8/16/2021 7592 Stanley Convergent Security Solutions LA - Service Call: Fire Alarm Annunciator Panel 301.00                          
13089 8/16/2021 7671 Rentokil Various: Pest Control 1,948.00                       
13090 8/16/2021 7943 Communication Electronic Systems Inc WM: Changed (4) batteries in FACP 264.00                          
13091 8/16/2021 8010 Allied Universal Security Services On-Site Security 07/23/21-08/05/21 - CH 91,346.87                     
13092 8/16/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Opaque recy clipbrds - EV 2,566.01                       
13093 8/16/2021 8557 Guaranteed Pest Solutions LLC Various: Bed Bug Inspections 308.75                          
13094 8/16/2021 9143 Henry Marshall 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13095 8/16/2021 9191 Canon Solutions America, Inc. Monthly Maint 05/15/21-06/14/21 950.95                          
13096 8/16/2021 9383 Office Plus Toner 414a,hy,yl - HR 2,844.11                       
13097 8/16/2021 9489 Teledata Technologies IR generator and install 1,815.00                       
13098 8/16/2021 9566 Diana Marshall 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
13099 8/16/2021 9631 Elliott's Sewer & Drain SW: Service Call - Toilets & Drains Backed Up 202.75                          
13101 8/16/2021 9869 Unique Integrated Communications Call Center Operations - July 2021 11,826.68                     
13105 8/23/2021 1064 Allied Refrigeration Inc. Various 107.77                          
13106 8/23/2021 11076 Quadient, Inc. Meter Rental 09/07/21-12/06/21 80.85                            
13107 8/23/2021 1429 D.C. Thomas BD Rent Sept 2021 1,468.00                       
13108 8/23/2021 1455 Dell Marketing L.P. Replacement Monitors Districtwide 12,950.00                     
13109 8/23/2021 1457 Demco, Inc. Flat-Shelf Booktrucks-Wine Color - WC 2,980.73                       
13110 8/23/2021 1580 Ferguson Enterprises, LLC Various 1,924.10                       
13111 8/23/2021 1742 Ideal Supply Company Inc. Various 509.33                          
13112 8/23/2021 1757 Ingram Library Services books for summer challenge prizes 40,863.99                     
13113 8/23/2021 1837 Johnstone Supply WO-6664 #388-S5019480.001 MT HVAC 320.76                          
13114 8/23/2021 1950 Liberty Lock and Security WO-6730 #24322 (2) Sets O/B Duplicate Keys 104.80                          
13115 8/23/2021 2098 Moapa Valley Water District Service 07/07/21-08/10/21 403.68                          
13116 8/23/2021 2152 Nedco Supply Various 677.43                          
13117 8/23/2021 2234 Overton Power District #5 Service 07/08/21-08/08/21 MV 635.08                          
13118 8/23/2021 2362 Refrigeration Supplies Distributor Various 896.44                          
13119 8/23/2021 2465 Russell Sigler Inc. WO-6664 #INV-LVG21012741 MT HVAC 958.52                          
13120 8/23/2021 2702 Grainger, Inc. Various 1,039.97                       
13121 8/23/2021 2798 Brodart Co. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 28,280.50                     
13122 8/23/2021 2809 LVVWD Service June 21 & Jul 21 28,207.81                     
13123 8/23/2021 2819 CenturyLink Communications, LLC Service Aug 2021 3,207.07                       
13124 8/23/2021 2852 Chem-Aqua, Inc. EV & RB: HVAC Water Treatment 669.75                          
13125 8/23/2021 3300 ProQuest LLC RNP NY Times SUB 1/1/22-12/31/22 10,118.54                     
13126 8/23/2021 3770 Cox Communications of Las Vegas Service 07/26/21-08/25/21 92.86                            
13127 8/23/2021 4513 Blackstone Publishing Hidden AudioCD Book 433.15                          
13128 8/23/2021 4721 Sweetwater Supplies for Logic Mixer - EV 398.36                          
13129 8/23/2021 4723 Purvis Industries - Las Vegas NV WO-6499 #30588335 WM HVAC 19.24                            
13130 8/23/2021 5001 UniFirst Corporation FAC Uniform Rental 104.81                          
13131 8/23/2021 5727 Latin American Periodicals MAGAZINES 11/1/21-10/31/22 8,153.60                       
13132 8/23/2021 7943 Communication Electronic Systems Inc CH & WM: Burg/Fire Alarm Monitoring 130.00                          
13133 8/23/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA 12x18 Construction paper - SV 4,428.67                       
13134 8/23/2021 8557 Guaranteed Pest Solutions LLC Various: Bed Bug Inspections 168.75                          
13135 8/23/2021 8565 WT Cox Information Services Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 7,845.41                       
13136 8/23/2021 9101 O'Reilly Auto Parts Various 339.13                          
13137 8/23/2021 9159 Mesquite Lumber /Ace Hardware Various 115.48                          
13138 8/23/2021 9191 Canon Solutions America, Inc. Monthly Maint 04/15/21-05/14/21 - FS 3,091.83                       
13139 8/23/2021 9383 Office Plus Crtdg,lsr,bk,27k,contract - WH 468.88                          
13140 8/23/2021 9730 Commercial Lighting Specialties WO-6629 #87464 WH ER Lights 75.00                            
89727 7/29/2021 10493 CMRS-POC Postage for WM Meter - Acct# 8050091 07/21 25,000.00                     
89728 7/29/2021 10641 Quench USA, Inc. Various: Filtered Drinking Water 850.00                          
89729 7/29/2021 10930 Business Enterprises of Nevada MQL: Cafe Management 2,010.00                       
89730 7/29/2021 11589 Greenspun Media Group, LLC 2 ads for Summer Challenge 3,000.00                       
89731 7/29/2021 11711 Lisa Beth Grimm ALP Kickoff 2021 108.00                          
89732 7/29/2021 11713 Joseph Canaday 2021 ALP Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
89733 7/29/2021 11717 Brett Michael Russell 2021 ALP Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
89734 7/29/2021 11726 Ray Stewart Refund room rental - 09/16/21 WV 405.00                          
89735 7/29/2021 11784 Cory Allen Starkes 2021 ALP Kickoff 7/23/21 108.00                          
89736 7/29/2021 11813 Capitol Door Service WM: Replace El Lock on exterior auto door 2,183.82                       
89737 7/29/2021 1458 State Collections & Disbursement Unit Mandated Court Payment 1,317.90                       
89738 7/29/2021 1710 Henri Specialties CC: Restroom Partition Hardware 145.60                          
89739 7/29/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 06/17/21-07/16/21 WV 234.75                          
89740 7/29/2021 2883 Schindler Elevator Corp SW: Annual Elevator PM Billing 7,787.40                       
89744 7/29/2021 3149 Midwest Tape Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 16,847.82                     
89747 7/29/2021 3383 Home Depot Credit Services June 2021 Various 1,974.42                       

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

394



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

General Fund - 100
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

89748 7/29/2021 5255 Jim Gill, Inc. one staff training, seven children's concerts 10,570.00                     
89749 7/29/2021 6181 Allison Boyer Replenish Petty Cash 274.90                          
89753 7/29/2021 7369 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON Miniature Fairy Garden Plants - SM 3,664.50                       
89754 7/29/2021 9325 Squeaky Clean CC LLC SV: Exterior Graffiti Removal 235.00                          
89755 8/5/2021 11009 KME Architects WV: Submittal Fees Reimbursement 60.50                            
89756 8/5/2021 11550 Harmony Healthcare Part Time EAP 75.00                            
89757 8/5/2021 11670 Angela Angelica Donaglia Magic and Music - Angelica 7/25/21 700.00                          
89758 8/5/2021 11721 Natalia Valencia PR Replacement 5/21/21 693.71                          
89759 8/5/2021 11727 Roslyn Dean Uber rides for RM candidate 104.09                          
89760 8/5/2021 11736 Karen Bramwell Norton reimbursement 349.99                          
89761 8/5/2021 11813 Capitol Door Service Various: Misc Door Repairs 180.00                          
89762 8/5/2021 1474 Di Bella Flowers & Gifts Sympathy flowers 82.98                            
89765 8/5/2021 1991 Lowe's Improvement Various 969.09                          
89766 8/5/2021 2175 NV Energy Service 06/18/21-07/20/21 CH 10,216.26                     
89767 8/5/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 06/23/21-07/22/21 SM 125.41                          
89768 8/5/2021 2772 Xerox Corporation Meter Usage May-June 2021 1,791.06                       
89769 8/5/2021 2838 Verizon Wireless Service 06/21/21-07/20/21 2,930.52                       
89770 8/5/2021 2854 FastSigns WO-6352 #IN95-98776 WV Teen Zone Sign 80.73                            
89771 8/5/2021 6817 Reliance Connects Service Aug 2021 640.52                          
89772 8/5/2021 7740 Gaudin Ford WO-6121 #434349 #59 LOF & Rotated Tires 42.59                            
89773 8/5/2021 8731 UNUM Life Insurance Co. of America Premium August 2021 355.40                          
89774 8/5/2021 9518 New Dance Foundation for the Arts. Inc. SM DID 7-30-21 750.00                          
89775 8/5/2021 9937 AFLAC Premium Holding Premium July 2021 2,390.96                       
89776 8/5/2021 9945 Texas Life Insurance Company Premium July 2021 230.05                          
89777 8/9/2021 4540 Office Team Labor Invoice for Cynthia Amaro- Wk 6/18/21 2,622.11                       
89778 8/12/2021 10231 Janet A. Mikealson-Lenox Balloon artistry-EN 1,300.00                       
89779 8/12/2021 10539 Jonathan Watson DJ-ing at Enterprise Kickoff 300.00                          
89780 8/12/2021 10579 Breakout, Inc. Breakout Edu Kits - Teacher Subscription 895.00                          
89782 8/12/2021 11593 Chibitronics Inc. White LED mega pack, 10 semi-clusters 96.00                            
89783 8/12/2021 11671 Marc B. Leeds 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
89784 8/12/2021 11689 Learning Resources Inc. and Educational Insights New Sprouts Pasta Time 442.86                          
89785 8/12/2021 11695 Lulzbot LulzBot TAZ Dual Extruder V3.1 Toolhead 1,371.79                       
89787 8/12/2021 11712 Tatyana Balashova 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
89788 8/12/2021 11714 Kurtis G. Williams 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
89789 8/12/2021 11723 Tania Ordinola 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
89790 8/12/2021 11727 Roslyn Dean Relocation assistance 5,000.00                       
89792 8/12/2021 11741 Audio Geer Refund - Cancelled Room 8/3/21 SM 488.00                          
89793 8/12/2021 1458 State Collections & Disbursement Unit  Mandated Court Payment 1,317.90                       
89794 8/12/2021 1577 FedEx Express Services  July 2021 266.04                          
89795 8/12/2021 2097 Moapa Valley Telephone Co. Inc. Service 07/26/21-08/25/21 1,645.77                       
89796 8/12/2021 2159 AT&T SBC Service 07/25/21-08/24/21 540.54                          
89797 8/12/2021 2175 NV Energy Service 06/24/21-07/26/21 EV 74,396.99                     
89798 8/12/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 06/25/21-07/26/21 SW 692.70                          
89800 8/12/2021 2837 Republic Services 620 Recycling Svc 07/01-07/31 CC 6,051.73                       
89805 8/12/2021 3149 Midwest Tape Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 24,613.26                     
89806 8/12/2021 5026 Nevada State Treasurer  Mandated Court Payment 8.00                               
89807 8/12/2021 7553 Jonathan Lynn Tharp 2021 ALP Kickoff 108.00                          
89808 8/12/2021 8192 AT&T Service Aug 2021 46.35                            
89809 8/12/2021 8441 Lego Education SW lego replacement parts for WeDo 2.0 140.85                          
89810 8/19/2021 10265 Rowton Entertainment, LLC Jackson Rayne Talk 8-14-21 500.00                          
89828 8/19/2021 10883 Lanmor Services of Nevada, LLC EV: Misc Interior Lock Issues 1,023.75                       
89829 8/19/2021 10900 Asian Journal Publications SC21 half page ads July 1 & 8 1,800.00                       
89831 8/19/2021 11742 Athlene Heap Sub Virt ELV Conv 134 8/14/21 54.00                            
89832 8/19/2021 2117 Multi-Cultural Books & Videos, Inc. Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-22 360.00                          
89833 8/19/2021 2175 NV Energy Service 07/01/21-08/02/21 WM 19,422.75                     
89834 8/19/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 07/09/21-08/06/21 EV 363.04                          
89835 8/19/2021 2772 Xerox Corporation Meter Usage July 2021 895.55                          
89836 8/19/2021 2854 FastSigns Various 220.61                          
89839 8/19/2021 3149 Midwest Tape Library Books & Materials for FY 2021-2022 14,337.36                     
89840 8/19/2021 3495 GFOA FY22 Distinguished Budget Award application 575.00                          
89841 8/19/2021 7740 Gaudin Ford Various 133.81                          
89843 8/26/2021 10253 Elizabeth Ann Foyt July Board Meetings 80.00                            
89844 8/26/2021 10465 Brenda B. Guerrero-Gallegos Payroll replacement check 2/14/2020 256.60                          
89845 8/26/2021 10641 Quench USA, Inc. Various: Filtered Drinking Water 850.00                          
89846 8/26/2021 10998 Sprint Service 06/27/21-07/26/21 18,119.29                     
89847 8/26/2021 11573 Las Vegas Highland Dance Assoc. Refund - Cancelled Room 9/18/21 375.00                          
89848 8/26/2021 11735 Los Mentores Financieros Inc. Hispanic Communication Academy 8/14/21 1,600.00                       
89849 8/26/2021 11743 Freedom Scientific BLV Group LLC DBA Vispero Upgrade ZoomText current v2021 1,720.00                       
89851 8/26/2021 11792 Veronda Pitchford Board Retreat 6/25/21 2,991.55                       
89852 8/26/2021 11794 Chris Russell Refund - Cancelled room 9/18/21 PAC 400.00                          
89853 8/26/2021 11795 Podcast Movement, LLC Refund - Cancelled 10/8-9/21 PAC WM 1,769.00                       
89854 8/26/2021 1458 State Collections & Disbursement Unit Mandated Court Payment 1,317.90                       
89855 8/26/2021 2159 AT&T SBC Service 08/11/21-09/10/21 618.05                          
89856 8/26/2021 2494 Southwest Gas Corp. Service 07/15/21-08/12/21 EN 96.99                            
89857 8/26/2021 4117 Television Monitoring Services, Inc. Legal Assist clip 7-26-21 150.00                          
89858 8/26/2021 5026 Nevada State Treasurer Mandated Court Payment 8.00                               
89865 8/26/2021 7369 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON U.S. Toy 144 Individual Assorte - RB 7,720.72                       
89866 8/26/2021 8731 UNUM Life Insurance Co. of America Premium September 2021 355.40                          
89867 8/26/2021 9706 Carlos Nieto III 12 one hour manga workshops 3,600.00                       
89868 8/26/2021 9711 Jose L. Melendrez July 2021 Board Comp 80.00                            
89869 8/26/2021 9895 National Benefit Services, LLC Admin Fee July 2021 424.00                          
89870 8/26/2021 9937 AFLAC Premium Holding Premium August 2021 2,390.96                       
89871 8/26/2021 9945 Texas Life Insurance Company Premium August 2021 230.05                          

Total 100 - General Fund 3,571,050.80               

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

395



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Grant Fund - 220
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

13057 8/16/2021 10880 Michelle Holstein Sub ELV S&L 131 7/27 67.50                            
13062 8/16/2021 11711 Lisa Beth Grimm Hi-Set 139 Saturdays 7/3 & 7/10, 10a-2p 297.00                          
13102 8/23/2021 10114 Vickie Thompson ABE Virtual Acad CC 140 7/1-8/11 1,944.00                       
13104 8/23/2021 10619 David Terrance Cassell HiSet Prep 139 8/14/21 162.00                          
89781 8/12/2021 11103 Wireless Innovations LLC LSTA Early Childhood Grant 1,920.00                       
89783 8/12/2021 11671 Marc B. Leeds 2021 ALP Kickoff 1,863.00                       
89786 8/12/2021 11701 StayConnected NetSpot Controller with 6 Samsung Tab S6 Lite 82,300.00                     
89830 8/19/2021 11738 Rebecca Elizabeth Case Sub CC S&L 132 8/10/21 67.50                            
89831 8/19/2021 11742 Athlene Heap Sub Virt ELV Conv 134 8/14/21 162.00                          
89842 8/19/2021 9982 Rodric James Hersha HiSet Prep class 139 Math 7/24, 7/31, 8//7 324.00                          
89846 8/26/2021 10998 Sprint Service 06/27/21-07/26/21 3,353.64                       
89865 8/26/2021 7369 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON U.S. Toy 144 Individual Assorte - RB 3,748.80                       

Total 220 - Grant Fund 96,209.44                    

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

396



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Gift Fund - 230
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12880 7/26/2021 10536 Ivan Aguirre  EN DJ Instruction July 2021 125.00                          
12921 7/26/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA Cloth mask black - SM 123.49                          
12933 7/26/2021 9821 Liquid Courage Gallery Opening -  July 11th 1,275.00                       
12977 8/9/2021 10523 Blake Hament BBTTC instruction 1,600.00                       
13103 8/23/2021 10129 Fun Express LLC Bulk Candy Assortment--1,000 count - RB 249.54                          
13133 8/23/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA 12x18 Construction paper - SV 110.80                          
89827 8/19/2021 10818 James Co. Design, LLC Storytime backdrop design 600.00                          
89850 8/26/2021 11791 Cristian Echeverria ELV Academia Hispana July 2021 2,000.00                       
89865 8/26/2021 7369 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON U.S. Toy 144 Individual Assorte - RB 230.82                          

Total 230 - Gift Fund 6,314.65                       

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

397



Las Vegas - Clark County Library District
Check/Voucher Register

Capital Projects Fund - 510
From 07/26/2021 Through 08/27/2021

Check/Voucher # Posting Date
Vendor 
Number Vendor Name Description Check Amount

12877 7/26/2021 10305 A Affordable Striping & Sealing LLC SV: Reseal Parking Lot 21,103.63                     
12888 7/26/2021 1455 Dell Marketing L.P. HBA adapter for the Commvault server 308.46                          
12898 7/26/2021 2015 Machabee Office Environments RB - Teen Zone: New Furniture 2,794.50                       
12917 7/26/2021 7285 Henriksen Butler Nevada New Office Spaces HR 10,011.30                     
12929 7/26/2021 9431 B&H Photo-Video Kramer 8x8 4K switcher KRVS88UHDA 3,341.00                       
12930 7/26/2021 9489 Teledata Technologies CC: AV Upgrades to Large Conference Rm 79,690.00                     
12984 8/9/2021 11665 SunStone Building Specialties WV: MPR - Repair/replace room divider 719.45                          
12989 8/9/2021 1455 Dell Marketing L.P. Repl. PC's for FS and Dev; Laptops for Comty. 15,938.00                     
13003 8/9/2021 2307 Progressive Elevator CC Elevator 10,119.00                     
13033 8/9/2021 9431 B&H Photo-Video Panasonic Lens power zoom PAETDLE250 1,927.80                       
13037 8/9/2021 9758 ConvergeOne, Inc. Router Replacements/Cox WAN upgrade 78,651.52                     
13055 8/16/2021 10686 NLS Grounds Management, LLC EN: Landscape Repair 5,156.37                       
13067 8/16/2021 2015 Machabee Office Environments WV: Teen Zone - New Furniture 6,866.62                       
13087 8/16/2021 7371 EnvisionWare, Inc. Replacement for EOL Sorters-SW and WV 237,649.41                  
13100 8/16/2021 9758 ConvergeOne, Inc. WebEx Annual Renewal, End: 06/23/22 12,240.00                     
13133 8/23/2021 8122 Staples Advantage Dept LA 12x18 Construction paper - SV 234.11                          
89865 8/26/2021 7369 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON U.S. Toy 144 Individual Assorte - RB 556.46                          

Total 510 - Capital Projects Fund 487,307.63                  

Total - All Funds 4,160,882.52               

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

398



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Trustees through Mr. Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 

FROM: John Vino, General Services Director 

DATE:  August 23, 2021 

SUBJECT: General Services Report, September 2021 

This report provides an overview of District-wide General Services activities and 
initiatives for the two-month period from July 1, 2021 – August 31, 2021.  
 
POWERFUL PLACES 
West Las Vegas - To meet the critical needs for this community, as well as the 
priorities established by Director Watson and the Facilities Master Plan, the following 
projects were undertaken. 

• Creation of a new Teen Zone – Completed - A new Teen Zone was 
opened as part of Youth Services. The project included new paint, carpet as 
well furniture and equipment.   

 

• Additional Classrooms/Flex Space – Completed – To provide enhanced 
Literacy and Social Services the multipurpose room was reconfigured and 
refreshed with new carpeting and paint.  

• Expand Computer Services - On-going – Plans are complete to expand 
the existing computer center from 24 computers to 36. Awaiting permit 
approval to proceed. 

 Possible Relocation of the Existing West Las Vegas Library  

• Met with the City of Las Vegas to begin discussions for an Interlocal 
Agreement to secure 5 acres of land located on Martin Luther Boulevard and 
Mt. Mariah Dr.   

ITEM VI.A.4.b. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

399



General Services  August 23, 2021 – Page 2 
 
 

• Met City appraisers as well as District appraiser to establish the current value 
of the existing West Las Vegas Library and Theater. Awaiting reports. 

• Building Programming – Agenda Item – Finalized contract with KME 
Architects to provide and develop the building program required for the 
planning of this possible relocation. Full details of the scope of work and 
contract terms are included in the attached Agenda Item -  for discussion and 
possible Board action to approve.  

 

Northwest Regional Park 

The City of Las Vegas has offered the District the opportunity to build a library as 
part of the Northwest Regional Park.  The library is shown in the attachment below. 
It is depicted within an area that is about 8.66 acres. A breakdown of the 8.66 acres 
is as follows: the library building footprint and landscaping that surrounds it takes up 
2.17 acres and the parking area is 6.49 acres. 

This location would help cover the Sky Canyon and Northwest service areas and is in 
line with the goals established by the Board, as well as the Facilities Master plan. The 
offer is being made to fulfill the terms of an Interlocal Agreement the District has 
with the City regarding the Centennial Hills Library. We will open discussions with the 
City to secure this site through a new Interlocal Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
POWERFUL PARTNERSHIPS 
 

• Met with Director Watson and Shea Johnson of the Review Journal for a tour 
of the East Las Vegas Library to demonstrate how this Library was designed 
to meet community needs and services as the Library of the future, and to 
serve as a community anchor. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

400



General Services  August 23, 2021 – Page 3 
 
 

• Met with DETR to discuss the impact of COVID on our Cafes at the Mesquite 
and East Las Vegas libraries.  We are hoping to find a new operator for East 
Las Vegas and to reopen by the end of the year.  

  
POWERFUL PLATFORMS 
 

• At the Direction of Director Watson, Staff is researching the feasibility of 
purchasing and testing the Anytime Library platform.  This kiosk like device 
would allow unattended lending of Library materials and services 24/7.    

• Worked with Outreach Services to create a permanent Virtual Story Time 
space for their weekly broadcasts. 

• Attended the Las Vegas Global Economic 
Alliance annual Perspective event. The 
program focused on innovation and new 
opportunities to help our community recover 
post-COVID. 

 
POWERFUL PEOPLE 

• Staff met with Opportunity Village Vice 
President of Business Development Kevin 
Abbott to discuss programs and initiatives 
related to Building Services they provide. 

• Met with Holland Wood with the Department of Economic Development for 
UNLV and Director Watson for a tour of UNLV’s Innovation Center. The Center 
serves as an incubator to attract startup and tech companies and to spur 
business development and economic growth in the Las Vegas area.  

 
 
Covid Update 
In response to the Governors reinstatement of the mask mandate, staff worked with 
the HR department and BAM to distribute updated signage and to monitor related 
incidents.  

General Services purchased an additional 3,000 disposable masks for patron usage. 
Staff continues to monitor and address Covid-19 guidelines based on revised CDC 
and SNHD recommendations. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

401



  

ITEM VI.A.4.c. 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees through Kelvin Watson, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Jeff Serpico, Human Resources Director 
 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Human Resources (HR) Report, September 2021 
 
 
 
 
Section (1) of this report, Fiscal Year HR Goals and Objectives (Plays), covers activity from 
August 1 to August 31.  This section provides updates on HR strategic and operational 
activities. 
 
Section (2) of this report, Transactional Activity & Key Metrics, covers administrative 
transactions (volumes) and key HR measures such as Turnover and Diversity.  The section 
is presented as two separate dashboard reports (attached).   Please note section (2) covers 
the activity from July 1, 2020 to July 31, 2021.  The one-month lag for reporting of HR 
transactional data allows for a full month of data presentation and the ability to meet the 
report submission deadline.   

 
 
 
HR Report Contents: 
 

1. Fiscal Year HR Goals and Objectives (Play) 
2. Transactional Activity & Key Metrics (HR Administrative) 

a. HR Dashboard (Fiscal Year 2020-2021) 
b. Diversity Dashboard (Calendar Year 2021) 

 
 

 
1.  Fiscal Year HR Goals and Objectives (Plays): 
 

• Develop and Maintain Competitive Total Rewards Program: 
o Contract signed with Koff & Associates for Direct and Indirect 

Compensation Analysis 
o Kick-off meeting held with Koff and Associates (August 31) 
o Meeting with Employee Wellness program provider scheduled for 

September 1 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

402



 

Human Resources Report, Page 2 
 

• Develop, enhance and maintain intra-organizational communication 
methods and frequency to enhance employee engagement: 

o 3rd Quarter Labor Management Meeting (August 12) 
o Initial Playbook (Strategic Plan) Presentation (August 25) 
o Concept approval for HR Voyager communication page (August 18) 
o Employee Benefits sections on Voyager format revision (complete) 

 
• Develop and enhance organizational and individual development 

opportunities: 
o Draft - Customer Service class feedback session with A-Team 

(September 22) 
 

• Evolve and champion a culture of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and 
Accessibility (DEIA): 

o Districts DEIA Action Plan (Approved by Board of Trustees on July 8) 
 
 

 
2.  Transactional Activity and Key Metrics: 

 
 

(a) Human Resources Dashboard (attached) 
 
(b) Diversity Dashboard (Q1 attached Q2 revision due to implementation 
of UKG System)  
 
 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

403



9/1/2021 LVCCLD HR DASHBOARD FY2021-2022 

Page 1 HR Dashboard June 2021

LVCCLD FY 2021-2022 HUMAN RESOURCES DASHBOARD

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

Metric 
A Total Employees (Headcount) 620 642 A

B Full-Time Employees  60 hours or more (Headcount) 313 310 B

C Part -Time Employees  59 hours or less (Headcount) 307 333 C

D Full-Time-Equivalent (FTE-District) NA NA D

E Average Years of Service (District) 9.9 9.6 E

F Open Positions (Budget) = 778 158 136 F

G Positions Posted (Approved to Fill) 11 7 G

H Applications Received 414 507 H

I Interviews Conducted 7 6 I

J New Hires 5 2 J

K Promotions 4 4 K

L Lateral Transfers 0 1 L

M Demotions 0 1 M

N Employees Successfully Completing Probationary Period 5 2 N

O (1) Average Cost Per New Hire $19,886.00 $10,366 O

P Total Separations from Employment 8 10 P

Q Voluntary Separations 8 9 Q

R Involuntary Separations 0 0.55 R

S Turnover (Entire District) 1.29% 1.60% S

T Turnover (Without Page Positions) 0.81% 2.19% T

U Annualized Twelve Month Turnover  (Entire District) 15.48% 17.10% U

V Vacancy Rate (Open Positions) / (Total Employees + Open Positions) 20.31% 17.40% V

W Average Years of Service (Voluntary Separations) 1.5 10.1 W

X Average Years of Service (Involuntary Separations) 5.7 3.4 X

Y Employee Attending New Hire Orientation 5 2.45 Y

Z Total Employee Training Encounters 173 93 Z

AA Virtual 76 82 AA

BB Live On-Site 88 7 BB

CC External Conferences 9 4 CC

DD Total Training Cost $6,048.99 $5,030.00 DD

EE Total Tuition Reimbursements $0.00 $3,192.00 EE

FF Undergraduate $0.00 $652.00 FF

GG Graduate $0.00 $2,540.00 GG

HH  (2) Annual Required Compliance Training Completion 98.5% 88.80% HH

II Staff Utilizing FMLA or Unpaid Authorized Leave >  4 weeks 2 5.00 II

JJ Total Leave Hours Utilized 104 269.09 JJ
(1)  8% of Base Salary if less than $35,000 & 10.5% of Base Salary if Greater than $35,000 (Source SHRM 2020) (2) January 21 - Begin new compliance training cycle.  

September restate August - Yellow 

Prior FY 
Monthly 

Average    FY 

Training & Talent Development

Benefits & Wellness

Talent Acquisition & Management

Separations & Turnover

Quarter 1 of FY 2021-2022 FY Monthly 
Average    FY 

2021-2022 

FY Running 
Total (RT) 
TOTAL  FY 

Quarter 4 of FY 2021-2022Quarter 2 of FY 2021-2022 Quarter 3 of FY 2021-2022

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

404



NOTES:
EEO-4 Instruction Booklet - Race and Eth transition match EEO1

Data Pull 03/31/21 

*N= 634

** N= without Page Job Title - 484

*** July 2019 US Census Bureau - Clark County

Quarter 1 2021 (Initial)

A * **Race and Ethnicity Identification ***Clark County (CC) *All District % Variance CC **Without Page % Variance CC
1 Hispanic or Latino (b) 31.60% 143 22.5552% -9.04% 94 19.42% -12.18%

2 White (Not Hispanic or Latino) (41.7%) white alone (a) 41.70% 318 50.1577% 8.46% 253 52.27% 10.57%

3 Black or African American (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 13.10% 65 10.2524% -2.85% 57 11.78% -1.32%
4 Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 0.90% 11 1.7350% 0.84% 9 1.86% 0.96%

5 Asian (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 10.40% 74 11.6719% 1.27% 52 10.74% 0.34%
6 Native American or Alaska Native (Not Hispanic or Latino) (a) 1.20% 3 0.4732% -0.73% 3 0.62% -0.58%
7 Two or More Race (Not Hispanic or Latino) (Combination - 2,3,4,5,6) 4.90% 20 3.1546% -1.75% 16 3.31% -1.59%

(2-6) Overlap 2 or more 103.80% 634 100.00% 484 100.00%

B * **Sex / Gender Identification ***Clark County (CC) *All District % Variance CC **Without Page % Variance CC
1 Female 50.10% 437 68.93% 18.83% 319 65.91% 15.81%
2 Male 49.90% 197 31.07% -18.83% 165 34.09% -15.81%
3 Non Identifying 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00%

100.00% 634 100.00% 484 100.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total

C Job Categories (EE0-4) Hispanic or Latino
White (Not Hispanic or 

Latino) (41.7%) white only 

Black or African 
American (Not 

Hispanic or Latino)

Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander (Not Hispanic or Latino)

Asian (Not Hispanic or 
Latino)

Native American or 
Alaska Native (Not 
Hispanic or Latino)

Two or More Race (Not 
Hispanic or Latino) 

(Combination - 2,3,4,5,6)

1 Officials and Administrators 8 47 17 0 8 0 2 82
2 Professionals 16 34 6 1 11 0 4 72
3 Technicians 10 26 6 2 5 1 0 50
4 Protective Service Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 Paraprofessionals 18 63 9 2 18 0 1 111
6 Administrative Support Workers (Including Clerical and Sales) 91 139 22 5 32 2 10 301
7 Skilled Craft Workers 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
8 Service/Maintenance Workers 0 7 5 1 0 0 3 16

Total 143 318 65 11 74 3 20 634

*Original Job Class-PERCENT-DIST-CC 1 2 3 4 5 6

D Job Categories (EE0-4) Hispanic or Latino
White (Not Hispanic or 

Latino) (41.7%) white only 

Black or African 
American (Not 

Hispanic or Latino)

Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander (Not Hispanic or Latino)

Asian (Not Hispanic or 
Latino)

Native American or 
Alaska Native (Not 
Hispanic or Latino)

Two or More Race (Not 
Hispanic or Latino) 

(Combination - 2,3,4,5,6)
Job Class Count 

Job Class 
% of all 

Positions
1.0 Officials and Administrators 8 47 17 0 8 0 2 82 12.93% Gender Count %
1.1 District Job Class % 9.76% 57.32% 20.73% 0.00% 9.76% 0.00% 2.44% 100.00% Female 49 59.76%
1.2 Variance from CC -21.84% 15.62% 7.63% -0.90% -0.64% -1.20% -2.46% Male 33 40.24%

Non 0 0.00%
2.0 Professionals 16 34 6 1 11 0 4 72 11.36% Gender Count %
2.1 District Job Class % 22.22% 47.22% 8.33% 1.39% 15.28% 0.00% 5.56% 100.00% Female 51 70.83%
2.2 Variance from CC -9.38% 5.52% -4.77% 0.49% 4.88% -1.20% 0.66% Male 21 29.17%

Non 0 0.00%
3.0 Technicians 10 26 6 2 5 1 0 50 7.89% Gender Count %
3.1 District Job Class % 20.00% 52.00% 12.00% 4.00% 10.00% 2.00% 0.00% 100.00% Female 19 38.00%
3.2 Variance from CC -11.60% 10.30% -1.10% 3.10% -0.40% 0.80% -4.90% Male 31 62.00%

Non 0 0.00%
4.0 Protective Service Workers - Outsourced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%

5.0 Paraprofessionals 18 63 9 2 18 0 1 111 17.51% Gender Count %
5.1 District Job Class % 16.22% 56.76% 8.11% 1.80% 16.22% 0.00% 0.90% 100.00% Female 85 76.58%
5.2 Variance from CC -15.38% 15.06% -4.99% 0.90% 5.82% -1.20% -4.00% Male 26 23.42%
5.3 Non 0 0.00%
6.0 Administrative Support Workers (Including Clerical and Sales) 91 139 22 5 32 2 10 301 47.48% Gender Count %
6.1 District Job Class % 30.23% 46.18% 7.31% 1.66% 10.63% 0.66% 3.32% 100.00% Female 233 77.41%
6.2 Variance from CC -1.37% 4.48% -5.79% 0.76% 0.23% -0.54% -1.58% Male 68 22.59%

Non 0 0.00%
7.0 Skilled Craft Workers 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.32% Gender Count %
7.1 District Job Class % 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% Female 0 0.00%
7.2 Variance from CC -31.60% 58.30% -13.10% -0.90% -10.40% -1.20% -4.90% Male 2 100.00%

Non 0 0.00%
8.0 Service/Maintenance Workers 0 7 5 1 0 0 3 16 2.52% Gender Count %
8.1 District Job Class % 0.00% 43.75% 31.25% 6.25% 0.00% 0.00% 18.75% 100.00% Female 0 0.00%
8.2 Variance from CC -31.60% 2.05% 18.15% 5.35% -10.40% -1.20% 13.85% Male 16 100.00%

Non 0 0.00%
Total 143 318 65 11 74 3 20 634 100.00%

LVCCLD Diversity Dashboard 2021 
(Quarter 1)

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VI - Library Reports

405



 
 
 

ITEM VIII.A.1. 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #VIII.A.1.: Discussion and possible Board action to retract approval 
for the Library District’s closure on October 11, 2021 for Staff Development Day. 

 
Background: At the September 10, 2020 Regular Board Meeting, the Board of 
Trustees, in addition to approving thirteen (13) closed days in calendar year 2021, 
agreed to close on Monday, October 11 (Columbus Day) to use as a Staff 
Development Day. The Library District has used this day to gather staff at an off-site 
location to celebrate its accomplishments and educate staff on future goals. 

 
As explained in the next item, the District would like to replace Staff Day with a new 
format, Town Halls occurring biannually.  These will cover communication items 
typically presented during Staff Day. 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to retract approval of October 11, 2021 as a closed 
day for the Library District. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

406



 

AGENDA ITEM 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #VIII.A.2.: Discussion and possible Board action to approve the days 
of closing for calendar year 2022. 

Background: Thirteen (13) paid holidays are allowed to all full-time staff each 
calendar year, as outlined in the Collective Bargaining Agreements between the 
Library District and Teamsters Local Union No. 14.  Board approval is requested for 
closing the Library District for the following thirteen (13) days during calendar year 
2022. In addition, the District would like to replace the additional Staff Day closure 
with a closure for the Juneteenth Holiday going forward.  The new Town Hall 
meetings occurring biannually will cover communication items typically presented 
during Staff Day.   

Saturday, January 1  * New Year’s Day 

Monday, January 17  * Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

Monday, February 21  * Presidents’ Day 

Sunday, April 17  * Easter Sunday 

Monday, May 30  * Memorial Day 

*Sunday, June 19  * Juneteenth 

Monday, July 4  * Independence Day 

Monday, September 5 * Labor Day 

Friday, October 28  * Nevada Day 

Friday, November 11  * Veteran’s Day 

Thursday, November 24 * Thanksgiving Day 

Friday, November 25  * Family Day 

Saturday, December 24 * Christmas Eve 

Sunday, December 25  * Christmas Day 

It is also recommended to close the Library District at 5:00 PM on Saturday, 
December 31, 2022. 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve the proposed days of closing for calendar 
year 2022 and approve Juneteenth as a replacement holiday for Staff Day. 

        
ITEM VIII.A.2. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

407



 

AGENDA ITEM 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #VIII.A.3.:  Discussion and possible Board action to approve the 
District’s Workers Compensation Insurance Renewal.  
 
Background: On September 12, 2019, the Board authorized the purchase of 
Workers Compensation (WC) insurance through the District’s Broker of Record, 
Leavitt Group, from WCF Insurance, in the amount of $73,743, for the period of 
October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020, with the provision for five additional 
renewals, subject to review by counsel.  There was no opposition and the motion 
carried.  The carrier was also changed from Hartford to WCF Insurance Company. 
[MINUTES - LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ 
MEETING LAS VEGAS, NEVADA September 12, 2019 (approved October 10, 2019)]. 

Historically, the District has selected an insurance carrier for an extended period of 
time. This decision is heavily weighted on factors such as cost, the services they are 
able to offer, administrative ease of doing business with them, and their claims 
handling. The initial evaluation of several of these factors, since they involve 
sometimes lengthy administrative processes, often requires an evaluation period of 
greater than one plan year.  The initial moving from one carrier to another carrier 
typically creates disruption in the claims handling process for staff. It can take 
several months to get the process perfected with our managers and with the 
insurance company administrators.  The district’s relationship with our current carrier 
(WCF) has just completed its second year. This last two years of service with WCF 
Insurance has been satisfactory and remaining with WCF Insurance for to 2021-22, 
plan year is desired by the district.   

For the 2021 - 22 WC insurance year, the District's current carrier has provided an 
annual premium renewal quote for $75,778.  The premium increase is in-line with 
rate increases nationwide. 
 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to authorize the second of five renewal options for 
Workers Compensation insurance through the District’s Broker of Record, Leavitt 
Group, from WCF Insurance Company ($75,778 annual) with the provision for three 
additional renewals, subject to review by counsel. 

     ITEM VIII.A.3. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

408



 

AGENDA ITEM 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 - MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #VIII.A.4.:  

Background: Discussion and possible Board action regarding a contract award with 
KME Architects for architectural consulting services for the development of a building 
program for a possible relocation of West Las Vegas Library. 

Recommended Action:  

building program is required for the possible construction of a new West Las Vegas 
Library.  This program will build on the success of the East Las Vegas Library program 
and the District’s strategy to design 21st century Libraries. The program will guide the 
District in its implementation of updated/new library services, and will help to ensure 
that these services and programs are relevant to the West Las Vegas Community.  

The Consultant will lead the District thorough an in-depth programming and 
community engagement process that involves a series of informative stakeholder 
focus-group sessions that will include active community members and organizations, 
political representatives, and District Trustees and staff. 

The consultant’s services include conducting a needs assessment, encompassing input 
and data gathering, an analysis of branch collections, staffing, seating, technology, 
and community meeting space requirements.  
 
The building program will break down all assignable space within the proposed branch 
and include a matrix of common and optional physical elements, facilities 
requirements, and adaptability criteria for future needs. The full scope of work and 
deliverables are outlined below. 
 
KME Architecture is a full service architectural firm and was selected by the Board as 
the Architect of Record for the West Las Vegas Library as part of the Master Plan 
selection process. KME is a certified Minority Business Enterprise, (MBE) as well as a 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, (DBE).  KME has extensive knowledge of the West 
Las Vegas Community having successfully led the community engagement process 
when they were selected by the City of Las Vegas to lead the Master Planning and 
Building Commissioning of the oldest remaining elementary school in Las Vegas, the 
Historic Westside School.  
 
Following is a summary of the scope of work and deliverables the consultant will 
provide: 

NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 
1) Input/Data Gathering: 

     ITEM VIII.A.4. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

409



September 9, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2 – Item VIII.A.4. 
 

a. Review of background information and documentation provided by 
the DISTRICT.  

b. Identification of key external and internal stakeholders. 
c. Creation of surveys and planning schedules for interviews and 

meetings; facilitation of surveys, interviews, and meetings. 
d. Determine what information about the community’s library service 

needs can be assessed through focus groups and interviews with 
stakeholders. Schedule and facilitate focus groups and interviews 
with community members/leaders.  

e. Provide a written analysis of focus group, survey, and interview 
responses and their implications for the West Las Vegas Library’s 
service needs over the next twenty (20) years.  

f. Investigation of potential benefits to the community. 
g. Understanding the culture of the library in the community. 
h. Identification of future library services and library space priorities.  
i. Gathering/reviewing the following data: 
 

 Demographics: most current census information 
 Technology needs 
 Collection development issues 

 
2) Service Profile: Analysis of Collection, Staff, Seating, Technology, and 

Community Meeting Spaces: 

A. Library Collection Profile: 

Provide a collection profile for a library of approximately 35,000 square feet. 
Determine linear feet of collections. Based on collection and growth 
projections, create collection profiles for: 
 

 Reference 
 Fiction 
 Non-fiction 
 Juvenile 
 Young Adult 
 Periodicals 
 Audio Visual 

B. Library Staff Analysis: 

Work with the Library Planning Committee to identify the number of staff, 
their work functions, and space requirements. 

C. Library Seating Analysis: 

Conduct an analysis of the number and types of patron seating: tables, casual 
seating, computer workstations and training centers, group study, homework 
help, and meeting room seats. Create a user seating profile of seating needs 
for juveniles, young adults and adults. 

D. Technology Analysis: 
 

Conduct an analysis of the technology requirements to include future trends, 
i.e. RFID self-checkout and returns, patron and staff computers, etc.  

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

410



September 9, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3 – Item VIII.A.4. 
 

 
E. Community Meeting Space Analysis: 
 

Conduct an analysis of the number, types, and sizes of community meeting 
spaces required. 

BUILDING PROGRAM 
 
Develop a Building Program for a facility of approximately 35,000 square feet that 
will outline all space needs of the library. The Building Program will break down all 
assignable space within the library and include a matrix of physical components 
within the library, future facilities requirements and adaptability criteria to meet 
needs for the next twenty (20) years. 
 
Within the Building Program, the spaces, areas or rooms for separate functions and 
personnel shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

 Customer Service  
 Adult Services 
 Youth Services & Program/Storytime Room 
 Teen Zone 
 Homework Help Center 
 Reading Areas 
 Study Rooms 
 Audio Visual Area  
 Collection Space 
 User Seating 
 Quiet Study Areas 
 Staff Space 
 Administrative & Staff Offices 
 Public Access Computer Area(s) and/or Lab 
 Conference/Meeting Rooms 
 Supplies/Storage  
 Used Bookstore 
 Café and/or Vending 

 
• The Building Program will contain, but not be limited to, the 

following for each area or room: 
 

 Description of furniture and equipment 
 Electrical/telecommunication/data requirements 
 Number of occupancy by staff or patrons of the spaces 
 Type and size of collection 
 Description and analysis of functions that take place in each 

of the spaces 
 Spatial relationships of the functional space 
 Flexibility and expandability of projected space 
 Fenestration requirements 
 Suggested space finishes 
 Accessibility for disabled 
 Acoustical requirements 
 Environmental requirements 
 Signage requirements 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

411



September 9, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4 – Item VIII.A.4. 
 

 Security requirements 
 Visual supervision provisions 

 
 
FINAL DELIVERABLES 
The final deliverables will be ten (10) printed copies and one (1) electronic version 
(PDF) of the final Needs Assessment and Programming Document.  The following is a 
list of information that will be contained within the document: 
 
Additional Presentation(s): Architect will be available to present the results of the 
final documents if additional presentations are requested up to two times. 
 

I. Cover Letter 

II. Existing Data Overview 

a) Library History 

b) Existing Data Analysis 

c) Site and Context Analysis 

d) Existing User Analysis 

III. Defining Goals and Aspirations 

a) Vision and Mission 

b) Design Objectives 

c) Functional Objectives 

IV. Applying Library as Studio Program and Design Methodology 

a) Principles: Strategic Plan and Brand 

b) Core Services 

c) Methodology: Synthesis of User Data, Community 
Engagement and Customer-Centered Program Approach 

d) Customer Journey Narratives 

V. Program 

a) Enumerated Program 

b) Quality of Spaces Description 

c) Program Space Planning Diagrams 

d) Library as Studio Application 
1. Domain Defined 
2. Components Defined 
3. Out comes Defined 
4. Future State: Users, Programs, Collections, Technology, 

Equipment, Staff Skills, Partners and Outreach 

e) Character Imagery - Two(2) concepts 
 
 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

412



September 9, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Page 5 – Item VIII.A.4. 
 
 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to authorize staff to award a contract to KME Architects not to exceed $76,250, 
plus authorized reimbursable expenses, for library building consultant services to 
develop the building programs for a new West Las Vegas Library, subject to final review 
by Counsel.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

413



 

AGENDA ITEM 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #VIII.A.5.:  Discussion and possible Board action to appoint the 
President of the East Las Vegas QALICB, Inc. Board of Directors. 

 

Background:  In July 2021, the Library District Board of Trustees voted in a slate of 
officers and directors for the East Las Vegas QALICB, Inc. This non-profit was formed 
to operate exclusively for the benefit of the Library District for the purposes of the 
East Las Vegas New Market Tax Credits library project that involves acquisition and 
leasing of real and/or personal property subject to restrictions and terms of the 2017 
transaction documents.   

In July, the LVCCLD Board of Trustees appointed Kelvin Watson as President, as an 
interim measure.  This month, staff respectfully requests that Library District CFO 
Floresto Cabias, be appointed as President of this non-profit for the remaining term 
through July, 2022.    

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Appoint Floresto Cabias as the President of East Las 
Vegas QALICB, Inc. for a term through July 2022.    

 

    ITEM VIII.A.5. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda

414



 

AGENDA ITEM 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Item #VIII.B.1.: Discussion and possible Board action to have periodic 
performance reviews of the Executive Director. 

Background: Chair Wilson requested this item be on the agenda. 

Recommended Action: Motion to have the executive committee regularly review the 
Executive Director’s performance through periodically scheduled meetings and report 
summaries of the meetings to the general board at the Executive Director’s annual 
review 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     ITEM VIII.B.1. 

Final - Regular Board of Trustees Meeting - Item VIII.B - New Business - Regular Agenda

415


	Item III - Agenda
	Item IV - Approval of Proposed Minutes
	Item V - Chair's Report
	Item VI - Library Reports
	Item VIII.A - New Business - Consent Agenda
	Item VIII.B - New Business - Regular Agenda

